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Il THE SUHIE COURT oF BRITISH COLUIBIA,
ON APPEAL TO THE FULL COURT.

BETWEEN

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VIO IA

(DEFENDANT) A å

AND

10

MARTHA MARIA LANG, Administratrix of the Estate and

Effects of John Lang, deceased,

(PLAINTIFF) RESPONDENT.

Statement. 20

This is an appeal fromn the Judgment and order of the Hcnorable Mr.

Justice McColl dated the 6th day of November, 1897, that judgment be entered

for the plaintiff against the defendant for $20,000 damages and costs upon the

findings of the jury.

This is one of the many actions brought against the Corporation of the City

of Victoria in respect of the collapse of the Point Ellice Bridge, Victoria, on the

z6th~day of May, 1896, and was brought by the plaintiff as administratrix of her 30

late husband, Dr. John Lang, who received injuries which resulted in his death

at the Jubilee J-Iospital shortly afterwards.





and the Consolidated
action as against the

The action was tried at Vancouver on the 12th, 13th1 and 14 th davs of

October, 1897, before the Honorable Mr. Justice McColi and a Special j ury,

when the jury found a verdict in favor of the plaintiff and awarded $22,500

damages less insurance $2,500, balance $20, 000 divided as follows :-$7,500 to

the plaintiff as widow and $2,500 to eaci of her five children.

Fron this Judgnent the defendant now. appeals.

2.

The action was originally against the Corporation

Railway Company, but the plaintiff discontinued the

defendant Company on the 17th June, 1897.
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PLEADINGS.

Statement of Claim.

Dated the i6th day of June, 1897.

WRIT issued the 24 th day of November, 1896.

10

i. The plaintiff is a widow and resides at the City of Victoria in the
Province of British Columbia and the defendants are a Municipal Corporation
in the said Province of British Columbia.

2. The plaintiff is the wife of John Lang deceased, and was on or about

the 3rd day of August, 1896, duly appointed the administratrix of the estate

and effects of the said John Lang deceased, who died intestate and as such

administratrix sues for'her own benefit as wife. of the said John Lang deceased,
20

and on hehalf of his five infant children.

3. In the year 1885 the Governinent of the Province of British Columbia

constructed a bridge across the ari of the sea called Victoria Armi on or near

Point Ellice for the passage to and fro of foot passengers, horses, and carriages

drawn by horses, and for ordinarv traffic, and the said bridge became and formed

part of a highway between the said City of Victoria and the village of Esquinalt:

4. At the time of the construction of the said bridge as aforesaid it was

withont the limits of the said defendants, but by letters patent issued on the Sth 30

day of january, 1891, confirmed by an Act of the Legislature of the Province
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of British Columbia, passed on the 23rd of April, 1892, chapter 63 of the Acts

of that vear, the boundaries of the said City were extended so as to include the

said bridge and approaches thereto, and the said bridge thereby became the

property of the defendants and has ever since reiaine(d under their sole control

and management.

5. The said defendants, at the tUie the said brilge passed so into thcir poss-

ession and under their management and control weil knew the purposes for

which .t had been constructed.
o

6. The said bridge was an artificial structure and crected on ;id high-

way and the defendants, after the same became subject to its control and

imanageieut as aforesaid, were hound and required in so far as the said bridge

was cariperned and so long as the 4fendants continuied to keep it as part of the

saîd lghway to manage and keep-.the-saine in repair and safe and fit for persons

and vètieles lawfully passing over and ilong the sanie, but the defendlants so

managed and neglected to repair it that the sfie bccaie dangerous to persons

and vehicles lawfjlly passing over and along it.

20
7. At the tîme ti -said bridge was taken over by the Citv as aforesaid,

the rails of a certain tramway operater in the Citvof Victoria, were laid tiereon

and theitrancars were in the habit of crossing upon and over the said bridge as

the dfeindants were well aware. Th..said bridge, at the tîme the Citv assumed

'ht anag'ement and control of the said highway of the said bridge forming part

thelegf, was entirely unsuited for tramway purposes as the defendants were well

aware, as the sanie had not heeeeonstructe for that purpose or in a suffici-

en t1ycýr4iig and substantial nnier to bear the weight of the cars which were

bein run thereon, yet the said defendants perifiitted tie said bridge to be

used for the purposes aforesaid altiough thev well knew that its structure was

altogether too unsubstantial for sucli purposes, and the plaintiff says that

altliough the defendants had fuli knowiedge in the preises yet tlev invited

the public to use the said bridge as part of tie said highway.

8. eThe defendants, from time to time in attempting to repair and doing

workin coniiection with te repairing of said bridge. weakened the beais

thereof by boring. auger holes therein and otherwise which tended to hasten

the decar of the said bridge and increased its weakness, and by divdig the

fooring on said bridge which further increased its *'eakness. 40

9. The said John Lang on the 26th day ôf Mav :896, become a passen-

ger on the tramcar of the Consolidated RaiLwa'y Company which was carr\æg

passengers along the said highway and aloncg and over the said bridge forminig
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part thereof, and wbile the said John Lang was being lawfully carried on and

over said bridge the samue gave way and the said car was precipitated into the

water under said bridge whereby the said John [,ang was drowned.

Io. It was in.consequence of the defendants negligently continuing the

said bridge in the condition in which it was in, and for its negligent manage-

ment thereof, and of its neglecting to repair it and negligently repairing it as

aforesaid, that the said bridge gave way whaile the tramcar, on which the said

John Lang was being cairied, was crossing it.

The plaintiff laims $25,000 by reason

his costs in this action.

The plaintiff proposes that this action

of*the wrongs complained of

be tried at Vancouver

Amended Particulars of Misfeasance.

1. Placing defective stringers on which the car rails of the Consolidated

Railway Company rested in the bridge mentioned in the Statement of Claim in

the month of July, 1892.

2. Negligently placing stringers in said bridge in the month-ofJuly, 1892.

3. Boring an auger hole in a floor beam of the said bridge in the month

of June, 1892, and negligently plugging the hole.

4. In removing the flooring in said bridge

divided fooring.

5. By changing in 1892 the floor beams

smaller dimensioni.

in 1892, and replacing. it by

of said bridge for beams of a

and
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Statementopf Defence.

Dated the 3 rd day of July, 1897.

intiff, i not and iever was the administratrix as alleged or

endant as t< paragraph 3 of the Statement of Claimn admitr
e prior to the 26th day of May, 1896, the Province of British
ucted a bridge known as the Point Ellice Bridge butthe stid
hen and does not now forn part of an alleged highw'* between
ria and the village of Esqunimalt.

aragraph 4 of the Statement of Claim, the, defendant admnits
of the construction of- the said ,bridge as aforesaid the said
out the limits of the said City of Victoribut the said limits
nded as alleged or otherwise so as to inc4pde and do not now
ge and approaches thereto and the said bridge did not become
he property of the defendant as alleged or otherwise and has 20
become and is not now under the sole control and manage-
ndaht.

d bridge was and is constructed upon and over a public har-
f the sea known as the- Victoria Arm, thë waters whereof at
e the said bridge is constructed were and are tidal and navig-
ssels and over and upon the foreshore of the said harbour and
the city linits referred to did not include within the city

of the highway on which the said bridge was constructed .as
same always was and remained under the exclusive control of 30
f Canada and if the limits of the said -City -ever were assumed
o as.to include the land and alleged highway upon which the
constructed and to devolve or vest the same in any way in-the
, saine was assumed to be done i--,an order of the Lieutenant-
uncil of the Province of British Columbia the. subject inatter
being within the power or control of the said Provincial

id Corporation of the City of-Victoria never acquired took over
ession of the said bridge as alleged or otherwise, but the saine
the property and subject to-the control and management of the

6
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Province of British Columbia, and the defeidant has never knowiy and does

not know the purposes for which tie said bridgý was Constructed as aforesaid.

6. If the Conlsolidated -Railway Coipnany had or actinired anv riglt to

use such brilge for the purp)se of running cars and carrying passengers over

saimle such right was acquired fron the Province of Britislh Coliumbia and not

from the defendant. Trhe lefendanthadli not andii never lias'had anv poer to

prevent or regilate the use.of the said bridge bv the said' Consolida ted Rail-

waV Coimpan and (1did not know whecther or not the said bridge was sufficiently

strong and substantial to bear the weigLit of the cars wiîcl were being run or

used thereon and never invited the p)ub1l>ic or the Consolidated Railway Com-

pany to use the said bridge as part-of the said alleged highwa or otherwise.

7. No auger holes were' bored I any beains of' the said B1ridge by the

defendant or any one iii its emlployment or service as alleged or otherwise and

nothing was done by the defendant that weakened in any% wav the said bridge

or the beains thereof and the defendant dd ntot divide the dooring.of the said

Bridge as alleged otherwise. 20

8. If the defendant did an work of reconstruction or of repair on the

said Bridge it was done voluntarily and not in pursiance of any power oli-

gation or duty iniposed on the Corporation in that behalf wlhether by Statute,

Bv L4aw or o)tlierwise and the work was done careful.lv and in a workiaiike

manner and the bridge was thereby iimproved in regard to the safet telireof and

if sane afterwards fell into disrepair t was not by the n-gliigence or fault of the

defendant and the death of the sa id John Lalg was not caused by any of the

acts or defailts charged against the Corporation or any neglect on its part.
3()

9. The said John L ang was not on lte 26h11 day of May, n'896, a passenger

on the traicar of the Consolidated Railway Conpauvwhich was carrying

passengers over the said bridge whe the saie gave way as aleged or

otherwise.

10. If should be proved that the said John Lang was a passenger on

the said car and if it should be proved that the said car was overcrowded the

said John Lang lhad fuill notice and knowledge that the said car was so over-

crowded and that the said bridge was unsafe and he was contributory to s

death by his negligence and i n boarding an overcrowded car.

il. The said bridge was at the time aforesaid in a 'nt and proper and

safe condition for ail ordinarv purposes Of traficincluding car traic and anv

breakage of said bridge was caused by the act of the Consolidated Railway
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Company by reason of the excessive weight of their cars and the overloading
of the saine without the knowledge of and without failt upon the part of the
defendant.

12. As to paragraph 6, 7, 8, and 1o the defendant will object that no
liability or duty is or was imposed upon it by Statute By-Law or otherwise to
keep main or preserve said bridge in a good state of repair and in a fit and
proper and safe condition for the purposes as alleged or otherwise.

13. No loss lias becn suffered as alleged or otherwise.

14. The admissions made herein are made for the purposes of this action
only.

15. Save as aforesaid the defendant denies each
contained in the plaintiffs statenent of claim.

and every allegation

Reply.

Dated 7 th July, 1897.

i. The plaintiff joins issue upon the allegations contained
ment of Defence delivered herein.

in the State-

2. For further reply to paragraplis 4, 5, 6 and i i of the Statenent of

Defence of the defendants, the plaintiff says that the'allegations contained in
said paragraphs are io answer in law to the plaintiff's daim in this action",4
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TRIAL.

FIRST DAY.

i 2th October, 1897.

Mr. D. G. Macdonell, with Mr. E. P. Deacon for the plaintiff; Mr. W. J.
Taylor, Mr. R. Cassidy, and Mr. C. Dubois Mason for the defendant corpor-
ation.

10

Case for the Plaintiff.

MARTHA M. LANG. Called by Mr. Macdonell.

Mr. Taylor (to Mr. Macdonell): You do not want to call Mrs. Lang, do
von ? As far as the fact that she is a widow, and lier husband was killed iii
this accident, and she is his administratrix, and has five children, I an quite 20
willing to adinit that.

Mr. Macdonell: And the age of her husband ?

Mr. Taylor: Whatever Mrs. Lang savs about that I will accept.

Mr. Macdonell: And that he was in a good state of health?

Mr. Taylor: I thonght that was all agreea on, before hand.

Mr. Macdonell: I thought that was reserved to mv learned friend

9
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Mr. Taylor: I understood, niy lord, that these facts were ail adinitted, and
there is really no necessity of taking up any time for we (1o admit it, if there is
any doubt our not having admitted it before.

Court: Unless von have some writtcu admissions, the better wav will be
to.state what you admit.

Mr. Taylor: I will go over it again: I admit that Dr. Lang was killed in

this accident-That Mrs. Lang is his widow and administratrix, and that I see
she states she has 5 children here, all of which I presume is correct. I admit 10

that fact and their ages-that has not been stated in the pleadings, but whatever
Mrs. Lang says as to that, without being sworn, I will admit.

Mr. Macdonell: And that lier husband was in a good state of health?

Mr. Taylor: Well, I have no reasan to know to the contrary.

Mr. Macdonell: Well admit that, and that is all.

Mr. Taylor: Certainlv. You want the ages admitted, do you ? 20

Mr. Macdonell: Yes.

Mr. Taylor: Weil, let Mrs. Lang state them without being sworn.

Mr. Macdonell (to Mrs Lang): What was the age of your husband, Mrs.

Lang? A 37.

Q How old was vour eldest child ? A When he died?

Q Yes? A Seven-six and a-half. 30

Q At the time of his death ? A Yes.

Q And the next child ? A Five.

Q And what was the next? A Four, and the other was three, and the

next was 13 months.

Q The voungest was 13 months old when he died ? A Yes.
40

Q Were they boys or girls ? A Four boys and a girl. My eldest is a

girl.

Mr. Taylor: Which is the girl? A The eidest is the girl and the rest

are all bovs.

10



%N

IeM L,

4e ù

IV

e..

b-.

J4
k'

st

.:vte.



Mr. Macdonell: What was his profession? (To Mr. Taylor): Do you
admit that?

Mr. Taylor: Certainly.

Court: We do not take it through a witness who is not sworn. What I
asked you to do was to state those facts that will be admitted.

Mr. Macdonell (to Mrs. Lang): Wli-t ,was his income, Mrs. Lang?
1o

Mr. Taylor: Well, now, on the question of income, 1 think I have the
right.

Court: Ves, you are entitled to-let the witness be sworn.

20

EVIDENCE.

MRS. LANG, Sworn.

Court: Before you go on with this examination, let the stenographer read
out the admissions that have been made. (Which was done.) 30

Mr. Taylor: And I admit their ages to have beem 7, 5, 4, and 3 years,
and 1 3 months, respectively-that the eldest is a girl and the rest are boys.

Mr. Macdonell: And that he was in a good state of health at the time of

his death?

Mr. Taylor: I stated that I have no reason to know to the contrary; and
he was a passenger on the hind platform. I think that is in the pleadings.

40

The Court: And his death ?

Mr. Macdonell: It was admitted that he was killed in the accident-his

death resulted from the accident.
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Mr. Taylor: I misunderstood you. I may say this: I admit he was on

the rear platform of the car. He did not die as a matter of fact for some few

days after the accident. I admit that his death resulted from the accident near-

ly three weelfs after the accident.

Court: The length of time that elapsed is immaterial, is'nt it?

Mr. Taylor: I thought you asked me whether he was killed immediately.

i Mr. Macdonell (to witness): What income was he deriving from his pro- 1o

fession, at the time of his death, Mrs. Lang? A From $280.oo to $300.oo aý

month.

2 Q He was in active practice, Mrs. Lang, at the time of his death? A

Yes, oh, ves.

Cross-examination by Mr. Taylor.

3 Q Am I correct in assuming, Mrs. Lang, that von judged that from his

day book? Von looked at it after his death ? A Yes. 20

4 Q Two hundred and eighty to three- hundred dollars. I suppose vou

know, as a matter of fact, that doctors have a good deal in their day book thev

do not get paid for? A I know that he made that; 'that he did make that.

5 Q It is a fact, though, Mrs. Lang, that there is a great deal of money they

have on the books thev do not collect ? · A Yes, I know that, too.

6 Q The verv large proportion of it, is'nt it people they have to' attend out

of charity, who are poor and cannot pay ? A Yes, but I am not counting that. 30

I am leaving that out though.

7 Q You took the whole amount of his day book at $280.oo or $300.oo a

month ? A Well, I know that he made that.

8 Q But yon did take that from the day book ? A Yes.

9 Q Had he any insurance, Mrs. Lang ? A Yes, $2500.00 of insurance,

10 Q I infer when von. said insurance von neant life insurance ? A Yes. 4o

C. D. BRANCH. Called and sworn

Examined bv Mr. Macdonell.

12





i r Q What is your name? A Charles D. Branch.

12 Q What is your occupation? A I am manager for this business-Sun
Life Insurance Co.

13 Q Will you tell me what amount ,will purchase an annuity of $28o.oo
monthly, or payable quarterly for a man who is 37 ? A Ves-l had the wrong
figures altogether.

Court: If this witness is not ready, let him withdraw. This evidence can 10
be introduced at a later stage.

Witness stands aside.

CHAS. FERN. Called and sworn.

Examined by Mr. Macdonell.

14 Q What is your name? A Charles Fern.

15 Q Where do you reside, Mr. Fern ? A I reside at Victoria. 2

16 Q What is your occupation? A I drive the Victoria Phoenix Brewerv
wagon.

17 Q Do you know Point Ellice Bridge? A Ves, sir.

18 Q Do you remember being there on the 26th May, 1896? A Yes, sir.

19 Q What were you doing? A ' was driving the wagon across the bridge
behind the car. 30

ao Q Behind what car ? A Behind car No. 16.

21 Q. Is that the car that wentfdown in the accident ? A Yes, that's the

car that went down in the accident:

Court: There cannot be any objection to your leading as to all matters

not in dispute, until the other side object.

22 Mr. Macdouell (to witness): You saw the whole accident? A Yes sir.
40

23 Q What did you first observe about the car after vou got on the bridge ?
A Well, I was-going behind the car-I was a little behind it-about 70-
about 60 or 70 feet at the time it entered the bridge, and I was going along
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there until I got on to that span that went down, and I saw when I was going

'tnderneath there, under the uprights there, I saw a bend underneath the car

wbeel.

24, Q You call those (indicating) the uprights i A I call those the up-

rights. I was going in there, sir.

25 Q And you saw what? A I was going on froni the Victoriaside behind

the car,

26 Q The car was going towards which end ? A The car was going on-

towards Esquimalt.

27 Q How far on the bridge had it got when you observed anything wrong?

A It had got to about half way when I saw a bend under the car wheel.

28 Q Which car wheel ? A The one nearest Victoria, on the side of the

Gorge.

29 Q Would that be the north side or the south side? A That is on the
20-

north side.,

30 Q How muchof a bend did you observe in the rail A It went to

about, a foot, I guess.

31 Q When you say about half way would it be nearer the Victoria side, or

the Esquimalt.side ?

Mr. Taylor: Now, I must object to that. There is the square answer of

the witness, and.this is cross-examination to further ask him about that.
30

- Court: I do not see any objection. Witness: Well, it was about half

way.

32 Mr. Macdonell: .Then you saw the rail bend ? A Yes.

33 Q About a'foot. What then? A Well, I heard a great crash like a

falling tree.

34 ,Q What does a falling tree sound. like t A Well, It is one great crash,

if you understand. 40

35 Q What would it be-the sound? A it was like a large tree falling
just when it is breaking off, you see, before it is thoroughly cut through.

14
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36 Q So that it would be like breaking timber, would it ? A ¥es.

37 Q That was the first sound you heard ? A 'Ihat was the first one after
I saw the bendunderneath.

38 Q What position was the car in then ? A It was a little lower on the
north side, and then when this sharp snap-when this crash was, then it went
to get level again.

39 Q What position would the car be in as far as distance is concerned ? A I
Well, it was about even: well, it was begiining to lower then, you know.

40 Q. No, I am t^alking at what distance froni the Esquiinalt end would the
car be then? A It was about half wav.

4r Q Between what? I arn talking now when youheard the crash, how
far from the Esquiinalt end ofthe span would the car be then ? A Well, it
was about 75 feet i guess.

42 Q Was the car moving? A Yes, it was moving until it begun to 20
break, and then it stopped.

43 Q Fron the time the rail. bent' until you heard the crash was the car
moving? A No sir.

44 Q Eh ? A Well, from the time the rail bent, yes, it was.

45 Q. Was it-going toward the Esquimalt or the Victoria side? A It was
going towards Esquimalt.

30
46-Q Then it was nearer the Esqitimalt end when you heard the crash ?

Mr. Taytor: I subrnit it is not a fair question.

Court: Mr. Taylor's objection evidently is that it is leading. You are
approaching the disputed points, bear in mind.

47 Mr. Macdonell (to witness): After vou had seen the rail bend, how far
do you think the car had got on to Esquimalt end, before you heard the large
cracking noise? A Well, it didn't get any chance scarcely at all, because
the other one, you see,- soon followed, it didn't get any chance to get nuch 40
further.

48 Q 1t would get how much, do vou think ? A Well, a few feet, may
be-may be 4 Or 5 or 5 or 6 feet

s 15
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49 Q It was xnoving all the tine ? A Movincg sliglitly, yes, the car was
going very slowly on the span because there was another one in front.

50 Q TIhenî you heard this large crash! A Yes.

51 Q And after that ? A Then there were a whole lot of sharp snaps, side-
walk rails, and these timbers above, and one thing and another, and then the
whole thing went down.

52 Q What were you doing during the time the bridge was• bending? A 10

When I caught sight of the first bend, I began to back up. I looked over. to
each side to see if I could turn, but I could not do it, so began to back up very
sudden, and I broke a uew backing strap for backing sudden, and I backed up
till I couldnt do it auy longer-till I heard screans at the back of the wagon,
and I could not get it through, and

53 Q How far wére you across when vou saw the car rail bend ? A saw
the horses and half the wagon on the span.

54 Q How many feet would that be ? A Well, I guess about 8 feet may- 20
be.

55 Q Then you backed 15 feet from the timie you saw the rail bend until
yon saw the bridge bend down ? A Ves.

56 Q Anid it must have taken that timie to fall ? A Yes, you see I backed
very rash-I backed very sudden.

57 Q How many seconds do you think it would take to back? A Well,
it took 6 or 8 seconds, of course. I had- i people in ny wagon besides my: 30
self, and some beer.

58 Q It took you that time to back off? A Yes.

59 Q Do you know how long that span is? A No, I don't knowexactly
how long it is. • I guess it is about 140,or 150.feet.

6o Q Do vou remnember seeing Mr. Wilson, the bridge superintendent, on

the bridge? A Yes, he was pretty close to the other end towards Esquimalt.
40

61 Q How far was he from the car ? A Well, he was just in front of it-

just slightly in front of it; he was getting on towards the other end.
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62 Q Andthe front of the car was elose to him A
was a little further in the front.

63 Q Do you remeinber what they call a Gladstone
A Yes, I seen sone people-I can't -hardly rememnber
in that.

Well, slightly. He

trap on that bridge
how many there was

64 Q Do you know who was in that? A There was Potts.

65 Q Where was the car in comparison to himi ? Where was lie in compar- 10
ison to the car ? A He was about alongside the car. He was just behind
Wilson, and. then there was Mr. James with his bicycle there.

Cross-exa:nination by Mr. Cassidy.

66 Q How far was the car ahead of your wagon ?-in feet? A It was
about 6o or 70 feet.

67 Q You were coming fron the Victoria side going over towards Esqui-
malt? A .Yes. 20

68 Q You were just about here (indicating)? A Yes.

69 Q Von had just got to the Victoria side of the span with your wagon

when you saw the bend in the right rail ? A I was further on than tgat-

further on than where your finger points.

70 Q Well, this is the beginning of the span ? A That is the beginning

of the span, but I was away further on. I was underneath that (hip vertical).

I was away further on than where your finger is. 30

71 Q You were just under here (indicating portal brace)? A Yes.

72 Q At ali events, you were exanined at the inquest! A Well, it might

slightly be further across, according to the way I can remember now it must

be a little further than that, slightly-probably I was, but then thehorse takes

you a little further ahead again, you see.

73 Q At all events you were just entering on
about 6o feet ahead ofyou ? A Yes.

74 Q Sixty té seventy ? A Well, of course,
can only tell you what I think about it.

this, and the car was

I havn't measured. I
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75 Q You have said already in your examination to niy frienà that the

car would be about 75 feet on the spannd about half way There was an-

other car on ahead of the first one, was there iot? A Ves, sir.

76 Q It had not got off the bridge, had it ? A It was just getting off
when the other began to give way.

77 Q Off the bridge, or the spanjý A, It was off that spau-j ist get-

ting off then.

78 Q Then the.other car was just getting off this span, but on ýto the

next span towards the Esquimalt end ? Yes, when I saw the bridge bend.

79 Q Whereabouts wvas the bend witli
say, the last car-the one that -went through
nearest Victoria on the North side.

8ô Q That would be one of the rear

whect ? A Yes.

81 Q Did you notice any vibration on

-82 Q Swaying apart fron the- .A
the lirst span befde it came to this one.

83 Q That is to say, over the- A

regard to the car! I in an to
A It was under the wheel

wheels ,-the right hand rear

20

the bridge' A Yes, sir.

There was great vibration over

Over the first fron the road.'

84 Q That is to say, right fron the tine vou got on to the bridge frin

the Victoria side, you noticed great vibration? A ¥es, I noticed great

vibration.

85 Q When you say vibration do vou mean lateral vibration in th s

way, or swaying up and down? A I mean the bridge going this way-the

rods all seemed as if they were loose.

86 Q The bridge was shaking from side to side

and the rods seemed as though they were loose.

87 Q Did you notice the first car get
noticed it go over ahead of us.

88 Q Did you notice the vibration when

A Well, I was not quite close enough to it.

A Yes, like that;

on the bridge A Yes, I

the first car was going over
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89 Q Did it alarm you-this vibration? A No, it didn't alarm me
any more than usual. I had often noticed as -nuch when I had been going
over with heavy loads; it did'nt alarm me-well, I always used to notice. it
to a certain extent. I used to think it was not a very safe bridge-I thought
it was too shaky, I thought all the time.

Redirect by Mr. Macdonell.

90 Q I suppose you heard the rods rattling ? A Yes, I always heard
them.

91 Q Wheu yon saw the bend1
how far that bend extended forward?
the front, and the car canted slightly,

92 Q Yes, but the bend ina:
beyond it ? A A little beyond.

under the hind wheel you did not know
A Well, it extended forward as far as

and then when the-

y have extended to the front wheel and

Mr. Taylor : I submit this is not new matter.

Court ; I will let you re-cross-examine.

F. J. PEATT. Called and sworn. Examined by Mr. Macdonell.

93 Q What is your name ? A Frederick James Peatt.

94 Q Where do you live? A Victoria.

95 Q What is your occupatiÔn' A Conductor.

96 Q On the tram ? A Yes, the B. C. Electric Tramway Co.

97.
down ?

What is the length ofrone of those big cars-this,
A It was about 30 to 36,feet over all.

98 Q Do you know how far the trucks are apart?
be about 20 feet.

A

car 16 that went 40

Oh, they would

j. E. 4>
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99 Q Have you measured them ? A No, I have never measured them -

1 could not say.

xoo Q You know this car that went down in the accident ? A Yes.

101 Q The number was - ? A 16

xoa Q Had that car been running on that bridge before ? A Oh, yes,
off and on at'various times.

10
103 Q From when ? A Well, she was running all the holidays.

104 Q I mean, when did she start to run-what year? A Well, I
could not say exactly.

105 Q Do you know if'she started in '92, '93 or '94 ? A I think it
was about '90, '92 '91, along there she started.

1o6 Q And she 'had been running continuously up to this time of
the accident ? A Yes, to the time of the accident. 20

Mr. Taylor: Excuse me, he does not say that.

107 Mr. Macdonell (to witness): Had she been running continuously,
off and on, up to the time of the accident A Yes, but not on that route.

1o8 Q How often had she been running on that route ? A Well, jtst
on these special days.

1o9 Q How many special davs would there be in a year, do you 3

think ? A Well, there would be about ten-twelve-just whenever-they
did'nt rutn her constant-just when they had'nt any other cars, why, thedy
used to run her on.

i10 Q Did she carry large holiday excursions? A Ves, she was the

largest car they had.

1i Q Was she running in "95 over this sane bridge? A Yes.

112 Q And in '96 up to the tine of the accident A Up to the time
40

of the accident.

113 Q Do you know if a car bad just the same or as.heavy a load in
95 as at the time of the accident? A Well, yes, just about as heavy she

carried very heavy loads.
20

à
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Cross-examined by Mr. Cassidy.

114 Q How many people were on that car ? A Well, as near as I can
judge, it was about 120, or 115 to 120.

115 Q There was another car just ahead ? A Yes.'

116 Q How many were on that car? A Well, there would be from 75
to 80.

10
117 Q What is the weight of car 16? A Very near 1o ton.

118 Q That Point Ellice Bridge is on the Esquimalt road ? A Yes.

i9 Q Do you know where the Gôr-ge road is ? A Yes.

120 Q It is not the-same road ; it-is a different road-the Gorge road ?
A Well, yes, it is a different road.

121 Q That bridge there goes over an armi of the sea called the Victoria
20

Arm, doesn't it ? A Yes.

122 Q The harbor of Victoria runs right up to.it? A A part of it.

123 Q And the ships come right up to the bridge? A Yes, close to
the bridge.

124 Q What is the name of the motorneer on vour car A Farr-
Thomas Farr.

125 Q When the bridge collapsed the upper beams of the bridge fell 0

down on the car, did they not ? - A Well I could not see, I am sure ; I

suppose they did, it all came right -on top of the car.

126 Q The motorneer was killed was he not by one of those beams?

A He was killed, ves, I believe he was killed before he reached the water.

127 Q By one of those beans! A Yes.

128 Q You were on the rear platform ? A Ves, I was standing up
40

just inside of the car-justinside of the door.

29 Q Did vou k.now the plaintiff in this case. Dr. Lang ? A Yes, by
sight.

21
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130 Q Where was he standing? A He wàs on the front platform, I
believe, so I understand ; I could not be certain.

131 Q What is your account of what happened first, in the way of any-
thing to attract yo.ur attention to danger ? A Well, I heard the crash, and
then the next thing I was in the water.

132 Q Whereabouts was the crash when you first heard it ? A Well,
the car was very near the centre of the span.

10
133 Q It was proceeding towards the Esquimalt end and had nearly

reached the centre ? A Yes, that is the centre of the first

134 Q Span that went down ? A Ves.

135. Q Where did the sound come from nwhich you first heard-what
you cail the crash ? A Well, I could not say exactly; it was jùst like some-
thing breaking-some beams or ti¢mbers.

136 Q You, of course, being on the rear platform were outside the car ? 20
A No, I was inside the car, standing up just inside of the door.

137 Q The first thing that you noticed was the falling of the beams was
it not, from above ? A No, of course I could not see anything at all. I could
not see the beams falling ; I was inside.

138 -Q You know however beams did fall from above and struck the car
before it went down ? A I could not see at all.

139 Q Well, x'ou know the motorneer was killed in that way? 30

Court: How could he tell?

140 Q Mr. Cassidy (to witness): You saw it, did'nt vou ?k A No, I
did not.

141 Q Did you yourself hear any of these beams strike the roof of the
car? A Nol I did not.

142 Q Yon just heard a crash? A I just heard a crash, and then the 40
next second I was in the water; it could not. have been more than many
seconds.

22
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143 Q You mean to say the whole thing seemed to give way all at
once? A Ves, the whole thing seemed to give way all at once.

144 Q Practically without any. interval ? A No, I don't think there
was any interval at all.

145 Q The whole bridge seemed to collapse? A Ves.

146 Q And in fact, just fell about your ears and vou all came down
together ? A Yes,.all came down together. Io

147 Q Did you go down with the car in the water A Yes.

148 Q Did the-car maintain its horizontal position in going down A
Well, it seemed to take a pitch up towards the Gorge, that is, towards the Gorge
side of the bridge.

149 Q That.is to say, it canted over? A Yes.

i50 Q To what extent was that cant, now A Oh, I could not say. 20

151 Q It was not a great cant ? A I could not say, I am sure, how
mich it was.

152 Q At all events, it was a side motion-a cant over to the right side.

153 Q You said in your evidence at a former trial the structure seemed
to fall at once-in other words it went down something likç an elevator' A
Yes.

.54 Q Isthat*rirht? A Ve Î 3ô-

55 Q That is to say that the floor of the bridge appeared just simply to
fall down. straight A Ves, to go right through.

156 Q In other words, as if the supports from above had given wav and
it fell through ? Aý iThe whole thing seemed to. come open immediately ; I
just heard the crash and then the next thing the whole thing- was in the water.

157 Q That. is to say the floor did not buckle up in the middle A
Not that I- 4

58 Q So as to leave two declivities-one at each side,-it went down

23
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straight ? A Yes, everything was down; everything was cleared right away
when I come up.

159 Q And the whole floor of the bridge went straight down ? A Yes.

Redirect by.Mr. Macdonell.

16o Q You were inside the car! A Yes, sir.

161 Q You are judging not fromn what you saw but from what you'felt?

A Ves; just what I felt.

162 Q Because it would be impossible, I mean, to see? A Oh, I

could not see anything.

163 Q And I suppose you could not see even the end of the bridge from

where you were in the car - A No, fnot then.

164 Q And you are judging now of about where the car was, from the

velocitv it had ?-the car was moving? -A Ves, it was going very slow. 20

165 Q You-think, then, you would be about half way across the span ?

A Yes, about half way. I could not tell youi exactly because I was inside of

the -car.

j66 Q And it might have been a little nearer

Mr. Cassidy: Does your Lordship think, in view of the examination he

presented to the witness that this arose

30
Court: Yes, I think it arises out of your cross-examination. I will let

von re-cross-exammfle.

Mr. Cassidy: But I want to point out it is a very important point-the

gist of the thing, and I would ask mv friend not to lead his witness.

Court :Yes I was going to say he must not lead.

167 Mr. Macdonell Could the car have been a little nearer the Esqul-

malt end than the centre ?-was it possible ?

Objected to by Mr. Cassidy.

168 Mr. MacdonellI: I will put it another way. (To witness):' You

24
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could not see either end of the span? A No, I could iot see either end of the

span ?

169 Q So that the exact position of where the car was you could not be
positive? A No, I could not be positivé ; I could not swear to it.

170 Q But judging from the rate the. car was going you thought the end
would probably be near the centre

Court : Mr. Macdonell, you should not indulge in that.

Mr. Macdonell I will put it another way.

Court : No ; listen a moment. The mischief is done, and the jury will
probably think, as this is evidence of belief antimpressioi that it will lose the
weight it might otherwise have, if the witness-did not adopt vour own sugges-
tions. There is no difficulty in getting his ovn view of what occurred without
getting the answers framed by the questions.

171 Mr. Macdonell (to witness): You could not see either end of the 20

span ? A No.

172 Q You were inside ? A Yes.

173 Q Then, as vou said before, vou are only judging according to the
speed of the car where the car was? A Yes.

174 A juror: Would the bridge rattle and shake like whenever the car
went on ? A Yes; it alwavs did that.

30
Mr. Taylor; I would ask your Lordship to ask-as I do not suppose it is

proper for me to do so-a question which occurs to me as the result ofa.question

just asked?

Court: Yes, certainly.

175 Mr. Taylor: The question was this: He speaks of the bridge

shaking and rattling when a car went on. Does he mean by that a swaying

motion-vibration above the car ?
40

176 Court (to witness): You hear the question? A Yes.

177 Mr. Taylor: It was the upper structure that was vibrating? A

Yes; those irons and things which are on-

25
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178 Q Would sway? A Ves-woukl sway.

179 Q And that was always so, and the stronger
greater the vibration ? A Yes, with a heavv load.

the load, I suppose, the

C. D. BRANCH. Recalled. Examined by Mr. Macdonell.

18o Q I think you stated you were manager of the Sun Life Insurance
Co. ? A Yes, sir.

181 Q What ainount would it require to purchase an annuity to pro-
duce $280.oo a month, payable. quarterly, or the way vou figured it, for a per-

son 37 years old? A $57,052.80.

182

equal to
month.

Court: Vou mean it would take thatsuin to purchase an annuity
$28o.oo a month A To purchase an annuity equal to $28o.oo a

183 Q What expectation of life do vou place that at ? A Age 37.

184 Q But the expectation of life ? A At that age, 29 years declinal 6.

After Recess.

Mr. Macdonell :
case, I am filing now,

I wish to put in these exhibits that were in the Patterson

my Lord, the by-laws or r'ather-

Court :· Exhibit "A"-printed by-law.

Mr. Macdonell Yes, probablv, my Lord, if they could be numbered the

same as. thev are in the Patterson case, we could remnember them better hereafter.





Court : Very well.

Mr. Macdonell: There is by-law No. 124, -that is not numbered in the Pat-
terson case-if some other number could be ,put on- that-the extension of the
corporation limits.

Court: Why not keep it to the end of the list ? Vou will have probably
a number for it. You will have to put them in regularly, you know. I have
nothing to do with the Patterson case.

I0
Mr. Macdonell : No, my Lord; I understand. Call John Cox.

Mr. Taylor: In this regard I may s'ay that iny learned friend obtained an
order to examine Cox before trial, and he was examined. His evidence is all
down and it could be read. It would prevent going ail over it again and save
an enormous amount of time. If my learned friend even wants to read his tes-
timony in the Patterson case and in this case, put them both in, if you want to.

Mr. Macdonell : There was a lot of evidence that was irrelevant ; it took
two or three hours, and I think it will shorten it to have him examined again. 20

Mr. Taylor : I submit that having taken this evidence de bene esse, we
are entitled to have it In. This was taken by consent.

Court: You do not suggest that notwithstanding the plaintiff's counsel
should wish to call the witness, lie should not be exaiined ?

Mr. Taylor: The consent was this evidence should be put in and read
at the trial, as I understood it, and that puts mue rather in this position, in
order to oblige one side they examined a witness aînd his evidence was taken 30
down, and then perhaps it did not suit, and now I subnit that arrangement
-sliould bind both parties.

Court: I do not see how it can be, possible to bind him to that.

Mr. Taylor: Would vour lordship allow me to suggest a reason whv that
should be so ?

Courts- No, pardon me; no reason vou could urge would weigl with me.
If you have a binding authoritv I would acquiesce- but the principle of the 40
thing is so much the other wav that I could not listen. It is unsound.

Mr. Taylor: I should like to put this principle before Vou. The
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defendant in the case consents to the examination of a particular witness, and
it is consented that the evidence shall go in at the trial. Vou rely upon that,
and perhaps find at the trial the man coinpletely changes his testimony, and
therefore that is what I say is not a fair proceeding to force us like that. Suppose
Cox comes and completely changes his testimony ? We de conipletely taken
by surprise. We might have otherwise had anothe.r witness liere who is not
present as we did not anticipate this course would be adopted.

Court I do not think you have the sliighest confidence iii the proposition
yoi advance. The. reason you give for it certainly indicates that there is
nothilig in it, if the witness, as you suggest now, will swear dianetrically
opposite to what he swore the other day, I fancv ail vou have to do will bc to
point it ont to the jury and that will count against hin, iio-Ioverrule that.

Mr. Taylor: Very well, ny lord. I just wish to note the objection to
the way of his being calied. Perhaps your lordship having ruled as to that,
will allow me to suggest that there is another way to shorten this-ask Cox
the points'upon which he wishes to differ fromn this, and then read those, and
thus shorten the case materially. 20

Court: I an very nuch obliged to any counsel who will -shorten a case
like this as much as possible, because after the previous tnals-without saving
what the result was, counsel ought to be in a position to shorten the evidence
which fornerly took so long, but at the samne tine Mr. Macdonell is, within
certain limits, absolute master of how to conduct his case, and you and. your
learned friend are entirely in the sane position, and it is for Mr. Macdonell
to say how far, in the interests of his client, it should be adopted.

Mr. Macdonell: Al the evidence given in the Patterson case can be read 30
to the jury and not any other.

Mr. Taylor: Put iii the evidence vou have taken in this case up to date,

the exanination taken hefore trial, and take the other.

Court: Mr. Macdonell is willing that the evidence in the Patterson case
shall be read in this.case.

Mr. Taylor: I an agreeable to that, provided there is also read Cox's.

evidence as given in this ckse. 40

Mr. Macdonell: No, read the evidence Cox has giv.en in the Patterson

case, and let that evidence go to the Jury.
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Mr. Taylo-: If my leaTied friend is agreeable to this, lie has a number
of witnesses who were examined in the Patterson case. I take it he can take
some of those witnesses out, because it is nerely repeating over again. The
experts, I take it, are the principal witnesses. Take bis two experts, Messrs.
Lockwood and Warner-and also take Mr. Bell, and any others lie can
mention, and then we cai examine Cox over again.

Mr. Taylor: Cox was not cross-exanined at ail in the Patterson case,
but I asked as a further condition to read Cox's evidence the saine way. He
does not agree-I say, very well, agree to read it ail except Cox, and lie will 1o
cross-examine and that.will settle it and lie will be the only witness.

Court: Do you understand, Mr. Macdonell ? I do not say it is satis-
factory, but to have the evidence in the Patterson case read in this case, and
go on with the examination of tliis witness, in addition

Mr. Macdonell: To niake one more suggestion-there was a witness
examined this morning-Mr. Fern. If your lordship will allow me to ask one
question, then I will consent. 20

Court: certaiiilv,-onie question of Fern. That cannot affect.. the
position.

CHARLES FERN recalled by Mr. Macdonell..

185 Q This norning you swore the car was about half way across the
span ? -A Well, where the sinking of the wheel nearest Victoria was about
half of the span.

186 Q Was the end or centre of the car in, the centre of the span A
The end-this wav.

187 Q: The end of the car was about the centre of the span A The
end of the car, under the nearest wheel towards nie: that endof the car.

40

188 Q So when you sav the car was about the centre, you mean the
end of the car was ? A Ves, I enian where it snnk down the end nearest
Victoria began to sink down that is where I mean when I said it was about
the centre.

29
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189 Q Mr. Taylor: And the sinking was right under the Victoria end
of the car ? A Yes.

190 Q That would be the north-east end wheel A That would be
the north-east9 wheel ; the north side at the end nearest Victoria.

191 Q On the Gorge side ? A Yes.

Mr. Taylor: Then the wav I understafid it,Cox is the last witness now'?

Cotrt Yes. There is now just this observation I ouglit to make. Pos-
sibly the jury might desire to put some question arising out of this evidence
w.hich will be read to them fcr the purpose of understanding it. The jury in
the Patterson case had the advantage of having had the different portions of
the members pointed ont to them, but if the jury for the proper understanding 20
of the case wish to ask a question of thnt kind, it shiould not be excluded. That
ought-to be understood on both sides.

Mr. Macdonell :I night say that Atherly is here, and the jury-

Court Now, von had better let it go at that. Very good, now.

Mr. Macdonell asks that the inodel be admitted.

Mr. Taylor I am willing, subject to anv incorrectness in the design, to 30
admit that as an illustration-as illustrative simply of the structure as laid down.
For me- to sav it is absolutelv accurate, I an fot able to do that, because I do
not know anything about it. It looks to ie ail right. If my learned friend
wants to examine Cox with .reference to it, he can do that.

Mr. Macdonell I will have to prove that is a true model of the bridge.
If mv friend will admit that, I want to examine Cox with reference to that.

Court I suppose it nay be taken as a true model as far
dispute are concerned.

Mr. Taylor: He.proceeds to examine Cox and produces
some questions. He has a perfect right to do that.

as the points in

this to illustrate
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Court: It is a mistake to suppose any proof is necessary for this purpose
-the use of it for any witness to explain his evidence. It might be the most
inaccurate model it is possible to conceive, but it is admissible to make a wit-
ness more intelligible. But what Mr. Macdonell wants is something beyond
that. He says to you ''admit that is a perfect model of the bridge," and you
say you have no objection to admitting it?

Mr. Taylor: I suppose it is.

Court: Well, let it be taken this way: Mr. Taylor adinits model of 10
bridge to.be substantially a true model of the bridge, but if during the trial it
should turn out to be inaccurate, leave reserved to call evidence ou both sides.
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Examination De Bene lEsse ofjohn Cox.

BEFORE ARTHUR KEAST, DEPUTY REGISTRAR.

10

Thursday, 26th August, 1897, 2 P. M.

Pursuant to order of 6th August, 1897, and appointnent dated the i8th
August, taken at this hour bv consent of parties.

20

Mr. Macdonell appearing for the plaintiff.

Mr. Taylor appearing for the defendant.

JOHN COX being duly sworn, testified; examined by Mr. Macdonnell.

Q What is vour name ? A John Cox.

Q Where do vou live, Mr. Cox? A Victoria.

30Q Were vou in the emplov of the Citv of Victoria in the vear 1892? A
Yes.

Q When were vou employed by the City first? A 1891 May 1891:

Q And how long were vou in tiheir emplov? A Until April, 1896.

Q What were vour duties ? A Well, I was enplocd as carpenter; the
city carpenter, to look after the sidewalks and bridges generally.

Q Do you know the Point Ellice Bridge? A Ves. 40

Q Did vou ever look after it in any wa-? A Yes, in a similar way, just
the floor way only.
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Q When first ? A J cannot swear that I did anything ini 1891.

Q Well, in 1892 ? A May be in 1892.

Q What did you do in 1892 first ? A I mlay have put planks in the
bridge or hand railing or sidewalks.

Q Under whose directions? · A The City Engiaieer.

Q Who is he ? A Mr. Wilmnot. 10

Q The present City Engineer? A Ves.

Q ie was in the employ of the Citv ? A Nes, he was in the enploy of
the City .in 1892; fnot in 1891.

Q What salary had vou ? A Ihad $2..50 a lay,, the sane as the men
that were working under me.

Q Did vou ever get any- special instructions fron Mr. Wilmot, the Citv
Engineer, as to repairing the Point Ellice Bridge in 1892 ? A Not except the 20
one when there was an accident.

Q When was that accident? A That was in 1892, June I think.

Q June 1892. What instructions did von get from Mr. Wilmot, City
Engineer, in reference to point Ellice Bridge in 1892 then ? A Well, after
the accident, which happened in the afternoon-I mean to say about one or two
o'clock,.or it nay have been later-the bridge was shut off that. night, blocked
up at both ends bv order.

Q By order of whon ? A Of the City Engineer. Traffie was shut up
at both ends. I received orders tdie next morning fromn. Mr. Wilmot to bore the
bea.ns of the bridge,. that is to see whether-near the hangers-whether thev
were decaved or not or rotten as vonunmav terni it.

Q Well, any other instructions ? A After we bored those beans the
borings were nunbered separately and lhanded in to th engineer's office.

Q Bv whose instructions ? A B mV own. 40

Q Did he ask for those borings himself ? He asked vou to return those
borings to him ? A I would not swear whether he did or not, but thev were
handed in to the office for them to see the sta-te of;the beans. It was handed to
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Mayor Beaven in my presence, part of it, previous to being handed into the
office.

Q Well, they knew, then-at least the Mavor and City Eigineer knew
that the borings were from the beans of the bridge? A Ves : they were all
numbered one, two, and three, anfd so onu11pi to nine.

Q And it was in consequence of receiving instructions from Mr. Wilmot
to do the boring that you rcturned the borings to MNr. Wilmot and the Mayor?
A Yes.

Q Did you do anything to the bridge before the accident ? A 'No, not
that I an aware of, except that I night have put a sidewalk plank in, 'or
night have beei a floor plank, I could nîot say. I think my book would state
if there was. I don't sec anything in it at that time. After, there was.

Mr. Taylor: Q What document is that you refer to / A That old day
book. (Book handed to Mr. Tavlor>.

Mr. Macdonell: Q Did you have any assistance in boring the beams ? 20
A I had one man.

Q Who was he? A Saniel Atherly.

Q He went with you? A le was working with ne daily on the side-
walks,

Q It was necessary to have him, was it, to assist vou ? A Yes.

Q Do you know how manv spans were in that bridge ? A Seven spans
in each.

Q How man* spans in the lrilge ? A (Oh. there was two spans in the
bridge.

Q There is what they cal* the Esquinait span, is' :t it. towards the
Esq.uiinalt side of the Gorge, and the Victoria Side ? .\AYes : one West and
East.

4:--<)ne-West and East. DoI y>iu know where von started to do ti e boring,
in which span? A On the Esniimait suan.

Q Esquimalt first. In the morning? A Mes
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Q Who did that span ? A Me and Atherlv. -

Q Where abouts did you do the boring in that span, the beans? A It
was either number one or two on the Esquimalt couiting nulmilber o-ne that way

towaïds Victoria.

Q' No no, I an talking now about the Esquinalt span. What beams in-
that did you bore do you renernber ? A Thcv were all bored except one.

Q Are you sure as to the only one or more 'not being bored ? A 1 10
believe they were all bored, I would inot swear, thev may have been two ont.

Q Yes ; well now, talking still about the Esquinialt span- A I know
there were nine in the hole.

Q Talking about the Esquinalt span, did vou bore each end of the beams

in that spanr just one end ?, A Some of thein, not all.

Q Some vou bored both ends in the Esquimalt span ? Then did vou bore
any of the beams in the other span, the span we callthe Victoria span ? A I 20
bored three.

Q Did any one assist von to bore these three beams ? A I bored those
three myself.

B Do you know what beams they mere, all ? A They would be num-

bers one, two and three, counting from the end of the Esquimalt span on

towards Victoria.

Q Towards Victoria? A -On the Gorge side. 30

Q That would be the West end? A The North-west end.

Q The West end of the Victoria span? A Yes.

Q The span that fell ? A Yes.

Q- You bored those three beams. Now what part of these beams did yon

bore ? A On the Gorge side.

Q Only on the Gorge side, would that be the North or the South side ? 40

A The North side.

Q On the North side. Did vou bore any of them on the South, on the
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Victoria side ? A No, not on that span.

Q Vou are positive of that? A Ves.

Q Why did'nit you bore more of the beains-ii- that span than the three,
do you know why ? A We had not time to bore more tiat evening. I liad but
one man, just Atherly and myself, anud it was getting elat, it mîust have beeni
four o'clock, and I told Atherly to go back and put down the sidewalk on ithe
other spans that were bored, while I bored the other three, and lie did so, and by
this time we went home.

Q Where abouts did yon bore the three beains ? A It was on the North
side.

Q Near the hanger? A Ves, on the outside, on the Gorge side under
the sidewalk.

Q Under the sidewalk. How close to the langer did vou bore? A
Well it may be six or seven inches, I would not say more than that.

Q Bored as close to the hanger as vou could?

Mr. Taylor: Take his answer, six or seven inches.

A Well, you have to-bore at the angle, to get in. Vou could not bore
straight down,- if you did vou would come in contact with the vertical.

Q That is the reason? A Yes.

Q How deep did you bore ? A May be seven inches, perhaps not quite
as mdch; or it may be more, I could not say.

Q What size auger did vou use ? Used incli and a quarter.

Q Used incli and a quarter anger. After you bored the holes what did
vou do then ? A We11, I up for that day.

Q Ho - you close them up ? A What.I mean to sav, we closed work
for ay.

B d lf ?AThE d I ived rd-i r t
-at mmea aiyi ter boring -

get oakum and tar and plug-them up.

Q Where did vou get the oakum and tar ?* A McQuade & Sons.

A) 0e niexet av recel ot eIý s o 4U
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Q What quantity of oakuxm and tar did you get ? A I think there was
two pouiids of oakum, and a gallon of tar, if I remember right.

Q Were those items charged to the City (o vou kiiow? A Yes

Q Where did you buy them, what place was it yon bought them ? At
what shop or chandler did you buy them ? A McQuade & Sons the ship
chandler on Wharf Street.

Q You told him to charge it to the City ? A I took him an order from 10
the City; I could not get it without.

Q Then .after getting the oakum what did you d A We got the
material and then we went and plugged them np.

Q With the oakum ? A With the oakum and the tar.

Q And tar ? At least I don't think the tar was used with the oakum;
the oakum was used only for the holes, the tar was used for painting the pier
below the high .water mark. We did not use the tar for the holes, only the 20
oakum.

Q Did you use any wooden plugs at all in the holes? A No.

Q N.othing but the oakum in the holes. Mr. Cox, conld yon have used
a smaller auger than yon used there ? A I could have used a smaller bit.

Q What was the object in using so large an auger as vou did use ? A
To obtain more particularly the quantitv that was rotten in the beam. v
using a smaller one von could not tel how mnuch was rotten. y the large one 3c
you could see it ii vour hand.

Q Was it for any one's special heniefit"? A It was for the Officer, City
Engineer, Mavor and those, to see direct the state of the beams.

Q But for your own, information, as 4> testing that for vour own informa-
tion, you could have used a small bit? A I conld have used a -verv small
brace-bit that size, I could nîot use one less.

Q That would be a sixteenth of an inch.? A Ves, 'thereabouts, vou 40

could not learn inuich bv that.

Q But I mean you could test yourself by that ? A Oh, yes.

37



y



Q Did you bore-any other beams iii the Victoria span ? A None but
those three.

Q Those three.

Cfoss-Examined. By Mr. Taylor.

Q How mnuch painting were you going to do with this tar you speak of?
A The pillars in the water, those iron pillars.

Q Were you instructed to do that with the tar ? A Ves, it was not done
then, it was done afterwards.

Q Were you instructed to get the tar for that purpose at that time ? A 20

Ves.

Q By whom? A By the engineer or by the clerk; I alwavs brought the

order from the clerk.

Q What did you do with the order? A. Left it at McQuade's ;I took it
to McQuade and he furnished the tar.

Q It was a quart of tar, you said a gallon ? A It might have been.
30

Q That document says a quart? A Does it? Then probably it is so.1

Q You say that the object of vour taking this big auger vas that
should take ont a large piece in order to show it to the Engineer, who could

tell whether or not it was rotten ? A Yes.

Q Bit you could tell whether or not it was rotten with a nuch snialler

auger? A Vou might find it decaved but vou could not find out how much.

Q But .you could-tell it was rotten? A I night not. 40

Q Alid that is what vou were sent over to ascertain ? A Ves, and that

was my objgct in using the bigger auger.
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Q Were you told to bring the boriiigs back to the clerk ? A 1 believe so.

Q Voig said that you were told to do so, but vou d'd not reneniber whether
Mr. Wilmot told you or not ? A No.

Q Is not that what vou said ? A I don't think so.

Q Who did the borings, you or Atherly, the two of vou were there ? A
We sometimes took turn about in boring.

10

Q You changed off? A Mes.

Q You used this inch and a quarter for boring ? A Mes.

Q Right through the chapter with all the beans ? A Mes.

Q Now vou say you bored all the beams in the Esquimait span that after-
noon, and three beamus of the Victoria span ? A Ves.

Q Did you bore all on the- A I would fnot swear all, whether two
outside of that or not, but there were uine in the whole, in the two spans. 20

Q There were nine beams in the two spars altogether? A Yes.

Q Those that were in the span ? A No, that were bored.

Q That were bored? A Yes.

Q How many were in, the spans ? A There was six iii one and three in
the other.

30

Q That would be if vou bored all the beams in the Esquimailt span? A
No, it would not; there were seven.

Q There wiere seven ? A Seven floor beans not inciuding the-

Q Why did vou miss one if you were sent zhere to inspect them ail?
A Well it was so. The way it is now. .

Q The way it is now. What do you nean b 1 that ? A The beam is
there now. 40

Q The bearn is there now that von did bore or did not bore: A Did
not bore.
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Q That is your reason for saying thîat you did not bore ail the beams that
were there tien,, in the Esluinalt span A •Mes.

Q Because'vo find a beam now that was not bored. A It was not
necessary to bore thein all, otherwise I would have bored the Victoria span all
the beans, naturally. I should have bored the Victoria spanî right through, all
the saine wav, but it was not necessary to do it when we found thev were all
rotten, one after another, with the exception of the one on the Esquimalt span.

Q. Al the beains you found rotten ? A Yes, every nie of them.n o

Q And von concluded you wonld iot ibore any more on the Victoria span,
because all you bored on the other span were rotten ? A No, not at all, we
did not have time. Q Whv didn't vou go back to (do it ? A We had other
work to do the next dav.

Q Did vou tell them von did niot examine bt the three A They were
satisfied.

Q Did vou tell them that you had not examnined but the threeý A Cer- 20

tainly, there is th e span.

Q Who did you tell A M ih)orings proved thev were not all bored.
There were only nine parcels handed in to the engileer

Q Did you tell anybody what beams you had bored A Mes ?

Q Who < A The engineer.

Q The specifie beams vou had bored f A Yes. 30

Q Did you tell what beams you iad bored A He knew perfectlv well.

Q Did you tell him . A Mes.

Q When i A The next day, when I took the borings I said there is
nine, and there is al! the horings.

Q Did vou tell hii- A -le had sense. Yes, I did tei m 11Hl.

Q What did vou sav to hm ? A said, are we to bore anv more beams.

and he said ie did not think it was necessarv.

Q Why not A Because everyone we had bored was rotten.
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Q Because everyone you had bored was rotten ? A Yes.

Q Then it is a fact that all the beams you bored were rotten? Every one.

Q Everyone. They were p,retty badly rottei too, weren't they? A I
believe they were.

Q You believe they w'ere ? A Yes.

Q Thgn why didn't you replace all the beams in the bridge ? A I had
nothing to do with it.

Q You had nothing to do with it? A No.

Q You were told to go and bore the beams and plug the holes ? A Yes.

Q Did you plug the holes, or any of them? A Ves, all that we bored,
with oakum.

Q Did you plug any with wood A No.
20

Q You were city carpenter from that period you spoke of in i892< A
What is that?

Q You were city carpenter from the time vou are talking about? A Yes.

Q. What date was it, now, about can vou tell me the date in June, 1892 ?
A 15 th, I think.

Q Fifteenth of June ? A The accident.
30

Q I mean the time you bored ? A I cannot state; it must have been
the next the 16th.

Q So that you must have told Mr. Wilmot, the city engineer, that you
did not bore these on the Victoria side, on the 17th ? A The next morning.

Q The next morning, that wguld be the 17th. A Ves.

Q Well, did yon tell hiin that all the beams should be replaced A I
had nothing to do with that whâtever telling him that. 40

Q Did you express any opinion about it at all? A No no conversation
about it at the time at all.

41
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Q Weren't you expected to make any report A No.

Q How were they going to find out your opinion whether they were rotten
or not? A There was my opinion that was handed to them.

Q Was it your opinion ? - A Ves.

Q That was something that you bored out of the beam? A Yes.

Q And they were rotten? A Yes,

Q Everyone of them ? A Ves.

Q Very badly rotten? A Ves, pretty bad.

Q"
No.

You never did, in fact, then, bore the other beams in-the Victoria span?

Q But they were replaced? A I believe thev were afterwards.

Q
nothing

You know theykwere Û A I didn't know for some time ; I had
to do with it.

Q Didn't you know in fact that theyý were ? A No.

Q
sound?

As city carppnter, it was your duty to see whether those things were
A No ; the city took those things ont of my hands.

Q Wasn't it vour duty to circulate about the city to ascertain whether the
bridges and sidewalks were in good condition or rotten ? A I had nothing to
do with it in that case. It was placed in their own hands, and I had nothing, 30
to do with it.

Q Wasn't it vour business to ascertain whether or not this material was
rotten? A It was.not my business at all.

Q What was your business? A To ascertain whethier they were rotten.

Q To ascertain whether thev were rotten, to find out whether the mater-
ials were rotten, the sidewalks and bridges in the city A Vou mean previous
to the accident? 40

Q At the time of the accident? A I had not got the chance to do it,
when I was ordered the next minute almost-

42
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At any time was it part of your duty to sec the sidewalks and bridges as
to rottenness? A On the surface, on the road, nothing tinderneatli.

Q Who did it underneath ? A There-was nothing donc underneath.

Q Nobody inspected und rneath? A Nou; rot at that time.

Q What were you emp yed for? A To go around the city, and put in
a sidewalk plank or a bridge plank, or anywhere when it was needed.

1oQ Didn't you look at the other beanis to find out whether they were rot-
ten or not? A You could not do it in this case.

Q Was not that what you were employed to do ' A No; it was not be-
cause you could not do it.

Q Why not ? Was not that what you were employed for? A Not par-
ticularly.

Q Well, generally ? A Well, at the close of the vear.
20

Q In 1895, you reported on it? A Ves.

Q And you reported it sound A Yes, as far as I could say.

Q You reported it. Did you look at it then ? A No.

Q Did you know-these beams were rotten n' 1892 ? Andyet you reported
that some of those old beams in there were sound ? A I had no report in 1892.

Q Yon have told us that thev were rotten in 1892, and some old beams 30
were left in the bridge that were.rotten, and yet in 1895 you reported it sound to
the council ? A Ves; it was their. place to take those two beams out, not
nine.

Q Yes; but vou knew they were in there. when you made the report in
1895? A I did not know. I did not go over the bridge.

Q You made the report without examining the bridge A Certainly.

Q And that is the way you did A That is the way it was done in all 40
cases.

Q Didn't vou think that it was your duty- A I was not allowed.
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Q You made a report, which you signed, not knowing anything about it?
A Yes.

Q And yet you kne#fin 1892 it was rotten, badly rotten A Yes, it
proved .itself in 1892 that it was rotten.

Q Now you testified in a case of Gordon against the Corporation of Vie-
toria, in Vancouver? A. No.

Q Patterson, I mean to say, and the Corporation of Victoria in Van- 1o
couver? Yes.

Q A short time ago ? A Yes.

Q You testified there as to the boring of the beams. Now was there any-
body else whose business it was to bore and examine these beams in this bridge
in 1892 ? Anybody but yourself? A No.

Q And it was not examined by anybddN, iv 1892, as far as ou know, but
yourself ? A There was rro one sendto do it, 2Q

Q There was no officer of the city who had any business to do it except
you ? A No ; not at that time.

Q Nor from 1892 to 1896 ?X No.

Q As long as. you were in the èmploy of the city? A No.

Q And as far as yoù know, no one di4 ôtler than yourself ? A No.

30Q s not that right ? What doyou sa- A Explain that again.

Q So far as you know, no person other than vourself ever bored Point
Ellice Bridge from 1892 to 1896? A I don't know that they did.

Q You don't think they did ? A No. If there was, it was done unbe-
known to me.

Q Now during the times, Mr. Cox, you were not actively employed in
repairing something, what did you do? A What. 40

A For instance, you were working on a yearly salary from the city at that
time? A A monthly salary.
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Q No. A That was my duty.

Q It was vour duty to walk about the city and ascertain the condition of
the sidewalks ? A Yes.

Q And, where ever anv repairs were needed, to do it ? A Yes; small
repairs we might handle it.

- Q At any rate you reported whether they wanted repairs or not; and if
they were small repairs vou repaired them, and big ones you reported? A
Somebody else did them.

Q But you reported A Ves.

Q At the time vou w'ére not repairing, you were looking about the city to
find out whether anything needed repairiiig ? A That is right.

Q That is what vou were there for A Yes.

Q So that you were busy all the time. Now this
produced in Vancouver didn't you ? A I believe so.

auger vou used •you

Q Jt was all vou used that day in all those beams ? A Ves.

Q Why did you produce that particular auger ? A
use at that time.

The one we had to

Q What A That was my auger.

Q Why did vou produce that particular auger>. A
one that-was used.

Q It was the one that was used all the way through

Q It was an inch ani -a quarter auger? Ves.

45

Whv ; it was the

A Yes. 40

Q You 4 ere not engaged every day in repairing the idewalks and
bridges? A Pretty near ; you can sec items there where I have been every
day of the week on bridges.

Q But during the time 9ou were not actively employed in repairing, what
did you do ? A Do you imagine a man could walk over [50 miles a day on
sidewaik ?
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Q I suppose you had a half dozen augers there, hadn't von A No.

Q Are you sve about that? A Yes.

Q Now, be perfectly sure, Mr. Cox. A. In fact the city had no tools at
all, not even a saw, at the time.

Q Aud you used your own tools ? A Ves; I did use my own tools.

Q And that was your own ? A That was mine.

Q And it was the only one you had I suppose at the time' A Yes.

Q So th-at you are positive about that inch and a quarter auger' A ves.

Q And they were all bored with that, whatever you did? A Ves.

Q There can be no doubt about that A Well, I don't think there is
any doubt about it whatever.

Q Answer very carefully, Mr. Côx, now, because it is possible, you know,
that you migbt have? A No; it was the only auger, and it was my own.

Q It was the only auger you used ; the citv did not have anv tools, and
it was the only auger you had down there A Ves; it was the only auger I
used; the city did not have any auger at the time.

Q Now, you bored the beams in the Esquimalt span, and you bored three
beams you say in the Victoria sprn? A Yes.

Q Now you testified in Vancouver that you bored those beams in both 30
ends-orth and south ends ? ANNo.

Q You did not. I will see whether you did or not, and I will read it to
you ; beginning at line 25 on page 94, down to line 14 on the succeeding page
95. I will tell you what you said there. You were asked first, " Will you tell
us why you remember boring only three in that span (A) Yes. (Q) Whv ?
(A) It was getting late in the afternoon, and it was somewhere near four
o'lock, and to complete the thing, I had another man round ; and I says to
this mn: 'Go back and put on those planks that we had tore up to bore those

40other beams both in the north and south aide . -A Yes: on the sidewalk
and not the roadway.

Q He was to put in those planksthat were torn up both on the north and

46



- >t5ttV~tàv ~s- ~t1kŽiVtrtJtt -

.~ .t.~ . . o
t ~&t

~*

* 1-

4, , .



south side ? A Yes, that is right.

Q -' To make the place secure for the night; and .1 will bore these
beams. We had started one. I says, I will coniplete those t1iree while vou do
that, and by that time it will be five o'clock, and we will go home. That is the
reason why I bored those three at that time. <Q) Which part of the beam of
those three did you bore? There is a north side ?" The north side is the
Gorge side ? A Yes.

Q "(A) Yes, it was the north side ; we bored the south and north side io
both; but it was the north at that time when I say I told the man to go back and
put on those planks, to, nail them down and make them secure. Where he left
me boring; I bored on the Gorge side." Vou did say that vou bored them on
the north and south side both ? Not in that span.

Q You were asked about both spans ? A It does not read right.

Q Vou were referring to the boring of the Victo/Taâspan; A Yg's.

Q And you answered "We bored the sogi áWd north side both." A 20
No ; I distinctly remember about that.

Q You swear that you did not say tha A Yes ; the north and south
side of the Esquimalt span ; that was unde jbd ; but it was misconstrued
there.

Q "Which part of the bean of those three did y'ou bore ?' A On the
north side.

Q "It was the north side ; we bgred the niorth and sonth side both ?" 30
A No; not on that span.

Q That statement was not true? A No.

Q Wasn't vour attention called to it A No.

Q What do .you mean then on the other span '? What did you mean by
this then "Go back and put on thoseplanks ihat we had tore up to bore
those other beains, both on the noïtf'.ýand south side ?'·' A This is on the
north and south side, on the sidewalk. . You have got it wrong. 40

The beams were bored on the Esquimalt side on the north and south side.
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Q They were bored on both ends you iean? k That is the meaning
of it.

Q That is what was ineant there ; "We bored the north and south side"
meaning both ends ? A It means, " Vou go back and put in the planks on
the north and south side that were torn up."

Q But you had not bored these on the north and south side ; why did
you bore one on the north and south side and not the other. A We didn't
bore noue on the north and south side in the Victoria span. ro

Q Did you in the Esquinalt span? A Ves.

Q Why did you do it in one and not the other ? A We didn't have
time.

Q Why didn't you go back and finish it? A We wasn't ordered to do it.

Q You were asked to bore and find out the condition of the bridge ? A
We were not ordered to do any more borirrg; we bored that day, and that was 20
sufficient.

Q And you might bave bored one beam, and if it' was five o'clock you
would call that sufficient ? A Yes, if they ordered it.

Q And. then report the bridge in sound condition? A It was quite suf-
ficient to report the bridge rotten as far as the beams.

Q How do you explain your report then in 1895 that it was sound,
when this beam had not been removed? A There wasn't any question 30
about it's being rotten, I don't know, if it is. not bored underneath it is not
bored on top.

Q What is not bored on top? A That I think, it is the number one,
I would not be sure on the Esquimalt span-on the north side, it is bored un-
derneath,.and the other side it is bored on top.

Q You bored sone underneath and sone on top ? A That is what we
did.

4o

Q Why did you do that? A To ascertain which was the worse. We
found the bottom was worse than the other, and we did iot bore but one or
two of thèm.
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Q Vou bored one beai on the Esqiîiialt side at the bottom, and von
found that absolutely rotten ? A Ves ; worse than the top.

Q And then ydu bored the others fron the top of the beam ?A Yes.

Q And you fouid theni absolutely rotten A Nes.

Q Vou did that with the Esquinialt span A Esquimalt span onlly,

Q And then you bored threc of the beains on the Victoria side, on the
top? A Ves.

Q And founid then absolitely rotten A\ es.

Q And you found the condition of the beans on the Esquimîaltspan was
a little more rotten when bore<1 fron the botton than wien bored fromn the
top A . Ves ; the one that we bored.

Q And they were all rotten and unsafe at that tinie A Mes.

Q And von were aware of that fact . A Yes. 20

Q And you.did not report that to anybody A Lt was reported the
next morning.

Q ~Vou handed in those borings ? A -That was what we lid.

Q You say this particular beani in the Victor4a span 'ýOîfhaînded -in the
borings to let thein see for themselves A Yes.

Q That was vour idea in doing it A Yes. 30

Q I see. Well, Mr. Cox, I would like to ask you how could vou, know-
ing these beams were absolutely rotten in 1892, made a report in 1895 that
the bridge was sotnd ? A We didn't know-I had no business to touch the
renoving of anything.

Q You knew they had not been renoved ? A Do you suppose for a
minute that I should. sav: Here, Mr. Wiliot, there are two beais in that
bridge, a-nd von have not renoved them, and yon ought to reniove them

40

Q ¯You knew they. were rotten, did you not rA es and he knew
they were rotten.
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Q You knew they were absolVtely rotten at that time? A I did.

Q Badly rotteu ? A Ves badly rotten.

Q Then, I say, how did you report them sound to the city ii 1895? A
I did notreport anything sound.

A Yes, you did ? A Not the beams, there is not a word about the
beams.

10Q You reported the bridge. A Generally.

Q Would not that include the beans? A Include the whole bridge
generally.

Q If you were employed to examine the bridge and ascertain whether
it was rotten or not, and you found the bridge rotten, would you report it
sound.? A If I was to report upon a beam, that is another question.

Q You reported this bridge sound ? A I reported the bridge in 20
good condition.

Q Was it in good condition? A The roadway was in good condition,
and the piles, and that is.all I required.

Q And yet you reported the whole bridge sound A Yes.

Q Without examining it, and notwithstanding that you know in 1895
thoEe beans were absolutely rdtten? A Yes.

Q Including this number, three beans that gave way? A Ves.

Q And it was more rotten at the botton than it-was at the top. A Yes.

Q Now let me clear up a point. The beams that you bored in the
Esquimalt span you bored on the north side? A The Esquimalt span upon
north and south side.

Q You bored the beains on the EsquinaIt span both on the north and on
the south ends ? A Yes.4

Q With the same auger that you bored these beams? A Yes.

Q And you put one hole in each end, I suppose, ln each timber? A
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Just one.

Q Just one. And no orne else, as far as you were aware, bored the
beams ? A I don't know of any that I am aware of.

Q And you are quite positive that you ised your own auger? A Yes.

Q And that was the auger you produced, the inch and a quiarter auger?
A Yes.

10Q That was the only auger you had there A Mes.

Q How do you remember that auger so(well all these years? A I have
had it in my chest ever since.

Q Have you any other augers there? A Yes; I hiave a half dozen
smaller ones and bigger ones.

Q When you speak of an auger what do you mean? Mou drew a dis-
tinction to my Iearned friend-; when he referred to an auger, you said a bit 20
A A bit; and an auger is another thing ?

Q A bit and an auger are two things ? A A bit is another thing.

Q Ani I to understand that the handie coônstutes the auger and the
screw is the bit ? A 'Tes.

Q And it was the screw that you produced in Vancouver, an inch and a
quarter screw ? A Not'an inch and a quarter handle.

Q What? A -.-An inch and a quarter auger, not a bit; bits are about
this size, about- this lng ; perhaps a little longer-some of then.

Q An auger has a wooden handle ? A Yes.

Q Horizontal? A Ves.

Q And it is attached perpendicularly to that horizontal handle ? A Yes,
that is correct.

Q The auger that vou used then-was an inch and a quarter ? A Yes 40
that is the one.

Q When you spoke to my learned friend about'a bit, what did vou mean?
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A A bit is what we use with a brace-this way-(naking circular motion).

Q A small- A A small little thing,

Q The same construction as an auger? A Pretty nuch only mnuch
snaller.

Q You did not use a bit? A NQ.

Q Would you find a hole five-eiglths across bored by a bit or an auger ?
A That would be an auger or a bit ?

Q There is no distinction except the handle you put on tlem ? A Thtat
may be it.

Q I just want to understand it ? A Ves ; that is it : that is so. Those
small ones are what we call a brace and bit.

Q Would you be surprised to find that the ioles put in there were five-
eighth inch holes ? A No. 20

Q You have just sworn they were inch and a quarter ? A No; there
was somebody else put thein in.

Q If there were any such holes, when were they bored ? A I don't
know. Thev mav have been bored when the thing was-put on, or when the
accident was, or when McIntosh put those beams oi. There was lotsq of repairs
dône.

Q You examined them in 1892. Were there any holes in them then 30
other than the ones vou bored ? A I never saw any ; it is possible there were.

Q But vou never saw any other holes ?, A No.

Q Now, Mr. Atherlv, who was with you at the tirne you did those bor-

ings; he also states vou bored these beams at both ends ? A Mes.

Q He is wrong about that ? A Not in the Victoria span ? A No-he

bored in the other span, not in the Victoria span at all.

Q Vou have alreadv told me that what vou swore at Vancouver on that 40

part is not true ?

Mr. Macdonnell': No, he said it was improperiy reported.
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Q Now listen to this, at page 273 of the appeal book, tlie testimonv in
Patterson and the Corporation at the trial. "What was le going to do while
you were doing that"? (A) He was going to finish the boring sir. (Q) He
was going to finish the boring, and wlere ; As voil went awav to put the planks
down on the Esqujinalt span, where did lie go on with the boring. () le
started right to bore on towards the Victoria side. (Q- ( )n towards Victoria.
And at which end of the span ? That wouid be the side towards the Gorge, o'r
the other side that lie went on to bore ? (A We bored it on both sides.
You sav that statement is not true ? A He did niot bore on tihe Victoria side
at all.

Mr. Macdonnell : Just continue, you will find that he refers

Q Here i.; the next question : Q) I know, but the Victoria side I an
speaking of, now, that we went to bore when vou wnt on putting the planking
down ? (A )n the (orge side." Weli that is the saine thing. That is wt
they both said, there at the timie, they were putting tlie plank in they wee
boting on both sides. Vou say these statements are not truie at anv rate A
I Isav thev ait. - -20

Q Now I will read from vour report here that von made in 8 A fter
enuhnerating a number of sidewalks and bridges in the city that vou deai with,
vou say Point Ellice Bridge in good condition ? A Ves.

Q Now Von got written instructions to examine t.hat, didn't you A

No, none.

Q Didn't vou get a letter from Mr. Wilmot ? A No, sir.: and further
than that I had no instructions - generally either that was ail my own object 3
that I made a general report.

Q It was all vour own object eh ? A Yes, i never had any instructions
from any one.

Q What do you.mnean by starting it ont this w-av :1 comupliance with
yoir request I beg to submit here the following report with reference to side-

walks, water tanks and bridges.. What did you say that for ? A Well, I
thought it might be my duty to do so.

40

Q Vou thought it was vouT duty to do so? A Yes.

Q And what vou conceived to be the discharge of vour dutv, vou did it ?
A Yes. I received no orders to do it.
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Q Vou say there was no letter to you to do it ? A No.

.Q I will show you a letter pretty soon. A If it is there I did not get it.

Q Did you ever tell anybody that you plugged those holes you did bore
with oakum ? A Not that I an aware of ; everybodv :new it.

Q Did you tell anybody ? A Not particularly as I know of.

Q Was anybody there besides you and Atherly ? A Mayor Beaven and
the engineer were the-e both when we were starting and finishing.

Q And when you finished ? A Ves ; and I said to Atherly, " Pick ùp
that boring and hand it to the Mayor." And he said, " That is pretty looking
stuff.

Q He saw it was rotten ? A Yes.

Q Did you do the plugging when they were there ? A No, the next
day. 

20

Q Was there anybody there then ? A Not that I am aware of.

Q Did you tell anybody you had plugged them ? A No, I did not.

Q Was that a good way to plug them? A I don't know, it might keep
the water out and it might not.

Q Why didn't vou plug them with wood A What would be the use
of wood any more than oakum ?

30
Q Wouldn't it keep the water out better ? A Not a bit of it.

Q Not a bit of it ? A No.

Q If vou put a little tar with that oakum it would make it water tight ?
A No, if vou filled it with white lead it might have done.

Q Would not tar help it ? A No, tar would soak right into the hole.

Q It would act tp keep water out of the wood? A I don't think so. 40

Q Did you plug that good and tight with S-,n? A I expect we did,
with a stick as well as we could.
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Q You did plug it good and tight with the stick ? A Ves.

Q How did you pound it in ? A Pounded it in with a hammer.

Q Put a stick on top and drove it in with a hammer, did you ? A Yes.

Q That is the way they calk boats, is it not ? A Something like that
1 believe ;..I never calked boats.

Q Is that the stuff that is used to keep water out ? A Ves ; but it is
put in a different way to that.

Q You put this in the hole, I understand, and then put a stick or plug
and hammered it in? A A stick similar to the size of the hole, and then
tamped it.

Q Drove it in tight ? A Yes.

Q Water could not get in on top of that? A Yes. You might as well
say that water would not go through a salt bag. 20

Q What did you put it in for A Well, orders is orders.

Q Who did you get the orders from ? A That gentleman there.

Q That is Mr. Wilmot ? A Mr. Wilmot.

Q Well now were you told to plug it with oakum? A Yes.

Q Or, were you told just to plug it ? A I was tolds't6plug it with oak-
um, and the order I received for the oakum and the tar. But the tar was not 30
for the holes, it was for the painting of the columns.

Q The painting of the columns underneath. Now what use would a quart
of tar to be paint those columns? A Well, I don't know.

Q Would it go anything like around them. A Not half way.

Q But there would be enough with this oakum to plug up the holes with,
wasn't there ? A Oakum.

40

Q Yes put the oakum in, and tamp it as you say, and then put tar on it?
A No.

Q There was enough tar? A There was no tar in them at all.





Q I know you say that, but wouldn't it have been a good thing for that
purpose ? A No.

Q Now wasn'.t that the object of ordering that tar ? A For the columns,
not for the plugging.

Q Who ordered it? A Mr. Wilmot.

Q For that purpose ? A Yes.

I0Q And you swear positively that Mr. Wilinot told you to get the oakum
and plug the holes with oakum ? A Ves, what did lie give the order for.

Q Did lie tell you? A Most decidedly he did.

Q What did he say to you 4 A Plug the holes with oakum and get
an order and get iL

Q This is a book you kept a record in of the work that you did ? (Indi-
cating). A It is'a private book, it does nlot belong to the city. 20

Q It is impounded for this case ? A Well vou can have it. There is
another book shown to you in the office that I got in 1895 from Mr. Wilmot.

Q What do you call this ? A It might be a scrap book.

The book was here put in marked exhibit A.

Q Well, Mr. Cox, from what I can nake out, from what you say, this
beam was rotten and unsafe in 1892 ? A Well, .wasn't they all rotten?

30

Q They were all rotten, at 'anv rate this one number 3 was. A They
were all rotten, and that was rotten too.

Q And they were unsafe A They ought not to have been there.

Q -In 1892 ? A Never ought to have been left in.

Q Of course it would get a good deal worse every year after that? A It
was bad enough then.

40

Q It was bad enough then ? A I don't see why they did not take them-

all out ; in fact they were so rotten they ought all to have been taken out? A
They saw enoughof nine to remove the other three you see.
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Q What is that ? A They saw enough of the nine that were bored; it
should have satisfied them they were all rotten.

Q That -is when I understand you bored this number 3 and found it abso-
lutely rotten, too ? A Vs; bored underneath.

Q How was it rotten, half or three-quarters of the way through ? A
Take the top and botton, 1 guess it was pretty nearly half.

Q Take the rotten part out, nearly rotten through.

Mr. Macdonnell Q What beam is that, number 3 ? A The one that
is there now.

Q Number 3 is not there now at all ? A I mean the one that is there
now.

Mr. Taylor: Q You said they were all alike, didn't you ?

Mr. Macdonnell : He said the one that is there now.
20

Mr. Taylor: Q , Well, speak about the beams that you told us about in
1892 ; you say they all ought. to have been removed, and they were all rotten
then ? A Ves.

Q And they were all about in the same condition A Yes.

Q And you say that this bearn number 3-that is the third one you knôw
from the end in the Victoria span ? A You mean the one in the Victoria side ?

A The one that broke. in the accident, in the Victoria span,° the number 3 30
you see on the diagram ? A Yes.

Q And it was rotten ? A Yes. e

Q You put it rotten at the top and bottom about half through? A Yes,
about that, all of that, I calculated there was nine-I. calculated the eleventh

beam was the only one-I think it nust have been this one that is there now

that had about nine inches of solid wood in it.

Q The one that is there now A Yes.

Q Which one is that ? A The one that is bored underneath.
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Q In the Esquimalt span ? A Ves.

Q It was more solid than most of them ? A That was the only one, and
I suppose that is the reason why they left it.

Q That was the only one that was solid < A Yes.

Q And you think it was solid for eight or nine inches ? A Ves.

Q What is the size of the bearn ? A About the saine size. 10

Q About 18 inches; and then it was rotten about lialf way through ? A
Yes.

Q And it was better than the rest of them? A Yes.

Q And this number 3 beam that broke at the time of the accident-A
Ves.

Q That was worse.
. 20

Mr. Macdonnell There is no evidence that number 3 broke at all. I
you will place it on the map

The witness: Give me a pen and then go on and then we will see.

Q I thought we were talking about the sane thing. Take the Victoria
span, I think you bored three beams ? A Ves.

Q The one nearest Victoria we will call number 3. A Yes.
30

Q The one nearest the Esquimalt end would be number one, and the one
next to it number two ? A Ves.

Q I am referring to number three. Now the beam in the Esquimalt span,
thebeam was solid about nine inches!? A Yes.

Q And the other beams that you bored included three in the Victoria
'span, and were in a worse condition than that ? A Yes that is the meaning of it.

Q That is what I understood vou. Now this diagram that is exhibit R in 40
the former trial ; (handed to witness). The beam. vou have referred to in the

Esquimalt span is not shown on this diagram ? A I see it is not.
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Q As being rotten half throtigh, and the other beams in the Esquimalt
span and the one, two and three in the Victoria span were still worse rotten ? A
Yes.

Q More rot in them ? A Ves.

Q And number three then would he more rotten than lialf way through?
A I would not-it is hard to say it nay be an inch cither way. Thev were
bad enongh.

10
Q They were bad enough to be taken out at once, any way A Yes.

Q Now, Mr. Cox, didn't von receive instructions fron Mr. Wilmot in
writing to m-ikz your report in 1895, on December 18th in a letter in the follow-
ing words: "J. Cox, Esq., City Carpenter, Dear sir, I wislh vou would make in-
spection of the following bridges, namely, James Bay, Point Ellice, and Rock
Bay bridges, and report by the end of the present year the condition of each;
also note anything you consider should be done in the way of reairsor renewals.
Vours obediently, E. A. Wilmot, City Engineer."

20

Now isn't that what vou were referring to when von say, " n compliance
with your request I make this report."

A I don't remember receiving that order; I made my report from my
own knowledge.

Q Isn't it probable;,u did g, that ? A Well, I might have, I would
not swear to that. If I had, I thiiik I shnuld have had it by me.

Q What is that A If I had been served with a report I think I should 30
have had it by me.

Q Well, Von were as a matter of fact.

The diagram which was marked exhibit R in the Patterson case

was put in by Mr. Taylor, marked exhibit B.

Q Now, Mr. Cox, do von remember the beai you bored from under-
neath, you say, in the Esquimalt span-where was that , What part of the

Esquimalt span ? A What beam ' 40

Q Vou say that one'beam in the Esquimalt span yon bored underneath, you
know, and found it very rotten, and the rest von bored on top ? A It may be num-
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ber two or three on the west end ;I would not swear whether it is or not.

Q That would be the Esquimalt end of the bridge ? A I would not say
which one.

Q It was in fact in the Esquinalt span ' A I know we did bore one
underneath, and that is what took up so nuch time.

Q That beam was under the hip vertical ? A It miglht be, I think not
-it may be I would not swear. ro

Q Vou are not positive about it ? A No.

Q That beam is there now, isn't it ? A There is ofle there. I believe.

Q There is one there. vou believe. Now iook here, Mr. Cox, do you
know how many old beams were left il the Esquimalt span A i do not.

Q You do not. You have not examined it since, the Esquimait span ?
A I have been over the bridge, but as to what is in or out. i dn't k-now. 20

Q You knew there were some old beams left in tLhe Esquimait span "
A I believe there was one, I think there was one, n the Victoria span, I am
not sure.

Q At ànv rate, the one that vou bored underneath and found badiv rotten
there, was towards the west end of the bridge lie Esguimalt end ? A

Probablv in the centre-it might have been four, hve or six, I wouId not sav

fourth, fifth or sixth beam I would not say.

Q You told me-mentioned that vou bo'red It at the Esqiiinait end under-

neath the beam ? A Ves. one or two, I woild not sav.

Q One or two fromu the Esquimalt end ? A Yes, on the Esquimalit span.

I would not sav there was more than one ; there might possibiy have been two.
It took up too much time.

Q Well that would be the west end of the" bridge then A Pretty well
along there.

Q The west end of the Esquinalt span? A Ves.

Q I think you have already explained that vou bored on the sidewailk side
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in every case ? A Ves.

Q That would be on the outside of the tracks ? A On the outside; we
could not get inside without tearing up the floor of the bridge.

Q You bored on the sidewalk side in cach instance, both in the Esquimalt
span and the Victoria span ? A I believe so, except what was bored under-
neath.

Q And you said that was, as near as you could recollect, six or seven Io
inches from the hanger holes ? A Pretty near tha, probably a little more,
that is the top of the holes might have been more than that.

Q Vou laid the sidewalk over them again ? A Yes.

Q Then the sidewalk would be over the holes? A Yes practically.

Q The boards of the sidewalk would be over the holes that you bored!
A Ye5.

20Q How do you account for this beam number seven in the Victoria span
having been bored ? A I don't "know.

Q Vou told me that vou were the only person to do that, and that you
never bored any more than three in the Victoria span ? A I never bored any
more than those three, and was not aware that any of them were bored.

Q And that you were in charge from 1892 to 1896; you must have quit
shortly before this accident? A In April.

30Q And the accident was on the e6th of May, just a month after von quit?
A Something like that, yes.

Q And you are not aware of anvone else having tampered with the bridge
during that month ? A No, I don't think there could have been anything
done between thýt time and the accident.

Q And there was no one authoriied to deal with it as far as you knew but
yourself; from April, 1892 toApril, 1896?

40
Q No, nothing. Well, I believe there was some man sent there in one

case, tô block up the east end, that was underneath, on the right side line.
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' Q That would not be on the span that stands? A Not in the span at
all, right on the embankment, facing on the road. It was right on the bank.
'That is all that-I remember of anyone else having-anything to do with it.

Q Now, Mr. Cox, you are pretty familiar with all the circumstances ; the
fact of the matter is that beam was rotten in 1892, and should have been out
that is it isn't it ? A That is it.

Q And youdo not for a moment say that that hole of yours caused it to
be rotten ; it was rotten at the time? A It made it worse. 10

Q Why didn't you put a plug in it then to stop the water ? A They
were all plugged up that I bored.

Q They were all plugged up that you bored, yes, but do you say it was
any use plugging them that way, which would let water in

Mr. Macdonnell: It was according to instructions ? A Plugged with
the oakum, that is all I know. •

20

Q But you tell me that it was no gocd ? A A good soldier does what he
is told you know.

Q You were to go and plug it afterwards ? A Not afterwards. Not
afterwards, it was plugged first, and not afterwards.

Q I mean plugged after you bored the hole ; you could not do it before
you bored the hole. - And you left. it in such a condition that the water would
get in ? A It is bound to get in. How does it get through a ship?

30

Q Why did you bore'the beams in that way at all ? A I had orders to
do it.

Q And you made no report to them it was rotten? A Yes.

Q Except handing in the boring5 ? A That is it

Q That is it ? A That is enough, I think.

Q Because it was in such a bad condition that anybody could see it ? A 40
No, you could not see it ; you could not tell but that beam was as sound as a

new beam till you went into the centre.





Q Until you bored ? A Ves.

Q And then you found it out ? A Ves.

Q And then it was rotten in the centre ? A Ves, pretty much.

Q Did you consider it safe then if there was
course after the accident you could see.

any weight on it ?

Q They should have been taken out then, they were all rotten
1892 on the inside ? A Yes.

Re-examined by Mr. Macdonell.

Q Mr. Cox, when you were requested
suppose simply superficial inspection, was it?
from the outside ?

to inspect the bridge that was I
Superficial, what you could see

Mr. Taylor: I object. .

A That is all.

Mr. Taylor: I submit that is not a proper question. He may be asked by 30
my learned friend what instructions he got. What construction he put upon
that instruction is for the court, and not for him to determine.

Q You are not a civil engireer. A Me, no.

Q The person to make a minute inspection of the bridge. or bridges was
Mr. Wilmot ? A Yes.

Q Do you know that-he ever did that himself ? A I do not.
40

Q And the inspection that vou made was a superficial inspection ? A Lt

wasjust-well you might say partial-just as von might walk over it or go under
it in a boat.

A Of

then in m
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Q Did you tell Mr. Wilmot the kind of inspection vou made ? -A He
knew the kind of inspection.

Q He know the kind of inspection you made? A I could not make any
other.

Q Now Mr. Cox you did not bore the under part of No. 3 beam in the
Victoria span ? A No.

Q So vou do not know whether it was rotten underneath or not ? A I
cannot say.

Q Vou bored into it seven inches or there abouts ? A There abouts.

Q When you say it was rotten vou mean traces of rot were in that seven
inches ? A Dry rot, traces of it ? A Yès.

Q It might have stood for a year or two in that way ? A Yes, it might
and perhaps more.

Q But being plugged with oakum would allow the water to get in and
increase the rot ? A Yes.

Q Very materially would it incžease the rot ? A Fifty per cent.

Q The oakum being in there would increase the rot fifty
you sure that Mr. Wilmot saw the borings of those beans ? A
saw it. He stood there in front of me, and the Mayor, both of

per cent. Are
He must have

them.

Q At the time you were boring ? A Ves, Atherly handed it to him in
his hiand.

Q Handed them the borings ? A Ves.

Q And showed them the condition of the borings ? A Yes; and the
Mayor, he put his fingers so and says That is queer looking stuff; that is
Mayor Beaven.

Q And afterwards they were put in papers and handed ? A They were
kept separate, put in Papers and nunbered.

Q And handed to Mr. Wilmot ? A Handed it to Mr. Wilmot the next
morning, and I laved it on his desk. What they did with it I don't know. It
was there for them to see. Some were a little more than others decayed.

30
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Q Who else worked on that bridge ? A Atherly.

Q Any one else ? A Not with me.

Q Besides you, not with you, but outside of you, did anybody else work ?
A Oh, there was a dozen worked on the bridge beside me. I had no occasion
to cover any of it except planks, that is all.

Q You don't know whether any of the others bored any of the beams or
not ? A I do not. They may have been bored with McIntosh, or Elliott, or 10
any of them.

Q Did you use a five-eighths auger at all ? No, I did lot.

Q The auger that you used was the inch and a quarter?
the only boring I ever did.

Q That was the only boring you ever did, and that was
used? A Yes.

Q And you put no wooden plugs in any of the beams ?
not ; only oakum.

A That was

the auger you

20
A No, I did ,

The examination here'closed.

Evidence of John Cox at the Trial of
Patterson v. Victoria

Taken 2oth May, 1897. 40

JOHN COX, of Victoria, called and sworn. Examined by Mr. Mac-
donell.

65
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Q What is your name? A John Cox.

Q Where do you live, Mr, Cox ? A Victoria.

Q Were you in the employ of the city of Victoria in the year '92 ? A
91, sir.

Q In what capacity ? A I was acting as city carpenter.

Q What were vour duties ? A My duty was to look after the sidewalks,
bridges, etc. and report the same to the engineer.

Q What was vour salarv ? A f was getting the same at that time in '91
-the sane as the men that was under me-no more.

Q How mucéh? A That was $2. 50 a day--when you work.

Q Were vou sole city carpenter--or was there any other city caypenter,
except you ? A No, sir, I was the only one at that tirme. in that vear.

Q Were you that in 1892 ? A in 18c)2 1 was appointed permanently 20

carpenter.

Q And what official was over vou ? A The city engineer.

Q Who is he ? A Mr. Wilmot.

Q The Mr. Wilmot that was here ? A That .is the gentleman

Q And you took vour instructions from him ? A Yes, sir.
30

Q In '92 do von rememler an accident on the Point Ellice bridge? A
Ves, sir.

Q You remember the bridge being repaired ? A Yes.

Q Did you get any instructions from Mr. Wilnot to look after the repa'r
of ihat bridge in '92 or report or do anything in reference to it ? A Well.the
onlv repairs I did prior to the accident was just on the platform on top of the
sidewalk.

40

( After the accident did you get any special instructions from Mr. Wil-
mot in r,892 ? A Yes.
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What were those instructions ? A The next morning after the accident
happened in. the afternoon-one, two or three o'clock were to bore this beam
that gave way-or to bore the beams of the bridge-this and alL

Q For what purpose ? A To ascertain whether the iangers-whatstate
they were in.

Q That is, to see whether they were rotten or not ' A Whether they
were rotten or not.

Q Do you remember when that was-the month A I believe it was
about froi the 12th to the i 5 th or thereabout. in June.

Q 1892 A I would not swear exactly, but I4hink tlcreabont in 1892.
The next morning after the accident, I got those instructions.

Q In pursuance of those instructions, what dlid yon do? A I bored
those beamy and handed-it to the city engineer separately in paper and numbered.
I took it into the office, and handed it to Mr. Wilmot.

20
Q There were two spans in the bridge A Ves

Q There was a span towards the Esquimait side of the bridge? A "es.

Q And a span towards the Victoria side A Ves.

Q What they call a whipple truss ? A Yes.

Q That is the span towards the Victoria side. You enter the bridge from
Victoria here (indicating on plan), there is a Pratt combination comes in. this 30
large span. You enter from the Victoria side and go across there, here: that is
the end of the first span A Yes.

Q And then vou enter the second span' A Yes.

Q That is the span that collapsed. Now, you can cal! it No. 1 or No. 2.
In that span it has been sworn there were seven beams. A Yes one in each
panel.

Q Will vou point out on that plan there, the beams that vou bored in 4o
1892 under those instructions ? (Referring to exhibit "R"). No. :, No. 2 and
No. 3. That is all that was bored in that span bv me or anv one else at that
time, on the Esquimalt side. This is the Esquimait side, as i understand it. of
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that span-that is, the collapsed span. This is going from Victoria to Esqui-
malt; that is the Esquimalt end that gave way.

Q The Esquimalt side of the first span that gave way ? A Of the first
span that gave way? A Of the first span from Victoria.

Q ýWillyou tell us why you remember boring only three in that span ? A
Yes.

Q Why ? A It was getting late in the afternoon, and it was somewhere
near four o'clock, and to complete the thing I had another man round, and I
says to this man "Go back and put on those planks" that we tore up to bore
those other beams both in the north and south side," to make the place secure
for the night, and I will bore these beams. "We had started one. I says " I
will complete those three while you do that, and by that time it will be five
o'clock; and we will go home." That is the reason why I bored those three at
that time.

Q Which part of the beam of those three did you bore? There is a north
side,? A Yes, it was the north side ; we bored the, south and north side both,
but it was the north side at that time when I say I told the man to go back and
put on those plank, to nail them down and make them secure. Where he left
me boring I bored on the Gorge side.

--Q Just look at this beam and see if that is a true model tf a beam-one
of those floor beams ? A I believe it is.

Court: We had better have that in as an exhibit; it is not too large.

(Wood model of portion of floor beam, marked exhibit "U.") 30

Court: (To witness): Which is the Gorge end of the beam A This
(indicating).

Q Did the laterals go through here < A Yes; they go through like this
(illustrating).

Mr. Cassidy: We had better mark it north south east and west.

Mr. Macdonell asks Mr. Lockwood to mark in pencil the points of the 40
compass on the model.

Mr. Macdonell (to witness): Mr. Cox, can you place where the tram track

68
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or road track would be ? A This is the tramway here; this is a space of two
feet between the hangers and the tramway ; this is the tivo rails here ; this is a
space of about two feet fron that to this-to the hangers.

Court: ' Just mark that "rail."

Mr. Macdonell: One and two. Witness: And this (indicating) is the-
road.

Q And which is the Gorge end ? A (Witness Indicates) Six feet of 1o

sidewalk clear to this.

Q Between the hanger and the Gorge end ? A Ves, that is right. It
is a little better, but it hangs over to allow-it is a little better on account of
allowing the water to keep clear of t*. bridge-to run off to the side.

Q What size auger did you use ? A Inch and a quarter.

Q Where did you get that auger ? A My own propertv.
20

Q Now, will you just bore in that beam as vou did in 1892. A I don't
know whether I could without a chisel.

Court: Why is it necessary to bore.

Mr. Macdonell: That is, point out where you bored.?

Court: Vou had better mark it in colored pencil.

Mr. Macdonell: Marked red.

Court: It is all red, say boring.

Mr.
hangers.
side ? A

Macdonell: Was it in the end .towards the Gorge
It was between the end of the beam and the hangers,
Yes.

side and the
on the Gorge

Q How far did vou bore that hole? A Seven inches.

Q After vou got through boring-is that an
is an inch and a quarter ?

Q Just go in a little (referring to augering).
ing that hole in seven inches, what did vou do?

inch'and a quarter ? A That

After vou got through bor-
A I took the borings out
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and saved every one of them and put it in paper separately, one from the other,
right through.

Q And those borings-what became of them ? A I took them myself to
the city engineer, into his office.

Q What became of the hole that was left after the boring?
was calked up with oakum for the present time only, with the
that the whole thing would be moved. I suppose it was to keep
for thle present. 1

A The hole
understanding
the water out

10

Q How did you put the oakum in ? A Just put it in with sticks.

Evidence of John Cox at the Trial of 2

Lang v. Victoria.

Taken 12th Oct. 1897.

JOHN COX. (For plaintiff.) Called and 'sworn. Examined by MY.
Macdonnell.

192 Q You live in Victoria, Mr. Cox ? A Ves.

193 Q You were in the employ of the city of Victoria, in 1892 ? A
in 189.

194 Q And in 1892 ? *A 1892.

195 Q What was your position as far as the city was concerned; A
City carpenter.

196 Q What duties did vou
and bridges in general.

perform ?. A Looking after sidewalks

ý7'
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197 Q What was your position, Mr. Cox? A City carpenter.

198 Q And what duties liad you? A My duties were to look after aIl
the sidewalks and bridges, and such other buildings that may be under my
notice.

199 Q Do you know the Point Ellice Bridge? A Yes.

200 Q Did you ever inspect it? A Yes.

201 Q When ? A 1892.

202 Q What time in 1892 ? A Early in 1892.

203 Q Sometime in June, 1892 ? A June, I believe.

204 Q Who instructed you to inspect that bridge ? A Mr. Wilmot,
the city engineer.

205 Q What was the occasion. of that inspection.? A The occasion
20

was there was an accident sometime in June, early in June, I think, by one of
the cars, and the bridge had to be shut off-blocked off, to prevent any travel.

206 Q Did you do anything to stop the travel ? A Blocked off the
bridge.

207 Q By whose instructions; A Mr. Wilmot.

208 Q You stopped the traffic ? A Yes.

209 Q Were notices put up to that effect ? A I believe so. 30

210 Q And you were instructed to inspect ? A Ves.

211 Q Whom did you employ with vou to inspect ? A Atherly.

212 Q What was his first narne ? A Samuel.

213 Q Do you see him in court? A The gentleman there (indicating)

y 214 Q Von employed him to help you inspect? A He was employed 40

by the city at the time.

215 Q What did you do when vou received the instructions from Mr.
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Wilmot to inspect ? A We are instructed to bore the beams.

216 Q How many spans are there in that bridge ? A Two trusses-
spans.

217 Q One called what ? A The Esquimalt span, and one the Victoria
span.

218 Q That is, a span towards the Esquimalt side and a span towards the
Victoria side ? A Yes.

219 Q Can you recognize-tliat as a model of one of the spans(referring to
model in court).? A I believe it is a true model of it.

220 Q How many beams do you remember boring in the Esquimalt side
of that bridge? A We bored seven-we bored 5 in the Esquimalt span.

221 Q Have you examined any beams in the Esquimalt end since the
accident ? A Since the accident of 1892.

222 Q No, since the accident in 1896, have you examined the beams in
the Esquimalt side span? A 'Yes, I have seen them.

223 Q I believe it is there now-the EsquimaIt span ? A There'is two
old beamns, No. i and No. 7.

224 Q Is the Esquimalt span standing over that arm of the sea, now A
Yes.

225 Q What beams in that span did you not bore: A No. r and No. 7.

226 Q Why do you know you did not bore them ? A Well, I lowered

Atherly underneath.

227 Q No-do you find any holes in those beams now A Lately?

228. Q Yes ? A There is one small hole that must have been bored
some years ago that I found the other day. 'There is two small holes have been,

bored underneath from the bottom.

229 Q Did you find any holes in either of these beams, that is i and

7, that are in the EsquimaIt side, that you put in? A No

30
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230 Q
Atherly ? A

So that the holes put in there, now, were not put in by you and
Not put in by me.

231 Q Are they larger or smaller than those vou put in A Half-inch
or something similar.

232 Q Do you know how they were plugged A Those holes were
kind of " skivered ': (?)-put in a smail stick like vour finger, just whittled out
with your knife and plugged in the hole. Mou could pull it ont with your hand;
one of thern was pulled ont in my presence.

233 Q And the other beams vou and Atherly bored ? A Yes.

234 Q Whereabonts ? A We bored thein on the outside, oni· the side-

walk on the top.

245 Q What do you call the outside?' A Well, on the sidewalk; we
took up the floor.

236 Q Tell me where the sidewalk is? A Wel.1, it is on both sides of
the spau.

237 Q Outside of the span? A Yes.

238 Q And you bored the beams on the outside of the span A Yes;

on the outside.

(Model put in position for the jury to view, and construction explained by

counsel to jury).

239 Mr. Macdonell (to witness): Now, Mr. Cox, you say you bored the

beams on the Esquimalt span, under the sidewalk ? A Yes.

240 Q Did vou bore any of the beams on
top of the beam?

241 Q Yes, the upper side of the beam

excepting one.

top of the beams ? A On

A Yes, they were all bored

Q Are von sure as to onlv one A Onlv one, 1 would not swear 40

243 Q You are not sure of one, anywaV 5 A YS

242

to more.
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244 Q Where was it bored ? A It was bored underneath.

Q Whereabouts as far as the length of the beam was concerned A
Rig! utider the hanger, underneath.

:46 Q Did you bore them aftmaf"qds-»Lthe beam on the Esquimalt side

of the span? A Yes.

247 Q Al of them ? A All, except two, I believe-No. i and No. 7
was not bored.

248 Q You bored at both ends of the others ? A Yes.

249 Q On the Victoria span, howr many beeims did you bore, there ? A

The first three nearest the Esquimalt span.

150 Q Do you know what numbers they would be? A That would

be No. 1,- 2 and 3. The beam would be number three and counting from the

Victoria side, on the north side nearest Esquimalt.
20

251 Q Would that be the Gorge side? A The Gorge side, Yes.

252 Q Can you call any fact to mind that makes you remember whv

you only bored three on the Victoria span ? A Well, it was this : it was

getting late in the evening, towards 4 o'elock, and Atherly-he was assisting

me boring a'certain one, anid I says : "You go back, Atherly, and put down

'the sidewalk plank that we have taken up for the boring, and to make it,,

" secure for the night, and" Isays, "by that time it will be time to go home,

and I will go on with the boring," and then I bored three only on that side.
30

253 Q Did Mr. Wilmot see vou doing any boring? A No, he saw us

boring.

254 Q Do you remember the Mayor the same evening being there? A

Yes.

255 Q Did hesee you ? A Ves.

256 Q Did you show thein the shavings from the borings? A Yes.
40

!57 Q Vou are positive as to that ? A Yes.

à58 Q They saw the sie ôftheager
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259 Q They saw the shavings? A They saw it all.

260 Q What time of the day did you stop boring do von think ? A
Close upon 5 o'clock.

261 Q You had to take up the sideialV I believe A Yes, we could
not do otherwise.

262 Q Did you inspect the beains from underneath, at all ? A Yes.

Io
263 Q How.did you do that? A By means of a ladder and a seat ; a

piece of planking with two holes on each side and a little reef at the top-a
small plank. I lowe.red Atherly down.

264 Q That is the Atherly who is here? A This man here.

265 Q So that was the reason why it took.so long to bore those beams ?
A Yes.

266 Q What did you do with the borings after you got through ? A 20
They were taken to the office. I took them into the engineer's office myself,
and laid them on his desk.

267 Q Were they all together A No, they were separate ;-they were
all narked, but I suppose he didn't notice the mark on the outside-1, 2, 3 and
so on.

268 Q Were they marked "sound" and *unsound," and so on ? A I
believe they were.

269 Q Did you remark some as more »unsound than others? A There 30

was some little trace on some-just a little more.

270 Q Did vou notice some anv more than others ? A I could not

swear to anv.

271 Q When were thev taken to Mr. Wilmot? A The following

moring.

212 Q Left with him? A Left with him in his office. 40

273 Q Did you get any it structions about plugging the holes ? A Ves,

I believe that day'
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274 Q From whom? A Fron the engineer, Mr. Wilmot.

275 Q What did he tell you to plug those with A Told me to get
some oakuin and tar and plug up these holes for the present, just temporary.

276 Q Did you get any oakum ? A Yes.

-277 Q From whom ? A McQuade & Sons.

278 Q Who was that oakum charged to? A To the City, the
corporation.

279 Q When did you plug the holes? A I would not swear whether
it was the next day or afterwards. It was the day following--the third day
after the bori.ng, I believe.

280 Q How did yon plug theni ? A The, tar was mixed with the
oakum, and just shoved in with the handle of a hammer.

281 Q Was it done for a temporary purpose, or was it-? 20

Objected to by Mr. Taylor. Objection sustained.

182 Mr. Macdonell (to witness): Was it the intention to remove those
beams ? A Yes.

Objected to by Mr. Taylor.

283 Q How hard did you drive in the oakum A Just with' the
hand so.

30

284 Q Was it driven in tightly oi loosely A Well, it might have
been driven in tighter.

285 Q Do you know anything åbout Wood, and rot? A Yes.

286 Q If it was the- intention of having those beams in there perman-
ently for any length of time, how would you have plugged them ? A I would
not have plugged them at ail. They would have been better without plugging.

287 Q If you had to, how would you have done it ? A I would have 4

put in cement, or something of that kind.

288 Q Did you notice if the beam number 7 on the Victoria span was
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bored ? A i can't say whether it was or fnot.

289 Q The auger that you used, what kind of a handle had it ? A In
a. piece of wood, and turned round this way (illustrating motion of augering.)

290 Q How long was the handle-the wooden part? A Might have
been, a foot-no more.

291 Q Could you have bored the holes that were in nuimber i and num-
ber 7 in the Esquimalt side, with that auger ? A Ves.

292 Q The same way that the holes are now bored-the same place ?
A No, I could not.

293 Q Why? A I could not get in between the iron-vou would
have to work it through half-way.

294 Q What kind of an auger would von have to use for the h.oles in
those there, now? A A brace and bit to work half-way; we could not get
round. A small bit-half inch. 20

295 Q I believe you are a ratepayer, Mr. Cox ? A Ves, sir.

296 Q In Victoria? A Yes, Sir.

297 Q You were not examined at the inquest ? A No, I was not here.

30

Cross Examined bv Mr. Tavlor.

40

298 Q You were examined though in the Patterson case weren t you?
A Ves, sir.

77
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299 Q
case ? No.

And you were also examined in this case before trial ? A This

300 Q Don't you recollect that ? A No.

301 Q You cannot recollect that? A In this present case?

302 Q
present ?

Yes? A Is that the examination in Victoria? when you was

. 303 Q Yes.. A Ves.

304 Q You were examined. So you have testified with refererce- to
the bridge accident twice already, and this is your third time ? A Yes.."

305 Q Speaking generally, is your recollection as good now as it was
then ? A Generally, I think. I think it'is generally.

306 Q And how was it then' A Good, then.

307 I think that you testified that vou bored this hole about or 8 20

inches from the hanger hole on the plank walk side.. Yon testified in the Pat-
terson case that you bored these beams at both ends-i, 2, and 3 ? A No, I
did not.

308 Q You did not? A No.

309 Q Well, perhaps I-am wrong, Mr. 'Cox. I ywas underthe impression
you did testify you bored them at both ends?. A No.

310 Q You say you did not testify tlat way. Look at line 25, p. 94
evidence in the Patterson case, in the,· book. It is just before exhibit
"V" is put in (to .Mr. Macdonell.) (To witness) Vou were asked this question:

"which part of the beam of those 3 did vou bore? There is a north side ? A
Yes, it was the north side; we bored the south and north side both, but it was
the north side at that time when I sav I told the man to go back, and put on
those plank to nail them down and make them secure. Where he left me
boring I bored on the Gorge side." Yoiu sav you did not say bored on both
sides ?i A, No, on the Victoria span.

311 Q I suppose that statement was not-
said as far as the other span was concerned. I
bored on the north.side,

true in that case ? A No, I
said the Esquiríalt span was

3ç)
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312 Q I will call yodr attention to where yoû makýe a reference to what

you have just said noir, at page 94 beginning at the middle of the page, and I

will read the questions to see if your attention was not called to that. "Will

you point out on that plan there the beams that you bored in 1892 under those

instructions (referring to exhibit "R" "-referring to the instructions you say

you gotfrom Mr. Wilmot, referring to exhibit "R." That was 1, 2, and 3,

the~same as that.

313 Q "Number i, number 2, and number-3. That is all that was

bored in that span by me or anyone else at that time, on the Esquimalt side. Io

Witness: On the Victoria side.

314 Q On the Esquimalt side ? A No-on the Victoria side.

315 Q "This is the Esquimalt side, as I understand it¢8ýf that span:

that is, the collapsed span. This is going from Victoria to Esquimalt ; that is

the Esquimalt end that gave way" This was tlie question asked: "The Esqui-

malt side of the first span that gave way ?" Vou say: "Of the first span fron

Victoria." Witness : Ves, that is right. 20

316 Q "Will you tell us why you remember-boring only three in that

span.? A Ves.". Then you give your answer pretty much as to-day, and

then you are asked " Which part of the beam of those 3 did you bore? When

you refer to 3- you are referring to 1, 2, and 3, of the span that collapsed? A

Certainly.

317 Q Then you were asked the question. Witness: On the north side.

3i8 Q The question says "There is a north side ?" an you answer it

was the north side. "Which part of the beam of those 3 did you bore ?-there

is a north side," and then you add yourself, without any further question,

We bored the south and north side both, but it was the north side at that

time when I say I told the man to go back and put on those plank, to nail them

down." A The north side; I said the Esquimalt span we bored on both

sides.

319 Q Was not vour attention called to those beams ? A That was

the only beams we bored at that time. That is what I stated at that time in

the presence of this Court. 
40

320 Q You were asked still further with reference to that On page 21

of the de bene esse examination. You heard Atherly also -testify at the Patter-
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son trial ? A I believe I did.

321 Q And he was with you at the time ? A Ves.

322 Q e And you remember what lie testified as to which side of the beams ?
A He said the saine as I said. He said that lie bored-assisted to bore one
beam on the Victoria span, and I told him to go back and put on the planks
while I finished boring that end.

323 Q Do you remember whether he said he bored the two end of the 1o
number 3 beam; A He didn't say so; Isavhe didn't so.

324 Q Well, we will see whether he did or not. Beginnng at the place
where you told him to go and put down the planks over the sidewalk, pp 272,

and 273 of the testimony in the appeal book. It would be beginning at p. 2 of
his evidence marked by the stenographer. "On t'he Esquimalt span. To do

that you would have to leave him, of course ? A Yes, sir. Q What was he

going to do while vou were doing that? A• He was going to finish the boring

sir'--(that is you were). Q He was going to finish the boring, and where.
20

as you went away to put the planks down on the Esquimalt span, where did he

go on with the boring? A He started right te bore on towards the Victoria

side." Witness: That was me.

325 Mr. Taylor: Yes. "On towards Victoria, and at which end of the

span? That would be towards the Gorge or the other side?" and Atherlv

answered "we bored it on both sides." Witness: - No.

326 Mr. Taylor: He did not-eh ? To go on: "I know, but the

Victoria side I am speaking of, now, that lie went to bore when vou went put- 30

ting the planking down ?" and the answer is "On the Gorge side." And

then you go on to another question, So vou both said then vou bored it on both

sides? Witness: ,I didn't sa .it.

327 Q And you say that Atherly didn't say it ? A He did not.

Mr. Macdonell: I submit that Atherly did not sgy .anvthing of the kind.

Court: You will have a chance of showing that at the proper time, and of

calling attention to the other portions of the evidence to disturb the position 40
that Mr. Taylor suggests, now.

Mr. Macdonell: But if mv learned friend will say a witness said so-and-so
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to this witness when he did not say so, and I see he is mistaken, then I think I
have a right to call his attention to it at the time.

Court: Yes, but lie is putting this advisedI". It is not as if a casual dis-
agreement arose. Evidently Mr. Taylor is relying on a substantial variation
between a former statement of this witness, and now, and unless Mr. Taylpr
misreads the evidence from the.stenographer's notes, it 1s not usual to interrupt.

Mr. Macdonell : No ; but I say lie is mistaken in what Atherly said.
10

Court : Well, you will have an opportunity in re-exaninuation to read as
much or as little of it as you like.

Mr. Taylor : For the purpose of keeping this clear on the notes, I direct
attention to question and answer 273, Appeal Book, in the Patterson case,
beginning at line io, and ending at line 12.

Court: After all, there is verv little reason for anv misunderstanding about
this evidence, because under the arrangement nade the jury will be able to
take this evidence into the juryroom with them, and if it rests upon the mis- 20

placing of a comma, the jury are. quite as able to judge of it as weare.

Cross-Examination Continuel.

328 Mr. Taylor (to witness) At any rate. the stenographer must. be-
wrong ; he had no business to take down the answer that way' Mr. Cox ? A
I told then down below it was a mistake ii. his taking of it down that way.

329 Q You testified in Victoria on a commission-there a short time ago ?
A Yes. 30

330 Q You were examined and cross-examined there, and vou spoke of
boring not on the span that collapsed, but on the span nearest Esquimalt-boring
some beams there, didn't von? A Thev were all bored except two in the
Esquimalt span.

341-Q- D vou remenber what you said about the boring of them then,
Mr. Co'x ? A j fôrget exactlv-what is it ?

332 -Q You don't remember, what von said about the boring of them ? 40
fwill s'how vou in.a moment. You were in charge of this work of inspection
of bridges and sidewalks from that time to what tine? A 189r ,-oh, the

bridge only
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333 Q No, bridges and sidewalks. In other words vou were in the
employ of the city from- A Frorn 1891. to 1896, April ; May, 1891, to
April, 1896.'

334 Q And part of your duty was to inspect and see the condition of
bridges and sidewalks ? A Yes.

335 Q Ad to let the city know ? A Yes.

336 Q I think you testified that the minor class of repairs you would do 10
without saying anything about it to the city, and repairs of a greater degree
you would report if they needed repair ? A Yes.

337 Q In other words, small matters vou did without reporting particu-
,ktly, and your duty was to report work needing a larger extent of nioney? A

Yes.

338 Q There was no one dlse during that period whose duty it was to
do that work other than vourself ? A Oh, if I sent a man-to do it-

20
339 Q But I mean to say, the inspection of these bridges? A No one

except the engineer.

340 Q But that was your particular duty ? A Yes.

341 Q And if ever vou san-anything wrong, you either repaired it, or
reported it as needing repairs ? A More often repaired it than reported it-
any small matter.

342 Q You testified with regard to the number of beams you bored ?nd 30
the size of the auger you used at this Patterson trial, and also in vour examina-
tion on this trial, at Victoria ? A I think so.

343 Q And you said an inch and a quarter auger ? A I believe I did.

344 Q And since Vou have examined some old beams that are in the
Esquimalt span that now stands- A Yes.

345 Q -and you find it is nuch less than an inch and a-quarter auger
hole A It is not a half inch-barely a half inch. 40

346 Q And No. 7 beam an the span that collapsed, did you see the auger
hole in that ? A No, I was not here when they was broke up.
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- 347 Q And the auger holes yon did see were smaller than an inch and a
quarter, and you say vfere plugged with wood? A A stick just about the size
of your finger.

. 348 Q Isn't that about large enough to fill a one-inch hole ? A Some-
thing about that.

349 Q It was bored underneath ? A No, between the hanger on top ;
there was one on No. i on the Esquimalt span, and one on No. 7-n1ot on
the other. 10

350 Q During the time you were in charge of the bridge was there any
other person to do any boring ? A Might have been.

351 Q Do you know of any ? A I don't know of any.

352 Q It being your duty you would have-knowi whether there was any
other person ? A Other. people have overhauled that bridge, besides me.

353 Q Do you know of any whiler-Tou were there ? A No. 20

354 Q And you were in charge, too? A When other folks were work-
ing on- it, I had nothing to do with it.

355 Q You were in charge of the bridge up tò within thirty days of the
accident ? A No, when other people worked on the bridge, I was relieved.
I had nothing to-do with it, gentlemen.

356 Q Then I ask vou what other people ? A McIntosh repaired the
bridge after the accident. . 30

357 Q What did he do ? A Generally overhauled the bridge.

358 Q What he laid was stringers ond rails ? A And put a new floor
in.

359 Q He was doing that for the tramway company A The city or
the tramway company.

360 Q Don't you kn.ow he was doing it for the tramway company' A
No, I don't know.

361 Q Oh, come now, Cox; what is the use of saying that You say
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you don't kncw ? A No.

363 Q That is what he did; he laid some stringers for the car rails? A
For what difference there was between the city and the tramway, that is none of
ny business.

364 Q You know what he did to the bridge? A I k.nw-it was put on;
that is all I know about it.

365 Q It was necessary for you to know ? A
all. It was etitirely taken out of my hands.

No ; I was nlot there at 10

366 Q But didn't you see what was going on ? A No.

367 Q You do not mean to tell ns that you whose duty it was to look*
after these sidewalks and bridges, would see something of that kind going on,
without knowing what it was? A I tell you it was the city engineer who
looked after that.

368 Q
present when

369 Q
a new floor ?

370 Q
they did.

.371 Q
I don't know*

Didn't you know what was done? A Afterwards. I was not
it was done.

What they did wàs to lay stringers for rails for the car, and laid
A Yes.

And in 1892 they put some new beams-in ? A Yes, I believe

Well, you know they did, don't you ? You saw it done ? A.
how many wgs put in.

20

372 Q You saw-it done ? A No, I didn't see it t1one-none of it.

373 Q And you did not see what the effect of it was after it was done ?
A How could you after it was covered ?

374 You did not look during the course of it? A I had no business to.

375 Q You did not pay any attention tô it at all ? A No.

376
A Yes.

Q And you were city carpenter for three vears after that period? 40

377 Q When did you first find that out? A I didn't know even until
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after the bridge was collapsed how many
I came back here a year and a-half ago.

378 Q And it was your duty to
was? A No, it was not.

new beams was put in that span, until

see what the condition of the bridge

379 Q Then you were not correct a few months ago when you say it
was your duty? A So far as that bridge as you may walk over-so far as the
eye could see, and nothing more.

1o
380 Q You were told in 1892 to go and bore some of those beans and i

see if they were sound, and did bore some of them ? A Yes.

•8. Q' And some that you bored you found extremely rotten? A Not
extremely; there were pieces of rot

382 Q Is that so, what you said in your examination here only two or
three weeks ago in Victoria? You were asked this question, p. 13, ques. 26:-
"Then it is a fact that all the beams you bored were rotten ?" To which you
answered "Every one." A More or less. 20

383 Q "Q Every on.e. They were pretty badly rotten too, weren't
they ? A I believe they were. Q You believe they were? A Yes. Q
Q Then why didn't you replace all the beams in the bridge ? A I had noth-
ing to do with it. Q You had nothing to do with it. A No. Q You
were told to go and bore the beams and plug the holes? A Yes. Q Did
you plug the holes ? A Yes, all that we bored, with oakum. Q Did you
plug them with wood ; A No." You say. that answer is not quite correct ?
Witness: It may be pretty near the remark, but so far as saying they were 30

badly rotten-

384. Q To see if you were taken by surprise, in that question
we will turn to p. 15, and see what you said, beginning
"weren't you expected to make any report ?" That is

referring to the time you had instructions to go and bore and examine

and report "Q How were they going to find out your opinion whether they

were rotten or not ? A There was my opinion that was handed to them. Q
Was it youropinion ? Yes. Q That was something that you bored out of the

beam A Ves. A And thev were rotten ? A Yes. Q Everyone of 40
them? A Yes. Q Very badiy rotten ? A Ves, pretty ba. Q You
never did in fact then bore the other beams in the Victoria span ? A No. Q
But thiey Were replaced ? A I believe thev were, afterwards. Q You know

f
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they were ? A I didn't know for some time; I had nothing to do with them."
We look further down in that question and see what yon said then in regard to
it. Line 22-"Q Wasn't it youir duty to circulate about the city to ascertain
whether the bridges and sidewalks were in good condition or rotten ? A I had
nothiug to do with it in that case ; it was placed in their own -hands, and I had
nothing to do with it." Vou had instructions to go and report on it at that
time ? A No.

385 Mr. Taylor : P. 16. Q "Wasn't it vour business to ascertain
whether ar not this material was rotteni ? A It was not my business .at all.
Q What was your business? A To ascertain whetlher t h-wei-e rotten.'
Witness Some mistake there.

Mr. TIaylor: We.Jave-iff gifted with a numuber of bad stenographers

386 Q "To ascerfain whether they were rotten-to find out whether the
materials were rotten, the sidewalks and bridges in the city? A Vou mean
previous to the accident ? Q At the time of the accident ? A I had not got 20
the chance to do it, when I was ordered the next minute almost-" (To wit-
ness): Now, Mr. Cox, you also said in this examination that you bored one of
the beams from underneath. A Yes.

387 Q And- von found it very rotten ? A I can't say I said that.

388 Q Well, what do vou say now about it? It may be rotten.

389 -Q What do vou say now ? A I say now it was rotten more or less;
as to how much. a person can't tell-as to any quantity', a man can't telL. 30

390 Q Didn't vou say as a inatter of fact they were about half rotten
through A No, I did not.

391 Q You did not say that ? A I did not.

392 Q What kind of a recollection have you got? A I have a pretty
good one.

393 Q Must this reporter be wrong in what he has reported vou as say-
ing? Is that so, Cox ? A What is that, sir ?

394 Q Do vou say this reporter must be wrong, in this statement of

what you said ? A Pretty indifferent, some of them.
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395 Q At any rate, you knew this beam was pretty badly rotten in

1892? A It might be ; I don't say that it was ; I never swore it was.

396 Q I read what you say, and von say that is not correct ? A i could

not sav how nuch ; might be one or six or the whole.

397 Q Didn't vou sav all were so rotten thev should ail he taken out ?

A I did not; I dont think so.

398 Q Well, we will see whether vou did or riot. A I think I nade o

sone remark why wasn't those two beans that were left in and taken out dur-

ing the inquiry-?

399 Q In page 24, Mr. Cox, beginning at the top- Q Von were

asked to bore and find out the condition of the bridge ? To which you answered:

"We were not ordered to do anv more boring ; we bored tliat day, and that was

sufficient. Q And you might have bored one beanmand if it was five o'clock,

vou would call that sufficient ? A Yes, if thev ordered it. Q And then re-

port the bridge in sound condition ? A 'It was quite sufficient to report the

bridge rotten as far as the beaiis-" Witness: Von miit have wrote it down, 20

but I didn't say rotten.

400 Q This was written not b- me, but by the shorthand reporter.

"And then report the bridge in souÛnd condition ? A Itvas quite sufficient to

report the bridge rotten as far as the beams- Q How do yon explain your

report then in 1895 that it was sound wlien this bean No. 3 had not been re-

moved ? A There wasn't any question about its being rotten ; I don't know;

if it is not bored underneath it is not bored on top." I)o von know what tou

nean bv that answer ? Witness: Which beain are vou referring to? 30

401 Mr. Taylor: Q What is not bored on top ? A That, I think it

is the No. i-I would not be sure-on the Esquimualt span on the north side it

is bored underneath, and the other side it is bored on top." Vou answered that

wav? A es.

402 Q And then "Q Von bored some underneath and some on top ?" Do

you sav that stilli? A There were one or two bored underneath and the rest

on top.
40

403 Q You ansiered to that -' That is what we did.'' A Well, even so-

404 Q Then you were asked this :--,Q Whv did vou do that ? A To
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ascertain which was the worse.; we found the bottom was worse than the other
and we didn't bore but one or two of them." That is, you mean the holes you
bored in the bottom disclosed a more rotten state than the holes in the top?
A I suppose that was the neaning of it.

405 Q You bored one of the Esquimalt side at the bottom and you found
that absolutely rotten ? A Yes, worse than the top."

4o6 " Page 25. Q And then you bored the other from the top of the
beam ? -A Yes. Q And you found them absolutely rotten ? A Yes. Q 10

Yon did that with the Esquimalt span! Esquimalt span. only. Q And then
you bored three of the beams on the Victoria side on the top ? A Yes. Q
And found them absolutely rotten' A Yes." That was your answer.
And you found the condition of the beams on the Esquimalt span was a little
more rotten when you bored from the bottom than when vou bored from the
top ? A Yes, the one that we bored." Witness: Yes.

407 Mr. Taolor: "Q And they were all rotten and unsafe at that time ?
A Yes. Q. And vou were aware of that fact. A Yes. Q. And vou did
not report that to anybody? A It was reported the next morning. Q You
handed in those borings ? A That was what we did. Q You say this par-
ticular beam (3) in the Victoria span you handed in the borings to them to let

them see for themselves ? A Yes. Q That was vour idea in boring it? A
Yes." Then this question : "Q I see. WeIl, Mr. Cox, I would like to ask
you how you could, knowing that those beams were absolutely rotten in 1892,
make a report in 1895 that the bridge was sound ?" and I ask vou now how
could you do it ? You did make a report in 1892 that the bridge was -sound;
and I ask you now, knowing those beams were absolutely rotten in 1892, you
could report to the council in 1895 that the bridge was sound ? A The onlv 30
wav the order that I ever received from the citv was this-what I could see,

walking round, with my eyes-walking round that bridge or any other bridge.

Iwas not allowed to take up any floor or interfere with anything underneath

any sidewalk of any description, and'that is what I reported.

408 Q Do you mean to say that knowing beams were rotten in 1892

(because you had exumined them by boring) and knowing those beamns were not

taken out in 18954 that you would report to the council that the bridge was

sound ? A I didn't know how many wis.taken out from 1892 to 1895.

409 Q Did you look to see ? A No, I was not allowed to look..
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410 Q Who stopped you looking? A Well, take the engineer for it
and he will tell you.

4x Q Who stopped you from looking at the bridge? A No one
stopped me particularly, but I was not allowed to meddle with it.

412 Q I refer you to your report of 1895 that you made to the council.
After dealing with a number of other matters, you say : "The Point Ellice

bridge is-in good condition "-A So far as I could see.
or

413 Q Did you say that, here ? A So far-as I could see.

414 Q Did you say that in your report ? A 1 believe it is -there, and
if it is not there, it ought to be.

415 Q If you can show me that in the. report, I shall be pleased for you
to find it ? -A It may not be there.

416 Q Presented for 1895? A You can't go upon that report.
20

417 Q Isthere anything in that you do not agree with ? A I don't
want to look at it.

418 Q You add this "This is to certify that the above mentioned bridges
are all in general good order and have kept so during the past year." A Yes.

419 Q Was that true? A That is true.

420 Q How could you say that'when you say in 1892 this beam was
rotten, and had never been replaced ? A I didn't know but what those beams 30
were replaced-I told you before.

421 Q Did you look and see ? A I was not allowed to look-only to

walk over the bridge- and the floor-that is all you were allowed to do.

422 Q Who stopped you. from looking at the underneath portion of the

bridge ? Was there anybody who ever stopped you ? A Do .you suppose

could waste my time going round-?

423 Q Answer the question ? A Yes, if I went to any alderman and 40

said "I would like to take that plank up,' they would say you could not do it.

424 Q Couldn't you look? A How could you, without taking up the

floor?
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425 Q Then your own report, signed by yourself, addressed to the city
engineer. (Reads letter accompanying report.)

"Sir, In compliance with your request, I beg to submit herewith the fol-
lowing report, relative to sidewalks, water tanks and bridges." Witness: That
is right

426 Q In other words, you were asked to do that ? A, That was Mr.
Wilmot's instructions at $hat time.

427 Q And in pursuance of that, you reported this bridge sound, with-
out knowing whether or not it was sound ? A' By looking over it only ; just

what I could see as you walk over it, and from a boat underneath, looking up.
That is, all that you can see from the bottom.

428 Q You could tell from a boat underneath, looking up, whether
they were old or new beams? A You couldn't tell a thing about it.

429 Q Do you mean to tell us that in discharge of your duty to inspect
that, that is all you did ? A That is all I did in any case. 20

430 Q What was the object of getting this report from you ? A Just a
general routine of business every year-it was not one year.

431 Q Was it not in order that the city council might know the condition
of the bridges and sidewalks ? A They did know previous to that, but they
never completed -it,

432, Q The city council change, as individuals ? A Every three years-
some of them. 30

433 Q· They change every year ? A No, some of them go back for
two or three years.

434 Q But there is a new election every vear for aldermen ? A Oh,
yes.

435 Q bo you consider that'was a fair thing to do to the council and
ratepayers to report that bridge as sound without knowing whether it was, or
making an examination ? A Yes, I consider it was fair. 40

436 Do you consider that was even common honesty? A That is what
I was ordered to do, and nothing more.
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437 Q You have just told me the instructions you got were set forth in
your report, isn't it, with Mr. Wilmot, to examipe the bridges ? A That is
correct.

438 Q And you cônsider you were perfo-ming that duty when you sim-.
ply walked over, and did not look at the under portion of the bridge at all ? A
Not of this bridge.

439 Q You skipped this one ? A I didn't skip any of them. I walked
over it half a dozen times. ' 10

44o Q You were discharged in 1896 about 30 days before this accident?
A April ist, I think.

441 Q You were discharged from the city service, then ? A Yes.

442 Q Do you wonder at it vourself ? A Not a bit of it-not a bit ofit.

443 Q You have looked at those beams, or those beams in the Esquimalt
span ? A Yes. 20

444 Q Since you were examined in the Patterson case ? A Yes.

445 Q You found that some of those beams were bored with a half inch
auger ? A No.

446 Q What size? A Half inch bit.

447 Q What is the difference between a bit and an auger ? A A
great deal of difference. 30

448 Q 1 don't kno it, Mr. Cox-tell us what it is ? A An auger is
about 2 feet, and a bit is onlV about io inches or 8 inches. You can have
then in all sizes, from 2 feet up to 6 feet, if you want an anger.

441 Q An auger is io inches? A A bit-I didn't say an auger.

450 Q And how long is an auger? A May be io feet.

451 Q You observed some of these beais were bored by a bit? A
Yes.

452 Q Of what diameter? A About half inch; may be a little less.
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453 Q Yon have previously sworn in the Patterson case that you bored
these with an inch and a-quarter auger? A Ves, iot all of them.

454 Q Well, all that were bored A Yes--inch and a-quarter.

455 Q And was not your attention called to the fact you hid made r
mistake about that ? A No, I don't say so.

456 Q Didn't you go down with some people who pointed out it was a
half inch bit instead of an auger? A What time are you alluding to ? Io

'457 Q You have told me you went down after you testified and ex-
amined it, and found a half inch hole ? A I found two on the saine side, one
in each stick.

458 Q Did not Mr. Mason, Mr. Cartniel and Mr. Walker-you know
all those gentlemen ? A Yes, I know them.

459 idd't they invite y on Mondav the 4 th of this nonth- A
Invite nie,. 20

460 Q To stop and see'them examine the'end portions of the beain for
auger holes ? A No, sir.

461 TheyÀ d not do that while vou were there about that time ?- A
I was there when they came, but what their business was I don't know.

462 Q Vou were there with Mr. Macdonell A Yes.

463 Q Counsel in this case? A Yes. 3

è 464 Q You were visiting the bridge and inspecting it? A Walking
over it, I believe, and that is all.

465 Q How did you find out there was a half inch hole there then ? A
I knew that there was months previouslv.

466 Q You examined and found that fact? A -It is right between the
hanger.

467 Q Did you teil that fact in the Patterson case A Evervone knew
it, I thought, at the time.

468 Q Did you tell it in court? A No, I didn't-I don't think it.
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469 Q Do you know of anybody during the whole time you were in
charge of that bridge you have told us, who bored any holes in it ? A I don't
know.

470 Q Was there anybody who had any business to bore any holes ' A
Yes, McIntosh, he might ; it was his duty that time when they came up
and put on the new tram car lines-those new stringers.

471 Q That was after you had bored in 1892 A Ves, that summer,
anyway.

472 Q Well, it was in that month of June, wasn't it A When the
accident was ?

473 Q I don't mean the accident in this case, but I mean the time that
vou lored the holes in 1892 and found them rotten? A That was in 1892.

474 They were immediately or almost immediately replaced by new
beams ? A Some time afterwards; that summer at all events.

20

475 Q Haven't you any closer idea ? A Well, it was after June; it
was the 1 5 th June when the accident happened.

476 Q And you bored on the i 6th ? A I stopped the traffic on the
same day.

477 Q And you rep'aired it immediately ? A Ves.

478 Q It was then repaired immediatelv~ after the accident? A The
first been that broke was repaired by Clarke, sometime after that they recon- 30
structed it altogether.

479 Q Well, now, how long ? A I can't tell you how long.

48o Q You have not the faintest idea? A -No-nothing to do with it,

whatever.

481 Q You have no recollection at all A Before winter, probably.

482 Q I suppose they trotted along all summer over a rotten bridge- 4

vou never reported it ? A I had no occasion; after the accident I had nothing

whatever to do with it.

483 Q But you did have to do with it all that summer-bridges and
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sidewalks ? Q Well, I went over it.

484 Q Suppose you had known that rotten beam was in that bridge, would

you have reported that bridge sound? A I didn't know there was a rotten beam

in it, not then. I should have suggested then to move that out, but I found

afterwards-

485 Q Would you have considered you were doing your duty if you

reported the bridge sound when you knew there was a rotten beam in it ? A

No, I should not; I wotrid not have interfered with it-not without an order. 10

486 Q Suppose you knew this bridge had a rotten beam ? A I didn't

know.

487 Q I ask you if you had known-? A That is another question.

488 Q Supposing you did, would you consider it your duty to report

it? A If I had known the bridge was in danger, it certainly would have

>een my duty.
20

489 Q Do you consider that you acted in accordance with your duty

when you reported it sound, and did not know whether the rotten beain was

removed? A It was not my duty after the mechanics and engineer had gone

over it-it was not at that time iny duty to look underneath the bridge.

490 Q And you were quite willing to report it sound, without know-

ing anything about it ? A Just by what we could see by walking over it, and

nothing more.

491 Q Didn't you know that the under part of the bridge had a good 30

deal to do with the strength and carrving capacity of it? A Generally.

492 Q But did you know that. You did know sonething about

bridgesi A A little.

493 Q Then you nust have known that, and yet you were willing to

let people eidanger their lives upon a report of yours that it was sound, when

youwere in, ignorance whether it was sound ? A That is all I was allowed

to do.
40

494 Q I want to know who stopped you, because w may get at the

responsible mar. A Well, you must go to the engineey. e-
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495 Q Who stopped you inspecting a portion of it? A The engineer.

496 Q When? A In all casés; not when, but in all cases.

497 Q Did you ever try ? A Yes.

498 Q When ? A Several occasions.

499 Q Tellme one? A In the first place we were stopped by an

alderman-" you mustn't do this." or

Soo Q Tell me of one occasion on which you were stopped on Point

Ellice bridge? A I don't remember any one occasion.

501 Q Did you ever try? A I think so.

502 Q Tell me when? A I could not.remember.

503 Q Because this is a pretty serious màtter-a man is sent out to ex-

pressly examine and report upon a bridge ? A I deny that. I was not 20

expressly sent to examine the bridge.

504 Q You don't deny that report of yours of 1895 ? A I don't deny
anything that is in it.

505 Q Then you do not deny you reported it sound in 1895? A I did

report it sound.

5o6 Yon have also testified in your examination in this case in Victoria a

few days ago, that you bored holes in 1892, and they were absolutely rotten,
didn't you ? A Probably something like that.

507 - Q Well, something like that, and did you ever examine the bridge

between 1892 and 1895 to see whether those rotten beams were replaced? A

No.

5o8 Q And yet you reported it sôund in 1895? A Yes, so far as vou

could see by the eye ; that is all I was allowed to do.

509 Q Is that what you said in vour report? A The report does not

mention anything like that.

510 Q Would you make a dishonest report? A No.
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511 Q You would you make an honest report? A I believe so, and
that is honest.

512 Q That is? A I think so.

513 Q Then your statement that that beam was rotten' in 1892-it iS

not honest ? A If it is correct in my writiig, it is honest, but it is a' very
great question whether that is, or niot.

514 Q Vou mean the city corporation report of 1895, printed before 0
this accident ? A.- Yes.

ý55 Q You know that? A Yes.

516 Q And' you mean to say the city would falsify vour report? A
Just as liable to do anything.

517 Q And that is the opinion you entertain of them Just as liable to
do anything.

518 Q Why did you work for them from 1892 to 1895 ? A That is 20
why I went away-to leave them.

519 Q Didn't they discharge vou ' Did you resign or were you dis-

charged ? A I was discharged for simply this-if you will listen to me-

520 Q You were told to go ? A No; listen a minute. I will tell you
how I was discharged. Well, no« g citv was getting behind and'had no
funds to carry on its work, and'they came to the conclusion to dispense with me
or the city foreman-that was Mr. Wilson-and some of the aldermen were in 3 0

favor of discharging Wilson, and putting his duty upon me, so then the majority
turned round and so dismissed me and put Wilson in my place. What did
Wilson do when the engineer sent him under this very same bridge ?-reported
it al sound, didn't he ý

521 Q I don't know. A Oh, well, you do know, because it was
told right in this here court.

522 'Q In the Patterson case A In the Patterson case.
40

523 Q When and who stated it ? I want to see what kind of a recollec-

tion you have got, because I don't believe vou remember very much about it?
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A Mr. Wilmot sent Mr. Wilson to inspect the bridge-this was in the coroner's

inquest.

524 Not in Court here ? A Yes, right here too.

525 Q Who stated it ? A I don't know who stated it.

526 Q Was it a witness in the case' A I could not sav.

527 Q You mean soneone outside the courthouse ? A No, it was

right in the courtroom. It might have been Wilson himself, for all I know.

528 Q Was Wilson called A Ves, he was right here-the street

superindendent.

529 Q Was he called as a witness in the case 1 A He was called I

believe.

530 Q And then testified ? A I believe so-one of the cases, >hich

ever it was. 20

531 Q You did not testify in the Gordon case? A I had riothing to do

with it.

532 Q Well, you were not here, then ? He was here in the Patterson

case. I was here in the Gordon case, and the Patterson case, too, but I had

nothing to do with the Gordon Case.

533 Q Vou did not testifv in' that ? A No.

534 Q Theyd<,ï not pay you any fee, I apprehend,-in the Gordon. case 30

-did not subpoena you'? A No, I didn't ask for any.

535 Q We are unable to find that Wilson testified in that Patterson case:

Vou got about $192 didn't vou, for coming down and testifying in the Patterson

case A I didn't get any money at all, only what the court allowed.

536 Q Well, how much was that? A Two dollars a day.

37 Q Didn't you get some money to corne from the upper countrv

A No.

538 Q Where were you -served with the subpoena ? A In Victoria.
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539 Q And you got conduct simply from there ? A I didn't get
any money from anyone.

540 Q Perhaps I was wrong about that. I was informed you got $192
for coming from the upper country to Victoria ? A I swear you are wrong.

541 Q I am quite willing to accept your statement. Yon did 'get
$1-92.00 ? A No, i didn't even for staying round there.

542 Q You got 1300.oo to stay round for. the case and to give evidence 10
in it, ,and not to go up country ? Then I got it a little mixed? A You have
got it pretty well mixed.

Court : You do not suggest there is anything inproper, do you ?

543 Mr. Taylor : No, my lord, but (to witness) von did get $130.00, Mr.
Cox? A I would not swear.

544 Q Well, I suppose Mr. Macdonell is wrong this time ; it is not the
reporter, thank goodness. And that was not to go up country. Where do Vou 20
mean by "up country?" A It might mean anywhere.

545 Q I see. Well, you had no definite idea where it was to go to, but
you were just not going to anywhere ? A That is like saying they paid me to
go somewhere.

546 Q No-paid you to stop here. Where was it vou were going? A I
was not going anywhere.

547 Q You have not been working since ? A Oh, ves, plenty of work 30
at home.

548 Q You do not mean to say vou drew $1 30.oo from a poor widow by
representing to her you were going up country when yent were going to stay
here A A widow ?

549 Q Ves ? A Do vou mean my wife

550 Q Vou evidently have a keen sense of the ludicrous, Mr. Cox. You

keep a general store in Humboldt street, in Victoria, do you not? A Yes. 40

551 Q Well, I would just like to understand if you would take $13o.oo
from these people-?
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Court : Well, Mr. Taylor, you have stated that alreadv, and the jury will

draw their own inference.

552 Mr. Taylor: Very well, muy lord ;I will not labor it. (To witness):

Von spoke about this oakum that you put in the liole, Mr. Cox ? A Yes.

553 Q Vou testified with regard to that, in Victoria, 'in this case A

I believe so.

554 Q Do vou remnember what you said there about it-about driving in ro
the oakum A I don't recollect, just now.

·-55 Q Well, you told us here a minute ago that yon put it in and drove

it in with vour hands / A With my hainmer handle.

556 Q You did drive it in with a hammer handle? A Yes.

557 Q And a stick A Smail stick.

558 Q And a mallet ? No.

559 Q You had a stick in vour hand about the size of the hole ? A

I had no stick-the hammer handle.

560 Q Did vou drive it in tightly ' A just loosely.

561 Q What glo vou mean then at p. 33 of vour testimony-your exam-

ination de bene esse, Q 16 "Q Vou put this in th-e hole, I understand, and then

put a stick or plug and hamnered it in ' A A stick similar to the size of the

hole, and then tamped it. Q Drove it in tight ? A Ves." That it not 3(.

true, I suppose? Witness: I don't believe that "driven in tight" is true.

562 Q " Water could not get in on top of that ?" To which vou

answer Ves, and vou add "-ou might as well sav water could not get through

a salt bag." Now, you put tar in it, didn't you ? A Yes.

563 Q Why did vou sav von didn't, on the examination before, in Yic-

toria? A Don't I sav I didn't?

564 Q Yes-at least, why did vou sav vou didn't put tar in it, in vour

examination in Victoria ? A I don't think I did, because I got the tar for

that purpose and no other.

565 Q That is, to put it in the oakum' A Yes.
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566 Q And put it in the hole ? A Mixed it with the oakunm, and put

the oakum in the hole.

567 Q You got some tar for the purpose of making up that oakum,

and then packing it down with the stick? A Ves.

568 Q With the object of keeping the water out A That was the

idea.

569 Q And that is what you got the tar for, and for no other purpose 1o

A As far as I know.

570 Q Von testified in regard to that tar in your examination at Victoria

a few days ago 'A Yes.

571 Q And you said you got a quart of tar A I believe I did-a

quart.

572 Q And you said you got it for the purpose of painting a pillar ? A

I don't think that tar ; there was other tar. 20

573 Q In p. 7, line 12, you answer: The next day I received orders

to get oakum and tar and plug them up. Q Where did you get the oakum

and tar ? A McQuade & Sons. Q What quantity of oakum and tar did you

get ? A I think there was two pounds of oakum and a gallon of tar, if I re-.

member right. Q Were those item charged to the city do vou know ?

A Yes. Q Where did you buy them ? What place was it you bought

them at? What shop or chandlery did you buy them? A McQuade & Sons,

the ship chandlers, on Wharf st. Q Von told him to charge it to the city ? A

I took him an order from the city ; I couldIýt get it without. Q Then after 30

,getting the oakum, what did you do? A We got the material and then we

went and plugged them up. Q With the oakum ? Q With the oakuma and

the tar. Q And tar? A At least, I don't think the tar -was used with the

oakum. The oakum was used only for the holes, the tar was used was for paint-

ing the pier below high water mark. We don't use the tar for the holes-onlv

the oakum." Is that true or false ? Witness : No; the tar a got for the ex-

press purpose of the oakum in those holes.
- 40

574 Q Didn't vou say in this examination it was got for the express

purpose of painting the piers? A No, I didn't>

575 Q You didn't say that in vour examination before. A No.
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576 Q You were cross-examined and asked this question : " Q How
much painting were you going to do with this tar you speak of ? The pillars
in the water ; those iron pillars. Q Were you instructed to do that with the
tar ? A Yes ; it was not done then ; it was done afterwards. Q Were you
instructed to get the tar for that purpose at that time ? A Yes. Q By w-hom ?
A By the engineer or by the clerk ; I always brought the order from tie
clerk. Q What did you do with the order ? A Left it at McQuade's. I
took it to McQuade's and he furnished the tar. Q It was a quart of tar-you
said a gallon? Vou remember the order was produced to you then at you r
examination. Do you remember that ? A The order for the tar? 10

577 Q Yes - at McQuade's-from your own book, too ? A Yes.

578 Q And it was a quart of tar ? A It was a quart of tar.

579 Q And you had previously said you thought it was a gallon ? A
Oh, I don't think so.- I think vou made a mistake.

580 Q Again the stenographer has made -a mistake, and you did not say
a gallon A I don't think so; I have got Mr. McQuade's note for it. 20

581 Mr. Taylor: Very well. "Q It was a quart of tar; you said a gal-
Ion ? A It might have been. Q That document says a quart? Does it ?
Then probably it is so." But you stated then it was for the purpose of painting
a pillar? A I didn't say that. How far would a quart of tar go to painting
those pillars?

582 Q That is precisely how von found out your error, and that is just
exactly what I wanted to show ? A It was McQuade's-one quart of tar and 30two pound of oakum-an order from the clerk himself. How could I state the
other.

583 Q Well, I don't know; the stenographer says you did ? A I
could produce one of McQuade's notes for a quart of tar.

584 Q And that will prove vour statement that it was for the purpose of
painting the pillar was intended for something else ? A No, it was for plug-
ging the holes.

585 Q bo vou believe vourself ? A I do, sir. 40

586 Q Do you believe vou could go ont for three minutes and come back

and repeat what von said? A Oh, yes.

101

233835



il



587 Q Are you positive what you said in Victoria ? A Yes, pretty
near. I didn't say anything about a gallon of tar. You can write whatever
you like.

588 Q And When the reporter said a gallon, you say he made a mistake ?
A Well, it lies between you two; there is no question about that. I will prove
it is one quart of tar from the book at McQuade's, ,and two pounds of oakum.
I don't see why I should say a gallon when it was only a quart.

10

REDIRECT BY MR. ,MACDONELL.

589 Q When you got instructions to inspect the bridge in 1892, were

they special instructions ? A No.

59o In 1892 I am talking about, now A Yes, they were special

from Mr. Wilmot. 20

591 Q To inspect that bridge properly how could it be done ? A It

could not be donè otherwise than by boring the beams.

592 Q And to do that what would be necessary? A You would have

to tear up the floor.

593 Q And what would that mean A Cause an., obstruction in the

roadway, then.
30

594 Q Would that be the only inspection required? A Well, the

beams would be the greatest trouble.

595 Q Would there be any other inspection ? A Yes.

596 Q What other? Iron work.

597 Q Have you any practical knowledge of that ? A I have not.

598 Q Then Mr. Wilmot knew that ? A No. 40

599 Q Does he know vou have no special qualifications for iron work ?

A No, he didn't know it, and never asked me anything specially about it, one

way or the other.
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6oo Q Did he know you knew nothing about a bridge ? A Yes.

6o Q In 1892'you got definite instructions what to do. When you
inspected in 1895 you got no definite instructious 1 You had been inspecting
that year the same as any other vear? A Ever since 1892.

602 Q But, von gave it the same inspection in 1895 that you-gave in
other years, except in 189 2-is that right, Mr. Cox ? A 'rhat is right.

603 Q Mr. Wilmot was aware of the kind of inspection you were making? o 1
A Yes, he was aware of it.

604 Q So when you gave a report im 1895 it was just as the eye could
see, as you walked over the bridge or sidewalk ? A That is all I did.

6o5 Q When vou inspected those floor beams and made a report, Mr.
Cox, do you know which was rotten, or which was not rotten, now ? I mean
as far as nemory is concerned? A Now ? No, I could not tell you.

6o6 Q When you would say a beam was rotten, what would you indicate 20
by that ? Gentlemen, I will show vou ; I have got some here just to show you
what I got a few days since. Perhaps the jury will like to see this, and I will
tell you where it came from..

607- Q Where are those borings from ? A That (indicating) is from
No. i beam on the Esquimalt span, now-

Objected to by Mr. Taylor.

Mr. Macdonell : I am merely showing what he means by rotten. It is a 30
relative Jerm.

Court: I think, Mr. Taylor and Mr. Macdonell, that this part of it has
been pretty thoroughly exhausted, and I am surprised if the jury do not think
they have heard enough on both sides about it, but if you insist (to Mr. Mac-
donell, I will let you do it, and will let you, Mr, Taylor, cross-examine upon it.

608 Mr. Macdonell : In that examination my learned friend speaks about,
over in Victoria, when you (to witness) say those beams bored were rotten, what
did you mean ? I might ask you this: You said at the same time, "Q When 40
you say it was rotten you mean traces of rot were in that 7 inches ? A Dry
rot. Q Dry rot-traces of it? A Yes ?" Witness: Yes.
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609 Q That is what you mean when you say rotten ? A Yes, traces
of rot.

61o Q What effect would letting water get in on that dry rot hàve? A
Wet and dry?

6 11 Q Yes, what effect would it have A Well, if would hasten the
rot.

612 Q If water did not get into that dry rot, what would the effect be ? 1o
A It would rot still.

613 * Q Quicker or slower ? A Not rot so quick, because it would not
have so much moisture.

614 Q My understanding of this is, the moment moisture got on to that,
it would hasten the rot ? A. That is it.

615 Q And when you say those beams were rotten, you mean there were
traces of dry rot in all of them A Yes. 20

RE-CROSS EXAMINED BY MR. TAYLOR.

Court (to Mr. Macdonell): You produced in a packet some borings, I 30
give vou leave to put them in ; they are either in or not.

Mr. Macdonell: They are not in, my lord. I stopped. I do not put
them in, in order to shorten it. It does not signify. If ny learned friend is
going to touch on those, he need not tronible to cross-examine.

Mr. Taylor: Mr. Cox was asked a special question by my learned friend
as to what kind of instructions he had: he was to look ,at this bridge and was
supposed to walk over it, generally. I an goingto ask hini if his instructions 40
were not in the following terms and read hi the letter: December 18, 1895,
J. Cox, Esq., city carpenter. Dear Sir: wish vou to make an inspection of
the following bridges, namely, James Bay, Point Ellice. and Rock Bay bridges,
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and report by the end of the present year the condition of each. Also note any-
thing you consider should be done in the way of repairs, or renewals. Yours
obediently, E. A. Wilmot, city engineer." That was the request referred to in

your report. Now, the request was in the letter of December 18, 1895, and the

report is dated January 2, 1896. The letter, you observe, reqests you to report

by the end of the year. "Also note anything you consider should be donc in

the way of repairs or renewals," and lie says " in compliance with your request
I beg to report," and so on.

616 Court I have just one question, Mr. Cox, speaking about your 10

duties generally, about walking over the bridges, and, as I think you put it,

reporting anything you could see with your eye." Who gave you instructions?

A Mr. Wilmot, in all cases.

617 Q Had you ever written instructions? A No, sir.

618 Q Were you ever interfered with by ànybody as regards taking up

sidewalks or anything of that kind for the purpose of seeing the condition of the

bridges? A Yes.

619 When ? A I was•interfered with on James Bay Bridge, in one case,

under Alderman Humphreys.

620 Q What vear was that ? A 1895-let's see,-1896-in the sum-

mer of 1895, in September.

621 Q What was that interference A Well, people had complained

to me and also Alderman Wilson-who was an Alderman too, at that time-com-

plained to me why didn't I take up this here disgraceful sidewalk floor on James

Bay bridge, on the north-west corner*of it. Well, I had been chastised so much

about this-it was a very bad floor, and the under-work was bad, so I took

upon myself to take up I think it was 200 feet of it, and I had the naterial to

put dcwn the niew plank, so as soon as I took it out and repaired the under-work

I could put it down quick, and finish it the next day. Alderman Humphreys

came along in the afternoon, and said: "Who gave vou instructions to dothis ?

Who told vou to do this ? What are you doing this for-

622 Court : Without going into that, I am speaking of an earlier period.

Before 1895 had any interference been made A This same man interfered 4o

-Alderman Humphreys.
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First Day, Continued.

Evidence of D. J. Biggar, taken in the Patterson case, No. 299, '96, read
by Mr. Deacon ; also examination of S. Atherly.--Mr. Cassidy reads cross-
examination of S. Atherly.-Mr. Deacon reads examination of J. B. C. Lock- 10
wood.

At request of counsel on both sides, jury are furnished with the printed
evidence of Witnesses Lockwood and Warner taken in the Patterson case, and
reading of same by counsel dispensed with.

Second Day.

October i 3 th, 1897.

Same Counsel present. Jury having been called.

Mr. Deacon reads portions of evidence of B. W.
299, '96 (Patterson case). Exhibit T in 299,

flooring, produced in illustration. -C ross-exam i nation of
Mr. Tavlor.

Murray, taken
'96, model of
B. W. Murrav,

Mr. Macdonell Mr. Murrav, in his ev'idence stated that No. 7 floor bean
was not bored. He made an examination and gave his evidence to that effect. 40
He made a subsequent examination, and found that it was bored and plugged.
I wish now to call Mr. Murrav to correct that and to ex-plain under what circum-
stances he made the statement his evidence before.

io6

4.

in No.
bridge

read by





Mr. Taylor: I do not sec any necessity for that. It is perfectly truc lie
did make the first statement and subsequently saw the bearn in conjunction with
some officials, and took it back. I think it was a half inch auger hole.

Court : I am not going to let hin be called for another reason. Vou inade
an arrangement between yourselves, that I did not quite like, that the evidence
that went in before should be read in this case. should not have agreed to
the application, but after what Mr. Taylor says, it»is unnecessary-he admits
that the correction was made.

1o
Agreed : That all formal parts of the evidence proposed to be read, shall

be omitted.

Mr. Tavlo : I have two or three witnesses on the question of contradicting
Cox on the boring of thîs hole. We admitted the whole of the testimonv as it
stood.

Court: Do you mean witnesses whose names have not been given ?

Mr. Taylor : Yes. 20

Mr. Macdonell : We are simply opening Up the whole case again. it was
to save time that I consented, knowing that their principal witness, Mr. Bell,
was away, to let his evidence taken in the Patterson case go in.

Court: This is exactly the result that 1 foresaw. I did not sav so at the -

time, but I had not the least doubt how it would be-that vou would be met
with a difficulty of this kind. You agreed specially to Cox's evidence being
given here viva voce, that the evidence taken in the Patterson case should go in,
and there was no stipulation made about other witnesses. 30

Mr. Taylor ; Subject to Cox's evidence, l proposed the whole of the
evidence in the Patterson case plus the evidence of Cox taken in this case before
trial should go in. without any further testimony. My learned friend did not
agree to that ; he insisted upon calling Cox, in which case i must have the
right to call testimony to contradict Cox.

Court : But vou did not sav so. It evidently does lead to misunderstandings
or difficulties like the one that is quite apparent, and i quite anticipated it ; but Ao
the arrangement was clear and distinct that al the evidence in the Patterson
case should go in, and the only other evidence to go in should be that of Cox.
You did not stipulate for any further evidence and should be excluded under
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your arrangement, but it is a grossly unsatisfactory way of trying the case.

Mr. Taylor: I do not propose for one minute in this case to travel outside
of what is a fair and legitimate understanding of what I said yesterday-

Court: Pardon me, I cannot allow you to put it that way; for the under-
standing I mentioned is my own, and admits of no doubt ini my mind. I do
not know what Mr. Macdonell understood, but I know what I did. I will
let you give the evidence, because I am not going to shut out anything that is
material to the case ; but I do not think you are entitled to give it. It is only
a matter of extra indulgence, and it niay affect your position in other respects as
regards terms.

Mr. Macdonell: I certainly understood the agreement as your lordship
stated it. One of my witnesses, an expert, was here ready to testify, who did
not testify before, and I sent him away, and it places me in an unfortunate
position.

Mr. Taylor: Your lordship, I think you are "going for me" before you 20
quite understand what- I am going to say.

Court: I hope so.

Mr. Taylor: I know it. But whatever wassaid yesterday I do not propose
to take any verbal advantage of, but absolutely to live up to the spirit of the
arrangement, and as your lordship now tells me you understood the arrangement
to be just as you narrated it now, I do not propose to take any advantage of it;
but it does seem to me this-

Court: To make it a matter of grievance to the jury? 3

Mr. Taylor: No; I do not think you have a right to say that.

Court: No; I did not mean that.

Mr. Taylor: I do not think your lordship means that; but I had an under-

standing slightly different. . I thought everything said in that case, so far as the

testimony was concerned, was to go in, except Cox's, and then I thought I

should have an opportunity of contradicting Cox.

Court: If Cox is here; it is not worth taking up more time

Mr. Taylor;« Al I proposed to call-
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Court: I have given you leave-

Mr. Taylor:-was purely on Cox's testimony; and I was going to confine
it. to that.

Court (to Mr. Macdonell): I will reserve anything you think necessary in
consequence of this-of any injustice that may be done to you, but I am not
going to keep out anything that is material. However (to Mr. Taylor), take
care that you are not injured by it. I only say this, Mr. Taylor, becaûse it is
taken down. o

Mr. Taylor: If you, Who are an impartial judge in the matter, think that
was the arrangement, I do not call the evidence and I do not press it.

Court: It does not follow that you are necessarily excluded. I have full
powers as regards that. If you neglected to call that evidence, after the under-
standing I grant it only as a special indulgence to·which you have no claim;
and I reserve to myself the power, if you adopt that course, of preventing it doing
any injury to the other side. 0

Mr. Taylor: Then, if that is your view, living up to the spirit of the
matter, I say I de not tender any evidence.

Court : -Is it for you to say. You have no grievance at all events.

Mr. Macdonell tenders examinatiôn of Cox for discovery herein (marked
Exhibit l). Also examination of Wilmot for discovery herein (marked Exhibit
2). Then the exhibits in, the Patterson case will be marked, I presume, as in
the Patterson case.

30

Court: They dQ not require marking at all; they go in in bulk.

Mr. Taylor produces as exhibit for defence ends of floor beam No. 7, con-
taining the hanger irons and lateral rods.-Admitted as an exhibit by consent.
(To Court) : Both my learned friend and myself understand the admission of
this testimony to be subject to just exceptions.

Court: Yes. If it was inadmissible then, it could not be admissible now.
Motion for nonsuit on motion for judgment.

4
Mr. Cassidy: It will be understood, then, that we have leave to move for

nonsuit on motion for judgment upon all grounds ?
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Court: What do you say, Mr. Macdonell ?

Mr. Macdonell : I suppose just the same as in the Patterson case. Of
course we won't accept a nonsuit ; I don't know whether it is necessary even to
say that.

Court: As at present advised, I propose to put in the questions I submitted
to the jury in. the other case. I was not sitting in one ,part of the Full Court
which heard the appeal, but I understood fromi the learned judges they found
that the questions and answers were sufficient to come to a decision upon, 10
although their decision has not yet been given, and I took advantage of Mr.
Justice McCreight's presence while on the bench here to ask him if during the
discussion at the Full Court it appeared to him. that the questions could be ftamed
differently, or he could suggest any additional questions, and he said not. If
you have any otherquestions to subnit I am quite prepared to put then, if I
consider they can properly be put.

Mr. Taylor: We have nothing more to suggest than what we suggested at
that time, and the reasons that- were given for refusing them.. 20

Court : I do not say I would cone to the same couclusion, now, Mr. Taylor.
I do not remember what those other questions were, but I wish you to under-
stand distinctly that I do not refuse to put any more questions than those I
mentioned. If you desire any others to be put, I must ask you to· put them
again, for I cannot undertake to carry them in my head, or my reasons for
refusing them, which Ido not remember. However, you will have time enough
for that.

Mr. Taylor: If my learned friend is agreeable, I am willing to let the
questions go the way they were put in the Patterson case-and he says he is.

Mr. Taylor makes closing address for the defence.

40
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After Recess.

Mr. Macdonell makes closing address for the. plaintiff.
1<

Mr. Taylor: My learned friend challenged me to refer to portions of the

testimony. For instance he stated that Lsaid-

Court : Mr. Macdonell has invited you to do that which it was very indul-

gent of him to do, because you are not entitled to it. You had better read the

evidence without comment.

Mr. Taylor; Well, he will find it on page 12 'f Cox's examination.

Mr. Macdonell; Read his cross-examination by me, whiçh will explain the 20

tact of rottenness.

Mr. Taylor : I admit he explained to you that it was not rotten at all, but
I am going to read what he said.

Court: If you cannot agree about it, Mr. Taylor, let me have in the

morning the references you wish, and Mr. Macdonell also, and I will use my

own discretion. There has been too much latitude allôwed. already, and I

shall use my own discretion; we must have some attempt at regularity, at all

events, and this will lead to a discussion and another speech. At all events, 30

that is all I can do.

Mr. Taylor: Then I will refer your lordship, so that you may have an

opportunity of looking at it this evening, to Cox's evidence taken de bene esse

on the question of wliether the beam was rotten iÎn 1892 when he bored it.

P. 12 beginning at line 16; p. 13 at the botton of the page. Page 15-well,

I have run .a line dowu the side, perhaps it will save you trouble if I give you

My copy.

Court: Yes, on.ly Mr. Macdonell will want to know, too. 40

Mr. Taylor: Well, page 15, beginning at line 9, and p. 25 at line 6 to 8

inclusive; p. 26, beginning--at the top of the page and going down, say, to
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line 1o, and p. 27, beginning at line 3 down to, say, 7, and that is on the
question- of whether it was rotten or not when he bored it. Now, the other
qtestion-whether he handed in 14 borings or not to Mr. Wilmot, I refer to
p. Î3 of his examination de bene-esse, lines 8 to io inclusive. ' That is so far as
Cox goes. Then so far as Yorke is concerned, p. 125 of the appeal book-
that is on the point of this missing beam. Then p. 277, Atherly, of the
appeal book-the last two questions at the bottom of the page, or the next
question but the last.

Court (To Mr. Macdonell): What you want to do is to take sufficient '0
time to refer me to any portions of the evidence which explain the portions to
which Mr. Taylor has referred. As I said before, I cannot allow any comment
on the one side or the other. This is a very. serious case, and I do not
propose to omit anything which I think will assist the jury on the one side or
the other. At the same time nothing must be done except what is in accord-
ance with the rules and in such.a way that neither side will be prejudiced.
The jury have been very patient, and I have no doubt they are willing to be
patient a little longer. My duty is to see they are not unduly pressed and yet
are afforded every assistance. 20

Court adjourued till i i a. m. October 14th, 1897.

30

Examination of Mr. E. A. Wilmot, City Engineer, before

the regiStrar in action of Patterson v. Victoria.

Under order of his Honor W. Norman Bole, Local Judge in Chambers,
dated e3tdJanuary, 1897, before B. H. Drake, Special Examiner herein on 40
3rd March, 1897.
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Mr. Macdonell appearing on behalf of the plaintiff.

Mr. Mason appearing on behalf of the defendant City.

E. A. WILMOT being duly sworn, testified: 'Examined by Mr.
Macdonell.

10
Q Vou are the city engineer Mr. Wilmot, are you? A Yes sir.

Q When were you appointed,? A April, 1892.

Q By resolution of the Council ? A Ves. I was notified by the
City Clerk of my appointment.

Q Were your duties defined ? A No, not any-

Q Your duties have never been defined? A No; nothing more than a
ao

by-law; there was a'by-law defining some of the duties of the city surveyor.

Q Date of that by-law?' A I do not remember.

Q Was that previous.to your appointment or subsequent ? A Previous.

Q So that you knew what your duties would be to a certain extent by the
by-law before you became city engineer? A No; not before I became city
surveyor.

Q What have your duties been since? A General public work. 30

Q Including roads and bridges. A Yes, sir.

Q Under the diréction of the committee ? A Under the direction of the
Council.

Q When did you first inspect the Point Ellice bridge as city engineer?
A Well, my attention was first called to it in June, 1892.

Q In what way? A One of the floor beams gave way. 40

Q I mean from the Council? A No; I heard of the accident and I-went
out there.
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Q Did you report to the Council? A Yes. I do not reme.,mber now

whether I reported to the Council before action was taken or not; but I reported

at once to the chairman of the street committee, or he tnay have been there at

the time for aught·I know, but action was taken at once to replace it.

Q That was in 1892. You do not know as there was any written report

as to the condition of the bridge at that time? A I gave a written' report after

it was repaired.

Q After when A After repairs were made. 10

Q Were you instructed what repairs to make ? A. No.

Q But after you made the repairs you reported? A Ves; I reported on

the condition of the bridge and what had been done.

Q To what extent was public' money expended on it ? How much ?

A At that time about $1,6oo.

Q Was there any limit? Did the council limit you to any amount in 2o

repairing ? A No; no specific sum.

Q Do you know the men that repaired it under you? A The first

needle-beam that was broken was repaired by a carpenter named Clark, and

then the subsequent repairs-

Q I am talking about the first repairing to it that you spent $1,6oo on ?

A You might say it was one continuous repair. The first thing was a needle-

beam broke-
30

Q The first thing a needle-beam broke? A A floor beam we generally

call it.

Q And you instructed- A Mr. Clark.

Q -Mr. Clark to repair that? A Yes.

Q Did you then report to the city council what you had done at that par-

ticular time? A Yes; I reported in regard to the work as it went on there.
40

Q Did. you report to themn the repair of that needle-beam, that that was

sufficient to repair it? A No; I do not remember of reporting that. As I'

remember it was immediately after that that the floor planking was repaired;
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there were some other beams first discovered and they were repaired, and the
cost of the whole was something over $1,6oo.

Q Was the bridge in perfect repair then? A After that, yes.

Q It was. Then when did you inspect the bridge again? A Well, I
did not personally inspect it-it has been inspected every year by the city car-
periter; all the bridges.

Q Who was he? A. Mr. Cox. Io

Q A man named Cox. Was he a city official? A Yes; he had charge
of the bridges and sidewalks.

Q Under you? A Ves.

Q Was his duty to report to you direct? A Yes; lie reported to me
with regard to the bridges and sidewalks that required repairing.

Q Did you give him any instructions how to inspect? A At that time,
yes.

Q What instructions did you give him A To bore and to see-when I
found that more than one was unsound, then I had them all bored.

Q By whom? A By him; and any that were unsound were renewed.

Q Did you see him boring? A Some of them; I was not there the whole
of the time. He reported to me the members that were sound. I gave him a
list of the number of floor beams there were in the bridge-4 altogether-and 3
he reported which appeared to be sound and which'were affected more or less.3

Q The borings, did he produce them, show them to you ? A Well, lie
generally did when he bored, but I cannot remember in that instance whether
he did; I think he did.

Q Do you know what became of those borings ? A No, I do not know.

Q On his report to you did you report back to the city council? A Yes,
I reported what required to be done to renew it.

Q And notified the city council that the inspection had been made by
Cox ? I do not rerhember whether I mentioned his name, I notified them that
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it required eight additional new beams, in addition to the first one.

Q Can you give me the day and the month and the year about that ? A
That was the 9th of June, 1892, when the first one occurred.

Q But I mean at the last, after Cox's inspection you asked for eight
additional floor beams, when was that? A I think that was in the following
month. I wrote to the council suggesting putting in iron beams, or at least

givirg the prices of iron and wood, and suggested that I thought, onx account of

the durability of iron, it would be cheaper in the long run than wood.

Q You recommended iron. About what date was that ? A That was,

to the best of my recollection, early in July.

• 10

Q In July, 1892 ? A 1892, yes.

Q Well, they did not follow your recommendations, did they A They
decided to put in the wooden.

Q Wood. Now, under whose directions was that repair made ? A 20
Robert McIntosh was the name of the carpenter; under ny direction.

Q When did he start to repair,? A I think I have it here (looking at

memorandum). On June 29 th I engaged McIntosh.

Q In june? A 29 th.

Q When did he finish? A In July 14th, I have got a memorandum

here, "Visited Point Ellice bridge.
30

Q You have got a memorandum in July? A Yes, July 14th, Point

Ellice Bridge cormplete, except plank. between rails.

Q So that it 'took him about two weeks to repair? A Yes, that was with

the exception of a plank between the rails. He laid the plank outside of the

rails.

Q What was the cqst or expenditure for this repair? A That would be

$i,6oo; his repair on that,.1 think, was $1,640.

Q

si 600

40

That amount that Mclntosh incurred? A No, that was the total.

How much did McIntosh-
for there was only one item ;

A It would be in the neighborhood of
$1,640, I think, included both.
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Q Would McIntosh be the $40 or the larger sum ? A He would be
about $1,6oo.

Q McIntosh put on to the extent of about $i,6oo ; that was paid by the
city council ? A That was paid by the council.

Q On your recommendation ? Yes, on my certificate.

Q Did McIntosh make any report as to the repairs ? A No, no written
report. or

Q Any verbal? A Well, I was out there every day or so while the
work was-going on.

Q Well now, did you consider those repairs sufficient.? - Yes, at that time ;
I considered the bridge was in better order than it was immediately before.

Q I mean at the time, was it repaired to your satisfaction ? A Yes.

Q It was repaired to your satisfaction. Well, do you think that all the 20
money that was, necéssary was expended on the repairs at that time ? A Yes;
well, in addition to the repairs made by the city, the tramway company paid for
putting down stringers at that time. That was not included in the $1,6oo.

Q Who put down the stringers? A They were put down by McIntosh.

Q By the city?. A No; they were paid for by the tramway company.
It was by an arrangement with the tramway company.

Q And who? A And the city.

Q An arrangement between the tramway company and the city by
whiëh the tramway company put in stringers? A. The tramway company
paid for stringers and laving- them do'wU.

Q And they were put down under your supervision? A Yes. Before
that tiere were joists simply under the floor, and the .rail- were fastened to
the planking, and the car in going over it between the floor beams thefloor
bent some, it was springy; and the object in putting these stringers in was to
stiffen the track. 40

Q To stiffen it and strengthen that? A Yes.

Q Were there certain hangers put in to then? A Yes'
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Q What were their dimensions? A An inch and a quarter.

Q Who did the iron work ? A Mr. Robertson.

Q Here in the city? A Yes.

Q Were the specifications drawn by you? A There were no specifica-

tions drawn. They were the same-the former hangers went through the

beam, two shanks through two holes in the beam; and these went outside

and had a plate underneath. [o

Q They were the stirrup ? A The stirrup.

Q Were they the sanie size as those that went through ? A Yes.

Q Who recommended them being the sanie size? A Well, no one.

Q No one at all. Well, did anyone ask you for your approval as to that

at al ? A No ; not that I remember.

Q You were not asked for your approval? Were they put there by you ! 20

A Yes; they were put on under my directions.

Q Were you-there while they were being put on ? A Part of the time'

Q Did you inspect them after they were on? A I saw them after they

were on.

Q Did you niake any complaint as to thein at all ? A Not that*I

remember of; no.
30

Q Was any complaint made as to themn? A No., not that I remem-

ber of.

Q Were they discussed at all in any way-any discussion over them

A I do not remember of any.

Q Well, after Mclntosh made those repairs, was anything doue with the

bridge after that ? A Yes; it was planked and there were several repairs

done to it.

Q Planked; under your supervision? A Yes.

Q fy instructions from the city ? A By report. of the city carpenter,
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reporting that it required planking. He reported on all the bridges, indica-
ting what needed renewing or repairing.

Q The floor needed repairing ? A Yes.

Q Putting in new flooring, would that strengthen or weaken the bridge?
A It would not have any effect either way.

Q Then, outside the flooring, was anything else doue to the bridge?
A There was sonie work done to the approaches; to the approach-east 10
approach.

Q In what way? A Well, the-it was on a side-hill, and the water
used to run down, and it caused one of the bents to settle a little, and the
water was diverted from running in there, and it was blocked up and braced.

Q That repair was to strengthen it was it? A Ves.

Q The water had'a tendency to weaken it*? A Ves.
20

Q What year was that? A That was'in 1895.

Q Who reported on that? A Mr. Cox reported on it.

Q He reported? A I think he reported on it first.

Q As to its being out of repair? A As requiring repair. I would not

be positive though who first spoke of it. But I know I went over there with

him and saw what was required to be done.

30
Q And the city approved of the repairs? A Well, there was nc

Q You reported to the city did you A I do not rememuber of making
a direct report with regard to that special thing,- but it was about that.

Q What I mean is this; did the city give instructions for it to be repaired

after a report to the city, or did Cox simply go on with the.repairs and hand in

a bill to the city? A I forget the particulars with regard to that, but the gen-

eral order in any case of that kind-I reported to the street committee what-was

necessary to be done, and if it was decided to be done it was approved of and 40

the work was done. I do not remember in that particular instance what was

said about it.
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Q Now that was in 1895. Did you report on the bridge yourself in 1895?

A Not specially.

Q In 1896 did you as to that bridge? A Oh, it was 1895; oh yes, 1895

thére was a report on the bridge.

Q By whom? A The city carpenter.

Q That is Cox? A Yes.
1o

Q To whom? A That was an appendix to my report. He reported on

the bridges, sidewalks and water tanks.

Q Did he report on this bridge particularly A Ves.

Q In writing? A Yes.

Q Where is that report? A Well, it is embodied in the annual

report.

Q ' Is the annual report printed? A Ves, the annual report of the cor- 20

poration for i895.

Q Do you remember what Cox reported in it? A He reported the bridge

in good condition. I gave him instructions to report on all the bridges, men-

tionîng specially the Point. Ellice bridge, Rock Bav þridge and James Bay

bridge.

Q You made no report yourself? A No.

Q Did you ever receive any complaints as to the bridge being out of repair? 30

A No; not that I remember of.

Q No verbal reports or complaints? A No.

Q Mr. Cox never said- A I mean nothing but what he reported-I

mean from the outside. For instance, if there was any planking that required

renewing he would report that to me; but outside of that I never heard of any.

Q You never received or heard of any complaints as to the bridge being

out of repair? A No. 40

Q Except as Mr. Cox reported it. None of the city officials spoke to you

with reference to the bridge being out of repair, or wanting repair A No;

nothing that I remember of.
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Q Or the tramway company? A No.

Q Did Mr. Cox make any suggestions to you as to further repairs? A No;

not in this case.

Q In any case? A No; nothing further-no further repairs that he

spoke of at the time. For instance, if some of the planking was worn through
or decayed he would report on that. He never reported anything that was

required beyond what was done.
[o

Q No one ever mentioned to. yon or stated to you that the bridge should

be further repaired to a greater extent A No; not at all.

Q Do vou know when that bridge was built, of your own knowledge ?

A No; I could.not say of my own personal knowledge.

Q You heard from Mr. Gore, I suppose, the date A Ves, I heard it

stated.

Q You know. What is the usual life of one of these timbers in a bridge 20

of that kind? A Generally about ten years; is good for about ten vears.

Q What is this bridge constructed of A Douglas fir.

Q Douglas fir; about ten years. Do you know the length of time -that

some of these timbers were in that bridge? A Well, I believe about eleven.

Q What ? A -I believe it was constructed in 1885; they had been in

efeven years.
30

Q Well, did it occur ty you at any time that they should be replaced-

some of those older timbers? A No;. it did not occur to nie that they were

decaye'd.

Q I suppose yon found out afterwards that thev were? A Some of them

were; I found out after it broke down.

Q An inspection, I suppose, would discover that? A If they had been

inspected when they were decayed it would hâve.
40

Q What caused the decay; do you know A Well, I suppose it is

where the wood comes in contact with wood and retains moisture, is the general

cause.
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Q Any excavation or anything in the timber that would collect moisture
would cause rapid decay? A Ves.

Q For instance, a knot or anything of that kind? A A knot hole.

Q A knot hole would collect water, and then a decay would start. A
thorough inspection would detect tha? A At those places, yes.

Q What'became of the timbers that were in that bridge? A Most of
N thefu were rafted about the bridge, and I believe some of them are on the 1o
wharf.

Q Any of them destroyed ? A I think some of them were.

Q Why? A I do not know.

Q Under -whose directions or instructions? A I do not know; Ido not
know that anyone gave directions for it.

Q Whien did you first discover that some of those timbeirs were rotten after 20

the accident; how soon after the accident? A Well, the second day.

Q The second day you discovered? A The first day I went there I did
not see any unsound timber; all that I saw was sound. But the second time I
was up there I saw some unsound.

Q Now, were any of the timbers that the city put in, rotten? No, I did
not see any of those decayed at all.

- Q It was some of the original timbers? A It was some of the. original 30
timbers, yes.

Q Floor beans? A The original floor beams, and one-the end of one
upright piece, I think, was partly decaved; that was all that I saw.

Q In the span that went down, were there any of the original floor beams?
A Yes.

Q Mostly all original floor beams? A No; they were nearly all new
ones. 40

Q How many original floor beams were in the span that went down? A
I arn not sure whether it was two or three.
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Q Do you know where they are? A There is one of them down here on
the wharf.

Q And the other two? A And the other one, I don't know where
they are.

Q But they were-? A There were two that I remember of.

Q. Did you form an opinion as to whether those were the first that went
down? A No.

Q You did not form an opinion as to that? A No.

Q Did you ever express or form an opinion as to where the weakness in
that bridge was at the time of the accident? A No, I could not.

Q You could not form one no(from your knowledge ? A No.

Q So from what you have seen and heard, you cannot form an opinion as
to where the weakness was? A I could not form an opinion as to what caused 20

the destruction of the bridge.

Q Or where there-was the greatest weakness ? A No.; I could n'ot.

Q Would it be naturalto suppose it was in the old beams or in the new
beams? A The old beams-I should say were weaker than the new.

Q Were the new beams- broken at all in any way ? A No; 'I did not
see any of them broken.

Q But the old beams you saw ? A One of the old beams broken. 30

Q One of the old ones. Do you know where that bean is now? A No;
I do not know where it is.

Q Where was it broken ? A It was broken where the hanger went
through.

Q That is at the end ? A It is near the end. Under the chord.

Q Was that a probable place. where a bridge would give away first, that 4'
particular part ? A That part might give away without the bridge going,
as it did before. Before there was one of the floor beams gave away.just at
that place.
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Q The saine part of the 5eam ? A The saine part of the beam.

Q Gave way. That was in 1892 ? A, That was in 1892.

Q Of course that was repaired, and you fonnd the saine breakage in
this? A This seemed to be broken about the saine way.

Q Was the beam in a good state of repair, except at the ends? A Yes;
I did not gotice any other place where it was decayed.

1o
Q And.tliere is only one bean broken ? A Only one beain broken.

Q And there were two beans that were decayed, were there? A No;
there was one old beam there that showed slight signs of decay, blit was
not broken.

Q Would that decay weaken it? It would if it remained long enough. .

Q So far as it was then, is it your opinion it was weakened by that
decay ? A It would be weakened to the extent of the decay. 20

Q To some extent, and -that extent you would not see. What caused
that decay, do you know? A Well, moisture.

Q Moisture. Was inoisture there capsed by anything specially defective
in the beam itself? A Well, I could not sav as .to that. The first beai
that broke there was where the hangërs went dowu and the plate underneath
held the water, while others that were under similar conditions tiat were per-

fectly sound, I considered that it did not hold water,, and that in those cases
it would not be the cause of the decay-not the sane cause. 30

Q The beam that was decayed and not broken, you have no idea what

caused the detention of moisture in that particular part ? A I think it was

caused by the water getting in inside.

Q in some crevice ? A Yes.

Q But what caused the crevice you cannot tejl ? A Well, I think it was

on account of getting around the bolt beside the haldger.
40

Q Well, the beam that was broken, was it decayed only in one part.
A That was all I noticed.

124



.' ,i



Q Could it be decayed in more parts than one without your notiping ?
A I did not bore it ; I did not make any examination, onlya superficiald exam-
ination.

Q Your attention was directed more particularly to the parts that were
broken ? A Yes.

Q And to the same exten at did not break, you made just a
hasty exanination[o t at ? A Yes.

to
Q Those beams must have been in about eleven years then ? A Yes.

Q And the ordinary life would be only ten years ? A Well, yes ;I
would say that would be about the ordinary life of cut timber.

Q Where did the limits of the corporation extend to before the last addi-
tion to the city was added, do you know ? A No ; I could not describe it.

Q Well, how far did the last addition extend beyond the bridge ?
A Harriet street is the boundary. 20

Q Is that beyond the bridge ? A Some distance beyond. It crosses
just at the siding-the switch.

Q How far beyond-one- or two -blocks beyond this bridge? A Yes; I
think about half a mile.

Q What street was this bridge on? A This end of it was on Work
street, and the other end of it is not a street at all-that is on the Indian Reserve.

30Q Is there any particular road or street running over there?, A Yes, the
Esquimalt road.

Q Did the city extend on that road beyond the bridge? A Not that I
know of; not oil the Esquimalt road.

Q Nothing beyond the bridge? A Not on that road. They did beyond
the bridge in Victoria West.

Q Why not immediately beyond the bridge ? A Well, I would say they AO

did not that I know of. I do not know of any repairs done there by the city.

Q Why ? A There were many other places that required then more.
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Q Because it was not necessary. But beyond that again on that same
road they did expend money, did they? A I do not know of any money ex-
pended on the Esquimalt road.

Q Any sidewalks there? A Yes.

Q Were they repaired by the city? A Yes, by the city; yes.

Q Your supervision extended beyond the bridge, I suppose? A Yes; out
fo the dity limits. 'o

EXAMINED BY MR. MASON.

20

Q Whilst some of these repairs were being done, aily car traffic was
stopped, was it not ? A It was; yes.

Q And you advertised a notice that the bridge was dangerous? A Yes;
I advertised it closed for traffic.

Q Had you reason to believe that Mr. Cox was a responsible, competent
man? A As far as looking after the wood work of the bridges was concerned,
and general work, I did. 30

Q Were you city engineer when the bridge was taken over? A No.

Q Did you ever receive any drawings, calculations or specifications from ·
the government with regard to it? - A No.

Q Were any furnished. by the Lands and Works Department? A Not
that I know of.

Q Not to your knowledge? A The tramcar was in operation over 4

the bridge when I came on.

Q The tramway obtained their authority to run cars over that bridge-
from the government? A I believe so; yes.
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The examinatiori here closel.

Evidence of Edward Ashley Wilmot, City Engineer, Taken
at the Trial of Patterson v. Victoria.

2oth May, 1897. r

EDWARD ASHLEY WILMOT-CALLED AND EXAMINED 20

BY MR. DAVIS.

Q You have been city engineer for the City of Victoria since 1892, Mr.
Wilmot? A Yes, I have.

Q There is no*one, I believe, over you? A No.

Q That is, no official-subject only to the orders of the council? A Yes. 30

Q I notice that you state in that examination that in 1892 when these
repairs were being done on the Point Ellice bridge, it was closed for tramcar
traffic ? A Yes.

Q After the repairs were completed: it was again thrown open for tramcar
traffic by the city, was it not? A Yes; the restriction was taken off.

Q Large cars, or larger cars, so to speak, were running over the bridge
prior'to the accident of 1892? A Yes. 40

Q Just began a comparatively short time before? A I could not say
when they began.
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Q In fact, the car which went through in 1892 is the same car as went
through in 1896? A So I have been told.

Mr. Davis (to witness) : -In those communications, (referring to Annual
Reports of the Defendant Corporation), I see reference is made Mr. Wilmot, to
au accident which took place in i892-the floor beam broke. Did the car go
through on that occasion? A No.

was held up by what? A The end of the floor beams is held up
by lateral rods-tIië>ëh-of-the broken beam was held up by the lateral rods. 10

Q The lateral rods were the same as in 1896? A les.

Q At that time the rail rested on the top of the flooring, I believe? A.
Yes.

Q Was the flooring broken in 1892? A No; I don't remember that it
was; the car passed over the beam.

Juror : Was the 1892 car crowded to the same extent as the other? A 20

Just about it. It was an excursion-a picnic excursion.

Mr. Davis: Ne, beams were put in, I see by the report, was there any,
and if so, what difference in the size A The new beams were 12 by r6; the
broken floor beam where- it was broken was 12 by, 16, but the remaining parts
of the beams were 12 by 18-the old beams.

Q Except that they tapered a little at the ends where the hangers were'
A They were sized down where the hangers went on; It was not at the

tapering-it was on the length of the beam where the hanger went through and 30
the plates went on, and it was the depth between the taper and plate, 16 inches,
and the new beams were 12 by 16 all through.

Q Was here any change made in the hangers at the'tïime the new beains

were put in A The first beam that was broken, some of- the hangers were

put back aga n, and put back in the sane way.

QeWitho hners so te - eré-put back, but

what changes were made? A There were stirrups put on.

Q ThatiÀ, the iron was widened out and went round outside of the beam

instead of through ? A Round outside of the beam.
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Q You heard your evidenice read there, Mr. Wilmot ? A Ves.

Q That is correct, is it not ? A Yes.

Q I believe McIntosh was the other man who did the repairings? A
Yes; he put in the floor beams he did the other repairing the floor beams-and
the new floors and stringers.

Q McThtosh was acting under your instructions? A Yes.

1o

MR. WILMOT, being recalled, on the second day of trial (21st.May,

1897), on behalf of the defendant, testified, examined by Mr. Taylor :

Q You are already under oath, Mr. Wilinot. You examined this 20
broken beain? A I did.

Q Did you findgn augur hole in it? A No.

Q Did you examine for the purpose of ascertaining whether there was
or not? A I did.

Q How long a time did you spend on that examination ( A Long
enough to.examine it thoroughly.

30

Q Who was with you? 'A Mr. Bell.

Q Did two of you examine it together? A Yes.

Q And yon did not find any augur hole? A No.

Q You examined the whole beam ? A We examined the two pieces.

Q The two pieces? A Yes.

• Q Well, you have heard what lias been said about the break at the 46

hanger irons ; were the two pieces there complete ? A Yes.

Q That is tosay, could they have been joined together and inake the
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complete beam ? A Ves.

Q Were the marks of the hangers at all in any piece of it A Ves
there was marks of the hanger in the.beam.

Q On which beam? A On the long end.

Q That would be-? A On the main beam ; not the piece thatgras
broken off.

Q On the main beam ? A Ves. -o

Q That would be the south end or the end next to Victoria, the long
end ? You saw the marks of the hangers ? A Ves.

Q You said a half-section of the hanger went through it? A I do not
know a half section, but there was a distinct mark of the hangers.

Q The iron ? A The iron.

Q You also exaiined the short end that was broken off ? That was the 20
sidewalk end on the Gorge side? A Yes.

Q Was there any auger holes in that ? A I did not see any.

Q Vou did not see any ?

Mr. Davis : Apparently fron this examination my learned friends in-
ténd to dispute the boring of that auger hole. When that was proved by
Mr. Cox they did not cross-examine. As the result another wituèss who saw
the hole, and who we have here, we did not call. If they intend to contest
that point, I ask now to have that witness called. We had hin here and have
him here.

Court: There was no suggestion in the cross-examination that you in-,
tended to dispute the fact.

Mr. Cassidy: The point,' my lord, is that Mr. Wilmot was called and
then -Mr. Cox was called afterwards. The first suggestion we had in this case
that there was going to be anything of that- 40

The Court: I am speaking of the cross-examination of Cox. Would it
beenore convenient to you that this other witness who Mr. Davis speaks of
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should be recalled now, or in rebuttal ; I think you are entitled to have him
called now.

Mr. Taylor : Whatever your lordship thinks is proper.

Court: It is fairer for a defence, I think, to have the case of the plaintiff
completed as far as possible. As far as this witness has gone you have put no
new witnesses in the box, you have simply recalled* soine of the* plaintiff's
witnesses. It is fairer, I think, to complete the plaintiff's case. Vou had
better put in your witness now.

Mr. Davis:
either put him
the morning.

He is not here just now ; we have sent for hin.
in when he cornes here, or put him in the first

CROSS-EXAMINED BY MR. DAVIS.

Mr. Wilmot you instructed Mr.
you not? A Yes.

Cox to bore those beams in 1892, did

Q And he brought you the borings just as you stated ? A Yes.? he

brought me sone borings and sanples of wood.

Q He brought you'a number of'them'? .A Yes.

Q It would be his duty under his instructions to bore that old beam ?

A To bore all the beams.

Q You have nothing to say against Mr. Cox's charactet¶ A I think not.

Q You would not think him a 'fan. that would

A No; no reason for that.

Q When did you examine this broken

accident.

be guilty of perjury ?
40

beam ? A Shortly after the

We will
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Q How long after? A I should say about two days-two or three days.

Q Two or three days. Now that beain was to a greater or less extent
completely rotten, 'was it not-that is, portions of it was conpletely rotten and
soft ? A Portions of it were rotten, yes.

Q And it was splintered ând broken by the breaking, was it not ? A It
was broken, yes.

Q Do you mean to say that it was impossible for an auger hole to have
been there and you not toliave found it ? A I would not say it was impossible,
but I went specially to see if it liad been bored.

EXAMINED BY THE COURT.

Q Mr. Wilmot, what became of that broken beam? A It, with a lot of
other timber of the bridge, was left in the arm above the bridge in charge of an
Indian living there-an Indian, I think, or a half breed. It was put in a boom
together.

Q Left by whom ? A Well, by the City.

Q By yourself ? A No, I did not give the direction.

Q Do you know who did ?

Mr. Taylor:- I will tender Mr. Yorke, who is very familiar with the debris
there.

Court: No, I just want to ask- A No, I gave no direction
to the disposal of th debris.

Q When did vou see the broken beam there A I said, to
my recollection, it was two or three days after the accident.

Q Have you anv knowledge of where it is now? A No.
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Witness stands aside.

Examination of Edward Ashley Wilmot, City Engineer,
before the Deputy Registrar, in the action of

Lang v. Victoria,

Monday, 26th July, 1897, 10 a. m.

20

Mr. Macdonell appearing for the plaintiff.

Mr. Mason appearing for the defendant.

30

EDWARD ASHLEY WILMOT, being duly sworn, testified: Examined
by Mr. Macdonell:

Q What is your occupation, Mr. Wilmot? A Civil engineer.

Q Are you in the employ of the city-,of Victoria? A Yes.

Q As what? A City engineer.

Q When were you-employed by them? A In April, 1892. 40

Q What were your duties ? A Well, the duties were not defined, but is
was to look after public works generally.
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Q Including streets and bridges ? A Yes.

Q Are you hired by the year? A No; paid by the month.

Q Have you performed those duties ever since April, 1892 ? A Yes.

Q For the city ? A For the city.

Q Any one over you? A No.

'Q Any one under you ? A Occasionally; sometimes I have an ol
assistant.

Q Who? A Well, I have had several.

Q In 1892? A In1 1892 Mr. Parr was assistant.

Q Any one else ? A Well, do you mean assistant engineer or subor-
dinates

Q Subordinates ? A Well, yes; then there is the inspector of streets and 20
bridges.

Q Who was he? A Mr. Wilson. And the inspector of plumbing.

Q Was he inspector of streets and bridges in 1892? A No.

Q I am talking about 1892; who was in 1892? A Tiere was no one
inspector of the streets. There were three foremen who looked after the streets;
and the city carpenter looked after the bridges and sidewalks.

30
Q Who was the city carpenter? A John Cox.

Q Was he in the employ of the city ? A Yes.

Q Hired by them ? A He was engaged by them before I came on.

Q Paid monthly? A Yes.

Q And his duties w ere what ? A To look after the streets and side-

walks-at least bridges and sidewalks. 40

Q Did he perforrn those duties ? A Yes : he was acting in that

capacity.

13ý4



s
J

i*.~

p -



Q Under your direction,? -A Yes ; generally.

Q And reported to you ? A Yes.

Q And -you reported then to the
required.

city council ? A Where occasion

Q When did you. first inspect Point Ellice bridge as city
think it was in May, 1892. I think it. was in May.

engineer? A .I

Q Do you know when the city limits were extended so as to include Point
Ellice bridge ? A No; I think it was the year before ; but that was before I
came on the city.

Q Well the bridge then was within the city limits when you took office
A Yes.

Q And was it inspected by you the same as other bridges; did you look
after it the same<. A Yes; any repairs that were required were done by the
city. 2

Q You had the same coutrol over that bridge as you had over any of the
other bridgés? A Yes.

Q Hav e you ever heard the statute read defining -the limits of the'city-
the boundaries defined ? A -*Yes.

Q From at, is t>6 site includéd within the city limits-the bridge ?
A I should say it *&~hin the area described.

Q The area described, which is.covered within the limits of the city, ex-
tends so as to take in Point Ellice bridge. What time in 1892 was your atten-
.tion called to the Point Ellice bridge ? A At the time the floor beam broke.

Q Cap you give me -the date of that ? You have a memorandum of that?
A (Loo1king -at memo book.) It was on June 9th.

Q 1892 ? A 1892. That was when the beam broke.

Q How was your attention called to if?
beams'broke. I don't remember now who first
mediately after.

A There was one of the floor 40
told me of it ; I went over im-

Q As part. of your duties you went over ? A Yes ; I went over there.
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I
JQ Well, that was part of your duty to look after it? .A It was not

defined part of my duty.

Q. But generally ? A I considered it so ; yes.

Q Yon considered it part -of your duty, and you went
looked after it. Did you give instructions for its repair ? A
the street committee ; yes.

over there and
On consulting

Q That was part of the coun'il, the street committee ? A Yes. 10

Q And did they direct you how to have it repaired? A Not the details
how to have it repaired ; but they agreed to renew the floor beam-the floor
beain that was broken.

Q Now can you tell me what floor beam that was or what span it was in?
A No.

Q Well, do you know wha$ span it was in? A I cannot possibly say
now what span it was in. 20

Q If I draw your attention to it-it was repaired by Clark ? A Yes.

Q And it was in the span that went down? A I think probably it.was,
but I could not say.

Q And it was number fýve floor beam ? A The one that was repaired.
then; no, I don't think it was. Number five floor beam, as I remember it
now, number five floor beam was the one that was broken in the last accident.

30

Q No; number three. A Oh yes.

Q Now wouldn't it be number five that was broken then ? A Yes; it

may have been.

Q It may have been number five that was broken, and repaired by Clark?
A Ves.

Q Now how was that one broien-number five ? A It was broken off

short where the hanger went through. do

Q Was it broken off or did the hanger pull through. it ?
broken off.

A . It was
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Q I believe the number three that broke at the last accident, the hanger
pulled through. A No ; it did not.

Q There is a difference of opinion upon that. The beam then was broken
off just by the hanger ? A Broken off shortly just where the hanger went
through.

Q Was it very much decayed ?. A Yes; very nuch decayed.

Q The car passed over it saifely ttiat time ? A Yes0

Q Can you give a reason whi'the car went over safely that time? A The
.end of the beam did not drop down.

Q The other end? A The end that was broken did not drop down.

Q It dropped some ? A It dropped some.

Q You qualify that. How far do you think it would drop then ? A On
looking at it since I don't think it could drop more than about a half a foot.
The beam is considerably'below the floor, but I don't think that it actually
dropped more than about-I should say not more than six inches or a foot.

Q It aropped far enough to take all strength away fron that particular
part ? A No, it was supported.

Q Well, now, what would support it, now ? A The lateral rods-the
lateral braces that go through it. They pass through between the hangers, and
they go out to the outside of the beam beyond the hangers, and they did not
draw through the hangers-the 'wood on the outside of the nuts prevented them
drawing through; and although the beam was broken, still it went through a 30
portion of the beam and held it, that is from going down.

Q The longer portion of that beam-I am not talking now about the
shorter portion-after it broke do you mean to say that it was any support to
the bridge? A- It was not a support to the bridge, but it did not go down.

- Q It was no support to the bridge after it broke? A Yes; it held the
car after it broke.

Q That beam? A Yes; or else the car would drop right down.

Q But there were stringers ?, A No, there were no stringers; the string-
ers were not put in until after.
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No; there were the short stringers-the joists? A Well, the floor did
not hold it up.

Q Well, the jury say it did. Tell me where the strength was in that
bridge as to the broken beam? A The beam, the part that was broken, was
held from going down by these lateral rods that went through the end; if these
rods had broken the thing would have dropped right down.

Q Now, then, are the lateral rods a strength to the bridge ? A Yes;
their purpose is to prevent lateral motion.

Q Swaying? A Yes, that is their purpose. And there is no vertical
bearing on them except in a case of this kind where the beam broke.

Q You say they were a strength on account of the vertical bearing?
A After the beam broke.

Q After the beam broke ? A Ves, they held it.

Q Are you giving that as an opinion as an engineer? A Yes, from 20
what I saw. I saw the beam there suspended, held in place by those lat-
eral rods.

Q And you swear positively that that beam did iot go below the lateral
rods? A Yes.

Q Were the lateral rods through the longer part or the shorter part of that
beam? A Through both. They were in the longer part and went right out
through the shorter part.

30
Q Then thé lateral rods must have been some vertical support to the

bridge? A After the break. There is no weight on them when the beam is
intact; they pass through it, and there is no vertical pressure then on them
at all.

Q William Clark was the man who replaced it? A Yes, he -is the- man
who replaced it.

Q Did you see the beam before he did ? A Yes; that is unless he hap-
pened to go out at first. I saw the broken beam before I saw him in connection 40
with Aoing the work.

Q Yes, and Y-u instfucted him how to repair it? A To replace it, yes.
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Q Ves; and that was done? A Yes.

Q Did you tell him how to put in the hangers? A I don't remember
giving the detailed instructious.

Q Do you know if the hangers were put in identically the sapie as they
were before? A Yes, I believe they were.

Q The same hangers? A The same hangers were put in.
ro

Q The same as before. Then did you report to the council after the repair
of that accident in 1892 ? A Yes.

Q A written report ? A Yes.

Q Did they do anything in pursuance to that written report, or report?
A Well, there was no further action to take on that particular beam; after I
examined the others 1 foùnd they were defective.

Q I am talking about the particular beam. You made a report to the 20
council of the beam being repaired, did they do anything in pursuance of that
report? A No;, not that I know of.

Q When did you examine the rest of the bridge? A Well, shortly aftea
that.

Q Well, why did you examine it? A Well, to see how the other beams
were.

Q And did you report that examination to the council? A Yes, I
reported-yes, I reported what was wanted.

Q Did they give you any instructions after that? A No definite instruc-
tions, no.

Q Any indefinite instructions? A Well, they gave me instructions to
replace the wooden beams.

Q I believe you recommended iron beams? A' Yes, I suggested putting
in ron. 40

Q And they disregarded the suggestion? A Decided to put in wooden.

Q And in pursuance of that what did you do? A Put in the wooden.
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Q Who did you instruct? A McIntosh-Robert McIntosh.

Q Did they instruct you in any'ay"to inspect the bridge? A No.

Q When did you inspect tliàt after it was broken first in June, 1892 ? A
Well, it was inspected-all the bridges were inspected every year by the city
carpenter; there was no special inspection ofthat.

Q Do you know of any special inspection of that bridge that was made in
June, 1892 ? A June, 1892? 10

Q Yes? A Yes, there was àqpecial inspection made immediately.

Q By whose instructions ? A By my instructions.

Q To whom? A To McIntosh; and to Cox first.

Q John Cox? A Yes.

Q What instructions did you give to John Cox? A When I saw that
some of the other floor beams showed signs of decay-I could tell by inspecting 20
from the top-I told him to bore them all and to report on the condition of
each.

Q Do you remember the date of those instructions to him'? A I could
not say the date, but it was between the 16th of June and the 29th.

Q Yes. Yon gave him instructions. Now, do you know if he followed
your instructions? A I believe he did, yes.

Q Did you see him? -A I saw him ; I was on the bridge when he was 30
at work, but not the whole time.

Q Was anyone with him ? A He had one or two men.

Q Do you know who they were ? A No, I don't remember who they
were.

Q They were employed by him? A Well[ I could not say how they
were employed; by the city; he was the only permanent carpenter, I think.

Q He had the power, I suppose, to get assistance? A Yes, if necessary.

Q Do you know if he bored any of the beams ? A Yes.
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Q I suppose you saw him boring ? A I saw him boring, yes; I saw

him boring. He brought in the dust-the borings.

Q The borings, and reported to you direct ? A Yes.

Q And did you report them to the council? A Yes.

Q The result of his report? A Yes ; the number of beams that required
renewing.

or

Q Now during the time that he was doing this inspection, was the tram

traffic stopped on that bridge <'A Yes; it was stopped part of the time.

Q Who stopped that? A I gave notice to the tramway company and to

the council that the bridge was unsafe.

Q And did they stop the traffic ? A Yes.

Q The traffic was stopped? A Car traffic was stopped-the passenger

traffic was at any rate. I' have got a memorandum here: Thursday, 16th- 2

Notified the tramcar company not to carry passengers over the bridge. This is

the first note I have got of calling their attention to it.

Q Well, did they obey that notice? A I believe so.

Q6 How long was the traffic stopped on the bridge ? I am not particular

to a day, Mr. Wilmot. A I have got a Ctemorandum. July 14tb Point Ellice

bridge was completed, excepting planking between the rails. That is July

i4th; but I have not got a memorandum here when they stopped.
30

Q It was stopped for two or three weeks at any rate, or ten days ? A I

should say it was stopped for ten days.

Q Now during the time that-Mr. Clark was repairing, was traffic stopped?

A Yes; tram car traffic was.

Q And, by the way, was that an ordinary car that broke down in 1892 ?

A I believe it was the same car that ýwent through-a heavy car. I know

there was an excursion, but I don't remember personally the size of- the car

but there was an excursion that day, and I understood it was a large car. 4o

Q in fact it was number sixteen? A Number sixteen.

Q That was stopped at that time only a day or two ? A Yes.
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Q The first repair. On thý last repair it was stopped for some time ?
A Stopped for some time. The track was taken up and stringers were put in.

Q And a notice was then published after that that it was open for traffic?
A I don't remember whether a notice was published that it was open for traffic,
or just the notice taken out.

Q You reported then to the council it was fit for traffic ? A Yes.

Q And in pursuance of that notice they opened it? A Yes ; traffic
commenced. There was no form\ of opening the bridge. For instance, if a 10
bridge is closed for repairs a notice is put in the papers; then when the bridge
is repaired the notice is simply taken out and there is no notice that it is re-
paired.

Q And that is the usual custoin with regard to other bridges? A Ves.

Q When they are repaired. Was Mr. McIntosh given any special in-
structions by you how to repair'? A Yes.

Q Did he carry out those instructions ? A - Yes; so far as I know. 20
Yes; I believe he did.

Q Under your supervision? A Yes.

Q Now do you know when he started to work ? A Yes; I have got a
memorandum that he was engaged on June 29th.

Q And when did he finish? A Well, he-the bridge was completed, all
repairs and painting and everything, on Friday, the 22nd; but that included
the scraping, the piers and painting those. I am not sure whether he was en- 30

- gaged in that or not. Any way, he was engaged up to the i6th July.

- Q Did he employ his own men who assisted him or did the city?
A The city employed the men that he had in repairing the bridge; that is,
putting down the new floor ; but the stringers were put in at the expense of
the tramway company by him.

Q Under your supervision ? A Yes.

Q You supervised that. I.think they allowed something like one bun- 40
dred dollars, did they? A I could not say now.
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Q Well, the total amount Mr. McIntosh received was about sixteen
hundred dollars, I understand ; what lie did for the city ? A That is what
the repairs cost at that time ; yes.

Q. Well, were you there all the time? A Off and on.

Q Off and on? A .I was not there continuously.

Q But you were not away-from it any length of time? A• No.

Q Did thé tram company have their engineer there looking after it?
A No, they did not have their engineer; the foreman of the tramway looked
after the laying of the rails.

Q That is the T rail-? A Yes.

Q You had nothing to do with it ? A Mr. McIntosh was working for
them in laying down these stringers.

Q' Were the stiingers laid down to your satisfaction? A Yes.
2o

Q The flooring was the last that went down ? A Yes.

Q. That was paid for by the city? A Yes, the dooring was paid for by
the city; new flooring put down.

Q And paid for. Was Mr. McIntosh engaged by the city specially for
this woik- A Yes.

Q -or was he an employee? A No; he was engaged specially for that.
306

Q Specially for this work. After it was completed did you report to the
city? A Yes.

Q And McIntosh was paid by the city for his work ? A Yes, with the
exception of what was done for the tramway company.

Q Then what became of the old timbers or flooring of that bridge?
A It was rafted up above. Most of it was rafted above the bridge, but some of
it was brought down here with the iron.

40

Q I am talking now of the repairs in 1892, Mr. Wilmot? A Oh.

Q Were they sold-the old timbers, the planking ? A I don't know
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whether they were sold or stolen.

Q Did the city do anything witl thein ? A I don't think they util'zed
them.

Q I understand they were sold by the city? A I know -I recommended
selling them, as I did not think they were worth bringing in and using again;
but I don't remember whether they were sold.

Q You recommended the city to sellthem ? A Yes; the oldÉooring. ro

Q Now, after Mr. McIntosh made those repairs in July, '.1891, when next
was that bridge repaired ? A I think it was repaired in 1895.

Q 1895. A 1895.

Q It was repaired by a man named Elliott? A Yes; Thomas Elliott.

Q Thomas Elliott; by the city? A Yes.

Q Yon continued to look after it from 1892 till 1895? A Ves. 20

Q In fact until the present time ? A Yes.

Q Now, between 1892 and 1895, were there no repairs done to that bridge?
A I don't remember of any. There may have been an odd plank or some stick
of timber here and there that was attended to, but no general repairs.

Q Was there any sort of repair made to the bridges? A Yes, the bridges
were repaired.

30
Q During between 1892 and 1895' A' Ves.

Q An odd piece of planking? A Ves, the sidewalk.

Q Something like that A Yes.

Q So that it was looked after by the citv A It was looked after by the
city, yes.

Q Now, did vou ever get any notice of its being out of repair ? A No, 4o
sir,-

Q I don't mean official notice, but any general notice, A No.
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Q Ever asked by Mr. Grant or'informed by Mr. Grant? A No.

Q Do you know if the city took any precautions to prevent heavy traffic
on- that ? A No, I do not.

Q Or furious driving ? A Nothing more than the ordinary by-law that
provides against fast driving over any of the bridges.

Q Do you know of your own knowledge that that was ever enforced ?
A Not of my own knowledge. 'o

Q Do you know that notices were ever placed on that bridge as to that
by-law ? A There is the notice there now.

Q Your attention then was never drawn to that bridge being out of repair?
A No; not otherwise than by 'the officials. -

Q That was in 1892? A I say not otherwise than by officials, Mr. Cox,
when some renewals were required.

20Q That bridge connects the highway between the Victoria side and the
Esquimalt side of the Gorge, I believe ? A Ves; it connects the Indian Reserve
with bridge street.

Q .The name ofthat street is Work street, is it not A Work~street.

Q It is a continuation of Work street ? A No, it is not a continuation
of Work street ; the bridge connects it with Work street ; it is Work street this
side of the bridge and the Esquimalt road on the other side, I believe.

30Q It is the main road to Esquimalt? A Yes, the main road to Esqui
malt.

Q Now, after the bridges were repaired, Mr. Wilmot, did you report that
to the citX? A I don't remember whether I reported that to the council or
not; they were only slight repairs.

Q Well, now, was there any special funds set apart for the repair 'of
bridges ? No; there was a certain amount voted for streets, bridges and side-
walks, and there was a provision made for any special work that was required. 40
But there was no special funds set apart.

Q All money that was expended onthe bridges was expended out of the
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general fund? A General revenue, yes.

Q Set apart for bridges and roads A Yes.

Q And sidewalks? A Ves, and sidewalks.

Q It was drawn on that fund ? A Yes.

Q Now, after Mr. Cox inspected in 1892, did
Yes, he inspected all the bridges.

he inspect afterwards ?

Q That was part of his duties to inspect all' A Yes.

Q This one not differently from the others ?
as the others.

Q Just the same as the others, it was part of
his inspection? A Ves, I did.

A This one just the same

his duties. Vou relied on

Q He had the special control and the charge of the inspection part ? A
Yes,. repairs were made from time to time on all the bridges, as he reported they

required.

Q As he reported. Have you any reports in writing, Mr. Wilmot? A
Well, the last one is the only orne that is published, the 1896 annual report.

Q That is the report of 1895 ; but have you any other? A No, I have

not. He had a memorandum book.

Q Now, the supplies that he required for repairs, did he obtain those on

his own requisition ? A The supplies?

Q Yes'? A He reported what was wanted, a requisition was made out

for them.

Q And the men that were hired, did he send in their names to the coun-

cil and the council pay? A As a general thing there were two men working

with him all the time ; they were paid by the day, and on a special occasion he

would hire one or two men more.

Q And he had the power of hiring those men, had he? A Well, it was

not customary to hire then himself.

Q Do vou know what men he usually hired, or worked for him ? A No,
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I don't.remember now who was working with him then.

Q Is there any way of finding out what -men were working for him in
1892 ? A Yes, I think the accounts would show.

Q In the city treasurer's? A In the city offic.

A Would that be in the hands of the city treasurer? A Yes, I am ifot
sure whether he would have the vacation under which they were paid, but lie
would have the naines of the working men.

Q Where could I find out the names and the duties of the men that Cox
hired, and who were working for him? Do vou know where that could be
found ? A Since 1892 they got a record of it in the city engineer's office.
At 1892 I don't remember whether there was a record kept then or not.

Q Now who keeps them ? A I have a clerk who keeps a record of all
the employees, and what they were engaged in.

Q But you cannot tell as to 1892 A I am not sure, I could not say 20
froni memory.

Q Where do you think they would be? A They would be there.

Q In whose charge' A In the charge of the-well it would be in miv
charge, in the city engineer's office.

Q In the city engineer's office. A The system has been altered since-
the system has been altered since of keeping the accounts, of keeping tl4e
records. 30

Q Since 1892 ? A Yes.

Q After the bridge gave way in 1896 what became of the material ? A
Well, it is-most of it was rafted above the bridge, that is the wooden members;
and the iron was brought down to the city wharf, and a few of the floor beams.

Q Why wasn't it all brought down ' A Well, i understood that the
Provincial police took charge of it up there?

40Q Who instiructed them to take charge of it? A I don't know; Mr.
Beaven instructed Mr. Yorke to bring it down; that is what I understood; and
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Mr. Yorke, in going for it, was told by the Provincial police that they would
take charge of it.

Q Why, under what authority? A I don't know. But it was rafted
there.

Q Why would they take charge of part and not al]? A Well, it was
very nearly all, nearly all the timber; there were just a few sticks brought down
on the scow that the iron came on, and very probably because the iron was
attached to them. Io

Q Do you know the name of the Provincial police who had charge of it?
A No, I do not.

Q Did you see some of it in charge of the Provincial police A I saw

it up there; I don't know whose charge it was in.

Q You inspected it ? A. Yes.

Q And this number three beam, you saw it ? A Yes. 20

Q And I suppose you saw the end that was not broken? A I saw both

ends; I saw the whole beam.

Q Was the iron in the end that was not broken at the time you saw it ?

A I don't remember that.

Q Well, the hanger did not pull out of the end that was not broken?

A No, of the other'end there.
30

Q It was out at the other end? A It was out, yes; it was broken.

Q The other end was broken, and the hanger was out of that ? A It

was off.

Q It was not out of the others? A I think the hanger was out of all-

not out of all, but out of many. They had to take the hangers off in order to

get the diagonal braces separate.

Q Who had to do this? A The wreckers in taking apart to get the iron 40
work--some of it; they put some back and some they did not.

Q Why would they put some back? A I don't know.
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Q Who were the wreckers ? A Yorke had charge of them.

Q Well, as I understand you, that is the reason that the provincial police
kept some of the beams and some of the timbers was that the iron was out of
them ? A. No, I don't think that had anything to do with their keeping them;
they kept them to prevent them being lost.

Q Why did they keep some and not others ? A Well, I say I presume
they kept it there to prevent it from going adrift and getting lost; and the
others, there was'a small quantity brought down with the iron-all the iron was io
brought down. In getting the iron separate from the timbers, in a good many
cases they had to take the hangers out and the pins apart.

Q Did they bring any or the beams down that had no irons in A No,
I don't think'they did; I think the irons were in ail that were brought down.
I would not say positively, but I think.

Q Now, this number three beam, when did vou see it last ? A I don't
remember.

20

Q Give me the dates as near as you can? A Well, I was up there sev-
eral days through the summer. I did not make a memorandum of it at aIl.

Q The accident happened on the 26th of May; how long after the acci-
dent ? A Well, I could not sav; there is no use of m y guessing.

Q Would it be a month after the accident? A Yes, I saw it a month
after the accident.

Q Might it have been two months ? A Yes, I might have seen it two 30
months afterwards.

Q In whose charge was it then? A It was in a boom. There was a
boom made of the upper chord principally, they were fastened together, and ail
this timber was inside of them, and there was an Indian up there.

Q What Indian was that? A I don't know

Q Have vou any idea of his name? A No, I don't remember his name
at ail. 40

Q Did you speak to him at ail? A Yes; I have seen him there.
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Q Did you ask him to take charge of the timber? A No, I did not
instruct him to take charge of the timber.

Q Why didn't you bring them down tien with the rest of the timber?
A Well, I did not take any action in connection with the inatter at ail:

Q Vou knew there was a suit likely to go on ? A. Ves. I thought it
was as safe there as anywhere else.

Q And you knew that the greater part of it had beenu taken down ? [o
A' No, a very little of it had been taken down; the greater part of it had been
left up there.

Q And you took no precautions to have it preserved? A I took no par-
ticular precautions; no.

Q You were not instructed to. A No.

Q And you have no idea of the Indian's name who had charge of it ?

A No. 20

Q You knew it belonged to the city A No, I would not say that-

whether it belonged to the city or government. I knew it was part of the

bridge.

Q Certainly the beams that were put in by the city belonged to the city ?

A It was all part of the bridge.-

Q And you knew that the beams that were put in by the city belonged

to the city ? A Yes; I knew that they were part of the bridge. 30

Q Still you took no precautions to preserve it? A -No; I took no pre-

cautions to preserve it, in particular, myself.

Q Do vou know what was done with that tiiber? A No; I believe it

was burned.

Q By whom? A I could not tell vou. I was up there this snmer

and they said it was nearly all gone. By whom I could not find out.

Q Mr. Wilmot, why do vou differ from Mr. Gore in saying that the

beam was broken instead of the hanger pulling through ? A Because in ex-

amining the break you could see where the mark of the hanger was in the
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beam, and if it liad been pulled through the hanger coming through would
tear the hole so that it would not leave-it would obliterate the mark of the
hanger itself.

Q You differ from Mr. Bell, too, in that? A No.

Q Mr. Bell, I understand, says it broke when it bit the water. A It
may b+e ;brken.

Q He says it broke when it bit the water? A He was of the opinion 1o
that the hanger pulled right through.

Q But he says that what broke the beam was it hitting the water
A Yes ; I remember.

Q You differ with him on that? A - Well, I forni no opinion as to that.

Q You form no opinion when it broke ? A No.

Q Well, what would be the most likely time for it to break, before it 20
hit the water or when it bit the water'? A Well, if it broke when falling it
would be when it hit the water.

Q I am asking you what is your opinion of when it broke? A Well, I
say I have- formed no opinion at all as to when it broke.

Q Well, what is the probability? A Well, I could say.

Q Now, were the new beams broken at all? A No; there were none

of them. 30

Q No other beams broken except number three? A No, that is that

one that is broken.

Q How many new beams were in the spain that went down? A There

were five; five new ones.

Q And how many old ones? A Two.

Q One old one you have? A Yes.
40

Q And one old one has been lost? A Yes.

Q The old one that you have is much decayed ? A It shows signs of

decay.
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Q Much or little? A Well, considerable.

Q I understand it was not broken ? L No.

Q Can you place the position that beam was in the bridge? A 'It was
und.er the hjp-vertical.

Q On the side next to Victoria ? On the side iext to Victoria. Num-
ber seven.

IoQ Number seven. It was not broken at all ? A No.

Q The irons all perfectly sound in it? A Yes ; well, the irons were
cut off, the vertical rods were cut off. Yes ; they were sound.

Q I suppose you have the same opinion now-at least, you have no bet-
ter opinion now than when you were examined at the trial and examined by
myself as to the cause of the accident ? A No.

Q You have no opinion or have formed no opinion since the trial? A No. 20

Q You have no further data ? A No; nothing more than the evi-
dence I have heard.

Q Does that give you any further information as to the cause ? A No.

Q Do vou differ from Mr. Bell as to the cause ? A That the iron-?

Q Yes. A Well, no; I have not formed an opinion as to whether it was
the iron or the wood that gave way first..

30
Q You have not formed an opinion ? A No.

Q You did not form an opinion before and you have not formed one yet ?
A No.

Q And you have received no further data on which to form one ? A No.

Q Did you ever see the specifications of this bridge ? A No; I never
saw them before.

40
Q Did you know where they were-informed where they were? A No.

Q Did you know that they were in the hands of the Government? A
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No, I had no information with regard to them at all.

Q No information at all.-As to the strain sheet? A No.

Q Did you ever know where they were? A I saw the plan there after
the accident occurred; I think. I saw the plan in Mr. Gore's office, but I did
not see him.

Q Vou saw a pla'n of the bridge in th'e Provincial Governnent office, in
Victoria? A Ves.

Q After the accident? A Yes.

Q I suppose it had been there from the time they built the bridge? A I
presume it had.

Q Were you ever instructed by the city to obtain it? A No.

Q I suppose it was then open for inspection-the plans and specifications?
A I presume they would.

20

Q Have you ever figured the strain-sheet at all ? A No.

Q Yon have never figured it-either before the accident or subsequent to
the accident? A No.

Q Did you ever see the strain-sheet? A No; I have never seen it.

Q Vou do not know that it was in court in the Patterson case an'd the
Gordon case ? A I do not remember seeing it. I never went over it.

30
Q Have you any idea of the weight of the car? A The weight of the

car is about ten tons.

Q About ten ? And her weight with her load of passengers ? A Well,
it was-estimated to be about eighteen tons.

Q With car loaded? A With car loaded.

Mr. Mason: Do you know that of your own knowledge ? A No.

40
Mr. Macdonell: You form that from the evidence von have heard since?

A Yes; from the number that were on board.
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Q What is the natural life of wood in a bridge, Mr. Wilmot? A Well,
it depends on two conditions-the wocd and the position it is in.

Q Well, the most favorable ; taking it in a bridge such as thit and
under conditions such as this was? A Well, about-well, froi seven to ten
years.

Q Seven to ten. It would not be safe to be in the bridge after ten vears?
A Well, it might be ; but it would not be safe to trust it.

10Q Would, it decay faster after it was in seven years than it wotild before
the time up to the seven years? A Yes ; it probably would.

Q It probably would decay a little faster-that is, it would decay faster
for the three years from seven to ten than it would from four to seven 1 A Mes;
I think it would.

Q Have you inspected the timbers that are now in the spaql now standing?
A No; not since.

20
Q They were nearly all new? A There were five new in it.

Q All except the hip verticals? A The hip verticals.

Q They were old timbers? A Yes.

Q And four in the other span that went down? A Five.

Q Nine new ones? A There were ten altogether new ones; there were
nine put in the second time-by Mr. McIntosh. There are fourteen floor-
beanis altogether and there was onlv four old ones.

Q - In the span that wenst down one hip vertical was old and one hip verti-
cal was new? A Yeg.
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EXAMINED BY MR. MASON.

Q You say that when the first beam broke the. end that broke did not
drop down because it was supported by the laterals? A Yes.

Q Did the same thirig occur in 1896 ? A I could not tell you. It was
broken very much the same way.

Q Would they afford the -same -support in 1896 as they did in 1892?

A Yes'; I should think so.

Q The same, and no more and no less ? A I should think so; it would
depend on the break.

10

Q You say the floor did not hold it 'up in 1892 ? A No.

Q What is your reason for saying that? A The floor did not extend.
over the course.

Q Tbefloordidnot? A No.

Q It did not extend over the course in 1892 ? A No.

Q Do you know that of your own knowledge? A I know it to the best 20

of my recollection.

Q Now ýou say Mr. Cox followed out your instructions in 1892 ?
-A Yes ; so far as I know.

Q Well, how were those instructions given ? A I gave him a memor-
andum.

Q You gave him a memorandum? A A list of the floor beams to be
examined, and he marked after eacb the condition in which it was. 30

Q And did he return you that memorandum ? A Yes.

Q The same piece-the same memorandum that you gave him ? A He
gave me a memorandum of the floor beams.
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Q But I say that was the saine memorandum on which you had given
him his instructions? A I don't remember now: but he gave me the mem-
orandum of the condition of the beans.

Q Well, you say Mr. Cox has a book. What book was that ? A He
had a memorandum book of the work that he did.

Q For the city ? A Yes.

Q Who made the entries in that book ? A He did himself.

Q Did you make anv of them ? A No.

Q Well, didn't he have another book in which you put instructions call-
ing his attention to work that was required to be done ? A There was a mem-
orandum book in the office with instructions to different employees.

Q What has become of that book ? A That is in the office.

Q It is ? A Yes.

Q Had not Mr. Cok a special book-an instruction book ? A No; not
a special instruction book.

Q Well, do you ,remember what instructions you gave him? A In
1896?

Q No; in 1892 ? A Well, I gave him instructions to examine all the floor
beams and report on the condition of each, which he did ; and it was on the
strerigth of that report that the old ones were taken out and the new ones
put lu.

Q Well, did you give him instructions as to the boring? A Yes, I told
hii to bore the beams and plug up the holes.

Q Vou say you saw him boring? A Ves; I-saw him.

Q How was he boring? A He was boring near the end of the beam.

Q Which beam? A I don't remember now
where near the middle of the bridge.

Q How many did you see him bore ?
but one.
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Q And you don't remember which one that was ? A I don't remember
which one that was.

Q What size hole was lie boring ' A I should say from one-half to five-
eighths of an inch.

.Q Well if vou did not see him bore all the holes, how do you know
whether or not your instructions were carried out? I followed his report.

Q You followed his report ? A
ýwere not perfectly sound were replaced.
were pronounced perfectly sound.

Yes ; all the beanis that lie pronounced
There werejust four of the fourteen that

Q Did he state how lie bored them A I don't remember whether lie
stated so or not.

Q Mou say that he reported this beam nunber three perfectly sound?
A He did, or it would have been renewed. I don't remember the particulars
now that he did report, but all that lie did not report perfectly sound were re-
newed.

Q You say you relied on his inspection ? A Yes.

Q Is Cox working for the city now A No.

Q When did he cease to work ? A Oh, I think a little more than a
year ago.

Q That wol Id be about when? A Well, I think it was May last year.

Q May, 1896 ? A Yes.

Q Previously to that was he paid by the day instead of by the month ?
A No; previously to that lie was paid by the month, and then lie was changed
from nonthiy pay to daily payment.

Q Yes? A And he left.

Q Well,
think he did.
could not say.
employment.

did he express to yon the reason for leaving ? A No ; I
, What was his reason for leaving do you know A
It may have been for that or it may have been to obtain
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Q Now, do you know how it was that some of the wreckage of the bridge
in 1896 was taken to the Indian reserve and some to the city wharf? A Well,
as I just stated, the iron was all brought to the city wharf, and as I understood
the mayor gave instructions to Mr. Yorke to bring all the lumber down. He
went up there, and the provincial police had charge of it. That is all I know
about it.

Q Mr. Yorke brought sonie of the lumber down to the wharf'? A Some
of it yes.

1o
Q Where did he get that lumber from, do you know ? A It was part of

the wreckage.

Q Well, the police stated that they were going to take charge of the lum-
ber on behalf of the government ? A So Mr. Yorke said.

Q Well, now, do you know whether the lumber was carefully examined
by the coroner and jury on the inquest ? A They were up there. I could
not say how.carefully they exanined.

20

Q Didn't you go up with them ? A No.

Q Are you sure of that ? A I did not accompany them over the-up to
the bridge.

Q Well, they went there.several times, did they not? A I believe they
did; yese

Q And as far as you can remember most of the expert witnesses visited
the wreck, both at the reserve and on the wharf? A .I don't think there 30
was any brought down to the wharf at that time. It was all up there.

Q Al the timber was up there ? A Yes.

Q When was the timber brought down to"the wharf afterwards ? A The
experts were up there immediately after the accident.

Q Yes. A And then they were several days getting the iron free from
the wood and getting*it separated and hauling it up, and it was during that
time the experts were up. And after they got all the iron they brought it 4Q
and sorne of the wood down.

Q Then- the lumber that was on the. reserve was chiefly lumber that was,
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free from the iron wreckage? A Ves.

Q How long did that inquiry last, do you remeinber? A I don't re-
member.

Q Now you say you saw number three beam on the reserve. You saw
the mark of the hanger ? A Yes.

Q And you saw the mark of the banger and you were satisfied that it
did not tear through, otherwise that mark would have been obliterated ? Io
A Ves.

Q Did yon examine the two prices carefully to satisfy yourself to that ?
A Yes.

Q You did ? A Yes. I was satisfied from my examination that it did
not pull through ; that the gib-plate at the bottom had not gone quite
through.

Q And the hanger mark was clearly defined ? A Yes. 20

Q Well, did you see any other mark anywhere near the hanger of the
boring, or anything of that kind ? A No.

Q Would you have seen it if it had been there ? A I would have seen
it if it had been bored at the top; yes.

Q You say if it had been bored at the top; explain it. A The beam
was laying on i<s side. It might have been bored on the side that it was
lying on, and I would not have seen it. 30

Q Which side would that be? A Well, it is not the upper side, but I
would not be sure what side it was on.

Q But you are sure it was not on the upper side ? A Yes.

Q Well, with regard to the boring, I think yon stated you did not give
any special instruction as to the boring! A Except to plug up the holes.

Q Did you tell him to plug up the holes? A With wood. 40

Q You did not state what size the holes were to be bored ? A No.

Q Are you positive as to that ? A I don'Ê remember of stating it.
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Q But you are certain you told hin to plug them up with wood ?
A Yes ; I told hin to bore then and plug them with wood to keep the water
froi getting in.

Q Then you say there is a notice on the bridge at the present time. Do
you nean the bridge that broke A Yes.

Q Or the new bridge ? A The old one.

Q What notice is that ? A I don't remnember of reading it ; but there
is a notice, a painted notice, similar.to the notice they generally have up on
bridges, notifying people not to drive fast.

Q That is an old notice, is it not? A Ves.

Q Put up hy the governient ? A. I don't know who it is put up by.

Q Was it there when you first took the bridge in A I couldn't say
that; it is there now.

Q Do vou remember what formal notice you gave to the tramway com-
pany in 1892 that the bridge was unsafe ? A I wrote to the managing
director to that effect-Mr. Higgins.

Q Well, was it'a warning or notice ? A To the best of my-recollec-
tion it was a notice-a written notice that the bridge was unsafe.

Q To the effect that the bridge was unsafe ? A Yes.

EXAMINED BY MR. MACDONELL

Q You speak of a memorandum- book which is on file, "Mr. Wilmot;
when did you see that memorandum- book? A That is a memorandum of

410work to be done by the foreman.

Q Well, where is it now? A Up in the office,?,.
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Q Vour office? A Ves.

Q The city engineer's office? A Ves.

Q And is it signed by Cox ' A No; it is not signed by-it is a nem-
orandum that I put down in the book, and the foreian sees it there every
morning, for any work that requires to be done.

Q The memorandum that Cox gave yon, you don't know what became
of that? A I don't know what became of that0; no.

Q You don't know where that is, good, bad or indifferent ? Now, Mr.
Wilmot, I asked you in the examination before, in the Patterson case-I
asked you this, " Did you give him "-meaing Cox-" any instructions ho w
to inspect ?' and your answer to me at that time was this, "At that time
yes. (O) What instructions did you give hii ? (A) To bore and to see-when
I found that more than one was unsound, then I had them ail bored.

(Q) By whon? (A) "By him, and any that wereunsound were renewed ?"
A Yes. 2Ô

Q Now was that correct ? A Yes.

Q Now, are those the instructions that you gave him to bore. the beains
A Yes.

Q Those were ail the instructions that you gave? A Ail that I re-
member of giving; yes-boring and plugging.

Q Now wait. In the Patterson case, before Mr. Cox gave his evidence, 30
Mr. Wilmot, you say nothing as to plugging; you simply say My instructions
were to bore" ? A. Yes.

Q Now, that is correct? A Well, that is what I meant, as far as test-
ing the wood is concerned, to bore.

Q . Bore ? And if Mr. Cox says that ail the instructions you gave were
to bore, I suppose that would be right, you say ? A Ves; to test the wood.

Q Now, Mr. Wilniot, since 1892, that is a long time? A Yes. 40

Q And I suppose you have forgotten and do not reuember any better
now than you did three-or four months ago when I examined vou before, do
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you, as to the instructions that vou gave him? A Yes; well, in giving the in-
structions for the testing-I was referring only to the instruction for ascertaining
what condition the wood was in.

Q I suppose Mr. Cox was a practical man, was he? A Ves.

Q Competent ? A He was supposed to be.

Q Supposed to be ? A Now isn't it natural, Mr. Wilmot, to say simply,
"Here, Mr. Cox, go and inspect those timbers by boring, and see if thev are 1o
all right"? You gave instructions in about that way ? A Yes and I spoke
about plugging.

Q Now, be careful ? A Ves; I did.

Q Why would you give details to a competent man ? A Because, as I
say, to prevent the water getting in.

Q But he knew; he was a competent man ? A Well, I did not know
much about him then; I had only come in only about a month or two. 20

Q You did not know whether he was competent or incompetent ?
A That was only a month or two after I first came in.

Q A competent man would not require that rider to be added to the in-
,tructions? A He should not.

Q Not if he had been a competent man; yet you consider you said to him
that he was to plug; you think you remember that? A I think I remember
that. 30

Q But you would not be sure as to how they were to be plugged ?
A With wood.

Q And you would not be sure about that ? A As to whether they were
to be plugged with wood ?

Q Yes. A Yes; I alwavs have them done so.

Q By him before? A There was only one bridge that he bored before. 40

Q Where was that? A On the Gorge road.

Q How did he do that ? A Bored it and plugged it.
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Q With wood? A Yes.

Q Then why was it necessary, Mr. Wilmot, if he did that before to re-
peat the instructions again in this ? A He bored the one before, but I am of
the.opinion that it was in the secondone that I was very particular about giv-
ing him instructions to plug them with wood, because they were bored in the
top, and I don't remember now whether the other one was or not-the old
Gorge road bridge that was reported unsound, and lie bored it.; but I don't re-
member now whether he bored the stringers frorii the top or the bottom. If lie
bored them from the bottonr there would be no necessity of plugging then to
prevent the water from getting in ; but boring from the top-the reason that it
convinces me that it was there that I told him to plug them with wood is be-
cause he could only get at them to bore them from the top in the Point Ellice
bridge, but the others he could bore them underneath on the ground.

Q That is the reason you think vou told him to plug them with wood ?
A Yes, because they had to be bored from the top.

Q And that is the reason you think you remember now that you told hin
to plug them with wood. Do you know what became of the auger that lie
bored with' A I do not.

.Q Was it a corporation auger ? A I could not say that;
tools; they were corporation tools that lie had.

Q Do you -remember what kind of a handle there was to
had ? -A I do not remember.

Q Do you know if there was a wooden handle ? A No.

Q There is an auger called a reach auger ? A Yes.

Q Do you remember whether it was that kind of an auger ?
remember.

lie had these

the auger lie

A I cannot

Q You have remembered the size ? A Yes.

Q But do you remember the kind of handle ? A No ; I do
ber the kind of handle.

Q
do not.

Whether it was a reac.h or one with a wooden handle ?

not remem-

A No ; I
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-Q But you had no conplaint as to the auger at all?' A As to the
auger; no.

Q And kitid of auger? A No.

Q Was Mr. McIntosh there during the time lie was boring ? A No
Mr. Mclntosh-at least, he was not engaged by the city ; lie was not engaged
until after Mr. Cox made his report ; lie was engaged then to renew these
beams.

10

EXAMINED BY MR. MASON.

Q You say that the auger was corporation property?
was; I never heard that the carpenter found his own tools.

Q You do not know whether he found the auger, or the
No I could not säy of my own knowledge.

A I presume it 2c)

corporation ? A

Q If it was corporation property he should have returned it ? A Ves, I
should think so.

Q Well, since the accident you have examined some of these beams with
auger holes, have you not ? A Ves.

Q Have you found any ? A Yes.

Q Which beams have you found them in ? Well, there is the old
beam number 7, that is down at the wharf. And there are the two floor beams
that are in the span that is still standing, that were bred.

Q In No. 7, what size auger hole is that? A Well, when I examined
it the plug had not been cut off, well, not any more than three quarters of an.
inch.

Q And the plug was in it? A The plug was in 't.
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Q What kind of a plug was it? A Wooden plug. The head was
brooded a little.

Q What do you mean by that? A Bruised a little, and it was a little
larger than the size of the hole.

Q And it was in good order ? A Ves.

Q The other two beams, you say, were bored? A Yes.

IoQ What size of a hole are they ? A About the saine size-about thfee
quarters.

Q Not more? A One certainly is not more, and the other I could not
tell on account of the head of the plug being bruised.

Q Were the plugs well driven? A Yes.

Q And sound ? A Yes.

Q Did you find any oakum plug.in these. A No, I did not see any.

The examination here closed.
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Evidence of Wellington J. Dowler in
Patterson v. Victoria

ÉIRST DAY oF TRIAL.

WELLINGTON J. DOWLER CALLED AND SWORN.

EXAMINED BY MR. DAVIS.

Q What is your name? A Wellington Jeffries Dowler.

Q You live in the -city of Victoria, Mr. Dowler? A I do. 20

Q You are the city clerk, I believe ? A Ves.

Q How long have you been city clerk of the city of Victoria? A Since
October, 1888.

Mr. Davis: I wish to file the plan of the city of Victoria which was filed
in the Gordon case; the registrar, I think, has it there.

Court: Just mark them again. It will be scfficient-at the same time to 30
identify them. Plan of the city of Victoria.

Court: The best way will be to call these exhibits by the numbers in the
other suit. You tender in evidence, Mr. Davis, exhibit five?

Mr. Davis: Is' there any objection to that

Mr. Taylor: I don't see any objection to this, particularly.

(Marked exhibit "A.") 40

Mr. Taylor: I see, in looking at this, that it is -not an official map, and,
therefore, I do not wish to be concluded by it.
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Court: No; not if you can show any inaccuracy in it.

Mr. Taylor: Well, if that point is reserved-

Court: It is not necessary to reserve it. Admission does not preclude you
from showing any inaccuracy.

Mr. Davis: I also file the British Columbia Gazeite of January 8, 1891,
containing the proclamation extending the limits of the city of Victoria.

1oCourt: Do I not take judicial notice of that-the proclamation

Mr. Davis: I don't think so, my lord, under our rule.

Court: "B " is Gazette, January 8, 1891. I am taking it down as an
exhibit,. but it is my impression that it is not necessarv to prove that. Vou
prove it by producing it, the same as an act of parliament.

Mr. Davis (to witness): You are familiar with the city of Victoria-streets,
bridges, and so on? A Yes. 20

Q Look at that map and follow the limits as described in this statute of
of 1892. I have no doubt you can do that without even looking at the map.

Court: It is not necessary, because the terms of the proclaruation expressly
include the Point 'Ellice bridge by name; so it cannot be necessary for you to
go further.

Mr. Taylor: And we go a little further than that-there is no doubt that
within the territorial area of the limits as described as extended this bridge is 30
included.

Court: You need not anticipateanv possible question that way; but, as 1
pointed out, the terms of the proclamation include the bridge, but with the
other question we are not concerned just now.

Mr Davis: I tender in evidence a resolution of the council of June 20,
1892, which is an exhibit in the other case. (Copy of resolution in the Gordon
case, 16, marked exhibit " C.") I notice the date of that in the copy is wrong.
It is a month out. It is dated the 2oth June; I think it should be the 2oth 40
July. I put in also for the purpose of having the two read together-

Mr. Taylor: Before my learned f riend goes on I desire to record an objec-
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tion to that; there is no evidence to show that the bridge belonged to the city,
and, therefore, that resoltion-

Court: That isan objection to the admission of it; the effect of it is an-
other.thing. This is a copy of the resolution, and if material in any way it
goes in, but how far it is relevant is a question.

Mr. Taylor: Possibly your lordship might be right. I simply wish to
record the objection.

Mr. Davis: I put in a letter of Mr. Wilmot to the city, dated JUly 20, 1892,
and then I willhave these two read together. (Exhibit 15 in the Gordon case
miarked " D " in this case.)

Court: Exhibit " D " is 15-nothing more and nothing less; with any-
thing more at present we are not concerned.

Mr. Cassidy: I think with one word we might understand all this and no
further objection need be taken at al]. The -Qnly objection we have to the
admission of any of these documents, or of any conduct on the part of the council, 20
or the. servants of the city, going to show that they supposed that the bridge
was the city's in dealing with it,'is based on this, that we say that the liability,
if any, for any conduct of that kind is personal-that the city never owned the
bridge at all, and that it ought not to go to the jury as indicating any dealing
with it on the part of the city.

Court: I will make this ruling, which will effectually preserve your
position : I shall admit any evidence, documentary or otherwise, relating to
any action taken by the defendant in respect of this bridge. I admit it as reve-
lant without expressing any opinion, which is entirely premature now, as to 30
what the effect of that evidence in law is. That effectually guards vour objec-
t4on, and it is npt necessary to renew vour objection. The two things are as dis-
tinct as light from darkness.

Mr. Davis: I put in the British Columbia Gazette of June 13th, 1892
(Marked exhibit "E.")

Mr. Davis (to witness) : Now, Mr. Dowler, prior to this accident which
took place in June, 1896, was there any by-law'of the City of Victoria purport- 0
ing to regulate in any way either the weight of cars passing over Point Ellice
bridge or the number of passengers on the cars of the Consolidated Railway Co.?
A Not that- I am aware of.

168



uJe

At

1.



Q There was a by-law, ·was there not, regulating tramways and inter alia
regulating the rate of speed at which trancars should travel within the City of
Victoria? A Yes ; there was.

Q There is also a by-law regulating the vehicular traffic ? Yes ; the or-
dinary vehicle traffic.

Q Subsequent to the accident of May, 1896, was any by-law passed by
the City of Victoria reguhting the weight of cars and the nunlber of passengers
on the cars of the Consolidated Tramway Co. within the City of Victoria ? 10
A Yes.

Mr. Cassidy We object to that o-n the ground\ that it is sought to fix us
with an inipropriety beforehand by showing that we \did something aftervards.

Court There is another objection. (To Mr. Davis): You ought to
produce that.

Mr. Davis: Mv lord, I an going to.
20

Court ; Well, the objection will be more proper when it is produced.

Mr. Cassidy: There is no action against the corporation for not passing a
by-law.

Court : Mr. Davis has only gone so far as to identify a particular by-law
that is in existence. No evidence of its contents can be given witout its pro-
duction. I will reserve leave, if you require it-if you are not ready.

Mr. Davis: The by-laws I refer to are numbers 265, 266, and a number 30
my learned friend is unable to give me at present but is a by-law repealing
265 ; but I will let that go- will not ,put that in. The last one I do not
put in, my lord.

Court: I admit those for this reason, that unless it appears that some
change in the legal position of the city occurred between the time of the acci-
dent and the time of the passing of these by-laws such as that they would de-
rive an authoritv which did not exist at that time; these by-laws of themselves
show what, from the point of view of the citv, was their control over this bridge,
and for that purpose only. Have you copies to put in, Mr. Davis ? Leave re- 40
served to put in these two by-laws, which will be exhibits " F " and " G."
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Mr. Davis: That is all I want just now (to witness); but do not go away,
as I shall want other documents to be produced.

Evidence of F. G. Richards in Patterson v. Victoria.

FIRST DAY OF TRIAL.

20

F. G. RICHARDS, CALLED AND SWORN. EXAMINED BY MR. DAVIS.

Q What is your name A Francis Gilbert Richards.

Q You live in the City of Victoria, I believe, Mr. Richards? A Ves, sir.

Q Were you at one time in the employ of the Provincial Government ?
A I was!

Q In what capacity ? A Chief draughtsman.

Q In whose office? A The ILands and Works department.

Q What year did yoti leave there? A 186.

Q Were you there at the time the -Point Ellice bridge was built ? A I 40
was.

Q That was built in what year ? A
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Mr. Davis: I tender in evidence the plans and specifications-of the bridge
filed in the other (Gordon v. Victoria) case.

Court: Any objcçtion

Mr. Taylor : No, yodir lordship.

Mr. Davis (to witness): At the time the bridge was built, Mr. Richards,
was any.tramway traffic contemplated-was the bridge built for that purpose ?
A It was not built for that purpose ; it was built for ordinary traffic. [o

Q Von were a inember of the council of the City of Victoria, I believe, in
the year 1891 ! A I was.

Q During that year, as has been shown, the citv limits were extended,
taking in this Point Ellice bridge ? A The limits were extended in 1890.

QThe-proclax»ation was in 1891. Did the city get any sum of money
from the government in that connection ? A It was arranged between the
government and the city that they should receive- 20

Mr. Cassidy: My lord, we object to this as not being the best evidence of
any such arrangement.

Court: Receipt of money may be proved, for any purpose outside of any
document under which its receipt is.shown.

Mr. Davis (repeats question): A I- believe so-$4,ooo.

Q For what purpose was that received? 30

Court: If Mr. Cassidy objects that that was receiyed under a writtèn doc-
ument-

Mr. Davis: I am going to ask for its production. (To witness) Was that
bv virtue of a verbal or written arrangenent? A ýVritten arrangement.

Mr. Davis: I would ask the defendants to produce the côrrespondence
between the city council and the govern ment bearing on this point, including
the mayor' s report in 1891 and resolution passed in corieequence of it.

Mr. Taylor: We will undertake to produce it.

Court: In a matter of this kind, which is somewhat unusual, the other side
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express a willingness to produce it. Won't your purpose he served by leave
being reserved to put it in, and note their undertaking to produce it

Mr. Davis: But in all probability it will be necessary for me to ask this
witness a number of questions in connection with it.

Mr. Taylor: We have it here, now.

Mr. Davis: Is thât all?

Mr. Taylor: Excepting the resolution of the council.

Mr. Davis: I want all the correspondence; this is only one, and it is not
either cf the things that I asked for.

Court (to Mr. Davis): Have you given notice to produce, with dates ?

Mr. Taylor: No.

Mr. Davis: The mayor's report with reference to this is mentioned, and
was the only one.

Court: This was not put in in the other case

Mr. Davis: They did not object in the other case; they were a little more
liberal. There is no dispute about this matter.

Court: What do you say?

Mr. Taylor: We have no objection to the correspondence at all; they did
not give us notice to proauce it specifically. 30

Court: Prove your notice; there is no necessity for any friction.

Mr. Davis: I file this in the meantime. This is a letter from the deputy
commissioner of lands and works 'of May 9, 1891, to the city clerk of Victoria.

Court:/ Now prove your notice.

Mr. Davis: Well, they do not dispute the notice, I understand. Tlis I
propose to put in. (Document marked exhibit "I.") Now I wish the exhibit 40
read, and I produce the notice to produce. (Exhibit read by registrar.)

Mr. Davis: And thisisa further notice to produce in the same matter.
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Mr. Taylor: Here is the resolution, if my learned friend desires it, acknow-
ledging thaf.

Mr. Davis :Yes ; but there is more than merely one; ther.e is the mayor's
report.

Court : 'File your notice, and I admit secondary evidence. "J "- and
" K " will be the notices to, produce. If you think it will suit your purpose as
well as having the original documents-copies. rhat is for you to say.

ro
Mr. Davis : Of course, my lord, they do not produce them and I cannot

get them.; so I am bound to submit the secondary evidence.

Court: It is.for Mr. Davis to say whether he will give secondary evi-
dence or take your undertaking and postpone the time till the afternoon ; but if
he gives secondary evidenèe-

Mr. Davis: I am content, my lord; I will give secondary evidence ; I do
not wish to break this up now.

20

Court: My ruling is that secondary evidence can be given. The ques-
6tion of the receipt of the original documents or certified copies afterwards, I re-
serve to my own discretion.

Mr, Taylor: I beg to point out that there is no particular report pointed
out.

Court: I rule, rightly or wrongly, the notice is sufficient. Now, get on.

.Mr. Davis (to witness): Was this Point Ellice bridge on one of the trunk 30
roads referred to in that letter of Mr. Gore> ? A I did not hear that letter

read distinctly.

Well the Gorge roads are mentioned here. That means more than one

road. The Point Ellice bridge is on the road leading to the Gorge, only in a

different direction to what is known as the Gorge road proper.

Q What took place as a result of that communication from Mr. Gore in

the council? A Those trunk roads were taken over by the city council and

were operated or maintained by the city council, including Point Ellice bridge. 40

Q Were you in the council in 1892, Mr. Richards? A In the early

part of 1892.
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Q Do you know with reference to this accident that happened on the
bridge in 1892 ? . A No ; that was subsequent to ny term of office.

Q Did you have any personal knowledge outside~? A I knew that it
had happened.

Q Were you down at the bridge ?
knew of the circumstances.

A No ; I was not at the bridge.

CROSS-EXAMINED MR. TAYLOR.

Q Mr. Richards, there *is only one place called the Gorge road in Vic-
toria, is'theré not ? One road ? A Well-

Q Say "yes " or "no·"-vou know ? A I know that there is one
road known as the Gorge road now but previous--

Q The road leading over this bridge is called the Esquimalt road? A

Let me explain. Previous to that other road being built-the present Gorge

road being built-that was known as the Gorge road.

Q When was it built ? A i think in 1875.

Q And this was 1891. For pretty nearly twenty years it has been called

the Gorge road? A Yes.

Q What does this
side and Gorge roads.'
not in the plural ? A

letter sav-' Saanich, Cedar Hill, Cadborô Bay, Burn-

Does not that road refer to that new Gorge road, and

It might.

Q Isn't that what von understand by it Is that not so? A It reads

that way.

,Q And you ùnderstand by that the Gorge road proper is not this Esqui-

malod? A The Gorge road proper ; but this road leading to Esquimalt

waslken over as a trunk road.
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Q Twenty years ago? 1No; I am speaking of 1891, and leads to theGorge.

Will you swear that the road that went over the Point Pllice bridge
was ever called the Gorge road witliin the last ten vears ? A No I won't
swear to that.

Q It has not been called the Gorge road for ten vears there has been an-
other road, though, called the Gorge road ? A Ves.

IoQ And that is in a different part of town A Yes.

Q And this letter refers to the Saanich road. That didn't go over Point
Ellice bridge ? A No.

Q The Cedar Hill road didn't ? A No.

Q The Cadboro Bay road didn't - A No.

Q And the Burnside road didn't ? A No.
20

Q And the Gorge road, as it has been called for the past ten years, didn't
A No; but previous to that it was known as the Gorge road.

Foreman How manv bridges are there on those roads-" bridges" is
mentioned in the plural ?

Mr,. Taylor Bridges" is not mentioned there.

Mr. Davis Oh. ves.

30
Mr. Taylor This part of it I beg to cal' vour attention to the con-

dition of the bridges over the large ravine on the Gorge and iurnside road--
(To witness) How many are there on the Gorge road A On the Gorge
road

Q Yes, over the ravine A There are two bridges on the Gorge road,
but one, I think, is within the old original linits of the citv before the
extension.

Q What do you mean bv the large rayine on the Gorge road? A That 40
is one just about the limit of the extension. it comnes over a portion of the
Victoria Arm.
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Q That is a considerable distance away from Point Ellice bridge?
A Oh, yes.

Q There are two bridge structures over the ravine on the Gorge road-a
large and a small? A. Ves.

Q Take the Burnsîde road? A There is one on the Burnside road; but
I am not certain whether that is within the extended limits or not.

Q , At any rate, it is a mile or two froin the Point Il1lice bridge? A Ves. 1o

Q Both structures should be replaced by new ones at an early date. There
is no reference in those to the Point Ellice bridge ? A No, not by naine.

20

RE-DIRECT BY MR. DAVIS.

Q This letter we have been looking at is one document out of a series of
documents in, connection with the matter. * As a matter of fact, was the Point
Ellice bridge one of the bridges a part of the added territory taken over under
this arrangement vou have spoken of by the city ? "A It~was.-

30

Mr. Taylor: I take it that that is a matter of documentary proof.

Court: I have ruled that secondary evidence may be given. If there is to
be any order in the proceedings, and in the wav they are to be conducted, you
must take my ruling for one moment.

40
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Evidence of F. M. Yorke in Piatterson vs. Victoria.

FIRST DAV OF TRIAI.
ro

F. M. YORKE CALLED ANI) SWORN. EXAMINED BY MR. DAVIS.

20

Q What is your name A Francis M. Yorke.

Q You live in Victoria, Mr. Yorke? A Ves, sir.

Q You remember this accident of Ma'y 26th A Yes, sir.

Q I believe you had something to do with the wrecking after the accident?

A Yes, sir.

Q Did you «eéight the car which went through the bridge A Yes, sir. 30

Q What was the weight, including trucks ? A 19,847 pounds.

Q I believe there were a few things gone-the dashboard and a few other

things? A The top of the car and the trolley, and the cushions and a little of

the back part of the car.

Q That was roughly-I believe it was only arrived at roughly-the esti-

mate of the weight of the car, people, rigs and evervthing on that particular

panel on which the car stood; the rough weight? 40

Mr. Cassidy: ·You have not proved that he knows anything about the

people.
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Mr.'' Davis: You know by the total estimate ? A No; I was not
there, sir.

Q You don't know anything about it? A No, sir.

Q What was the length of the trucks-that is, from the rear end to the
front end, what wouid be the length ? That is, on how many feet of the car
would the weight of the car rest? A I don't think we measured that, sir.

Q Vou don't know anything about that? A No.

(No cross-examination.)

Juror: How did you arrive at the weight of the car? A I weighed ite
sir, on the city scales; weighed the trucks separately and' the car separately. I
have got the weight of them separate.

Mr. Davis, There is just one question, with the permission of your lord-
ship. Although he says that he does not remember that they measured th'
length of the trucks, I would ask him this question-Whether the entire weight 20
would rest within one panel length ? because it is evidence which he gave when
he was examined before.

Court: How is that? You recollect that ?

Mr. Davis (to witness): You stated, when examined here before, that the
trucks would rest on a single panel-tliat the length of the trucks vas shorter
than the length of the panel, which was 18.9 inches. Is that corftet? A Yes,
sir; .that is correct.

30
Q Do you know where the Gorge road is ?

Court: I think we have the facts as to the differences between the roads,
if that is all:

40
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Robert Mclntosh, Bridge Carpènter, in Patterson v. Victoria.

FIRST DAV OF TRIAL.

CALLED AND SWORN. EXAMINE) BY MR. DAVIS.

Q What is your naine? A Robert Mclntosh.

Q- You live in Victoria Mr. Mclntosh ? A -Yes.

Q You are a carpenter, I believe ? A Ves.

Q Bridge carpenter and that sort of thing- In 1892, I mderstandLfom
Mr. Wilmot, that it was you who did the chief part of the repairs on the Point

Ellice bridge, after the accident there ? A I did the chief part ; yes. I didn't

do them all.

Q No ; there was one floor beam had been replaced before by a man of.

of the name of Clark ? A By same person.

Objected to by Mr. Cassidy. Objectiongustained.

Mr. Davis (to witness): There had been someone put in a floor beam be-

fore? A Yes.

Q And what work did you do on the bridge.? A I put in some tf the 40

beams and some stringers for the tramway company.

Q And what else ? A Replànked the bridge; renewed the planking of

the bridge.
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Q Outside of the-one floor beam which had been put in before, that you
have mentioned, you put in all the new floor beans at that time ? A Ves.

Q How did the planking run which was down on the bridge before you
replanked it ? A Diagonally.

Q. And what length were the planks ? A In one length across the
bridge diagonally.

Q They ran from one end (side ?) of the bridge to the other A Ves.

Q What instructions had vou from the city as to the new flooring which
you put in

Objected to by Mr. Cassidy as leading.

Mr. Davis Mr Wilnot said he iistructed Mr. McIntosh.

Court (to Mr. Cassidy) How can you say "what instructions" is lead-
ing ? He had instructions. 20

Mr. Cassidy: Not instructions from the city.

Mr. Davis (to witness):~ Who instructed vou to do that repairing ?
A Mr. Wilmot, the city engineer.

Q Who paid you for the work which was done? A The city and the
tramway as well paid a portion.

Q The tramway company paid vou for the stringers ? A Ves.
30

Q For that other work wvho paid you A The city.

Q What instructions did von have fromNI Mr. Wilmot with reference to
the way in which this new floor should be put in? A It should be cut on
either side of the T rails which should be put in.

Q That is, formerly there was a flat rail on top of the planking? A
Yes.

Q And when the repairing was done, a T-rail was put in running on two 40
new stringers? A Yes.
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Q The tramway-you said, put in those two stringers, and the floor was
ut open to make itjin three length ! A Yes.

Q One length up to the upper side of the tramiline, one length to the
flooring between thie rails of the trainline, and one length below ? A Yes,

Q That is correct A That is correct.

Q What was the size of the stringers put in by the tramway company ?
A Ten by twelve.

1o
Q What was the size of the beams put in by you A The floor beams?

Q Yes. A Twelve by sixteen.

Q What effect, if any, on the strength of the bridge would cutting the
floor beams have, so far as your opinion goes ? A Cutting the floor beams ?

Q I don't mean the floor beains-the flooring ' A It would lose the
entire carrying strength of the flooring itself.. A0

2o

Q What change was made, if any, in the hangers of the beams which you
took out arnd feplaced ? A They were changed so as to go round the. stick
instead of going through it. They were changed from the original way by
being placed round the stick instead of holes being put through the floor beams.

Q Couild you draw soiiietliiig that would show

Court: That is what you call a stirrup i

Mr. Davis: Changed from hangers to 'stirrul)S. 30

Mr. Cassidy: No: yokes to stirrups.

Mr. Davis: Well, we will not quarrel about words. I mav say in con-
nection with this, I will put ii another witness who w'ill explaii it thoroughly.

Mr. Davis (to witness): Which is the old style A This (indicating ou
sketch).

Q This one-and that (indicatiig) is the wav vou left the n A Yes. 40

Q Describe to the jury the difference between those : A This is the
floor beam, and this is the floor beam, also: vou are Iooking at the end of the 2»
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floor beam now, you understand. These weire large holes bored throigh
there to adinit this i y -inch iron; they were chaiged. Instead of going
through the stick they were spread, out at the top, and of course wlien spread -
out they would' not reach as far as when' they were going through; and there
were pieces welded in--the same iroji.

Jttror How wide would that iron be One and aquarter inch square;
they would turn over the pins that connect the mai» counter braces.

Mr: Davis You mean a new piece'of iron was welded in each side A to
Ves, that is four welds in each piece, and thethread was cut off.each so as not
eo interfere with it, and not tô have. to re-thread it again, the thread was cut off.

Juror: Was there a plate across the bottom; A Yes.

Q What was the size of those bolts in djameter? A One and' a quarter
inch square iron, a 2-inch hole bored through this originally, and when the

plate if it was screved up, the-water would keep in there all the tinie, and my
idea in changing it was that there should be no water to prevent the bçam from
rotting 2o

Mr. Davis : The plate was put- on and the nut screwed on. And so as to
save the thread thev cut it off, and welded it in a new piece ? A Ves.

Juror: Those are separate rods ? A One rod is bent over this pin at the
top. I did not take time to draw it very accurately You understand, whep it
spread at the top, it shortened them and they had to be each welded in to bring
them down and get the nuts on. The gib beani ran out underneath the side-
walk, but not where the hangers were. 30

Q And that is the beam 12 by 16 ? A Ves.

(Sketch by witness marked exhibit "S".)

Mr. Davis: Is that (exhibiting model) a correct model of the bridge, of
the floor part of the bridge as it stood originally, showing the stringers under-
neath, and the floor and the way it ran diagonally ? A Yes.

(Model of Rooring of bridge, marked exhibit "T.")

Q This (indicating) being the Gorge side of the bridge, we will say, show
about where the tramline ran ? How did that planking run diagonally?
Would that be the Gorge sidè, or this ? A Well, you can make either side, it
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all depends ; if you are going out of Victoria, this (indicating) wòuld be the
Gorge side.

Q Show about where the rails ran, and mark it in lea;d pencil'? (Witness
indicates and ma'rks) somewhere about in that proportion.

Q What was the change when the W.oor was put down ? A* Those.

Q The two stringers-joists we will call them-those lying underieath
tþe tramway rails-were taken ont, and two new joists which you call stringers
were put in instead, they being io by 12 ? A Yes.

Q The old ones being 3 by 12 ? A Yes.

Q Aid the rail instead of lying on the floor as it did before, was placed
directly on top of one of those two new stringers-is that correct. A Yes.

And what about this floor then ? What effect did that have on the
floor? How was the floor changed ? A, There was 4 inches-the foor was
cut-came up to that ril 20

Q To the lower rail we will call it, continuously, from the edge of the
bridge>? A Yes,

Q And then it was cut at the lower rail ? That is, the lower rail divided
the ol part of the foor Ietween the rails? A Yes.

And they cut again at the upper rail ? A Yes.

Q That. is, instead of being, one' continuous piece of flooring, if was 3
divided into three? A Yes, exactly.

ju r: About what was the width of the fooring? A Four inches,
tat the bottom. I think the rail was a 4-ilch rail ; of course it slooped

fiib tween here somewhat to allow for the fangé of the wheel.

Mr. Davis: How did the new stringers that were put down across, lap or
about on the foor beams. - I see the old stringers ran across-pverlapped. How
was it when the new stringers were put down ? .A They abutted right on
those foor beamns, on the centre. 40

Q The stringers were 36 feet long? A That is, eachestringer would
catch three-one reached from the centre of this to the centre of this.
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Q And they broke joists in this way-two would abut on that beam, and
thenext two on this? A No. The right hand side one we would say would
abut on this one, and the left hand side would abut on this one.

IQ They would abut alternately, but no two would abut on the same
beam 7' No.

Cross-examined by Mr. Cassidy.

Q You were employed by the day, Mr. McIntosh? A 1 was.

Q You are a carpenter ? A Ves.
20

Q You had nothing to do yourself with the inspection of the floor beams,
or deciding what beams were to come out ? A No, I had not.

Q You know that there was an inspection made by a man called Cox ?
A I believe so, yes.

Q It was indicated to yout7by Mr. Wilmot, the engineer, which particular
bea.ms you should take out? A It was.

Q In putting those stringers for the rails to rest upon, were you-doing 30
that work for the Citv of Victoria, or for the tramway company ? A The
tramway company.

Q Who paid for that ? A The tramway company.

Q I notice these old joists which held up the floor-those are 3-inch
boards, are thev not ? A Three inch by 12, yes, I think so.

Q Put on end? A Yes; I am not positive; they might be 4-inches..
As far as my memory serves me, itis 3 inches. 40

Q I noticed that they pass from one floor beam to another. That is to
say-that each>of them covers only one of these panels? A Ves.
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Q This is a panel ? A Yes.

Q ~ Panel is the distance between one foor beam and another ? A Yes.

Q I notice these joists overlap each other-were they bolted to each other
at the point of overlapping in any way ? A No.

Q They were just laid that way on the beams ? A Yes.

Q Now, do you know what the purpose of substituting heavy stringers
was? A No, I can't say that I know.

Q These stringers at all events were 1o by 12? A Yes.

Q Tinbers? A Yes.

Q And they were so laid that each. of theu covered a length of two panels?
AYes.

Q And each of them rested upon three floor beams ? A Yes.
20

Q And the rail that was laid on the top of that, that was a heavier rail,
was it not ? A I could not say whether it was a heavier rail or not, as far as
the weight goes per foot, it stood xgher.

Q The old rail at all ey 4 ts that was laid 'on top of the floor was what is
commonly called a ?-A Flýt rail.

Q And these other rails are more in the natureof ordinary railway rails?
A Yes, T-rails.

Q Much stiffer ? A Y verticaly

Q When you speak of cutting this floor and leaving a space for the tram-
way rails, what you really mean is this-the whole floor was removed, and con-
demned as it stood ? It was condemned ? A It was worn out-yes.

Q And removed? A Yes.

Q And when what was done with this-I call these joists-that is correct,
isn't it ? A Yes. 40

Q No joists were removed, except such as were in the way of putting
down the new stringers ? 'A That is all.
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Q When these new stringers were put down, the new floor was nailed
down on top of the old joists, and also nailed down on top of the new stringers ?
A Ves.

Q That is to say the whole of the floor out to the stringers here was
nailed down on top of the stringers all the way along? A Ves.

Q And similarly on the other side, on the other stringer A Yes.

Q I notice that the floor here is simply laid on the top of these joists and !O

not nailed down or fastened to any of the leavy timber anywhere along here ?
A No.

Q So that the position of affairs is this-as far as that floor was concerned
it consisted of a number of joists simple of 3-inch boards placed on end across
'here, and then simply nailed down to it-it was just simply resting on the floor
beams? A Spiked down to themen, yes.

Q Spiked down to the top of the joists ? A Ves.
20

Q Do you mean that the floor was spiked on to the top of the joists ? A
Yes.

Q As to the space between the rails, the floor was laid transversely instead
of diagonally ?-that is to say-straight across ? A I am not positive.

Q At all events, whether that piece of floor was laid in between the lines
in that way, or not, the planks were similarly spiked down to the stringers ?
AYes

30
Q So that we have this, at any rate, the new position was, we had heavy

stringers, the floor spiked down to the stringer at the side here, the floor in the
centre spiked down to each stringer, and the outside floor similarly spiked down.
and then the rail would be laid on the top of the stringer, so as, I suppose, just
to appear above the level of the floor ? A Yes.

Q The purpose of that was to prevent undulation in the bridge,. in the
car passing over it, and in order to distribute the weight of the car over a-greater
area? A I don't know whether that was the purpose, or not.

40

Q You are not an engineer? A I am not a bridge engineer.

Q And you do not know then whether the floor of a bridge enters into
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the triangulation of the system ?

Court : When he says at once that he is not a bridge engineer, is it worthwhile taking up time crossing examining hii upon expert evidence.

Mr. Cassidy (to witness): About these hangers: The old form of hangergoing through the floor beam is called yoke hanger, is it not ? A No.

Q It is not ? A No.

Q Whatever you call it, at any rate the old foi in went through in the way 'o
you have stated ? A Yes.

Q Was the new plan an îimprovement in your opinion ? A It was, in
my opinion, yes.

Q Who did the blacksmithing work? A It was done in Mr. Robertson's
blacksmith shop.

Q You saw the job when it came back ? A I did, when it came back. 20

Q Was it a good job? A It appeared so on the surface of it. Q iwant to ask you another question. Where is that little sketch that the witness
made. This iron here-the hanger that originally passed through'the floor
beam, when it was readjusted von spread it ont so as to go round the floor beam ?
A Yes.

Q You did not alter this arc at the time you got the additional widening
by putting in a converse arc, like ail " S ", taking the arc round to there ?
You made another one, at least, there was another one? A Slightly, yes. 30

Q In order to get the add:tional width requi,red to pass the hanger around
the beam, another curve is made like that, converse to the first curve? There
is originally a curve, and then there is another one made round in that way
(illustrating) ? A Yes.

Q I want to ask yon the question direct, Mr. Mclntosh. Will you swear
that there were welds put as von stated in any of the converted hangers ?
A Ves.

40Q Vou will swear that ? A Yes.

Q How do you know ? A I seen the first one that was done.
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Q You did not see the work doue ? A Only one of them.

Q Will you say that entirely new iron was nlot used in those hangers ?
A -Might possibly be in one or two of themu, but it was not in the greater
number of thein.

Q I would ask you this question: Do you know these new floor beams
that were put in and these hangers that were converted in this way, they were
applied not only to the span that went down, but also to the span that is still
standipg? A Yes. ro

Q Do you know what proportion of the new beams and the new hangers
went into the span that went down ?' A I don't remember exactly.

Q At all events, they were distributed over both ? A Yes.

Q. Do you know whether any of the new stirrup irons broke? A I
don't know; I have not seen the bridge since. the accident, that is, closely.

Q Do you know whether any of the floor beams that you put in, broke ? 20
A I do not.

Q Did you consider it was a good job that you did, with the floor beams?
A As far as it went, I considered the workmanship was good.

Q Were the old floor beams painted? A Rthink on three sides. I
think they were not painted on the top.

Q Did vou paint the ones that you put in on the top ? A Yes.

30
Juror: All the work that you did, whether for the tramway or the city,

was under the supervision of the engineer, was it not ? A It might have
been, but I didn't recognize the city engineer as having anything to do with
me when I was doing the tramway company work; he may have had. I was
under conxtract from the tramway company, and no person came there to object
when I was doing the tramway company work. I didn't know of anybody
supervising it.

Q Did you have a contract with the city ? A No. I had a contract
with the tramway company for the stringers. 40

Q And what you did for the city was day work ? A Yes.
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thing?

And you mean to say the city engineer did not supervise the whole
A -I didn't recognize hiîm in the contract I had with the tramway.

Court : He does not know what arrangement there night have been
between tbe tramway company and the èity which authorised the tramway
company to come in and do the work. You see, lie would not necessarily be in
a position to know anything about that. It really makes nothing, one way or
the other, as far as this witness goes it does not affect the position at all.
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'GEORGE GORDON BIGGAR CALLED AND SWORN, EXAMINED

BY MR. MACDONEL.

FIR.ST DAY OF TRIAL.

Q What is your name? A George Gordon Biggar.

Q You live in Victoria, Mr. Biggar? A Yes, sir.
20

Q Were you on the car that met with the accident on the Poin; Ellice f
bridge in May last ? A I was.

Q What part of the êar were you standing on? A I was standing on
the hind end.

Q Whereabouts did you get on ? A On Campbell's corner.

Q Stood there all the time ? A No, sir.

Q *Were you on the car when it went on the bridge ? A Yes.

Q How far had the car got on the bridge before anything happened ? A
It got on a little way over half-about half way on the bridge.

Q Do you mean the span or the bridge itself ? On the-well, I didnt-
on the span, I mean.

Q Just come here a second. Was it the first or second span of the
bridge, coming from Victoria, that went down ? A It was the first span.

Q How many spans are there on the bridge ? A There is two.

Q One towards Victoria? A And the other toward the Gorge.
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Q Take this as the span you went on-Which is the Victoria end ? A
This (indicating).

Q And that is the road going on to Esquimalt. Here is the end of he,
span, the other end coimencing here? A Yes.

Q Where about do you think the car was on that span when it went
down ? A About here. (3) I should judge.

Q Whereabouts was the end where you were ? A Well, it would be 10
back, I think, thirty-three feet from there.

Q The hind end of the car would be about figure what). A If the car
was 33 ft. long, if the distance between that end and therewa 33 fet-

Q The distance between those two is 18.9 inches? A Yes, the
length of the car, whatever it was.

Q The front part of the car, where would it be ? A The front part of
the car would be about here-a little past post three; just about there (3). 20

Q How far past 3 would the front part of the car be ? A Well, you
might say two feet.

Q How could you identify or locate the position of the car ? A Well, I
was standing right on the hind end of the car, and I was speaking to the people
on the bridge, I had just turned here-I was speaking to Mr. James, who was
killed on. the bicycle, I said to Mr. Potts-: " Don't run over this man."

Q Who was Mr. Potts ? A The gentleman who was driving a black 30
horse.

Q The horse that was killed ? A Yes, I said: "Look out, Potts, you
might strike his bicycle."' So Mr. James on the "bike " turned round and
came right behind the car, lie was riding to the left of the car going towards
Esquimalt. .1 had just spoken to young Marati, of Seattle; I said: "The old
man rides well," and he says "ves." I was turned around that way (illus-
trating). I was standing this way, and just as I turned round I heard some-
thing break. It appea-red to be like just a piece of rotten timber, wood, or
something, and it kind of startled me for a moment, and all at once the car 40

tipped round right just about like that. Lt threw me off, and I went to catch
myself, -and it was just like something large breaking-some timber after that
first noise-it could not have been two seconds, and I said: "My God, people,
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the bridge is goue, "-just like that, and there was about 20 people all round, in
the door of the car and on the platform ; and I went to catch for something
and could not, and we struck the water. I struck ny head first, and as the
car went I could not catch ny wind, and I struck the front part of the car with
my breast, and I was hit on the back and it made an impression on my back,
and I was hit on the head and went under the water, and I didn't remember
anything till I cane to.

Q I suppose as she went down, she went a little more to the Esquinalt
side ? A She made a run so fast that I could not keep my feet. The car
would cant I should judge going-running that way-would cant two feet and
a half or more. I went to steady nyself and hadn't anything to catch on to ;
and people were standing here (indicating) and here, and right around me and
the Miss Smiths, two young ladiés. I went to catch something and just'about
then the timber broke, and I seen then the bridge was gone, and the car im-
mediately descend. The first break was.just like some timber breaking.

Q Do you know the weight of the car? A Well, I don't knQw from
my own information. only I have heard it is something like 1o ton. 20

Q Could you tell about the number of people there would be on that span
about the time it went down-a rough estimate ? A Well, I guess there was
over 100 people.

Q Were there any horses or veliicles ? A Th -êhorses.

Q Could you-give an estimate of the-weight7in round figures? A Well,
I should judge the weight would be over 20 tons something along 20 tons,
roughly estimated. 30

No Cross-Examination.

40
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FIRST DAYS' PROCEEDINGS; 20TH MAY, 1897.

EDWIN HALL WARNER CALLED AND SWORN. EXAMINED
BY Mit. DÂvIS.

Q. What is your nane? A. Edwin Hall Warne-

Q. Where do you live, Mr. Warner? A. Seattle.

Q. What is your prtofession? A. Civil engineer

Q. Row long have you been engaged in that business
A. -seventeen years.

Q. What were your qualifications to 'commence with? A.
was educated in the college of the city of New York. I am a
member of the American $ociety of Civil Engineers.

Q. l your practice at the present time a general -practice as
civil engneer, or are' you acting for any special company?
A. General practice.

Q. During your 17 years' experience have you -been acting
for any companies? A. Yen.

Q. What companies and in wbat capacity? A. In varions
capacities, from sirtply assistant to assistant chief engineer.

Q. For what company ? A.. The Seattle, Lake Shore and
Michigan Ry. Co.

Q. In the course of your practice have you had occasion to
deal, and if so to what extent, with bridges? A. I have had
occasion to desigu and construct bridges; I have done both for the
Lake Shore Rd and approved the designs, and I have constructed
about $100,000.00 worth of trusses.

Q. I believe you have examined this bridge-this span which
collapsed? A. Yes.

Q. In May, 1$96 ? A. In June, 1896.

Q. Just tell 's how you came to examine it ? A. I was
called to Victoria by Mr. Gore on the part of the Provincial govern-
ment as expert.

Q. 'For- what purpose? A. 'To ex nine the bridge and
testify betfore the coroner's jury, both of which I did.

Q. Did you when you came to Victoria examine the u'fnains
of tlins colapsed span carefully ? A. Yes.

You have, I presume, your notes of that examination with
youA Yes



6

Q. Before we go into the detail, would like to ak you a

goestion or two generally. I suppose youihv xmueo ore1w supm youhave examinied, of course,

the strain sheet.? - A. Yes.

Q. And the plans and specifications of the bridge? A. Yes..

Q. Was t bUlt originally for tramway traffel at all? A. No.

Q What was the weight tbat it wa intended to carry-that

is, the ut'ost weighti A. The specihcations called for a thousand

pounds to the runnmng foot live load,.and 600 dead.

Q. That would be 1,600 pounds altogether? A. Yes.

Q. Now, was the dead load increased subsequently tothe

specifications being made? A. Yes.

Q. It was increased, I suppose; by thô sidewalks, for instance,

that were putfnl? A. I fancy so.

.Q. At any rate the deud weight, speaking roughly, was

increased by about.how many hundre&d pîunds ? -A. About 250

pounds.

Q. I suppose these T-rails and stringers increase.it still more?

* A. Stili mnore.

Q. That would' increase it so far as the dead weight is

concerned ? A. Yes.

* Q. The factor ef safety in the bridge was orginally, 1 believe,

to 1 ? A. That is my recolleetion.

Q. And that would be'decreased by the increase ir the dead

weight? A. Yes.

Q. So that at the time of the accident what would - be the

strain which une of these panels, some 1$ feet long, would carry

with safety, supposing the bridge %vas mu as good a conidition is

when it was built,-that is, of tihe ordinary traffic over it?

W ell, it was desigued for"1,600, pounds, with a factor of safety

of 5.

Q. Taking from that some 900 pouds would ïeave '700?

A. Yes.

8o- on the 18-fot s. pan, snpposing the bridge. to be as

good as originally, would be something like 12,600 poun.d&
A. Something like that.

Q Seven hundred times 18-that is 12300. I not

speaking now of the factor of safety, bt of the nrryog capacit

in the sense thahat at is oderstood. It is unixecessary, I suppose

to ask you it the wod was in any way decaroe (r weakvned, of

couse that carrylng cap*acity rokl be decreased that mnueh

A. It would be di!uinished just so much.

r' ' , 
t 

-
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Q. Wbat ie the life of that tiraber-the average life ? A. It
shouki be good from 7 to 10 years, according to the condition.

Q. Eleven years would he beyond its life, would .it not?
A. .Prcvbably.

Q. Two of the beams, the evidence shows-two of the origi.nal beame were in there at the time this span collapsed. Coming
down to details, Mr. Warner, you have said that you exåmined thewreckage of thé bridge. Did yon find all or nearly ail of the mate-riàI of the bridge.there? A. Yes, the great majority wás found;some oi thé parts were 88nsig.

Q. We will take firat No. 7-did you find floor beam No. 7?A. I found floor beam No. 7.

Q. You might perbaps exphiin to the jnry how you are able
to identify these particular beaine, because some of them possibly
li-ke myself, are not bridge men, and would not understand other-
wise.? A. The muetho geierally is this: Between the floor
ens there are rods which vary in size for each panel. Conse-

queutly when I found a floor bean with a certain size rod rnnriner
in one direction and a different size in another, I was able to locate
it aseither nue of the correspoiiding panels each side of the centre.
For ittaie,: the rnds ii floor- beaLm No. 2 would be identical
with floor bean No. 6. but the of the raiway (?) stringers on
the floor beams sbowed the direction in-which they ran, and-the
position in which the floor beam was in the original bridge.
Hence I eould locare defiitely by: that means whether it was 6 or
2,or 3. or 5. That was the cese in ail except one beam, No. 2;
there was uothing to definitely locate that, but every other floor
beam had been located . hence thait must have been No. 2,

Q. Beinnin at 7--did you find floor beam No. 7 ? A. I
found floor beam 11. 7.

Q. What are your notes with reference to that?* A. Floor
beam No. '7 : One piece 1: by 18-; old and painted; has two
2innch by Ji verticals on either end ent, and pieces of 14and lk-inch
laterals The laterals. -1 was satisfieli, vere cut in .wrecking the
mpan ;. verticals renioved from uorth end, beai rotten in hanger.,anid lateral holes.

Q With reference to this floor beam 7. You have heard ail
the evidence given iin this-thing so fr, I believe? A. Yes.

Q. Was that beam No. 7 one o'f the original floor beams in
the bridge, orwas it mie of, those yut in duing the repairs .you
have heard meutioied? A. It was one of the original floor
beams.

Q. nd that CIwas decayed only where ? A. Rotten in the
banger aud lateral holes.

Q. To what extent was that-speaking generally, in wh*at
COnlitionwas that beam? A. It simply showed rot around the
hokes.



Q. Would you Cali it in a fairly good conàdition, or very had,
or in an excellent condition, or how would you .pecify the matter ?
A. Well, I should not call, it in a fairly good condition.

Q. Tell me .how mach rot there vas about these hanger
holes ? A.. My recollection is simply that it showed rot in the
banger holes.

Q. But out4ide it did not2 A. 'ntside it did not' show rot.

Q. We wil poa to No. 6 on that spa -wbat did you notice
about it? A. Floor beom No-. 6:l12 by 16, new; outside
hangers removed, beam wais sawnu early in two near the centre;
lilateral in south end of beam.

Q. In what condition was that beim? A. It was evidently
in good condition; I bave made no note.

Q. Yon sayit was new? A. By "new' I mean not one of
the original floor beams.

Q. I understand you to say you inean there were only two
original foor beams left in the apan ? A. Yes.

Q. And tbis was notconeof thosetwo?. A. No; it was 1 by 16.

Q. And speaking from recollection and looking at your notes,
in what condition was that1 A. 'In gnod condition, apparently.

Q Speaking about 5? A. Twelve by 16; bored for yoke
hanger. one broken yoke hanger in the north end of beam, appa-
rently sound ; south end shows dent in top, evidently caused by
post shoe.

Q. What.!A meaut hy that ? A. -The pots have a shoe, have
a wrougbt iron shoe to hold them at the panel points.

Q. Ilowever, 5 is one ot the origiual beams, or is it oue of the
beams putnby the city?

Mr. Cssidy objects to the forrm of question, whicb should be
one of the original beams, or new beams?",

Court: It you. object, probably 'Mr. Davis. will avoid putting
it. though is regards technîici evidence it is not usual to object to
leading questions; witb an expert a certain amount. of leading is
necessary.

Mr. Davis (to witlness) Was this one of the old beans, or
was it a beani pit in by soniebody else ? A. It W not otne of
the old original beantis.

Q. Just describe how the hanger was there, because this
beam. we will identiy? A. The hanger was i the north end,
there, brokei.

Q. I mean, was it nue of those that went ro mid or through ?
A. It went through.
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Q. What did you find at No. 4? A. Four: New 12 b
16, outside banigers both removed, apparently sound, 2î lateral in
the suth end.

Q. Was that one of the old beams or put in by someone else ?
A. That was not one of the original beams.

Q. No 8? A. No. 3: 01d, 12 by 18, yoke hangers both
removed, beam sheared off at hanger on the north end, section
entirely rotten except thin sheil on part sound wood; thé other
end sbows dent where brought against post shoe.when north end
gave way; bottom of beam at bouth end was chopped into, evi-
dently to get #t the hanger nuta which had been forced into the
beamo when the bridge lell; the wood at thi.s end is rotten, and
around hanger und lateral holee.

Q. Would ycu explain a littie more tully to the jury the con-
dition of'that beamo at 3 ? A. The coidition of that beam at 2 was
one of extrenie rottenness, apparently the paint on it bad held it to
gether; that is about ail thut remained. It was simply.a very thin
bheil perhaps in-iots! au inch ail round (sound)? and tihe balance
was rotten wood thatyou could shove your finger into That was
the cundition I found that heurn lu at that eid. At the other end
there was decaiy round t be hanger holes and the holes for the
lateral braces.

Q. How did the end which was sheared off, which is this end,
this8 represented No. 3-ahout"where was it sheared ? By sheared
youwrneau broken ? A. Yes.

Q. About wtrere ? A. The beam sheared off at the bangers
on the north end broke right through the hole.

Jurur: Was it rotten ? A. Oh, yes; as I say, it was com-
.pletely rotten; there was nothing else hut a shell.

Mr. Davis: How did the condition ot the beam up here com-
lare with the condition of the beam anywhere else ? A. Well,
the only.part of the bearn that was oren at all except here (indicat-
ing) was at the other -end-à and the hanger holes, and 'where the
lateral rods go through

Q. And was that end in us had a condition as this ? A. No,
the wood was rotten around the holes.

Q. You spoke I think about posts-at 3 vertical posts ? A.
Vertical posta at 3, I have a no"te here-of p three inr good con-
dition. two sawed off, one piece broken at the sway connection, this
pro bably No. -8, perhapui No. 5.

Q. So that yon think as far as you can locate it that the sway
post at 3 was broken ? A. Yes, that post nt 3.

Q. Going on to 2 to finish these floor beams, what did you
find about that? A. No. 2, 12 by 16. new, outside hangers both
remnoved, aparently sou nd, to particular marks.to place it; ail
others have been located so it must be numbered as above.



Q. That was not one of th#original foor bearns of the bridge?
A. That was not one of the original floor beams of the bridge.

Q. No. 1. what about that ? A. Floor beam No. 1. new
beam, 12 by 18, laterals ail retnoved. One end has two by half inch
verticale (?) broken under nuta on top of beam; other end has one 2
by j broken under nut on top of beam; other vertical broken 11,
tis is relating to the iron by the way.

Q. Never mind about that? ~ A. Bearn was ehopped at one
end by wreckers at the lateral rod connection, shows wet rot.

Q. Was that one of the original beams or not? A. No.

Q. Ead that beam broken in any way1? A. No, it had not.

Q. So that of all the seven floor beams of that span whieh
collapsed there were only two of the original floor beams in at the
time it fell? A. Yes.

Q. And -of those two, one, No. 7, was not broken? A. Was
not broken.

Q. The other one, No. S, Was broken at the Gorge end, wiere
Mr. Cox said he bored-is that correct? A. Yes.

Q. You have examined of course the iron work in the bridge
and also the specificatiofns of the iron work? A. Yes.

Q As well as the wood work and the specificatione for the
wood work? A. Yes.

Q. Ia that bridge, firet speaiking generdly,, which had the
greater factor of safety, the wodwlork or the ironw rk, a< it was
originally bulit, that is, when all was new! A. The iron had the
bigher factor of safety.

Q. The factor of these iron stirrups-were I believe, 11t to 1 ?
A. Yes, 11.

Q. The highest tactor of safety of the wood when new was--?
A. Four.

Q. So that, prim facie, it would he almost three times as
like-likely the woodwork would give way firatthui the ironwork?
A. Wliy, there is no doubt about that

Q. Now, iron is affected in what way by--we will say il years.
-having been in use that time-the time that the bridge was bilt,
if known to be allright in the firstplace ? A. If itwasgood iron in
the first place and leftunpainted, it will rust and seale off slightly.

Q. Yonsaw the iron on this bridge? A- Yes.

Q. ow was the iron in that at the time ofthe collapre of the
bridge, as compared with 'its originwi strength? W-as there any
appreciable diminution so far as you could tell? . A. No; there
was apparently no diminution.



Q And speaking as an expert, as one whose business it is to
bave a knowledge of the life-of iron in that connection, ought there
to be any particular diminution at the end of 11 years-any serioug
diminution ? A. No.

Q. Now, speaking as to the floor beama 3 and 7, which had
also been in there Il years, of course we know what you found, so
t won't ask you libout that, but speaking as an expert from your
knowledge, what would be the diminution, if any, in the strength of
those fdr floor bearas which had been in 11 years? A. It would
siniply be crimiual folly on the part of any engineer to allow them
to remain in.

Q. And so far as this floor beam at 3 was concerned-I do not
want appear humorous or anything of that sort, but what wourd be
the factor of safety of that ffoor beam in that condition ? A Well,
you caùn t take tue strength of rotten wood any more than you can
arrange rotten wood so that it will stand.

Q. You have bea'rd the evidence of Mr. Biggar and Mr. Peatt,
as to about where that uar .was-Mr. Biggar puts it two feet over
there-I do. not suppose a1nyone can be sure to a foot--it any rate
on the panel between^8 and 2, and the first truck it was about six
feet, Mr. Peat said, Jrom the front of the car, and there would be
20 feet from.thé front of·the car to:the back-to the rear car wheel.
It would throw the wLole of that car upon a panel betweeni 3 ind 4,
that being 18.9 in. long. Now, where I understand sorne of the
ironwork was broken. You might now give us that iron that was
broken l: A. First note. Chord beams zero to 2î and 6 to 8.
Fouud 7 beans in good condition, one broken 8 inches from the
eye, fracture was smooth, no knockin, down or reduction of area;
sharp break as if member in tension ând suddenly struck; one of.
the links, that is, two on each truss and .two on each end, making 8
in al, 7 in perfectly.good condition, other was broken as if it had
been suddenly strained in this direction and then suddenly struck;
2 to 3 and 5 to b, 8 pieces, 3 incbes by 1 inch by 18.9 in. long, o)e
bar slightly crack%*d, badly bent at one end ll inches f rom the
eye; 3 to 4 and î to i were 16 pieces in all in good condition. Then
of the web*mèmhers from A 1 and G 7, 7 pieces :. in. by. in., 25
feet, one missing; this is the condition : , One unbr<pken, two cuit,
Jour broken, the head of the missing bar is still attached to A or G
fracture indicated bredking by .bending backward and forward
À 2, G 6-ei¢ht pieces in good condition, and A Sand G 5 there were
eight pieces, 7 iu good con&dition, one bas been cut off near the bot-
tom end. B 4 aud F 4-5 pieces in good condition, two eut off at
the top end, one ne er.the centre-evidently been done in wrecking
the bridge. When I say that, I mean gathering up the wreck.
* 5 and lE 3-3 pieces with turnbuckie; condition: Two are still
fast to pins E and are cracked at--eye, in -the eye at E six are
broken and eut, some in several places, evidently done in wrecking.
1)2 and .D 6-eiht pieces 4ths, round iron, 45 ft. long with turn-
buekle,. all beat and broken, those were ¾tbs in. square or round.
])Vyou care for anything more?

Q. That represents practically all the ironwork? A. With
the exception f th.e castings.
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Q. I do not eare for tiose. You have not yet mentionedI the
hangeirs sd that will cover the Irtnwork ? A. One 11 square
yoke hanger stili on pin No. 8 one piece 1 square yoke hanger
still in Ioor beam, but broken; oDe piece 1 yoke banger badly
bent, eracked half across at the eye; one 1j yoka hanger rnissing,
four outside hanger or stirrups in) good condition, two stirriIps
missing ont of the ten hangers to be accounted for, seven are here
and three are lacking.

Q. With reference to.those. there are two--one broken and
une orucked--.and three are missing? A. Yes

Q. We will take the one broken, what is that-is that oine of
the oiginal-? A. That is one of the original hangers.

Q. And the three missing, what are they? A. One is one
of the original hangers anti wo of 'ho later-type of stirrups.

Q. These changed? A. Yes.

Q. That covers practically all the ironwork? A. That
covers all the ironwork.

Q. What a"out-that vertical poSt you spoke of a while ago--
was that broken?. A. Well, thate, i1 found one piece 8 by 8
broken at the away eonnection.

. Whicb en-I would thut be? At what I thiuik you said the
Gorge or the southern end? A. That is impossible to deternine.
I believe that is-my notesBay this is No. 8 probably.

Q. I want to ask you a general question, 14r. Warner, hefore
going into reasons for 't and that kxnd of thing, what in' vour
opinon waa it that gave way first in that bridge? Was it sorne of
thewoodwork or some of te ironwork? I am only asking gener-
ally now ? A. The woodwork.

Q. You have shown that there was some of the ironwork
which was broken How in your opiuion was. that brokeu.? A. k
may have been broken in the falling.

Q. Supposing the woodwork gives way and the bridge col-
lapses for any reason, could it go down witbhut breaking the light
iTonwork in connection with the bridge? A. No.

Q. It would be absolutely iimpos'ible? A. Why, I should
fancy so.

Q. Wold the fact of some of the ironwork being broken
necessarily be the slightest reason for supposing that that iron which
is found broken- was the part which gave way first ? A. It would
not follow-tail ; and in view of that-of the condition of that beam,
there is no qnëstion in my mind at all as to the iron being al right
and the wood not.

- Q. This .auger whIch wae found broken was at wh;e floor
beam? A Thebroken hanger is in .
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Q It being yoaropnion that it was sorbe of the woodwork
Iwhich gave way frst, I now want to ask you which portion of the
woodwork it was, and thus caused the collapse of bridge ? A. I
think it ws himoorm beam.

Q. That à oor beam No. 37 A. - That is foor beam No. 8.

Q. Which broke at the Gorge end ? A. Which broke at
the Gorge end, and the rest of the tras followed.

Q, If tha vertical post you spoke of was atS, as at the time
you thought it probably was, does it bear in any way upon it any-
thing at l to corroborate or refuteyour opinion? A. Theidea

-formed at the time was this, that the i.oor beam broke due to its
extraordinary load, and ga it lowered, the broken. part came down
like that and forced thea sho, or rather forced the post which
verticaiy above it-forced that out, you see. buckling out like, that
(illusting), bracing it and aUowing the rest of the truas tr falil.
t seems to me, after the full exanMnation I made, as if that was

the only rational conclusion I could come to- fact, it was the only
conclusion I could come to.

Q I believe'you gave evidence at the inquest in this matter;
you have stated already at that time yon did not know about this

*auger boring-? A. I had notheard of.any auger hols.

Q. Did you find anything else aw to the broken woodwork
of the bridge which corroborates the opinion you formed that it
was the frt thing which broke, that gave y ou that impression?
A. I found one of the 10 by 12 stringers broken.

Q. What stringer was that? Were you able to locate i ?
-A. lwas able to locate that on the south side ; that is to say, it
was one of the inside stringers, and it ws either 2 or 4 that broke.

Q. Jut describeit ? A. In other words, it was a stringer
extending from this foor beam.

Q. From foor. beam No. 1? A. From No.1toNo. % or
from No. 3 to No. 5. It was broken either over 4 or over 2; at the
break there is a large pitehing out.

Q. And how was the. wood spart from the. knot, was there
ànything the matter with the wood ? A One piece 19 feet long
broken acro.s tb edge of floor beam as shown by a dent, break is
YIy rae slivered, and the edge pitching out taking up two-
thirds f lb area of piece.

Q. That stringer breaking as yon have described it, either
ne or the other broke either over the oor beam 2 or 4, does that

either corroborate your view as te the breaking of the foor beam
3 beingthe-ori nal cae, or does it have the opposite effect ? A.
1heieve tat .oor beaum broke. atNo. 8 on the Gorge side, that
threw the wght on l. e stigera one cf which wa continuous from

to4, 4 oewasabttjoint,-a brokSejoint onthatfleor beam,
so that it Ieft this stringer without support at aU and the weight of



the cars simply went down through it and breaking the stringer
eithers at that point or that (indicating.

Q. That la either point 2 or 4 ? A. Breaking the stringer at
either 4 or 2-either of those breaks would take place if that floor
beam fll, In other words, it iéa matter of no importance to be
able to de&nitely locate it at 2 or 4, because it cannot be done. It
can be located in one or the other of these pJaces, however.

Q. What is the principal eaemy, if I may 60 tern it, of a
wooden beam such as this,.so far as its .lfe is concerned? A. The
Ordinary rot due to moisture.

Q. And what is the cause of tlte rot? A. Moisture-alter-
bately drying and being wet

Q. If you took a piece of wood like that and cased it up in
copper sheathing, we will say, or anything whicb was air-tight,
whatwould be lhe life ot-the wood? A. Weil, the life of the
wood would be, enclosed i anry airtight concrete, for instance, it
would last inde"itely.

Q. The effect of tbe air on it is due to moisture-that is, the
air is injurious because of the moisture derived from the air? A.-
Tes, deriving some moisture from the air.

Q. Is there anything, outside of fire, or cutting, or sonething
of that sort, which would have such a serions effct on the life of a.
piece of wood like this, -as letting water into it in any way ? A.
No, nothing that Iknow of; that is under conditions similar to those
of bridgework-except the teredo might enjoZ himself, perhaps.

Q. The evidence is there was an auger hole that size. 7 inches
deep, in the particular beam we are discussing here, and that it was
only plugged up by having some oakum poked into it with a stiek;
tbis was done in '92 What would be the effect of poking oakum
into it with: a stick- make it water tight? A. It would not keep
the water out.

Q. As a matter of fact, would it have any effect so far as
water was concerned?. A. Oh, it would retard the entrance of
water for a short time, but it would also prevent its evaporation.

Q. By 'the last, you mean this-after the water got in there,
it would be worse than if the oakum was not there ? A. Yës.

Q. That auger hole was there, as the evidence shows, for four
years within a very short time-from June, 1892, to May, 1896.
What woutd be the necessary reent of such a hole as that?

Objected to byMfr. Cassidy as leading.

Court>: The question ie quite pernissible in that form.

Mr.Davis: What would be the necessary result of such a hole
as that remaining in the way the evidence has shown for four years,
especially in a wet elimate? A. It wouldineresse the deteriora-
tion--the rottennes&



Q And when so increased, would' you mind telling the jury
to what extent, if you caubso expres it-whether a elight or great,
or immaterial or material degree? A. It would be a great
increase.

Q. You have stated already that in your opinion the. firt
thing that gave way in that bridge, and which was consequently
the cause of the bridge collapsing, was the breaking of that floor
beam. You also stated in our opinion the cause of the breaking
was its rotten cndition. Now, I ask to what in your opinion was
due the'excessively rotten condition of that floor beam ? A. Well,
I can answer that simply by the result-they bored a hole in this
end-it was badly rotten ; they bored none in the other andit.was
rotten round the lateral hole-thé hanger hole; and again, in com-
par it with unmber 7, which was put in at the same time, the

have of its condition is: Beam rotten in the banger and-
lateral hole. It follows thon that the capacity for damage of this
hole was very great.

Q. The car, of course the evidence shows, passed over floor
beam 7 that day. Yôu say, as compared with oor beam 7, this
be was very nuch more rotten--there is no question about that ?
A. Yes, absolutely rotten; fnot a question of decay-it was
absolutely rotten.

Q I You have given yoar various reasons for coming to the
concluson-of course it is ptent what your answer must be, but
still I wish to have it on e notes as to your opinion. What in
your opinion was thé etcessively retten condition nf that floor beam
duer? A. it was due to furnishing the opportunity for very rapid
decay by boring holes in the, beam and not properly-and further-
inore, not properly plugging them up.

Q. Which hole are yon referring to? A: I am referring to
the remarkably large sized anger hoie-14 inch hole-which was
tised by Mr. Cot.

Q. Put it in another way : To judge from all the evidence
you have heard and from yùr examination, so far as your opinion
goes, having seen what happened, witb reference to foor bean No.
7, if that auger hole had never been bored there, would or would
not on that particular day that foor beam have broken? A. Well,
that'is a hard question to answer-what would have happened or
what would hot.

Q. It is a natter of opinion .I am asking yon now; I amnot
asking you to swear to any fact, but your opinion, considering that
7 was the same age and was not bored, and carried the car-the
saine load, al right? A. If No. 3 bad been in the same condition
as No. 7-you wish to know whether- ?

Q. Well, give your answer that way ? A. I should say that
the car would have passed over it with safety.

Q. To what do yon attribute the difference in the condition
of the wood in floor beame No. 3 and No. 7 at the hangers? A. As



I siâ lietore It is dueto the inewmed opportnity for decay
urmhibed by thel héle whch had ben bored in the-

Q. There are the mme boles in the cther beams that there are
nthiai A. :No.

Q. Oqtsieof ths ole? A. Ye&

Q. Tie sme Ioles are n thib beaM as were i the others?
A. The oendition vwer the se in the two beau., with the ex.
ception of tuhs.

Q. Tat exception beia le one hol. made by Mr. Cox?
And is it to this. bote you atttnbute the difference in the condition
Of the0 beamu? I attribute the diferene in the condition of the
banato thathole.

Q. Theoneboredby Mr.Cox A. Yes.

Q Now, Mr. Warner, just one other tbing I want to ask you
about.- How far belowrthasrface of the ioor were the bottom
chords.-thoseu' cherds. on might explai to 'the jury what
they are? .A. Thi is known as the bottomi ehord, which is made
up of two sud somietmes hree bars.

Q. How large are the iro bar ? A. In thatcasethey are
2 by -inchup 8y, beievenldthey have an eyein each
end and a cnpieg.thtough eomi.ctilg them,sothey are very much
ik.e a bicycle chain-4be linka are very long, they are connected at

each point with t. vertical-with th. diagonal.

Q They run along there the same as parallel to the foor?
A.VYes.

Q. How far would this foar of the bridge bave to drop down
before-we wil say the. Gorge end, in case of the oor beam break-
ing ? Say that the floor dropped down; how far would that floor
bave to drop bet.eeendsf theooring-I amspeaking now as
the. Ior was originaRy before it swa ut-beore lhe ends of the
floor would est upon thse bottom chorda? A. It would drop
about 6 inehe.

Q. IfthemoorratrightaeroesaitJeatbre-as it was in the
old bridge, what would be e effect or would there be any effect
at all on this fooring d pi down on the floor beam and break-
ing as it did iin '92 and strig the bottomr eods A. It would

e a sight meamure of support; it woul& sinply act as a thin
eathing and gie a c yctain sliht mese e support

Q. Which would give way rt, suppose you went on continu-
ing the strain-4he floor or the chordé ? A. Oh, undoubtedly the

ocor.

Q. Whatever thy support mgit be, it would be greater than
what would be r ecaoe thie foor would break before the
chords?7 A.i faM. y se, ye.



. tn fact, at the parel point. I muean by that, Bay at 8, the
trengtb of these iron cords on either side of that would be as great

as the strength of the ftoor beam itself ? A.- Yes, that iwthe panel
point.

Q. The weakness of the chord would be where it was on the
point and for some little distance on either side, the strength of
those chords would support the floor or anything else that came on,
it would be at least as great.? A. Yes

Q Would that floor running across thIs way be of anmy use in
preventing a tramear or whatever load happened to be on the bridge
ehe time, from going through, in case'óf one ot those4oor beams
breakmg, if it ran right across the full length as it was, originally?
A, It mPight høve supplied that amall acces of strength necessaryto carry it across, and again it might not, knnwing nothing of the
physical conditions at the time.

Q. But it- would unquestionably add some strength ? A. It
would unquestionably add sòine strength.

Q. And the test of what thut strength would be would be
just the same as he test of what these 3-inch planks would bear ?
A. Yés.

Q. And that is to be considered from the standpoint of the
planks running diagonally that way across these stringers, and
reaching as they would, as you see them here, vgould that give
additional strength--that is,'distribute the weight ? A. Yes.

Q. So as to carry it away from the broken floor beam?
. Yes, it woujd.

Q s Supposing that floor is cut-this is one piece now (indicat-
ing).this is a second piece, aêd this a third piece. I» the case. of the
floor beam breaking, as it broke in 1896 and 1892, would there be
the sa-me chances after that floor was cut of the car getting off as it
did in 1892, asthere would be if it ran right acros? A. Certainly
not.

CRoss-Ex AxTED By MR. TàyLOR.

Q. If I understand you then, Mr. Warner, you mean to
convey this impression, by reason of that rotten floor beam at
point, this accident was caused ? A. lVes.

Q. Yon are clear about that point? A. Yes.

Q. And you ay the life of wood is from 4 to 7 years?
No, I said 7 to 10is'my impression
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Q. Put into round holes ? A. Yes;

-%

Q. You speak -of
rotten condition ? A.

this floor beam at $ being in an exceedingly
Yes.

Q. You also say that it broke just ât the
Yes.

yoke hanger

.'.: - .

Q. This beam ,had been, put in, you know, in 1885?
A. Yes.

Q. This accident happepied in 1896 ? -A. Yes.

Q. That was 11years ? A.Ys

Q. So In the ordinarycourse of tîme that beam would have
been rotten anyway'? .A. It should have ben-

Q. And it should hav

--,:Tàén.ont A.-ý-taken ont several years befote.

An. es s d ve been, rotten too, as it was rotten ?

These baneers you have spoken about, Mr. Warner, they
are square pieces of ron, aren't they ? A. Yes

Q. Bored with a large anger ? A. Yes.

Q. The result of which is, water can get down int> those
holes? A. Yes.

Q. Comparing that with the stirrup iron, the piece that is put
round outside of thie beam, whièh is the more likely to rot first,
the stirrup hangers or with yoke hangers ? A. Well, that would
depend on what tbey have underneath them ; if they have.
complete closure, say round iron, it acts as a well, why of course
the chances for rot are greater.

Q. But they have a square piece of iron put into a round
hole? A. I amrnspeaking of complète closure at the botton, so
that the water- stands round the bow ; I say in that case the chances
for rot are ituch greater than if there is a chance for the water to
go iùto the hole àDný¶ out again.

Q. Well, thàt is orly a question of degree-.whether they are
tight at the bottom or not!? A. It is a question of degree.-

Q. But as comparing them with the stirrup hangers?
A. Oh, the chances for rot are less with an outside stirrup.

Q. Than it is with the yoke hanger ? A. Yes.

Q. This was a.yoke hanger that had been in there tor 11
years? A. Yes.

Q. And the water could get down this yoke hanger into this
beam? A. Yes.



Q. That ia just where the holes were bored through and this
sequare piece of iron put in it for the yoke hanger? A. Yes.

Q That yon would infer, I take it, was the rotten part? A.
Yes, it was absolntely rotten-there is nothing else you can call it.

Q. That is the only part you looked at--just where it broke
open? A. The only part I looked at was the broken eud, and in
addition I looked at the other end.

Q. You looked-that is the far end.
sent where the yoke hangers went through

Q. And here -indicating) is where it broke?

These two holes repre.-
? A. Yes.

A. Yes.

Q. This.piece came off? A. Yes.

Q. In addition to these two yoke hangers that went through,
there were two more side rods-lateral sway braces? A. Lateral
rode.

Q. And for what purpose-where they there? A. To retain
the floor beams in their propet- position.

Q To prevent swaying? A. • Yes.

Q And they went throùgh them-took out a certain area from
this floor beum also ? A. . Yes.

Q. And allowing a certain opportunity for moisture to lie there?
A. Yes.

Q. Ai of which would accelerate the decay? A. Yes.

Q. They go through this flooi beam according to the original
design. Now, where are they faatened? A. Underneath, at the
bottom.

Q. But' are they fastened into the door beam simply, or are
they part -of the lower chord of the bridge? A. This hanger
which comes here is.the means by-which it is attached to the pin at
the lower panel point.

Q And tbey go throqgh this hanger? A. Yes,

Q. So that the wood might rgt and fall away and they be pre-
served ? That is, thiey would not fall with it-the sway braces ?
A. Oh, yee, they would: It would loosren them here; they would
fat down, having nothing at that end.

Q. Perhaps I have not made myself clear. The hangèr goes
through here (indicating) and is hnng on a pin here with a plate
underneatb, and this. beam Ils held up that way. These tie rods
corne and go through the centre ? A. I uniderstand; ewhat you
inean is by reason ohhe lateral rod coming through here, that it
might rest on the banger, and still reinain, if everything else was
rotted away? Oh; yes,. it might happen.



Q l is not lkely to, or the whole struoture woud go down1
A. Very likely, as it did.

Q. As it 1d. Wth all these opportunities for decay, you do
not Mean to tel us that this little auger hole up bre oaused thia
-beam to rot A. Reasoning by analogy, it must.

Q Wbat is the size Of these ange bols? A. I don't
remember.

4 You wre down there and measured them? A. Inch and
8/thse I think.

Q And they went down for a distance of1 6 inches ? A.
Yes, 18 inches.

Q Those were only 16 inches at the end ? A At that point
it-was outside of that hanger.

Q. Thin that is 18 inches& Then there were two holes there
oq 18 inches and they were how much diameter? i1 5-8ths? A.
1 5-8ths.

Q. And wat was the size of this hole for the lateral sway?
A. I don't remember ;: probably the largest one 1 in.

nQ. And there were two holes ? A. eaUn tell you closely
what that one was. Let me sée, To. 3, it was probably a 1-in.
hale.

Q. They had been xi there from 1885, those large holes in
which the water could get in, there was just a square pieee of iron
put in each one of those hlos and these sway roda passed through
here-the centre ? A, Yes.

Q. That bad a tendenoy to bore ont a large portion of -the
sectional area of ths wood? A. It did reduce the area.

Q. Thon you mean. to say this harmlss ittle hole of about
inehbis what causdtherot A. Ireautosaythis: Having

he same reduction of are uin the.other end of the beane, that the,
difference in the condition of the beam

. -- was entirely attributable to this littl auger hole?

M. Davis : I submit that my learned friend has no right to
interrupt the witness in the middle i an aswer.

Court: The trouble greadly arises from your ail being bunched
up together. I do not see how it ean be avoide& but then it leads
to some irregularity.

Witness return to bo aud Mr. Davis asks that the answer be
linished without interruption.)

Court There s mDe diýty in. € - he2miig exrperts;
as you are very wel aware they are very pt to stick very closely
to the partienlar ines which they have adopted. Idonotsaythey

ct'.



do so intentionally, but they do not quite answer the question,
sometimes~

Mr. Davis : But this is a question he was answering.

Court: As far as that is'concerned, the mischief is done. I
will watch it, and yôu will have an opportunity of clearing it up in
re.exaniQation. (To witness.) Do you want to add anything to
that. Mr. Warn'er? You have heard the answer read. Do you
think yourself you. want to add anything to that? . A. Yes, I
would like, my lord, to finish the remark. I wish to say this:
Here was a bean, 4nd bored at both ends ; one bas an extra hole
in it; the end in ivhich there is an extra hole*is cormpletely rotten
at the other end. Twenty feet away the beam is simply rotten
round the hole-.the lateral rod holes and the hanger holes-and it
is a natural inference then that the damage must be attributable to
the increased boring.

Court: Presupposing in other respects the condition of the
two beams was precisely identical?- A. I beg your pardon, my
lord; not two beams-the oie beami.

Court: We-, preaupposing the two ends were in other
respeets preeisely in the same condition?

Mr. Taylor (to witness): Were they? A. Must of necessity.,

Q. What did you mean a moment ago when you said it would
depend upon how rapidly it would rot the wood around those
hangers, whether they were tight at the hottom, or loose? A. I
Meant this: If you þave a hole completely throngh the wood and
then close it at the bottom, auy water that enters there will remain
ontil it has evaporated. If, however, there is a way for- the water
to go into this bole and through, théa it.does not depend upon eva-
poration foir relieving it of water. This condition you have in this
beam: you have bored an auger hole in the botton, allowing that
aceumulation of water aud decay that has ensued. Ti. -the other
case you bore holes completely through .the beam, and the decay
has not been 8o rapid.

Q. You attribute that entirely to the auger hole, do you ? A.
I see ro other reason.

Q. Let me see if I can give you one. Yau say that the plate
on the bottom of it may be tight or loose? A. Yes, sofar as hold
ing water is concerned.'

Q. 80 according to whether is tight or loose, it will roc rapidly
or slowly, is not that so? A. Yes.

Q. Did you examine these plates before the accident? A.
No I could-not; no one ever examined it.

Q. You cannot say now whether the plates that were upon this
rotten, beam 8 were tight ? A. Or loose; no,,T cannot.

Q. Either at one end or théother? No.,
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Q But you d that hadbruke -gbt at the con of the
yoke hangers? A. es.

Q. And as it turned up, you examined the ends? A. Yes.

It was not broken at t ager ol I don't kow
anything about an auger hole.

Q You donWt know wbether tbere was an auger hole there.?
A. siriply f rom the evidence submitted.

Q. But you examined it and you did noi find the-auger lole ?
A. I did not find an auger hole; it may have been there and still
my:not findit

Q. There was no break except at the yoke hnger? A. That
was aill

Q. Did you examine, how deep that rot penetrated? A.
Nothing more than shôving my hands into it

Q. Both sides? A. Yes.

Q. One side had an ager bole and the otber hadn't IHow do
you acconuxt, for the fact tatthe rot was equal? A. - Water coming
into the auger hole simply st.rts that rot and it mignt pass half a
dozen of those boles.

Q. Wouldn't that apply equally to this yoke hangerif it started
there? A.. If théeonditions werq favorable for retaining thé water.

Q. Were /Éot the conditions favoruble in that piece of square
iron in a round hole that got all the rains from '85 to '92 iii the
ordinary course of.thinS? A. My dear sir, you do not have to go
back for sevel years. You find that condition favorable for rottiug
in 4 years-some of your own new ones.

Q. This square pice. of iron had been put in this round hole
în85? A. Yes.

Q. And you say it is very apt to rot in 5 yeara-start to rot?

Q. I see. rot bas started in 4 years under similar conditions.

Q. Would't you think under or4nary circInnstances it would
begin to rot in 7 years-to'92? A. Yes.

Q. So the probability is in your opinion that it had beý un to
rot in this hanger previously to 9M2 ? A. It may have.

Q. You would think so, wouldn't you ? A. Yes, I sho1
say it may have begun; I can't say that it would.

Q. As a matter of fact, it is an opinion you,-are giving uow-
not evidence? A. It may have begm after 7 year.

At any rate, you found the rot as far in on one side as you
did on the other? A. Ye.

**
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Q And you did not find any break il this little auger hole,If there was one there ? A. I don't know, as I say, anything about
an auger hole,. because I didn't find-it. The chances are, however,'
from the coidition in which that stringer was, you could haveknocked six inches off the rotten end of it, and wiped out the auger
hôle completely; it May have done so.

Q. It would have been in a very bad state to have done that
much, would'nt it? A. You do not understand what I mean-

Q. See if I do, now. When this beam broke apart at the
7oke hanger, it was so rotten that you coulid have kiocked off six
mnches on either side, and have done away with the auger hole?A. May have done that.

Q. Did you bear Mr. Cox say that the auger hole was 8 inches
over there? A. Yes

Q. You could bardly have wiped that ont? A. No, I am
completely innocent of any auger holê.

Mr. Davi: .1 understand my learned friend to make the state-
ment that this auger hole was 8 inches from the hangers; if he made
that statement, he is in error, and it 'is my duty when I hear him
making a .wrong statement of that kind to interpose. He (Cox)
bored 7 behes deep; that is what he did say.

M. Taylor (to witness): Supposing it were 8 iuches and it
èoke at this yoke hanger, you hardly think the auger hole would
cause the rot un both sides ? A. Yes, I ean readily understaUd the
auger hole starting that rot in.a large degree and passing.other auaer
holes. I time it is very possible for water to have entered tiat
auger hole starting the rot, and the rot continue for the '20 ft. acrossthe beamn Do you see what I am gettinu at ?-that the presence of
the augerlholes witbin a short distance of this one that was bored
des flot imply that the rot must stop there, nor mast ány rot beyond
there be attributed solely to the hanger hole.

Q. I don't understand when you say this auger hole should be
more likely to produce rot than these -two large holes ? A. I say
simply frum the observed fact that at one eud you have an auger
bole and an extreme case of rottenness is the result; on the other
side you have the same conditions minus that auge.r hole and the
condition of rotteuness is not anywhere near what it showed :at the
very badly decayed end. and the natural deduction must be that it
was due to the boring of that auger hole.

YQ. You have already explained that? *A. I thought I had.

Q Does .not that assume that the conditions were precisely
slmilar at both ettds of the beam at 'the time it was put in?
A. Yes.

Q And you don't know whether or not they were ? You
have already explaiued about the question of whether these plates
were tight or not at the botto:n of this beam ? A. What do you



men by a miair coditons? 1 asme that the genral Condition s
were the mmeL

'Q. But youI say the conidiition of the plate makes a difference
whther it holdaMaeture? A« Y.&

Q. But you do not know the condition? A. But I ko
this: itisveryrarely .gib plate will holdthewater andmakea
well on any;auger hoe. It might do so. I don't know whether it
did or not in this case.

Q. Can you state now, as a matter of fact. whether or niot
there was an ager hol. at ail in that end that was rotten?
A My dear air,[ told you I know nothing about an auger hole.

Q Will you ten me something about this factor of safety of
4? What do you mean? A. I nean that the ultimate streigth
of the material is four.times that of any load that would be put on
it. In other words, if you aosme a certain lo adyou dimension.
your parts for four times that load.

.Supposethat.0tons was what you call the load of that
span, and when you say a factor of safety of 4, do you meau 40
toms eight pa safely over it?' A. It >means 40 tons is tie

MQ. Wqrd pass safely A? . Well, I should not say safey;
the ultimate trength of th at iron used was 50,J0O Ibs., I believe.
That means that a square inch of iro would sustain a Iload of a
tension bat would break at 50,000 lb.; hence, for safety, the
bridge .would not be loaded to a greater extent than one-foarth of
that, or 12,f00 lb& per square ineh ofiron.

Q To bing this clown into everyday language, have i this
correctly frota you ?- When youi speak at the factor of safety, you
mean the number oftonsthat could safely pasoverit A. Yes.

Q. You speak of a bridge with a certain earryirg capacity,
and a factor fsmiety of 4. Thait means four times that amount
might pass over iti A. Yes ; that it would break at four times
the otberamiount.

Q. Anything less would not break it? A. That is it.

Q. In your opinion what number of tons migh' have p1assed
over this-span, assuming ail the materiala to be in perfect coudition
-- the iron and the woodwork ? A. As a regular thing, you mean
to say-4hedaily useof tbe bridge?

Q. Yes? A. FIrom 1#tostol12 tomahouldsayvould
certainly be the limit.

Q. What woWld have been the limit that you think wuId
safely go over this spân ?-what would you permit, 'say, under
special cireumstances ?. A. With espeial preeautios, Ia
pas once an 18 to 20 ton load
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Q. . the you# tiak it would be nasafe to attempt it againA. ft wouild not be wise. If that were the only way of getting a20-ton load to Victoria, why matters could be arranged so that thebridge woeld -not sufifer by the pasing of that but it would
not be Wise to repeat it.

Q. How do yoiu mean, matters could be rranged ? A. Forinstance, a 204on load on four *heels would break through the
floor.

Q. You woild, you mean to say, distribute the 20'tons fairlyand evenly over the face of the floor ? A Yes, I mean to say bysch an srrangement a that. I doW not ,mean by'strengthening the
truss, but to· provide for the breaking through ef. the . floor or
something of that sort, why, if that was done, a load might be
safely passed.

Q. You have heard the witnesses here to-day as to the posi-
tion of this ear, the number of pasengers in it approximately, and
the numrber.of vehicles on -the bridge. - Do you think it was safe,
under the most favorable conditions, to permit that Joad to be on
th4tp $an-something over 20 tons, I think Mr. Yorke said.?

A ,i+ Was not.

Q. ving once permitted a load .f that weight upon the
bridge, would it be safe to repeat it again? A No, it would not
be safe to repeat it again.

Q. What do you understand by the term fatioue of iron ?
A. The fatigue of iron is this : All metals"are elastie, iron parti-
calarly so. Yu can draw out iron as you will a piece of rubber.
and it will return, althougfh not se perceptibly as a small piece of
rubber, to its original position. Thecre is, however, a point where,if yon strain it beyond, your iron will not return ; that point is
called the ela-ettc limit. When yon bave passed that elabtie limit
the contiuunly doing soi the- metal becomes what is called
fatigued.

Q. If it is once etretched beyond the elastie limit ? A. Yes.

Q What proportion does its elastie limit bear to its whole
tensile strength ? A For wrought iron, sornewhere in the neigh-
borhood of or one-balf, approximately;

Q So if the carrying capacity of the apan, we will say, was
10 toîs, au dthey were iron trusses with a. factor of safety of 4, 30
tls might pass over that'? A. Yes.

Q. Once, *. Yes..

Q Beut would not that stretch the iron beyond its elastic
limit of recovery A . It migh t or it might not.

Q. Wouldn't it have that effect from what-you have just told
me A. No; I can't say that it would.

Q. Well, if the iron could only streteh so as to carry 40 tous,
that is the tensile. strength a1f it ? A. TYes.



Q Yolî my its 6latic ilmit is one-half- that would be 20
tonsi A.Ye

Q. If you put 89 tons on it It would stretch the iron beyond
its elastic limit ? .A. Yes, that in tre-you are rigbt.

Q. So adose ofthat kind repeatedon the bridgewould have
a very 'bad efect on it--the wightaather ? A.Yes.

It woold be stretching it beyond its elastic limit?.
A. Yeso'

Q What do you say' was'the original carrying capacity of one
span of this bridge ? A. Ten to,12 tons.

Q. And that had a factor of safetyof 4,did you say? A. I
think 5 for the iron.

Q. Eow mucb did you ut it at? A. Four--no, a factor of
safety of 5 was the lowest; lm 5 to 5*. That *as for a 12-ton
load.

Q. 1 want to know, first of all, if you know what the factor of
safety called for in the specifications wau in thi*-4n this bridge ?
A-Yes.

Q. Wbat wa that first ? A. It ran, for the Iron, up as- high
as .

Q And of the wood? A. And for the wood, as high as4j.

Q. I do not suppose that any part of it4a stronger. than its
weakest fiator of safety, l it? A. No.

Q. That would be about 4, wouldn't it? . Yes.

Q. Four and a third, you said, rather? A. Yes.

Q. When you speak of that- factor of safety as 4j, orany
other factor of safety, that assumes that all the materials are first-
clas? A. That assumes that the material is of a certain grade,
yes.

Q. No inherent or latent defects in it ? A. No.

Q. This specification called in this particular structure for
weldless iron? A. Yes.

Q Was the iron originally put in welded or weldless?
A. Welded.

Q. I suppose a perfect welding is as good as weldless iron?
A.Yes:

Q. Assuming it is a perfect weld? A. Yes.

Q. if not perfec ofcoureit is not sogood? A. No.

(Ad ourned till 10 &m., May 21, 1897.)

...........................
ts
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SECOND DAY. 21ST MAY, 1897.

. WARNER CALLED. Cnoss-ExAMINÀTION BY MR. TA LOi
GONTINUED

Mr. Taylor: You just heard the last questions read, Mr.
Warner, in *hich you said & perfect weld was as good as weldless
ron, and the imperfect not so good. The eyebars in this bridge, as

originally.constructed were all welded ? A. Yes.

Q And the specifications called for iron that was not welded?

Q. So in that respect it did not conply with the specifications?.
a In that respect, it did not,

Q. You found a broken eyebar, didn't you ? A. Yes; one
broken

Q. Will you explain a little more fully what you mean by
calculating the strain sheet. There are a lot of technical terns here,
and I would like to get them into ordinary everyday English, if you
don't mind, because I understand them better that way and so do
some of the jury, perhaps ? A. Shall I use the diagran ?

Q. No, just explain? A. Simply this, that all those menbérs
are in a certain condition of strain und'r load; a strain sheet is
simply a skeleton of tbose members, and shows the amount of force
along each one under given conditions.

Q. I want you just to follow the question I am going to ask asclosely as you can, and see where I have got the correct idea. When
you calculate the strain sheet, you mean you meastire up the sizes of
all the timbers and iron used in the bridge, and then you estimate
how iuch of that material when put together will carry-how much
of a load ? That is the eeet of a calculation of a strain sheet ?
.Â That is the e€feet, although you have stated it just .the reverse;
that is practically the effect of it.

Q. And that is based on the supposition that all the material.is
first-class? A. Yes.

Q With welded material, is it possible to tell from simply lok-
ing at it, as 'to whether it is a first-class weld or not, always ?
A. Not always, the general appearance.

It. will give you some idea, but you cannot tell exactlv ?
. You can tell if the weld is a bad one.

Q. So if there ws 'a .flaw in any- part of the inaterial, that
would make a material difference in the strain sheet, in the result of
yor strain sheet ? A. It would make a material difference in the
result of putting a load on the bridge« In other words, it is weaken-

ug a member.

* ~ . X ::r
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Q. That ia hat mean To~ put ihorty, your strain shtis
calculated upon first-ctass material, and if there happens to be ome
that is not first-tlass, it makes a difference in the reliance to be placed
on the sirain sheet?. A. On the, bridge, noton the strain sheet.

Q. Thel strain sbeet ist to be . represeutation of the
bridge? .lA. If you mean thée gê when you say "straii sht"

Q. That s what Imean, I don't ant to quarrel about teri;
I simply want te understandit. Sa any material that did not cIme
up to the regular standard, would have a very seriou effect on the
uimate strain on thebridge I .It wouid have an effect by what-
ever is lacking.

Q Whatis the effect on a bridge sueh as this was designed for
-highway traffie-of permitting tramears to run over it? A. Well,
yo see mreingthe load.for'ich it was designed.

Q. That must have an injurious effect on the bridge, mustn't it ?
A. It masy, if that load ila excu~essi

Q. In other words, that would have a tendency then to-what
shalIsay ?-knock the bridge to pieces sooner than it would othîer-
wise?, A. Well it ix wew on the bridge that was uot intei<ded
foit.

Q. Therefore it would get out of repair and good order quicker
when trams are running over it than without ? A. Yes.

Q. You aIways have, I understand, a, hîgher fatctor. of safe-tv for
a railway bridge tha for an ordinaiy highway bridge? A. Yes-
no,-it is just the reverse.

Q. A lower factor of safety for the railway bridge ? A. Yes,
that la the ordinary railroad bridge possesses a lower factor of safety
thanthat'of ahigway bridge,

Q. How do yon reonile that ? I do not- quite under'tand
what you mean. yo*say that was built for a highway bridge, and.
the effect of permitting tramears to run over it.would mtake it gt 4ut
of repair even if used forrailway purposes, and yet you say you have
a lower factor ofsafety with a railway bridge? A. The explanation
of that is very simple; your traffie is fixed. In other words. vou can
assume a Ioad as far as a railway bridge is concerned, with greater
exaetness -than -you can for the highway bridge. Hence, yiu ean
dimension yòur railway bridge to a less factor of safety.

That is tosay, if I understand the e&et of what pY!m ty
now, and you can correct me if I am not right-you huild you rail-
way bridge strongeir in the first instance than for the bivway
bridge? A. No.

Q You build it weaker? A. I can make itelear to y Mr
Taylor-a little clearer to you, I think. You take, for instan- the
tension rods in' a railwa tus%.. The factor of siafetv of those under
ordinary cbrj4itions is four. We cant dimension to a factor ef safety

of four for theieason that we possess reliable data as to whs:u load
will come on the structure, and how they willcore on; wherea. with
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à highwa bridge you may have a single carriage passing over, and
you may ave a crowd of people looking into the Gorge, for instance.

Q An uncertaiw" weight? A. The uncertainty.

Q To et at this rnatter clearly-would you construct a bridge
of this kind for this Irai traffie passing over it'? A. Yon iean by
Wthis kind" that bridge?

Q. Yes? A. I would not.

Q. For the purpose for which it was used-for tram traffie.
Why ? Was it not heavy enough? A. It was not heavy enough for
trami traffic.

Q. And the fact that originally it was not heavy enough for it,
and the tram traffic put upon it you have already told us woul4 have
a tendency to shake it to pieces quicker ? A. Yes.

Q. And as a result of that, the life of the bridge .would be
sbrter? A. The life of the bridge would be shorter, or perhaps
better, it would require more repair-better inspection.

Q Shake to pieces quicker; we wont quarrel about the term I
use. Has there been any material increase in the last few years in
the weight of tramcars ? A: A very material increase. In fact, in
1890 was the beginning of the developnent of the commercial side of
electrie railways ; it has been going for the past. three or four years,
The first idea.in applying electrie power to railways was simply to
take the old etyle street cars.

Q. That was a.light car? A. That was a *ight car, put on
motors and simuply increase the weight by two or three tons, but since
1S90

Q. xcuse rne-just while you are on that-that would moake
a car about how nuch ?-putting a motor on the ordinary form of
horse car ? A. Perhaps eight or ten tons.

Q. You miean the new car? A. A car and load of eigh\t or
Lenx tons.

Q. That is to say, that the old fashioned car and motor loaded
.wuld weigh fromi eight to ten tons ? A. I should say so.

Q. And the new fas'hioned car? A. They run as high as 22
tons, the latest developrnent of street railway equipmuent, it is very
heavy-so much so that they are using 701b. o 801b. rails to carry
theml, and that is a rail fully, as large as for the ordinary railway
carrage traffic.

Q. The tendency is to increase the weight of the cars and, of
conrse-, the arnount of passengers the cars can carry ? A. Yes, n-
creasing tihe load is the general tendeney.

Q. That has occurred, you know, in this instance, do yol not
from the in.vestigation 'You have made ? They had originally light
ears? A. They had orîginally light cars, but the one that nearly

..... 1



broke through in 1892 was the same that broke through last year;
that is a larger car.

Q They put on a lwger car and that broke through in 1892 ?

Q And then a larger ear still went through? A. No. I
understand. it was the same car that went through in 1892 and 1896.

Q. That is wht t understand you to anwer. At any rate, the
effeet of this extra heavy car was to break the bridge t A. Yes.

Q I woùld. like to put this as straight as I ucan in order to get
a short aùd coneise answer. Do yon think that bridge, s construeled
there leavring oiit tfr the moment the question of repair-was it a
safe bridge to carry the weight that was on it this day ? A. No; it
was not designed for that traffie.

Q. And it wa nlot safe for tha trffec? A. Weil, the fact that
for 7 or 8 years it carried that traffie -

Q Did it carry that traffie? A. I cant ay that it'carried
that traffle safely.

Q Tou know, as a resuit of yout. nvestigation, that this waa
publie holiday and crowds of people wete cros over for
review '? À. Yes.

Q. It was an unusually heavy load? Yes.

Q Just for a moment. to go back to what you testified to
before: without going into.your technical figures, what was the safe
carrying capacity of the span,? how mueh weight would you put on
it safely andearry 1t overi A. We1, the dimensions show that the
web members would have carried 20 tons with a factor of safety
of 2.

Q. Does that include the floor A. À weigbt 'of 20 tons.

Q. That would be one-hal 0f othe entire weight that co d be
put upon it? A. Yes.

Q Forty tons, then, would break it down ? A. Twe-nty tons
broke it down.

QTwenty tons with a factor of safety of 2 ineans 40 tons
would be the breaking strain? A. Yes.

Q. if al the. materials were new and firstelass? À. YA.

Q That weight of 20 tons would stretch the iron to its astie
limit? À. Probably.

. What would be the effect of stretehing to that limit once all
the 20 tons; and then putting another weight of 20 tons on after
that? À. The effect of it would be simply an additional dange to
the bridge, and perhaps its destruction.

e . In hr nwords after the ron ho A once been stretche toi
elosish1e h1Mit, it ýis -nt %n RnMc>d? A. No.
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Q The factor of safety is reduced? A. That is ttue.

Q And the 'oftener you put on that weight the weaker the
iron becomes? A. That is true. Yes.

Q. So the factor of safety is ebrnstantly getting less according to
how you are constantly stretchibg it up to its elastic limit or not, in
the bridge ? A. .Yes.

Q. Then the number of times that this weight had been. put
upon it would keep continuously reducing its strength ? Yes.

Q. That factor of safety, calculated the way you say, is based
on the asumption that the weight is evenly distributed over the
floor of the brdge? A. Part of it.

Q. This. car track, as the result of your investigation, you
found to be about two-thirds to one side? The car track was not in
the centre, of the bridge? A. It was not in the centre-of the bridge.

It ws &bout t worthirds of the way on one side ? A. Yes.

Q. The Gorge side ? A. Yes.

Q. I understand that it broke.on the Gorge side? A. It broke
on the Gorge side.

Q. It was éven closer than that, if I remember. 'The near car
rail was about a foot from the chords, or two feet. Give us first the
rail neareat: to the Gorge? A. Well, I cain measure it in a moment.
My. recollection is that- it is 5, ft. and 4 in to the centre of the track,
that was broad gauge-4 ft. 8j. That would make itË about 2 ft. It
is about 2 ft. from the centre of the trucks; that is my recollection
of it. I would prefer to ineasure it there, if you don't mind.

Q How far was the nearest rail of the track from the hanger ?
A. It is about 2.6 in. from the hanger.

Q. That is the rail nearest the Gorge? A. That is the rail
nearest the Gôrge. This is the rail on the plat.

Q. You might measure then, Mr. Warner, whilè you are there.
Take the outér rail of the carand measure over the other hanger ?
A. That would be about 11 or 12 feet. The total distance between
the two is 20 feet; that is a little over 2 feet. It. would be approxi-
mately 13 feet from that rail.

Q. The bridge, .of course, was supported on each side at the
hanger-tbat is, the floor ? A. -Ys.

Q. And that sidewalk running out there was also supported by
the hangers ? A. Yes.

Q. Waa that in the original specifications ? A I believe not.
I haveheard thathe-

Q. You have seen the specifications ? A Well, I do not recol-
leet that point.
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Q. That* wa.s an addition; putting the sidewalk
wards. That would be an increase of weight added
whatever the sidewalk weighed ? A. Yes.

there affer,
to the tloor,

Q. On each side; and that would reduce the carrying capacity
by just that nuehA? A Teês.

Q. I think you calculated before, Mr. Warner, if you remem-
ber what that sidewalk weighed. Just see by your notes, if you did?
A. I think not. My recollection is I calculated the total dead
weight, 850 feet.

Q. How much would that be in tons on the whole span?
A. It is an increase of about 507. in the dead Iload -. ver what tie
original speciications callçd for.

Q. You said a 20-ton car was based on this assimption-4 1hat
the floor weighed 5 tons. That is, the floor without those sidewaLks
on each side there ? A. Yes.

Q. And you calculated the'whole thing at 45 and subtracted 5
for the weight of the floor and then put on a 29-ton car, and you had
a factor of safety of 2? That is, it would take 40 tons to break it
down ? A. Yes.

Q. And thatefactorof safety was still further reduced by the
addition of this floor? ln other words, so .much weiglht added to this
floor? A. LYes, any addition of that sort.

Q. Just see if you calculated what those weighed-the addition
of sidewalks? A. I am satisied that I did not. I have ite

memorandum of it.

Q. Do you. remember ow wide they'were.? A. I believe thev
are 5 feet.

Q. That would he another space of 10 feet added to the width
of the floor ? A. I have the total dead weight of the span. '40-
that includes the sidewalks.

Q. What.does that.amoun ,in ton.s?, A. That is 1.750 ls.

Q. That is 7j tons, isn't it ?--a little over.? A. Yes.

Q. Instead of being 5 tons weight, there were 7j tons total lead
weight of the floor ? A. The total dead weight of the span was 7
tons approximately to the panel.

Q. Then istead of subtracting 5 as 45, you subtract 7U
A.You amistake me; this 7j tons is not the weight of the sidewalk
alone.

Q. And the floor also ? A. It is the weight of. the sj walk
and the entire floor systern, iinelding floor beams, string rs and
evýerything.,

Q. Thatis what I understand; but you subtract
then frm the 45 A. FroMr what 45?

that .uaount
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Q You spoke of a 20-ton car on that, having a factor of safety
of 2; that-is, it would take 40 tons to break it down ? A. Yes.

SQ. Aid I understood you to arrive at that calculation by saying
that the fioor weighed 5 tons ; that you proceeded on that assump-
tion, making 45 tons in al] would be supported by the truss before it
would break.? A. I cannot say where you got your idea of 5 tons.
My calculations were based on that 7j tons of dead weight, and then
in addition a car of various weights.-cars of -different weights; this
20 ton car is in addition to the dead weight of the bridge.

Q. Then a team of horses or several teains of horses upon that,
with soine vehicl's and passengers, would greatly increase the danger,
then, of collapse ? A. Yes.

Q. You know, a.s a result of tour investigation, that there were
some teauls on there ? A. Yes.

Q. You attende4i. at the inquest and heard a greater portion of
the evidence adduéed, and the weight was put at an estimate there of
22 tons; there was one two-seated vehicle with four passengers, and
atinother'vehicle with five passengers, each with a horse ?. A. I don't
remnember it, but undonbtelIy you are right.

Q. That would make it over 22 tons, incluiding the ear at 20,
and the w9 ight of the passengers was calculated on souïe table of
weights you producedl? A. I suppose so.

Q Either.you or another expert, and. yon agreed with it or did
not disagree with it, and you do not now say that a weight -of 22
tins would be such a weight that the bridge could not stand?
A. Why, certainly, it showsthat it fell.

Q. According to your calculation, if the inaterial were gond it
could not have stood the weight? A. 'I would be highly hazardous
to attempt to put s weight of that sort on it.

Q. 'So, as a matter of fact, it was too much weight tor a design
of that sort anyhow ? A. Undoubtedly.

Q. Tell me about these top chords-were they continuous or
jointed .No, they were jointed between each two of the uprights.

Q. They butted over.? A. Yes

Q. Is that as good a- design as a continuous bar ? A. No, not
as good.

Q. It is more apt -to give way-? A. Perhaps, yes.

Q. In other -words, these ends abutted on to one another, and
upon any disarrangement of the structure they will either go out or
cone in ? A. Yes.

Q. And if they did, the whole structure would go? A. Yes-

Q They are held by compression? A. Yes.

Q And the lower chords by tension? , A. Nevertheless, that
s the conventiotnal form of building those highway bridges.
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Mr. Taylor:
the hanger? .A.

That would increase the strain very materially on.
Just to that extent, yes.

-Q. And this sanger is subjected to shock when these loads move
over it? A. It is subject to the ordinary shock of a wheelV passing
on a rail; yes, there is a shock at the joints.

Q That bas a tendency to weaken the iron in time? A.
is sufficiently great, yes.

Q. Would not the shoek of a load snuch as this, away b
the capacity of the truss, have a tendeney to shoek it? A. O

Q. Here is a question that has oecurred to me: I would1
have you explain it. You have seen these cars go along the s
They go hunping and bobbing up and down? A. Yes

If it

eyond
h, yes.

likt to
treet ?

Q Supposing they bobbed up a little-would not that iinrease
the shock ? A. . Clearly.

Q Aid that .going up in that way a .little-bumping and bob-
bing-would doüble it? A. Not double it,it would increase it.

Q Very materially ? A. Yes.

Q. When did you first nd out ab'out this fluor beai ibeing
bored? A. Yesterday, for the first time I heard it in evidence.

Q, You originally came over to-Victoria out of curiosity to see
this bridge, I understand? A. No.

Q. Or as an engineer? A. I went to Victoria on buiness,
leaving Seattle the night that the accident happened; I went out to
look at the wreek, simply, as thousands of others had done.

Q. Not a railway bridge? A No.

Q. Will you calculate for me the difference in strain of those
hangers by reason of the fact that the car was away on the side of
thebridge? A. Would not thi answer the same purpose? I have
the regulation 12 ton car, with a 6 ft. wheel base.

Q Ii it a very elaborate thing to do to calculate that ? A. It
is not elàaiborate; the total weight is 20,000 lbs, it is simply a
question of proportion; of the 20,006-.Ib, 14,660 lbs., or approxr-
imately two-thirds, go to thehanger nearest it-approximately.

Q. So, of the total weight there waa about two-thirds of it
restig--? A. On one hanger,

Q. Nearest the ar rail? Q. Yes.

Q.N Now, this 20 tons you spoke about was fnot based on an
assumption of that kind, was it ? It was based upon a fairly even
distribution overX? A. No, it was based on that assrmption.

Court (to witness): .Based on the existing state of things?
A. Based on the existing state of thing* For instance, there are
two trusses in there; suppose one ek es two-thirds and .theotier
one-third, on the 20-ton basis I calculated the- 8train' on the truss.
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Q. At any- rate, being an engineer, I suppose your attention was

particulrily attracted to it, and you examined it particularly?
A. Ye..

Q. Subsequently you had a talk with the governrent officials
and you exanined. it for them? A. Yes, for thema.

Q. In conjunction with Mr. Lockwood, who is an engineer on
behalf.of the Bridge o.? A. He was at the time.

Q. You went down specifically then to examine for the purpose
of ascertaining the cause of the accident? A. For the governnent.

Q. You took your notebook with you ? A. Yes.

Q. And how long a time did you spend there? A. To the best
of my recollection, 3 days.

Q. And taking notes of all the points you saw? A. Yes.

Q. And the resuIts of that investigation you put down in a
note-book î A. Yes. You are referring to this note-book ? These
are a copy.

Q. You put then in a note-book ? A. Yes.

Q. And what yon testified to yesterday you practically read out
of that note-book? A. Certainly. That is a memorandum made at
the time.

Q. You citically, examined every bean and piece of iron,
measured them up, and examined their condition ? A. Yest

Q. And. the result of your investigation was embodied in a book
of many pages, roughly ? A. The pagés cover-7 or 8 pages.

Q. Pretty elaborate dotes? A. They were read yesterday;
they are complete.

Q. As a result. They are complete? A. They are a complete
accouit of the wreckage as we found it.

Q. And' you of course took that account for the purpose of
testifying? A. Yes.

Q At the inquest, on behalf of the government? A. Yes.

Q And you did testify there? A. Yes.

Q And you assigned the cause of the break in the bridge at
that tire ? A. Yes.

Q, Do you remember what it was you assigned, then'? A. To
the breaking of the floor beaim 1 assigned the cause of the disaster -
to the! extreme rottenness of the floor beam.

Q. It is only fair to read you this-p. 248 of your testimony
before the coroner : " There is a broken hanger which Mr. Lockwood
said Ie was not able to locate definitely, but it was somewhere in the
midle.- off the bridge. That broken strincer which may have come
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of precedence iii brieng that. is whether the hanger ori. goo 1'unltwaf

faied--whether the eotten part of the floor beam of the old floor

gave way, or- wheth1ý the àtiger gave~ way, it i8. impoSSible to

determiae no .e A Ptrd-n me; thé. question a*ked me was to

determine which filed trat the hanger, the stringer, or the floor

be I had previously testißfed that the extreme rottenness of the

floor beam wa4, the cause ; tbat I Could not, nor did I believe anyoine

equid, assign theu'rder of precedence of the breaking of anyone of

those three partÉ..

Q. That is what I uderstood. h is diticult to ai-4gn the order

ofprecedence? A Clearly impossible.

Q As a matter of fact, even in the best condition they could

lot ha.ve'supported this loadI of 22 tons that was onit.? Lbeieve ako

yon tesified Vo this effect (see if I have the substace of your evidence):

That the truth of the iatter was, there had been almolutely no mi n-

tenance of the bridge, and that that was really the cause of it? It had

been allowed to get into a shockingly bad condition of repair, and now

the heavy weights. put apon it were t/ecause 0f the disaster? A. t

put it even st/ronger th an thie, if I recollect righlt.' 1 said .it w&rs ie.

noist crininal piece of naintenance I had ever heard of.

Q. In other words, no maintenance A. The bridge was not

mnaintained.

So we start on that assumption that the bridge was not

strong enough for tramway traffie? A. I agree with you.

Q Not heavy enough to carry the weight.' In the next place,

it was not maifltained at all and got into a bad state >f-repir; aid it

Was absolutély itàpossible to hold up this load? A. They had even

gone further thaà that.

See if that is right? A. Yes. I was ;going to say they

had even gone further than that; they had split up the floor into

three pieces after the accident of 1892, and still former lessenel e

chbanie of its carrying any load that might come on it.

Q. DId you say at the inqest that bad any effect upon it?

A. What ?

Q Splitting up tbis floor ? A. Th" question was not raised,

if I renemiber ; that is my reco1le6tion.

We lI will see whether it was.

Court. Of course, it is for yon Vo say but ow i th

material ? You might ask him now. Put it to him ow, how far it

affects bis opinion.

Mr. Taylor kto witness): How far is tht ruaterid Vo Llie St8

bility of the structure i fere is what you said ShaH I ;unwer

your questinu first ?

Wei, I 1wil ak you P 252: "You don't like t1a ttyle

of hrid e with the floors like that do you A. There is n bjec-
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tion to it Q. Ian't it more liable to accident by having a ffor like
that than another breige would be ? A. I think not, providing vou
take care in your connection. The stability of- ail truss bridges, in
fact, môst structures, depends upon the proper adjustment of its
various memnbers." A. Pardon nie; that renark applies to the style
of the floor beams being suspended f rom hangers as this one was.

Q. Was that what was asked you ? A. Yes; that was the
subject upder discussion.

Q. Now, was it-the floor was- the question ? A. My dear
sir, if you read those questions. -

Q. What material difference does it make ? In my opinion it
made .this difference: in 1892 it was probably that extra strength
given by the plank flooring which carried the car out of danger.

Q. You do not think that the bridge was in any bettér con-
dition in 1892 than it was in 1896? A. It was undoubtely in better
condition. That is, I should fancy it was; siimply la questi>n ,of age.

Q. That truss gains nothing of any strength or integrity by the
floor ? A. The truss itself doe, not.

Q. The floor is simply a weight that the truss has to carry ?
A. Yes.

Q. So that the floor might break down on one side and fall
away like a trap dloor fron the. truss, or it might break on both sides
and thetruss.remain intact? A. If you break it in the middle as
you did in two places, it would fall like that. If it was continuous,
as it was in the tirst place, and the floor broke as it. did, it would fail
on to the chord bars; the floor-the planking, would rest on the
chord bar like that, and -

Q. Howfar id the planking go over these chord bars ? A. I
dofi't renenber; it went over the chord bars, I believe.

Q. Do you know whether it went over at all ? A. Yes, I
know Lhati it did go over.

Q. Are you quite sure? A. I am positive in this way-that
n exanuining the present span. the duplicate sptn of that-

Q. It is only fair to say to you you never saw it .? A. The
original, no. I an speaking frorm the duplicate span.

Q, Here is a representation of it as originally laid, (exhibit T).
Were these particularly heavy beamus there, on it, the original.design ?
A. I understand that beam is. to represent the position of the
chordt bar.

There is no such beam as that on the original foor as laid?

Q Then that is not accurate, and the same thing applies to this
A. Certainly, you may say

-I
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There is no snch

Witness: To show-

Mr. Taylor (to witness) Suppose these are joists ? A. Stringers

-joists, yes.

Q. Yon put another joist in here-that i4 what ?.-8 by 10?

A. Ten by 12.

Q. Totwry the car rail? A. Yes.

Q. would have a tendency pf itself to. stiffen the foor ?-

putting that in.? A. It woùld a4d a certain element of strength, not

to the floor system, but to the strnger itself.

Q. That would be a certain element of safety in carrying cars.

A. Yes.

it would hâve the e1ect of distributing the weight over a

greater space ? A. Yes.

Q On the same principle that you walk on the ;idewalk-your

weight is not on the board that you step on, but distributed bV. reason

of the scantling underneath-over a large area? A. es.

Q.~~~~~~~~~ ~ ~ ~ su h totfptigtbs u~ zirue~L
Q And the- effeet*0of putting these Il

port the car, would have .the same effect of distributng the. weight.

A Over the three oflor beatis.

Q. That ud be minimising the danger to the cars, or rather,

reduce-probablY that is the better teri. Itwould istributt the

weight better over the whole floor systerm? A. Yes.

Q. Of that panel ? A. Yes.,

Q We take these boards and spike them into the stringer?

A. Yes.

Q low is that going to alter it? A. When you remove sup-

port from the stringer you have removed -the strength due to the

planking which is conneëted with the stringer.

Q What support did the planking give it? A. The plaâking

originally gave a support by reason of its contmuouSness f romi one

side to the other.

Q. The planking is supported by joists? A. Yes.

Q. The joists are supported by the floor beam ? A. Y

Q. So that yon come down to the floor beam ? A. Yv-

Q. Then by puttIng these long stritgen through, you distri bute

the weight over those flour beans? A. tes.

Q More than it would have been before ?
- than before.

.,- \.Q. *»***..Q.<***'*~****."***** 
. .. ~,...

In othet words, t 4 shold not be- wood
piece of woodl on the door.

o : I was aot put in for that purpose.
the relativeposition of the iron and the

z
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Q Why not? A. For the reason that these same stringers or'
joists wore continuous, were here before, and you have got the same
measare.of support for yôur floor s6' long as the floor beains are in
place, fr9w the small joists that you

Q Have the samne measure of support? A. Yes, so long as the
oists were broken joints; for instance, they extended from one to
tbe other 'in that way, and supported the floor.

Q. But they would not be as sttiff and give the same stability to
joists 3 by 12 as to timber 10 by 12? A. No, of course not.

Q. Were these joists what you coinmonly call broken joi'nted ?
A They were built, I presume as thalt is.

Q That is tosay, thesejoists are all'jointed ? A. All break on
the saine four bean.

Q.And what 1 understand you to titnb rknjitdi
that if you run one piece fron this floor beam, to here, you put a joint
there and, run your next stringer ? A. The l8ft. stringer here on
one side, and

Q. Yon mean by broken jointed that these stringers all break
on the same beam ? A. Break on alternate beats.

Q.' And that has an elemént of strength in it as compared with
.breaking on the same bearn ? A. Yes.

Q. It distributes the weight more evenly-? A. Yes.

Q. And the old floor joists all. broke on the sanie beam ? A. So
lnderstand, yes.

Q. .And the new stringers did not ? A Did not

Q. They were quite a proper thing-to put in there ? A. Yes,
quite a proper thing to put in there; yes.

Q. Could they have' made that floor any other way and put
those in ? A. Yes; they night havé-aput those stringers in and
replaced- the floor exactly as it was before and had the rail on top.

Q. Raised it up ? A. Yes; it might have been inconvenient,
but that was one metbod of doing it.

Q. They would have, to have a flat rail then ? A. They might
have put on a T-rail ;. they could have put in any form of T-rail'; it
woulti projeet above the surface--it might be-slightly inconvenient to
people going by.

Q Would not this T-rail they put in also have an efect .of
ifrning it ? A. A T-rail would stiffen a structure.

Q And by that you mean distribute the weight? A. Yes,
aka a stronger support-that cOvers it.

Q. In order to prevent any swaying motion of these f oor beans
they Lad some diagonal rods underneath? A. Yes.
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Q You tai them- ? A. L teral roda.

Q Were these the things we referred to as diagonal brac<
A. I think 80.

Q. That means the same thing? A Must be.

Q. They were put there to prevent any later3l swaying of the
floor ? A. Yes.

Q. And these holes represent, in this model here, where they go
through ? A. Yes.

(Referring to exhibit ")

Q. And they are attached to the lower chord of the brid$e
A. The sway braces? No, they are attached to the floor beain.

Q. Wouldn't it be a much better way to attach themi to the
ehörd ? A. It might be. That is a conventional method o sway-
bracing; it has been in use for a great many years.

Q. You would riot put them ,that way, though, in a bridge to
carry tramcars? A. I can hardly say what I would do; I can
simply say it is an ordinary conventional form; there is a better
form, it is true.

Q. What is the better form ? A. There is a variety of
Shall I go into-? -

Q. *ttst shortly? A. -You can fasten theim to the chord, if
you wish-io the pin connection.

Q. And that would have a better effect than . fastening them
into the boor beams simply-? A. Yes.

Q So that part of the.design could be impro'"d on? A. Yes.

Q. Materially? A. Yes

Q. These digonal sway braces were part of the triangultion
of the bridge-of the trnss ? A. No.

Q. They were not.? What were you referring to just now,
when you said "«Yes, Mr. Cassidy?" (Witness having. caught at
undertone remark by Mr. Cassidy.) A. Mr. Cassi4v asked if it
were not better they should he part of the truss, and I said certainlly
that would be the better way. Now,.I say, this is not part of the
truss. I presume yoi were referring to the present structure.

Q. They are not part pf the triangulation? A. Thev are not
part of the triangulation of the truss.

Q. Explain -what you mean by triangulation? A. I don't
know what you nmean by triangulation. I m trying to answer your
questions as you mean themi. What you mean 's the laterals. Are
theypart of the truss ?-they are not part of the truss.

Q Was it part of the scheme-of the original design of the tri-
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angulMiion--though you don't know what that means ? A. No; I
don't know what it means in connection with the bridge at al.

Q. Well, that is one for you-I don't either. (rdinarily, in
buildir)g these bridges, vou have the material that'goes in them in-
spected? A. Yes.

Q How is that usually done ? A. In large struetures the
miterial is inspected at the workm; there are engineers who make a
businessof doing that.

Q. That is, ordinarily, the contractor who has to get the iron-
to furnish it-he has a man at -the works where the iron -is turned
outr A. If.it is large enough t<rdo it-yes.

Q. - How isit in cases of snialeir contracts ? A. Take it on
trust,-the .name of the manufacturer; the Albion lroi Works, for
instance, was suppostd to be all right.

Q. You know, as the'reult of hearing the testimony and your
investigation in this casie, that is what w'as done bere ? A. Yes.

Q. The iiaterial was not inspected; it was taken on trust origi-
nally ; so. if there were any defects in it, it miight have got in without
notice ? .A. Yes. any se-rious defects would be noticed by the bridge
inspecto(r for the governnent, provided they had an inspector.

Q. Hi-re is another question that was asked. I think it was by
the coroner. oi· else by Mr. Cassidy, p. 26 :-" Now, Mr. Wilson asked
you a series of questions directed to the point, of the first meinber
that gave way, and he aqked you. whether it was likely that it occur-
red, the ear passing frorn Victoria to Esquinmalt. that it would have
reached point s, and point 3 given way before the hanger at point 5
gave way from a tension strain, and the car passing over it, or. con-
sidering what you have said'already as tô the absence of diminution
of diameter, whether it occurred fron a sudden shock ? A. It is
inpossible to have een suddenly broken that is the opinion I

wit;iess: That iq tndotbtedily correct.

Q And you noticéed enough to -indicate that ithad been pulied
apart rurm a henvy tengio-n striiin, or in-other word., that it haci been

*insuliÉcient for the pnrpoee of suqÏt.ining the strain whieh. went ovet'
it at 'ýthat peiînt 5) ?7'-t which you answerud Ye." A. Yes, I see
no0 rëm.oný to change any of thnt,.

A.Y<> still adhere to thât 1A. Ye-4.

.So6 it wae insufficient to, support the ýWe ight that wvent over
it àt ? A_.Ys

Q. lt* wouli1 have given wAy, anyway ? I will read yuan-
ôbthetr Euesti<rn or two-a queý>tiozi 1 askod 4)u on the Saine page:

wf %ere askel -whetier- yauaàpproved of the -desi gn of thisbrde
an'd au said "'for -S oieproeys nd ,then you detined that

t* he a, bighwty- bridge. \do v4ou appr6veofhediufra
ri1w.iv bridge? >A. For what traàfie Q. 'alin this train lne a

1à
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railway ? A. For limited loada, yes; for limited loads I wouild rm-
sider it safe. Q And yoQ place that limit at 10 tons ? A. Y1s:
Q. And for anything over that, you would not approve of the design
for a railway line? A. I would not deemn it wise to .xtan anythint

Q. You know perfectly well what I mean--would you ap-
prove of the design for a railroad bridge carryig a; load of ten ton
cars or over ? A. I say that the limit would be- 10 tons, if you were

- Q. Then may I take it that you would pot 'pprove of it asa
railway bridge? A. If I were building a railway bridge, I would
adopt another type." Q. 'You put it at 10 tons? A. I expect that
evidence is correct.; that is my opinion.

Q. Thât 10 tons was the safe limit? A. Yes.

- Q. And you say yourself yoiu know, as the result of your inves-
tigation, they have 20 or 22 t6ns ? A. Yes.

Q. So by no possibility could that strueture have sustained-?
A. It did .sustàin it once, and it passed1 over. barely by the skin of
the teeth, and the second time that the saine application of that
heavy load was made it failed.

Q. The appliction of the first heavy load you speak of, it
would fnot be able to stand that again? A. It evidently did not
stand it agains

Q. But the application of that heavy load of .about twice as
much as could be safely put on it rendered that structure .umch
weaker? A.. It failed under the load.

* Q. But while it could stand one load, it could not stand two?
A. I wili not limit it to two; it would.not be wise to impose that
load often.

Q. But the more often it.was imposed, the weaker the strueture
would get? A. Yes; it was-imposed once, and it stood it in a wav
the second time it failed.

REDNREeT BT MR. DAVIS.

Q. Mly learned friend read to you a few lines from your evidlence
at the inquest. and he stopped very short. I at going to read the
next three lines (p. 248): " There is no question at all, that simiply
from viewing the condition of the timuber it is natural tosuppose
that the floor beam at No. 3, if the car were ablê to get any weiht
on it, would break." That is correct? Witness: That is coirrct.

Q. Coming to the.capacity of the bridge, which ny learnl, it
seems to me, has left not quite as clear as it might have been rin-

11ly. The capacity of that bridge, as bnilt, was 1,000 lbs. per jntal

foot of live weightA? A.Yes.

Q. And what is meant .by that is that it is built .to «Vry a
thousand pounds per lineal foot, entirely apart from the str:ubUre
itself, of dead weight? A. That is what it means, exactly.

Q. And the only addition to the dead weight, after the ricip
was first designed, were the sidewalks? A. Yes.



Q. And the weight of the sidewalks is this 243 lbs. you put in ?
A. Yes.

Q. That is the original dead weight-600 Ibs. ? A. Yes.

.So the mlamount to be dedncted from the figures a.
Sshown by the original strain sheet would be this 243 lb. per lineal
foot? A. Yes.

Q The factor of safety of the bridge as designe'd was 5?
A: Yes.

Q. The length of that panel is something over 18 feet?
A. Eighteen feet 9 inchesi

Q. That would, roughly speaking, be 19,000 lbs of the regular
weight less 19 times 240 for the extra weight of the sidewalks, which
is about 4,700 lbs.; that would leave about 15,000 lbs. to the panel,
with a factor of safety of 5, would .e 75,000 lbs.? A. Yes.

Q. That ..is naking all allowances for dead weight that are to
be nade ? A. Yes.

Q, When you were speaking of the factor of safety of 2, you
arrived at that 2, did you nt--

O1jected to by Mir. Taylor, as leading.

Mr. Davis (to witnéss): How did you arrive at the factor of
safety of 2 ? A. By taking the calculated weight, and calculating
the strain, and eomparing it with the area of the different members.

Q.- In making that calculation where do you place the train line
on the bridge? As it is shown.

Q. That is what reduce, in other words, the factor of safety to
2? A. Yes.

Q. It was 5, but when you reduce it to 2, you are making allow-
ance for double the weight or more being on, on âccount of that tram
line beîng so near one end'? A. Yes.

Q. In what part of the bridge would it reduce that factor of
safety to 2? Would it be in the floor or the truss? A. It would
be ii the trus-in the web members; that is, the diagonals.

Q. Look at. your notes with reference to - that, Mr. Warner?
A.. Factor of safety of 2 in the floor beam ;." the web nenbers-I
was mistaken when I said that.

So the reduction of the factor of safety m this account-this re-
duction would he in the floor beams and n>t in the hangers? A. Yes.

What is it under thosesame circumstances in the hangers ?
Sve and three-fourths.

Q. So that with the load as it was-with the tramline.as it was,
the fac(tor of safety of the floor beams would be 2, but the factor of
safety of the hangers would be 5 ? A. Five and three-fourths, yes.
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Q.{nder t,~ iinntne>wbiQl wOuidý in all huu>an 1ro.
baUiy brçak -fivst ? A. Th w1 ks .aré

.Whicb i8 the floor beujuu0? A

Q.And that iý amuinfr that the floor bearntq are M they vr(
* origi"iIIlY? A Ye&i M~U miig ýgol ngt>erial fib>re i»tràin, i,350 fîor

Douglds tir.

Q.If the. flo<xýr Wems haqe b'een dotayed, by weakening ymur
factor of .4afety, it wouùld he reduced' « muhmre .ZItwud

he reduced oiLcmre
Q.Woutd the iron be subjeet toteiaedteratini tle

salue timè. *f.. A. No.

Q Yr)u told ry-learnied friend thât yon did not notic(e this
auger hole iiithe tea.în ? -AL 1 did niot

Q.Would t follow, fic»n that at ail, thit ît was- not t1we ?
A. No

RE-CROSS--IXAm>iNEDi) MRCÂ8IY

Q.Speaking of what you say in regard to the h a ngfrs- a
hanger is a part of the floor -3y»temu. i8 it noV? A. Yes.

Court: 1 think w'e have had ail that, Mr. Ca-qaidy.

Mr. Ga.msdy i juýst want.to m.k imi about this clifferellc& of«
51 and the fl,)or bea~m

c~ourt: Well, 1 cannot ùlow ariy extended examinatÀo. yf
have any short poiInt you W>iis to bring out, do $0.

ye.Casd (to .witness}): The incidence of. th-e weigh)t aiv
*by- îhe tramlino beinùg put - loee to une side of the IridgL. w'1in.
equally heavy on the hanger which hls up the fluor bearn, aloi tbe

f1oOT, lyea-w at that point? A. YeýS.

Q. why do you tiay t-heu tiat it' reuced hefactor of a'tii
* the filoor hearn, arî 1do(lis not iüeduce the factor of -8-.fety si mla~ i <

the~ hangjer? A. What isthe ditVerence, (In you rNiui. Mr
C as%-iel y?. That is, the relàti.ve difference.

Q. t wat.%tw)-thirtds of. ' th wekghtý on one ief.t <

and ne-tirdonthe ather ?- A.Idn' nan thut.

Q.What 1 wa.nt te rnake. oui is, the. hanger i.-> part. vf t! wbr
Syst em, and holds up~ thé floor lxeain. The, addition»l -strai: ie

hainger where it holds the flour beam woulil be equal to the f fia
strai i on the Xlû en tta onA Ye4.

Q.Why dlo you mot then r*educe' thie factor of safeLv ta
hanger si;iiarW to>the fà;ctor of safetv of thie tlû>or beam i&o

ca the a:lditioia .wihA fou Wilt- Permit mle aw u
wi"iï find ont what thât dîfference la..

Q.I -ai on the queaýtiîon of Prin=iPle; dlo y(w rnak*- ;

tion'? A. Dol?
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Yes; you told my friend by putting the tramcar over on one
side; it reduced the factor of safety of the flour -beam to 2, but thefactor of safety of the hanger was 5Ï? A. Yes: weIl, what is thirelat4ve di$erence?

Court (to witness): Yod see what counsel means? A. I see
what he isl tryflg to get at.

Q. Give your explanation in your 'own way: Why do youmake allowance in one case and not in the other ? Answer that inyour own way. A. What I would like to do is to see whether thatdoes exit. If he says they are not relatively reduced, I say I do not
know-I have, not the details.

Mr. Casäidy: You said already to rny learned friend that byputtng the car track to one side it reduced the factor of safety of
the fior bea>, but not of the hanger ? A. I did not say that, sir.

Q. I took it down? A. I did- not intend to say that-that
the factor of safety of the hanker was not reduced.

Q.Similarly to the lloor beamn ? A. Yes, it should be.
Mr. Davis: • We are really only talking about a misunderstand-

ing, beeause the original fadtor of the hanger was 11; the original
factor of safety of the floor beam is something a little over 4; he
reduces both of thein equally.

Court: In fact, the witness is so clear that I am astonished I
can qnderstand so much about it.

J. B. C. LOCKWOOD. CÂLLÉD AND SwORN. EXAMIU(NED
BY Ma. DAVIS.

Q What is your name ? A. James B. C. Lockwood.

Q - Where do you live, Mr. Lockwood ? A. Seattle.

Q What is ydur bwiâness'? A. Civil engineer.

Q. With whom are you engaged at the present time.? A. The
San Franciseo Bridge Co.

Q That is the company, I believe, that built the bridge in
question? A. Yes, sir.

Q How long have you been employed by them ? A. Since
1889

What is your position? A. Manager of the Seattle office.

What experience have you had in bridge work ? A. I
followed it constantly for 12 years.



Q. Has that been your sole busines? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you make an examination of the wreckage of the span
that went down, of this bridge, after thé accident ? A. I did.

Q. How long after? A. Beginning on the 29th day,of May
and extending for a week at intervals for about a week; possibly a
little more.

Q. Before I go into the evidence of this, Mr. Lockwood, I would
ask you to go over and explain a few general matters to the jury.
Show what that is? I am referring to exhibit 3 of-" H" in this suit.
A. That isa general drawing showing au elevation of the bridge as
it was aoginally built; lso as it appeared at the time -of the accident.

Q. Which was the Victoria end ? A. It does not seem to be
marked for, the- Vietoria end, but apparently that (indicating) is the
Victoria end. (Point marked "V.") There k first a short lerigth of
tresde beginning at the Victoria end, and then there cornes a .120ft.
span, and then a 150ft. apan, which is thé span that failed at.the time
of the accident, and then another 150ft. apan, and then another 120ft.
deck span, and then fromn there on, a little more of thé trestle work.

Q. Andhîs rfirt spa that failed; this is the same- view realIy
that we have in exhibit «"R"? A.- It is the same view that we
have in exhibit '<R," except in " R " thé tros is showing the other
end too; that is, from the other side.of the truse.

Q. But it is here the Victoria end, and that drawing is the
Esquimalt end. We have .had reference to a number of termxs during
the course of the exrmination. I will ask you with reference to those
that are material. The>' foor beams--which are those? A. The
floor bearns are these rnemabers just uriderneath the truss square shuwn
--smail square membere ; they are nurmbered on exhibit "R " , 2, 3
4, 5, 6. and 7. Seven in this span that failed.

Q. These, as I understand, were duplicate spans ? A. These
were duplicate spans.

Q. Exactly the same in every respect? A. Yes, sir.

These are wood or iron ?-which? A. There were 52
wooden posts.

Q. They run -up from the five corresponding floor beams?A. Yes, above the corresponding -owr beams; they run from the

bottom chord to the top chord.

Q. And No. 1 and No 7 have what kind of vertical? A. They
have two iron bars extending frorn the floor bear >to the top chord,
instead of vertical wooden posts, and these two are caled hip
verticals.

Q. Where are the bottom 'chords of the bridge, and what are
they ? A. The bottom chords are shown on this plan horizomualy
above the floor beams, and just beneath the oor plankin: three
pieces which constitute the main bottorn part of the, bridge ani carry
the load which is placed on the bridge.
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Q. While we are at that point, you mentioneth the floor distance
or at anzy rate the floor extent in the span which fell-does not that

extend over the bottom chords? A. At the timne of the accident ?

Q. Yes? A. Itdid, yes.

Q. What is the size of those bottom chords which are of iron ?
A. They vary; at the end of the span on each side of the bridge;
there ai•e two pieces, 2 inches hy 1 inch; the next panels are 3 by 1.

Q. That would be between 2 and 3? A. That would be be-
tween 2 and 3; there &re two pieces-3 by 1, and between 3 and 4
there are 4,pieces-2 of thqm 3 by ¾ and,2 of them 3 by ths.

Q. Where are what was referred to by Mkr. .Wilmot as possibly
qupporting the floor in 1892, as the lateral rods ? A. The lateral
rods are shown on this plan just ùnderneath the bottom chords, and
shown by small lines f roui one floor beam to the next.

Q. Do any of these drawings show those rod.s? A. Yes, this
drawing shows it very much better.

Q. That is 4 of exhibit "H"i? A. We here have the bottom
lateral rodis showing very plainly-these blue lines running from one
floor to the next one; that is the Victoria end (marked V). This
shows the floor beans much more plainly-shows the bottom chord
in detail, the bottom chord pins, vertical posts, hip verticals, .very
plainly.

Q. While we are looking at the general construction of that
plan, you mnight give a general idea-not, too Minutely so as to
confuse us, but a general idea of the principle upon which that span
is.built, with a view to showing what would. be the effect of a foor
beain. breaking an the bridge? A. The printcipar part of any bridge
spari consists of the trusse I , In this particular bridge there are two
tru8ses ; this drawing represents one truss. and it is a side elevation,
and the other truss is supposed to be imumediately behind this one,
and is exactly similar to the first one.

Q. By the truss 'you mean-? A. By the truss, I rnean
this elevation which is marked on the plan C elevation "; the truss
consists of the top chord or this timber-these pieces of tinber.

Q, Those are all timber on the top? A. Yes, sir; the bottom
ehord which is al of iron and which is shown here just beneath the
floor, and what are known as the web members, which are all of the

pieces in between the top and the bottom chords. The web members
are divided again into what you might call two different kinds, which
are the timber members, which are the vertical, posts at 1, 2, 3, 4, 5
and 6, and th .iron or tension members, which consist of the .hip
verticals and tlie diagonals, which are shown here in blue. Now, the.
function of these wooden members of the truss is to take the com-

pression strai-that is,: they take the strain caused. by pushing
together. The intention of the iron. inembers throughout the truss is
to take the tension strain, or strain tending to pull the nembers
apart; at eithér end of this elevation we have an end view of the
truss



Q. Before we leave this, is the top chord connected or not?
Al Each top chora consists of six independent pieces, which are
connected at their eode by means of castings at the points showii on
the plan. Each of the bottom eborde coanists of 16 independent
members, connected at the ndé by pins, which are also shown on the
plan ; the vertical members are connected with the chorda by ineans
of shoes. and bolts and pins to hold them in place, and the diagonals
are connected with the top and bottom chords by means of the pins
which are shown here on the plan.

Q. The idea of the bridge *is the different strains counteract each
f other?. A. Well, the whole idea of any ti-uss is to take a loud which

ie placed on the bridge at any point and carry it by means of these
web nembers-earry that load and eventually distribute it on the
pier.

Q. With reference te the dloor system, what was the size of
these floor beams as put in originally? A. Twelve inchei ,4y 18
inehes and about 33 ft. long.

Q. What about their being smatller at the ends, as Mr. Wibit
mentiored ? Well, the end of the floor beam was tapered off a little
for iappearance, after the span was put up.

Q. Is that inside or outside of the hangerse? A. Outside of
the hangers

Q. So it had nothing to d with the strength of the floor beam
whatever ? A. No, sir; I might explain that the floor beams were
notched slightly at the point where they are supported by the
hangers, but that would not affect the çarrying capacity of the beain
as a beam.

Q. What was the size of these joists or stringers that are shown
in that little model? A. 3 inches by 12 inches.

Q. And how did the floor rest on. top 'of those stringers de-
scribe it ? A. Well, thefloor wae placed diagonally across the bridge
as shgwn. in this plan, and was spiked to the stringers.

Mr. Waylor: If my learned friend would permit me to suggest-
I undersiand Mr. Lockwood to speak of these sway braces as coing
between them ? A. The ottom laterahs extend diagonally frmi one
floor to the next one,'as shown there.

Q. That is the way it would look if you did not have the floor
On itA? . Yes, these are the top laterals and also the Lotton
laterals.

Mr. Davis: As Mr.'Wilmot spoke about the bottom i;terais,
this shows exactly the relative position and sitae of the bottom iterals
and the floor beams? A- That is right.

Q. If the floor beam were to break off at the end as ha been
described in connection with No. 3, could that foor beam in dling,
possibly strike the laterals ? A. No; the floor beam, if it .heareî
off inside of the hanger would drop clear of the laterals.



Q Where did No. 3 shear off? A. I sheared off inside of the
hanger.

Q. So it could not have rested on the lateral, as Mr. Wilmoe
suggests? A No:

Q. When you came to éxaamine the bridge, were you able to
locate the different component parts of the bridge from the debris
A. Yes tuost of them;

Q. Were you able to locate the floor beams, in the first place ?
A. Yes.

Q. Did you flnd the floor bean which belonged to No. J ?
A. I was;,able to locate all of the floor bearns except one, definitely,
and that une, of course, belonged in the vacant space, and consequently
that was located, too.

Q How did you find N. 1 1floor bean ?-in what condition ?
A. No. T was new floor beam, in good condition; all of the new floor
beams were in good condition except sone of them showed some
signs of wet-rot.

Q. What was the size of No. 1 ? A. Twelve by 16.

Q. That was not one of the floor beatuis put in originally ?
A. N

Q. Was No.1 broken? A. It was not.

Q. ow did you find No. 2 ? What was it, in the first place ?
-one Of the original or one of the new beains? A. It was one of
the new beams; it was Icated by the lateral rods; No. 2 was -the
beam which had no distinguishing marks, and was the last beam, and
was placed. at 2, as the only vacant place.

Q. In what condition was it? A. Good condition.

Q. Was it broken in any way ? A. No.

Q. I think you have already ,said-I am not sure-that it was
one of the new bamis A Yes.

Q. What about 3 ? A. Three was an old beam, and was
broken off-sheared off at the hanger on the upstreamn or Gorge side
of the bridge.

Q. Inside or outside of the hanger, sheared off, or how
A. Well, it was sheared off; it does not, say here in my notes, but iÉ
*was sheared off right at the lianger-you could see ne of the banger
holes still in the end of the beam, on one of the ends.

Q. What condition was No. 3 in? A. Very rotten.

Q. [ow was the end where it had sheared off, as.conpared with.
the other end ? A. It was nuch more rotten.

Q. .ow did you find No. 4? A. That is a new beam, and it
h W been chopped some on one end, and one end had some mud on it
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where it.had evidltlybTeetrin the bottom of the bay; it was in good
condition.

Q. Broken in any waY A

Q. How did you find number 5?, . o. 5was anew beam;

it wa bored for hankerso one 1 inch hanger stili in place; one end

of the. beau' hâd vnud onitL eiL wus located aýt 5 as Lb. lâteral rodi

and the direction in which they iay; it was in good condition.

Q. Was there any other new ifoor beam which waa bored for

hangers ? A. No, not any of them.

Q This was the oniy new beam in which the hangers were put

baek in the same 'a as they ýfere originally? A. Yes.

Q How did you find A. Beam was in good condition

e pt it had been sawn nearly in two1st the centre-seems to be

'od The, lateral rods place if as being 6.,

Q. l that one of the. original beams, or-? A. No, that

was a new beam.-

Q. In what=condition did you find 7? A. No. 7 was an old

painted bea' ; laterals are still in place; find two of the verticals

apparently good ; one vertical on the other end broken; beain is

rotten at the hanger lateral bolts.

Q. This was one of the original beams ? A. This was one of

the old beans that was originally put in the bridge.

Q. How did that compare, so far as its soundness or unsound-

ness is concerned, with No. 3 ? A. It was not as rotten as No. 3.

Q. Whatif any, of the stringers did yon find broken? A. I

found three broken stringers-one coming from éach end of the span,

that is a piece of the stringer which went on to the adjoining span at

either end, and arrother broken stringer coming from sone inter-

mediate place in the span which feU.

Where. did you locate the first stringer you mentioned ?

A. Two 'broken ones-one from either end of the span by joining on

the next adjacent -spon, and the third ;Stringer from some. intermne-

diate place in the þMdge-I could nqt teli.

Q. So the two-hat you Spoke of firat were connected with the

three beains runnàg to it ? A. Oh, no; not at all; they .were clear

at the end of this span which fell--of the span, not the panel. The

other one I could not locate definitely.

Q, How close can you come ? A. The end of this bro-

stringer must have been over floor beam 2 or 4 or 6.

Q Are you able to opinion as to either, or are they

all about e ual e ? A. ell, it is very likely locate over

20
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Q. Wa there at the place where this stringer broke-was there
any peculiarity about the wood ? A. Yes; there was a large knot
in the stringer

Q. What one of the hangers was broken ? A. I found one
broken yoke hanger and one cracked yoke hanger.

Q. Coufld you locate where the broken yoke hanger was ?
A. The broken yoke hanger was still in place in beam l1o. 5.

Q. And could you locate the cracked one ? A. No; the
eracked one had been taken out of the floor beam, and could not be
located.

Q. When you speak of being cracked--not broken sufficiently
for the pin te go throngh ? A. It was not separated--only cracked
about half way aerose the inch and a quarter iron.

Q. So that could not liave had anything to do with the fall of
the bridge ? A. Not at all.

Q. I suppose the presumption would be it was broken during
the collapse of the bridge? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Would it be possible for a bridge like that togive way and
fall without breaking more or les of the iron work ? A. I think
nlot.

Q. Which was the weakest portion of that span-the woodwork
or ironwork ? A. The woodwork had the smallest factor of safety.

Q. The difference being what? A. As originally constructed,
the floor-.some parts of the floor system had a factor of safety of ap-
proxiinately 4, and the least factor of safety in the ironwork was 5.

Q. Where was that factor of safety applied in the ironwork ?
A. The smallest factor was in the main-digom-extend-g from
the hips to points 3 and 5.

Q. Could they have had anything to do with the original
breaking of the bridge ? A. They- did not have anything to do
with it.

Q. What was the factor of. safety of the hangers ? A. A
originally built, the factor of safety of the hangers was 11.

Q. From your examination of the W of the bridge after
the span feu, which was the w -Srpart of that woodwork ?
A. The rotten floor beam

Q. ~ .t'No.3? A. Yes,sir.

Q. So that the woodwork was the' weakest portion of the
bridge, speaking generally as between.it and the ironwork, and floor
beam No. 3 was the weakest portion of the wood work ? A. Un-
doubtedly.

Q. You have.:heard the evidence as to where the car.was at the
time the bridge broke, have you not? A. Yes, sir.,

0
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Q. In fact, you have heard all the evidence that has been given?
A. I have, air.

Q. Includinùg Mr. Cox's evidence with reference to the boring of
that bole. What kind of way, in the first placeis that of testing
floor beams? A very poor way.

Q. What do yon complain about,in it? A. It gives. an ad-
ditional cause for decay andeterioration of the beams.

Q. is there any necessity for using as large an auger?
A. None.

Q. And would the size of the auger have anything to do with
the danage that a hole like that woul effect? That is, would it be
less if it is larger, or would it be less if it is smaller? A. IL. would.
be in a degree less, if it was smaller.

Q. I suppose there are other ways of testing beams, anyhow,
than by boring? A. Yes.

Q. What is the usual way ? A. The ual practice is to use a
sharp yointed instrument of some kind, 4îmilar to a carpeniter's
scratch, and. prod for decay defects.

Q. And can they be tested by tapping them at all? A Yes,

possibly.

Q. But the usual thing is as you have mentioned ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What do you think of the method which Mr. Cox emnployed

of plugging that hole 2 A. It arnounted to very little.

Q After six months would it be worse, better, or as good as if
he had not plugged it at all? A.. Well, my opinion is it would
be worse.

Q. And why? A. Because as soon as the oil goVout of the
oakun it wouldinet as a sponge to draw moisture.

Q. What is the chief cause of timber like this weakening?
A. Moisture froi the atmosphere.

Q. Or, I suppose, frorm any other source? A. Precipitation.

Q. What would be the necessary effect of thêt hole beirg bored
as has been described, and plugged in the way in which it w
A. It would necessarily cause the beam to rot.

Q: How long a time would it take for that-for a rot caused
by a hole such as'that, to become serious ? A. It is hard t ,nswer
that question definitely.

Q. I understand.you could notsay to a month or anvtlûg like
that; but of course vou know what I an referring to. Th i n wé
bored for four years'? A. In four'years it w*ould probably pretty
rotten, of course considering that it was-that it. hiad n the
bridge at the time it was.bored, 7 years
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Q How would these other holes that were in it affect it -as
compared with that one? -Take, first, the two hanger. holes which
went-through, and you know, of course, how the plate went acrôss at
the bottoin A. An open hole would, not cause rot to be as rapid
as one.which is closed at the bottom and retains the inoisture.

Q. With reference to these holes,.there has beeni som-e sugges-
tion thatthese lianger holes, when the pla.tes were across, had been
ciosed the same as if the hole had only gone partially througli the
beams-how s that'? A. They were open at the bottomn.

Q. Excpt that there was a plate under it ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Still, that plate would not close it? A. It would not.

Q. Açd if that beamn was bored aft-er having been in for 7
years, as Mr. Cox has sworn to, and was found to be sound at that
time-would you draw any inference fron that as to the water, if
any, being able to get in and go through that hole ? A: The ofily
inference would be that the water had not stayed in these other
~holes.

Q. As to these lateral holes, would they be a[t to collect much
"wet? A. If. they were open atI both ends,. the water would natur-
àlly run out of then. In fact, very little water would get in there.

Q. Cogupare a hole bored in the top of the beam with a hole
bored either at the side or the bottom-which would the water get in
most A. In the top of the beain.

Q, You have stated that the hole bored in the way in which it
was would necessarily cause rot, and that this beain was the weakest
portion of the woodwork and the woodwork was the weakest portion
of the bridge. You have also heard where the car'was. From all
the evidence.that you have heard, and fron your exanination of the
bridge a.nd from other data which you halé been able to obtaii with
reference to this matter,v'what in yotir opinion was the tirst thing to
break in that bridge? A. Floor beam No. 3.

Q.: It would follow from that, I presumne, that you mean that
the breaking of the Roor bea No. 3. was the substantial cause of the
fall of the bridge.? A. Was the proximate cause.

Q. And the breaking of floor bearm No. 3 was due, of course, to
rottenness? A. Yes.

Q. You have shown that the rotteiness in floor beam No. 3°at
that end where it sheared off .was greater thau ai the other end, and
also greater than the rottenness of floor bean No. 7 which had been
inthe same time ? · A. Yes, sir.

Q. Bearing all those matters in mind, what was the cause of
this beam breaking at the particular timue at which it broke?
A The fact that it had been bored in 1892.

. In the way that has been described ? A. Yes. sir.

4 Would you cone over to the jury, Mr. Lockwood, and de-
seribe fully the difference between the floor system as originally-put
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down, and as it was after the city got through with it, and whether
it was better or worse afterward, and why? A. This floor iliis-
trates very nicely the condition of the floor system as the bridge was
built; this show:two panels of the bridge, three floor bearns. On
each side we have, the mall piece repesenting in a crude way, the
iron bottoui chord; in between this, we have the 9 stringers 3 by 12,
standiig on edge. On top we have the 3 by 12 plank which extelded
n a single length elear acrose the bridge. n 1892, when the repairs
were made, this old plank was all taken off, and all of these strincers
which cane in the neighborhood of the rails-the tram rails on toip of
the bridge, were taken. out, and in placeè of them were substituted
two 10 by 12.. These, instead of running from one floor beam, tothe
next one, as the.y did originally, extended from one foor beam to the
second one, that is, for one length about 37jft. On top of th(se 10
by 12 stringers there was placed.a T-rail--an ordinary railroad rail,
as you see in railroad tracks ain any place;-Which was spiked down,
and then the planking for the roadway and for the teams was fitted
in between the side of the bridge and the rails, and in between the
rails and spiked down to these main stringers and· the interniediate
gtringers. So that in the. tirst place, the bridge foor had planking
running in one length elear across the:bridge, and after the repairs
were made, it had planking in three lengths extending from the side
of the bridge to the fiest rail, between- the rails, and fron the second
rail over to the opposite side of the bridge.

Q. Just explain whether or not you think the bridge floor cut
in that way would make the bridge vweakei- for tram traffic or not,
and explain why you think so.? A.* The floor cut in that way I
think. would not make the floor any .weaken, until the floor bean or
something of that kind gave way. If anything of that kind happened,
if the planking ran clear across in one length it would be a great safe-
guard-a great help towards preventing a serious accident.

Q. Explain. how ? -A. Suppose a floor bea.m gave way, we
now have no support under this floor beam. If that foor beami gave
wa.y the weight of the car a.t this point on the track would depress
the~fluor bean, and after the fnor planking got down about 6 inches
the ends .of the plank would rest on the iron bettom chori which
would support a very large weight. If the planking went down con-
siderably, or if the planking sould- break, the floor plankinz would
go down further and these stringers which you see. here; would rest
on the bottom lateral rods which you will remenber- are comiectd
with the foor beam over here at the hànger, and which would not
necessarily go down by the floor beam breaking. The lateral rnds are
connected in.betw.een the stirrups and they could not get out. until
the stirrup would break. If a floor beam should break and down,
the plank would go down until the ends rested on the bottom chork;
that might go down still further and the stringers hold on the laterd41
rods; these two things together would form a very suistantia
support, and might, in case of an accident happening when a r uncar
is on there, carry the tramear safely over to the next floor a and
prevent a serious accident.

Q. If that foor were cut away in the way it waS t how
would it affect the point you . have just been speaking of h
case the foor were cut in three pieces and we had a 10 by 1 nger
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under each rail, in case of an accident, the floor heam would deflect
the floór going over it, and when the stringers reach the bottom
lateral ;rods that would cause some support-the stringers would help
carry the load. These long stringers reaching fron one floor bearn to
the second floor beain wo.uld also foin a support for the tramcar.
Now, if the stringers were strong enongh to carry the loaded traincar,
of cour'e it could run across and þrobably reach the next floor beain
in, safety. That is, if the stringers and the lateral rods together were

trong enough, the traincar night run on to the next floor beam in
safety; but if the two together were not strong enough to carry the
load, the planking being cut in three pieces wold forrm no support
whatever; it,would iSimply bùckle down, and the whole thing fall
through; that s. under the new system.

Q. It would be deprived entirely of the support to be gained
by the planking resting on the bottom chor[s ? A. Exactly.

Q. Youjiave heard evidence with reference to the accident that
happened in. 1892? A. Yes, sir.

Q. On which occasion, alt1hough a floor beam broke, the car was
carried safely ver. Now, in what respect, if any, was the bridge in
1896 less able to carry the train over, assuming the floor bean to
have broken, than it was in 1892 ? A. It was less able from the
fact that the floor planks were cht in three pieces, instead of being in

one piece as originally.

Q. That is, so far as the support to be derived, and which was
derived in 1892 fron the lateral chords, there was no difference ?-
frorn the lateral rods ? A. Practically no difference.

Q They were still. the same. So fa r as the stringers were-
concerned, if there was any' difference, ·those larger stringers, I
suppose, would make it stronger ? A. More favorable, eertainly.

Q. But the one thing that was not there was this flooring'?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Thé bridge was built for ordinary traffic-not train traffic ?
A. Yes.

You mightJust state the capacity.of the bridge and the
factorm. You.-have heurd what NMr. Warner said as to the capacity of
the bridge? À. Yes.

Q. And the factor of safety ? A. Yes; 1 think I agree praC-
tically with what Mr. Warner says.

Q. And what is the ordinary life of this timber-these floor
beaùms? A. The ordinary life of flôor beadms would be probably 8
or 10 yeïrs ;it might be langer under certain favorable conditions.

Q Something was said by Mr. Warner about welded eyebars
in cunneetion with that broken hanger. Just describe what an
eyebar is ? A. An eyebar is a fiat piece of iron. To take an illus-
tration, we will say a bar 3 inches wide and- 1 inbh thick ; at each
end of the bar it is enlarged to-instead of being 3 inches wide it



JM

womld be gay 9 inobes or it reay be 10 inches wide, nay be 7 incie
-wd, and would be circular in form at the end-in the centre of tis
enlargement-at the end-there would be-a hole bored there, 3 inches
in diameter, for a round bolt or pin to go through.

Q. Was there any. eyebar in connection with these haners?
A. No, ir.

Q. My learned friend questioned Mr. Warner about welded eye.
bars in connection with the broken hanger.

Mr, Taylor: No; you miiaunderstood me, I asked hirm if le
found soine broken eyebars in the ruins and lie said ves.

Mr. Davis (to witness): Where would these eyebars be? A. 'T1e
broken one ?

Q.. Yes? -A. There was one hroken eyebar extending fromn the
Esquimalt end of the span to floor beam 2; I belieVe that was tie
only broken eyebar in the bridge. It would be from 0 to 2.

Q. Can you show what part of the work that eyebar did by re-
ferring to the plan? A. It is -part of the bottom chord, -1 cai place
it. This (indicating).is considered the Esquimalt end of the bIridge:
this eyebar extends from the pier to iloor beam No 2; and it i con-
nected on to this pin at floor bean No. 2.

Q.. What v'ras it for, and where was it broken ? A. . is one
*of the main members of the botton chord of the bridge and it lias t
support one of the main parts of the truss which carries the enîtire
Ioad-it carries j of the entire load which comes on the £russ : it was
broken near foor bean 2. I will explain that each of the truswsebs had
two of these bars extending from O to foor beam 2; there wcrc two
trusses, a nd each trus had two bars; that is, there were four bars at
each end of the pier, each .2 inches wide and I inch thick.

Q.. There were four and this was one of the four'? A. Y-s and
two on ea.ch side.

Q. Could you forru any idea how it was broken.? A. We I
an satisfied it was broken when thé bridge fell.

Q. At any rate, could it have had anything to di w the
original collapse? A. It was not the proxinate cause of .-tnci-
denft,-no.

Mr. Taylor: When you speak of two on each side- of th tn'
A. Certainly'; two pieces for each truss, as I stated.

Mr. Davis : Was the twin bar, if Imight so call it, at
broken ? A. It was not.

Q. If the breaking of that one was the cause of the - ut
could that one have broken too ? A. No.



O5os-EXAMINED Bi MR. TAYLOR.

Q lu inaking this calculation. of yours, Mr. Lockwood. as to the
carrying capacity or the sttrain sheet, on the car being how far to one
side--4wo-thirds? A. Three-quarters; it is 15 feet; the centre of
the track i6 5 ft. fromu the centre of one truss, and 15 from the centre
of the other.

Q. Is that the way you figured it ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Does that bring your factor of safety on the hanger 5 and a
fraction? A, Yeg, air.

Q. On what basis do you calculate. your iron at that-the tensile
strength of the iron? A. Fifty thousand pounds to the square inch.

Q. That iron would have 50,000 lbs. to the square inch. tensile
strengthl A. Supposd t, yes, sir.

Q. But had it? A. Well, that is a thing no one can answer.

Q la that a very high peircentage to pot in a bridge of that
eharaeser? A. No, sir; it is the ordinary strength of refined iron.

Q. W«s that refined iron ? A, Supposed to be.

Q. I know-supposed to be; the trouble is there is too much
"supposed to be " about this bridge. If it had all been critically ex-
amined, we Would not probably have had the accident? A; To the
best of my belief, it was refined iron. I examined the iron.

Q. You reme'mber it struck you it was al] weldless iron at first,
after examining it for about a week ? A. Yes, I discovered after-
wards the bars were all welded

Q You were qf that opinion until f called your attention to that
at the inquest? A. Yes.

Q: Did you ,mnke any further examination at the time? A. . Of
what.

Q. Of the iron, more than to see whether those eyebars were
welded? A. Not that I remember of, now. I think I did on that
trip. I think I màde an examination of one or two of the breaks.

Q. Don't you renember you went down after,' to see whether
your' opinion ta to the iron beiîig weldlees was correct; and you came
back and said it was a inistake-it was welded-this eyebar you ex-
plained before luneheon..that forms an eye'? A. Yes.

Q. And this piece is welded on to the long piece ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. hi lokiug at a weld, can you tell whether it is a perfect or
impeifeet weld? A. Not always.

Q. Could yqu tell at aH until you b apart A. WelI,
you can frm or pass your on it.

Q. can you really tel ?' That is another case of supposing?
.Notabsolutely.

ee 7.
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Q You stated before, you could not tell without breaking ;1
that right ? A. You cannot tell absolutely.

Q. That is another supposition? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now let us get down'to the weight. I think you put the
weight that might be passed over that at 9 tons ? A. -1 put, the
panel load that the bridge was figured ?or at about 9 tons.

Q. I will try.and make this short, Mr. L>ekwood, and will just
show you what you said before, and see if yon adhere to it di.
(P. 94 of Inquest.) " A bridge of thatdescription and eapacity. is
that a bridge suitable for aill kinds of traffie? A. No; it is muiîtaî
for traffie not greatly in excess of the weight. it was figured for : the
same as any, bridge. Q. What weight was it figured forL? A. One
thousand pounds per lineal foot hat was fguredt. not to. exceed
'30,00 lbs.; the strain sheet shows not to exceed 28,000 lbs on any
one panel; that includes the weight of thefloor .itself, whiich weighei
about 5 tons. Q. ourteen tcns-that would be about 9 tun&
A. .Yes;êon each panel; that is the weight, the bridge was gared
for, a.4 shown by the strain she Q That woubl be 14 tons on thi
panes? A. Yes; that includ.the weight of the floor of the bridge
itself,; subtracting the weicrht of the floor, which is 5 tons, wubl
leave a safe load for the bridge, as figured, of about 9 tons per paneL.
Witness: Yes.

Q. You still stick to that ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You had figured in that 5 tons the sidewalk ? A. Yes: as
I remeiber it, I had.

Q Let us get it accurate, because Mr. Warner said he figured
the sidewalk at 71 tons; thé floor proper of the truss, and then there
would be the sidewalk ? A No;, that 5 t'ons would not iude the
sidewalk.

Q So, whatever the weight of the sidewalk' in addition to the
weight of the floor would bé ,ubtracted from this 9 tons ? A Ys.
sir.

Q. You heard him this morn.ing put the total weight at 7 tons,
and yon put the weight of the floor·at 5, that would leave 2 for the
sidewalk? A. That is right; that is approximate.

Q. You figured it together, didn't you, the two of you? A. A
great many things we went over together.

Q. You compared your figures carefully together? that
would be 2½ tons off the 9? A. That is right,

Q That would leave 5a tons? A,. Six and a-half toje..

Q Would b bout the iafe load to go on it; tbt w out
the weight of the origihal car that went over, wasri't it . I
don't know.

Q. But I am speaking frorn the result of vour inveador
A. We did not investi(te the originâl car.
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Q. Bu% dMyou see any of the original cars there? A. I saw
some mail cars.

Q. Five ton cars? A. As I reiember it, they were approxi-
mtely 10 tons--the car and the load.

Q. A loaded car would be about 10 tons ; then that wouMl be
too much: t.kt go over it ?. A. WeIl, it would he a littie more than
the panel load the bridge was originally figured for.

Q. Listen to this answer then also: (P. 9i8 of intjuest):
What would you consider the outside limit which yoi could allow

Qn thasbridge"? A. Well, a single load-you mean a single Joad?

Q. Yes, either a tramcar or a dray. If you had authority over
that.bridgewhere would you dlraw the fine ? A. Well; I should say
if a man came along and warted to take a load twice the armount, to
cross the bridge-18 tons--if he used extra precautions I night
allow him to get it across; And if he wanted to run a load like that
every day I should say no. And if the load was rmuch larger than
that should say be had better not take it across at ail.

Q Then there is a subtraction of 2) tons fron the sidewalk in
eonsidering that ? A. I believe not.

Q. So that would reduce that 18 tons by 21 ? A. Possiblv.

Q. So about 15J would be the linit? As the resuilt f vour
investigation you found this car and passengers 20 tons, and also
asertained there were two vehicles on the span at the tine?
A. Some tëams and sorne people.

Q. Is not this the fact, to rpake it short, that there was one
vehicle one of these buggies that sit back to hack-a gladstone--
with 4 passengers in? A. I don't know.

Q. You did not folIow the evidence on that point . A. No.

Q. But at any rate, with a carrying capacity of only 7 tons
there. and the o'utside limit 15J. surely the answer toY1e whole of
that is, if you have 20 or 22 tons, it could not stand it'? A. Yu
want to renember th-at not all of that 22 tons was on <me~ panel ;it
was al] on one span, but not on one panel.

Q. You were ascked in these questions on the bridge, what
woubl you permit to pass safely over the bridge' A. Yes, sir, that
is right; as a single load.

Q. And oft repeated that would weaken the bridge A. It
iniiht under certain conditions.

Is not that the fair inference of ail you say? A. Weil, you
muist remember-~

Did you. not say at that ingnest the primarv cause of the
b ng was that it was overloaded ?'-the bridge, or whatever part

You )ose te call-it, was overloaded A. At.the time of the acci
dent said.
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Q. It wa tod, heavy-the traffici A. 1 said the trafic was
heavier than the bridge should have been subjected to ; there is no
question about' that. I cannot remember exactly the words, but
there is no qu tion 'the traffie was heavier than the bridge shoul
have beeri subj ted to.

Q. A jurynian asked you this: "I would like to ask you
Mr. Lockwood-yGu have examined al] of thât ironwork and you
have exanimed the 'boken parts; as a matter of fact, you h:Lve
formed an opinion as to the cause of the bridge giving way. Will
you let us know what it is'? A. Yes, sir; I consider that the
primary cause was too heavy a trafic, with the bridge--that is, the
bridge was loaded heavi'er than it should be." That is perfectly
obvious it was? A. There is no que'sion about that--heavier traffic
than the bridge should have been subjected to.

Q. It was too light a bridge for the work, and there was want
of repair; that is about the sum and substance of it? A. WeiIthat
is what it comtes to, certainly.

Q. I think at that tinie you assigned' as the cause of the break
he primary cause--the broken hanger; that is to say, that is the

thing that gave *way first? A. Yes, mir; I did. I gave it in iny
opinion that-

Q. You were uncertain whether that hangeri was at 4or-r?
A. Weil, it was-yes, it was a littie bit uncertain, stiåt-Ws ahrnost
sure that it was at 5; the chances are very-argely in favor of it
beingat.5.

Q. You have an-ined the original specifications of the bridge
A. Yes.r«

Q. Do you mean to tell. us, Mr. Lockwood, that these 3-inch
planks-the floor of the bridge, weren't they ? A. Yes

Q. Do you mean to saythat those. 3-inch planks stretching over
. a little bit to the chord link wonld support a 20 ton car, or a 10 ton
car A. They wouId assist very materially.

Q They would break, Mouldn't they? A. They might, and
they night not; we have positive evidence that in 1892 they did not
break.

Q. Assr4gthe floor beam broke? A. Yes, sir; which it
did in 18J2.

Q. Do you know what weight was in it in 1892? A. lThle car
was loaded about as it was-,at thetime of the accident in 1896.

Q. You say that would support it ? A.l I say that they did.

Q. Did they extend over the chord link ? A. Yes, i the
plan showed that it did. I base my supposition on the plan.

Q Do you know as a fact that they did? A. Not of r own
knowledge. I don't know it. I gather it from the plan wh shows
the ends go over the bottom chord.
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woutd haee held up this weight on it, this day ? A. They eviden'tly
did; they assisted it, a greMt deal.

Q. I adn speaking of the accident of 196 ? A. Oh, in 1896
the plaa*s were ail ct.

Q. Do yon suppose that they would have affected it?--would
have gaveid it in wny way if this lfoor beam had broken as you say?
A. Well, they would have assisted it very greatly, -and they mright
have prevented tbe accident.

Q. How do you account for.it when you say there was a great
deal more weight than it would carry, anyway? A. I do not say
tbere was a greater weight than it. would carry. I said. a greater
load fhan it sh.uld have been subjected tu.

Q. That means the sarôe thing? A. -No;~iWoes not.

Q. Seven and a half to - ha wil be a safe load for à
A. Yes, a safe loadper-pinel-not of the entire bridge

Q.- -Ain1 imot- to inler from that anything above 7ý tons would
b'nunsafe ad for it A. No.

Q. You toulid crowd on a load indefinitely ? A. Not indefi-
nitely.

Q. Wel, the fater of safety mean« you -cannot by -ny possi-
bility go up to or beyond it ? A. No.

Q. k has no meaning hen ine onnection wih idt' A. No.-the
faetor of safety means the lad whic'h you frgire the bridge for, ordi-
narily; you should not strain the memabers beyond rat ffator of
safety. At the same time, you can strain them beyond to a certain
exteit, wihout any great dnger.

Q. Do you mean to tell me a bridge with a carrying capacity of
10 tons frgared with ·a factor of safety of 5, which would mean 50
tons? A. Ten tons per panel.

Q. Yi could put .50 tons upon it without any danger?
A. Certàin1y rroît; 50 is the estimated tbreaking load; that is taking
the factor of safetv at 5 and the safe load at 10.

Q. That 50 would break it? A.- Certainly.

Q. And the elastie limit of iron is a haf? A. Approximately.

Q. Bo if you stretch it up I 25 you rxw£h üie eliciimitof
the iron ? A. Yes.

Q. Beyond that it would not be saetogo? A. YOU shoul
never ioad iron beyond the elastie Timit.

Q. Yon pt -on load then of 25 tons -cn it on that 'basis you
woui' have reached the elastic linhit -of your iron? A." Yes, sir.
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Q. If you follow that with a load of 30 tons, you would have
got beyond the elastic Jimit of the.iron-isn't that a fact ? A. I want
to qualify my answer in regard to the 25 tons.

Q. Can you not answer me yes or no to that ? A. I don't
care to, at present. You pin, me down to the question of supposing
25 tons on one panel of the bridge. That placing night strain to the
elastic Iinit only a part or inembers of the floor system; it might not
strain any other members in the truss anywhere near the elastic limlit.

Q. (Question repeated.) That assumes a basis of 10 tons pis
a factor of 5, or 50 tons. Half of that factor would reach the elastic
limit of the iron ? A. It might some pieces of iron in.the trus, not
necessarily all of them ; in fact, it was not all of them.

. But you-do not consider that the truss and bridge are
stronger 'than its weakest part, do you? A. Certainly, the truss as
a whole is no stronger than its weakest part or nember.

Q. But, having stretched sone portions of the iron up to their
elastic limit of 25- ? A. You might not stretch any limit of the
iron at 25 tons.

Q. Is not that the limit you placed on it yourself ? A. 'I said
probably there are certain pieces in the bridge which woulâ he
strained to their elastic limit much quicker than other pieces. Soine
members of bridges are iron and sone wood.

Q Do you mean to say you do not understand ny question ?
A. No, I don't say that at ail.

Q. Then do try to answer it, because I am not trying to catch
you. You are asking ne questions which, if I answer you directly,
are misleading.

Q. Surely you do not propose to answer me indirectly? A. No
but I have to qualify mny ainswers in order to make it clear.

Q. ,I have not got an answer. I say, on the supposition o>f the
arying capacity of '10 with a factor of safety of 5, or 50 tos-

On each panel ?

Q. The elastie limit of the iron, you have told me already, is
about 4-. If you put on a load of 25 tons, would you stretelh the
iron to its elastic limit? You said yes to that? A. Under ertainL
conditions.

Q. By putting weight on it? A. If you put a weight ,f 25
tons on each panel of the bridge,,you certainly would strî n the
members of the truss to the elastie limit.

Q. Wouldn't you do that when you passed a 25-ton wi. over
the span ? A.* Not necessarily ; no, sir.

Q. Would you stretch any of them ? A. Any 1pern. if the
truss ?



Q. Yes. Surely you do not mean to tell me that half of the
ultimnate breaking strain is not the elastiq limit of iron? ~A. Not at
ail. It is approxinately, yes-speaking broadly..

Q. Then suppose you put that weight on it-h.alf of the
breaking strain I won't confine it to the 25 tons, because you won't
stick to that? A. You load the entire bridge, certainly.

Q. If vou load one part, that is strained; and is it not the same
thing? A. No, sir; not by any mean"s; that is where the whole
dIifficultylies; that is the reason I do not answer your questions to
suit you.

Q. Does a weight on the bridge stretch the iron? A. Cer-
tainly-any weight.

Q. A weight of one-half the breaking strain would bring it to
its elastic limit? A. If you load the truss to one-half the breaking
strain.

Q. If you load beyond that you get beyond the breaking strain
of the iron? A. Yes.

Q.If you had a b)ad of that weight passing several times a day
of the ultimate elastic limit of the iron and followed that afterwards
with a load -a little in excess of«the elastic limit, what would be the
probable effeet-collapse, wouldn't it ? A. Well,' not necessarily.
If you' keep doing that long enough, the bridge wuld collapse, but
not necessarily collapse the second time.

Q. That is really the fair inference to be drawn from. ail you
say ? A. That is true.

Q. You don't want to let this out, but it is a fact. Is not the
truth of the matter this structure was altogether too light and allowed
to get out of repair, and-could not sustain all that weight ? A. There
is no evidence which goes to show thlat the bridge was overloaded .to

-half its ultimate strength. Half of the ultimate strength of that,
bridge would be 150 tiines--taking the strain sheet--taking the
actual weight would be 150 times 700, which would be 105,000 lbs.

Q. You think that one of these spans would carry 105,000 lbs?
A. I see that is one-half mI inade a mistake. Perhaps I had better
put it this way -

Q. You had better put it some other way-I am pretty, sure.of
that ? A. The breaking load of the span would be .700 times the
facter of safety which was 5 times the length of the span which was
150 ft, which would anount altogetþer to.52,000 1 bs. In other words,
a uniformly. distributed load of 525,000 lbs. would break the bridge.

Court: But you are speaking of the whole bridge ? A. Yes, sir.

Q That is not what Mr. Taylor is asking you.

Mr. Taylor.: Did .you understand what I asked vou? A. I
thougrht I did. In. the first place. you were trying to get the strain in
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the tmsss frm a siqgle gaael ead which you nnot do; that is,
you cannot ge the srain an &Uelibmoe f a'es of the trss i one panel
load.

Q. I think I have bee aqxite frank rihbya and have tokd you
what iwanted-Iwillhaveto go overitàa: What weight ~can
safly be passed over by a car over.that br'ge-4hat pan-4hat went
down? A. Ordinary traffic, I should say should not exceed 10 tons,
or an ordia;t ear.

Q. You.told us at the inquest 9 tons, and qualified that a short
time.agoby taking off the weight df the sidewalk, 21 tons,leaving 6½
car weight that you would allow to go over that bridge ordinarily, to
consider safe? A. I don't renember ta1t I said that.; I don't think
I d7id. I said the safe load per·panet; we were rrot talking about the
car at that time.

Q. WewifttakeVhe eat: What~ weig'b:t ar would you permit
to pass over that-panel and conéider safe ? A.. I -shou1d conside- the
bridge was safe for approximately a 10 tón car.

A.'Q. Do you eenmsier in t thie 24 toms weight:of tlhe idewalk ?
A. Taking the span just as it stood, considering everything in good
condition.

Q. The;span as it hood ; thatis, ait th e inatriial1 good-that.10
toms woeild beasafe load A. We!,es,- a0 toi car coIld have
Lem passed ower it.

Q. And an excess of that- wold hIave een an unsafe Ioad?
A. It does not necessarily follow, but it would have been bad to allow
a Euch heavier 4ead over it

Q. And repeatedly allowing a heavier lnad to go over it voul
imiterfére to a gteater extent with ti ,bridAge ? A. If the load was
luxge emoUgh, cern1y.

Q. Say,,a Jload twice tbatsee? A. Vei, it might, evidently.

Q. Wouldnt it, evidendy q A. We[iIdànk # wiead.

Q. Why don't you say so, when you know ? It is no good
fenecing; I a:m trying to 'tak itin rdinary angage, sd do flot want
to get bey.nd miy depth in tedh nitterrms, bat.it stems to me that I
ám entitled. to a fair answer. Did you testify MéTore that was the
inevitable result of it? A. - I don't remember that I did.

Q Wouldn't it be' the i'nevitable rest?' A. That is, with a
load of tons ?

Nine; T! torce the safe load con1l 'be passed over, would
not the inevitable result be to seriously iaterfere with the structure?
A. N6ttiflthe load got close to theeelàstic Tinit.

Q. Let us stick to the load for the present. I am askiK you
if twice the load that éoud be saely pssed over there were nassed
over, woild not that have the effSet çf woekeing the stru-tur



Court: Can you answer that question without referring?
A. No, sir.

Court: It, seemw to me that this is a vast anount of repetition.
Witness: There is no meniber of the truas itself which would have
been strained to anywhere near the elastic limit; still. I would con-
sider it a very bad practice to allow trafic of 20 tons to cross the
bridge.

Mr. Taylor: Having made that explanation, I will ask you the
question again: You said 10 tons could be passed over safely with a
car. I say, if .20 tons passed over it frequently, would not that·have
the effect of seriously interfering with the structure ? A. It would,
if passed over frequently.

Q. What was the wheel base of those cars ? A. Fourteen
feet.

Q. The whole weight of that car would be on one panel,
wouldn't it ? A. No, air.

Q. At one time ? A. It would be in one panel; it would be
between two floor beams and would be on two floor beans; it would
never all be what we call a panel load.

Q. I don't know what you call it, but as a matter of common
sense it would be between two beans 4 and 5 ? A. What we call a
panel. .load is a load by one floor bean, and you could never get the
entire load of that car on one floor ben.m. It is bound to go to at
least two, and sometimes three.

Q. What distance is there between those floor beams ?
A. Eighteen feet 9 inches.

Q. Did.you.hear Mr. Warner this norning speak of the factor
of safety of a railway bridge as comparedt with.a highway bridge?

He said the factor of safety fory1giihway bridge would 'ebe greater
than for a railway bridge. Do you agree with that'? A. No, sir.

Q. You put (t the. other way? A. .Yes, sir; the factor. of
safety would be higier--for a railway bridge than a highway bridge.

Q. You found a flaw in this broken hanger that you found-
didn't you find a flaw in the iron ? A. No, not in the broken iron.

Q. Did you find a flaw in any iron? A Yes; one broken hip
vertical.

Q. That is a material and important part of the bridge? A. It
is. L acts as a hanger; it is "not a member of the truss system
proper.

Q Yoq found a pretty sub9tantial flaw in that pitee of iron?
A. I fouad a cinder spot where it had been welded ; yes, sir.

.Q. Wha is the effect of a cinder spot? Is it a flaw or.not ?
A.It makes a bad weld.

Q2. I w? A. Oh,certainlyitisaflaw.
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Q. It was about a third oi two-thirds through, wasn't it ? A I
don't renember now.

Q. I will just see what you did say. (P. 117 of Inquest). You
were asked :-" Q. A slight flaw, nearly half way through? A. Wel,
"I don't think it was quite half ; I don't think it was half through.
"Q. Was it a third through? A. Possibly it was; possibly it was;
"possibly one-quarter or possibly one-third of a section. Q. Fron a
"quarter to a third is too mnuch to call a slight flaw ? A. Wel, a

fairy good sized flaw possibly."

Q. That was in one of the original hip verticals ? A Yes.

Q. Which one was it? A. One of the hip verticals at 1. I
had better look at my notes to be sùre; as I remember it, that is what
it was. I do not find anything in my notes about it, but as I reien.
ber it, it was the vertical ai, 1.

Q. What is- the- factor of safety of that hip vertical>?
I. Under 1.

Q. The original factor of safety? A. 7.

Q. That is one of the most important mémbers of the trnss,
isn't it? A. Well, it is just as any hanger.

Q. It is more important? A. Not at all.

Q. Is there any other member of the truss.that is of more im-
portance ? A. Yes, one of the main members of the. truss would be.
more important.

Q. What do you mean by maifi members? A. The bottom
chord.

Q. And the top chord? A. Yes.

Q. Now, the top chord you say w>s butted and jointedilp. at
each one of those uprights-1 to 7, there. .'A. Yes, sir.

Q You Iexamined that critically ? -you know it was thte way ?
A. Thetop chord ?--oh yes.

Q. Was butted over each one of these. Mr. Warner was 1)ightiy
in error when he mentioned that top chord extended over two of
thè3e ? A. If he said that, he was mistaken. I don't think he said
it, because h certainly understands a truss.

.Theèl!as no way of fastening those together the was
there ? A. They were fast in the cast iron blocks.

Q. Were they fastened together ýn the original sign?
A. No, only from what fastening they g9t'y resting in t an
blocks.

Q. hey -were held. in compression there ? A. Yes.

f . .
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Q. If they got out of line, the whole structure would go together
-1>uckle like a jackknife ? A. If they got out of line far enough,
the 1ridge would collapse.

Q. Do you consider thos as good as a continuous bar up there
A Yes, sir.

Q. Would a continuous þar do that ? A. If it got far enough
out of ine, cértaiily it would collapse under a load.

Q. Wouldn't itlxave'to go further than those butted pieces ?
A. I Lmight, yes.

Q. And tbey are more .likely to get out of~liie-those butted

pieces, than the other ? A. I don't think so.

Q. Why not ? A., Vhy is it ?

Q. You see, I am asking you ? You don't think so ?
A. No, sir.

Q. Do yon say that it night not have- been caused to collapse
by the hanger breaking at 4--5 ? A. I think not.

Q. Is that what you said before ? A. That is what I said now.

Q. I find another reference here to what you said at that timne:
(P. 127 of Inquest): " You found a broken hanger-at 5 ? A. Either
5 or 4. Q. Might that not have been the first thing to go and carry
away the floor ahead of it ? A. It might, yes, sir. If the broken
hanger was at 4 or -5, the probabilities are that the hanger broke

rst." Q.. You do not adhere to that opinion now ?, A. There are
other qualifications placed in there.

Q. None are placed on that answer ? A. I don't think the
hanger broke first.

Q. You do not adhere to that original opinion of yours?
A. No, sir.

Q. . That was given at the conclusion of a week's examination,
was it not ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. In wbich you took cópious notes ? A. Yes.

Q. And from which you testified ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Irnmediately following your inspection, You have changed
that opinion yesterday ? A. No, sir.

Q. When ? A. I changed it since that timé.; within a week,
within ten days anyhow.

Q. . Since your connection with this trial ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you changed that because sômeone told you about bor-
ng this neam, I suppose, with the auger? A. No, sir,, not for that
reaiu.

Q. You changed it for somnê other reason ? A. Not alone for that



Q. What was the other reason ? A. I have secured additional
evidence in regard'to the accident, and where the car was at the time
of the accident, and where the car was in the water after the acci-
dent occurred. If I remember rightly,.I based ny theory of the
hanger breaking first on the location of the car; and I said at tie
time, if I rernember rightly, that floor bean did not fall.first because
the car had not reached 3. Now, the testirnony before the Coroner's
jury all went to show-at least,.most of it, practically all that I heard
-that the car had not reached the centre of. the span, and if the car

had not reached the centre of the span floor beam 3 could not havc
been the cause of the accident. As.a matter öf fact, I an istied
now that the car had passed the centre of the span, and that floor
beara 3 was the cause of the accident. ,

Q. Did you hear Mr. Biggar, I think it was, say that when the
car went down it was about the centre of the bridge, and it pitched
fo-ward that way? A. .1 heard so many.

Q. That would be pitching forward towards the Esquimalt end,
or towards i1, 2 and 3 ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And did.you also hear testimony that the car was picked up,
some 30 or 40 ft. beyond pier No. 1 ? A. Yes--about 30 or 40 ft.,
wasn't it, from the pier.

Q That would put it about 4 or 5 when it broke, wouldn't it?
A. Well, that testimony would put it hetween 3 and 4. I have
seen a photogaph of the bridge almost immediately after the acci-
dent occurred, which shows very graphically right where the car was.

Q. You. have seen that photograph that has. been sent around,
which purports to be a photograph of the actual accident? A. It is
evident on the face of it.

Q. You know it is not so, don't you? A. No, sir.

Q. Do you mean to say*that photograph is by any possibility
accurate ?-that the photograph was taken during the actual collapse
of the bridge? A. Not during the actual collapse of theXricdge, but
very soon afterwards.

Q. Taken when everything was under water? A. Just after
the bridge went down.

Q. The floor and'ear went undr the water? A. Yes.

Q. Iîôw could it give you the direction of the car? A. You
can see the-people that were on the car when it went down.; they are
right there at the car.

Q. That would give you the positiorb as to the pier. You say
that would place it at either 3 or 4 ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. If wbat. Mr.. Biggar says- . A. Just allow me t.> tiish
this explanation. 'At the time I testified before the coroner's jury I
was under the impression that the car dropped in the water a some
place about 5, and al the photographs I saw about tþat time showed
the people and aWll the-w'reckage in that vicirity-that is, very mauch
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nearer Victoria end than the Esquinait end. Now, if am a inatter of
fact further evidence goes to show4--and I think it does-that the car
was nearer to the Esquimalt end, t'am satisfied in my mind that the
accident occurred near the Esquimàlt end of the span, past the centre
of the bridge.

Q. Yot heard what Mr. B ggar said about the car pitching
.forward? A. Yes.

Q. And the car <vas runniný that yay ? A. Yes, slowly.

Q. Would not that have a1tendency, the bridge giving way, to
pitch it still further forward ? A. Not very much; the bridge floor
would slope both waye towards the point where the accident occurred.
The car would not go -ahead very rnuch after the bridge commenced
to-collapse.

Q. Do you rementer the /testimnony of the bridge going down
at the Esquimalt end first ?-it ropped off the pier? A. I remem-
ber hearing. some remarks of thât kind.

Q. Passengers on the car said that? A. I don't remember
that, no; I.don't remember anýy passengers on the car said that the
front end of the span went down first.

Q. No, no. Did you hear all the testimony there? A. No.

Q. Did-you hear the first part or the last part ? A. I was in
there a good deal, off and on, up to the tirne I testified, and afterwards
I left.

Q. What would be the effect of any inequality of the rails of
the track there? A. Cause a jar every tirne the car went past.

Q. And the effect of that jar might be to do what ? A. It

would be more severe on any truss mergber that is subjected to it.

Q. Might it be doubled ? A.. It might be.

Q. Under certain circumstances. IHow long would it take you
to calculate from the measurements of that iron you mentioned there,
the actual factor of safet.y in those hangers-while you are in the
box, now? A. The actual factor *of safety? You can only calculate
theoretically; you cannot tell what actual strain will ,break a hanger.
I can figure it theoretically in about a minfute.

Q. Mr. Warner put it, I think, at about 5î? A. Which was
that ?

Q. The hanger-put 18 tons on the hanger? A. On the
hanger or on the bridge ?

Q. Eighteen tons where it would . be when it passed over the
hanger ? A., An 18-ton car with a 14-ft. wheel base.

Q. Thirteen, two and a quarter, that was the wheel base? A. I.
figured it for a 14-ft. wheel base, a 20-ton car, inch and a quafter
square iron. I havé it already figured, right.here.



Q. And you make it? A. 5i

Q. You do not make it 2.7? A. No, sir.

Q. There is just orie thing further I wish to call your attention
to, as a result of your-examination last time. (P. 277 ofInquest):
You were asked IWhat do you deduce from that? A. Well, 1 ami
inclined to think'as the result of those things that the hanger at 5 or
at 4 broke first; that is about what it simmers down to?" Witness:
Yes, sir.

Q. "Do you think that was broken and that the hangers at 4 or
"5 remained good, that the sagging.of that beain woùld capsize tie
"whole bridge? A. I think not." What do you say to that? "It is
"plainly shown by the position of the-car in the water that the whole
"weight o e car had not reached 3? A. I think so. Q. So that
"it is Inor kely to have gone at this 4 or 5? A. 1 think so. Q.
"There j,'S only one broken floor beam? A. Yes, sir. Q. That was at
"5. A. Yes, sir. Q. Do you think that was broken and the hangers
"at 4 or 5 remained good ?-that the isagging of that beam would
"capsize the whole bridge? A. 1 think not." Do you still adhere to
that? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You examined that hanger at 5? A. Yes.

of And as a result of that you found it broke from what kini
of shock or a strain? A. You cannot tell hardly, from that. There
was no reduction of area that I could see.

Q. Do you remember this question: " If the hanger at 5 or 4.
as the case may be, wherever it happened to be broken first, broke
from a purely tensile strain by the car going over it. It broke froin
the shock of the load-the excessive loade That is to say, it would
be a purely tensile strain? A. Yes." Witness: I agree witli that.

Q. And -you were asked this further question: "It would be
from the application of weight, at all events? A. Yes, sir."

Q. Now, there was more weight on that than it coul'1 .airy
safelv? A. It was not strained anywhere near its elastie limit ; it
stili had a factor of safety of 5¾.

Q. But it was Wroken by a pull, apparently-by a weight on it?
A. Yes.

Q. You still adhere to that ?-that is correct? A. Ye.

Q. I think you have ,already told us that the floor bLemn, at 7
was also very rotten ? A.- It was quite rotten at the ends; ye

Q. Do you-r notes show any boring in that rotten floor aùi?
A. No, air.

Q. AIl you know about that is the statement ? A. T evi-
dence I heard here.

Q. Of Cox, who said he bored it? A. Yes.



Q. But you do not base your whole theory on that fact, do you?
-about it giving way there-the rotten floor beam ? A. Well, I
attribute the primary cause of the accident-that is, the accident
happening just at this tine, to that hole being bored.

Q. You don't know whether it was, or not bored ? A. I have
heard the testinony here.

REDIRECT BY MiR. DAvIS.

Q. The fact of your not noticing any trade of it, it would bot
follow, one *way or the other, as to 'vhether the hole vas there, Mr.
Lockwood ? A.. The hole might not have been there at the time I
saw it, the wood was very rotten; it was sheered right out.

Q. And so broken up you could not tell? A. Yes, sir; it
might have been there and I not notice .it, and it might have been
sheared out,entirely.

Q. My learned friend has referred to certain evidence taken
before the commission, and, very naturally, he did not refer to all.
He askedt you with reference to the breaking of the hanger, and
referred to some evidence that you agreed with Mr. Warner that it
was broken by a shock. (P. 277.) "Suppose the car was standing
between 3 arid 4 and broke the rotten beam at 3, would the reaction,
the concussionr or anything, break the hanger at 5 ? A. -'No, sir; I
think not. It might break tho hanger at 4; that would be very
possible."

"Coroner: It might break in the general collapse of the bridge?
A. It might break in the general collapse of the bridge at 5, but not
froi the shock of the breaking bearm," Is that correct? A. That
is right'; in fact, any iron might have been broken at that time.

Q. A juror then asks this: '"You assume f rom that that 4 or 5
had broken because the weight of the car had not reached 3, is that
it ? A. Yes, sir." Now. was thai the reason why the expression of
opinion as to the hanger at that timé, and you give your opinion as
to the broken beain, now.? A. Yes.

Q. Based on the position of the car-? A. I based ny theory
of the accident at that time on the position of the car, from the fact
that the car, as near as I .could ascertain, had not arrived at 3, or
near 3.

Q. The very next question shows that: "It is plainly shown
by the position of the car in the water, the whole of the car had not
reachied 3? A. I think se." "Q. So that it is more likely to have
gone at this 4 or 5? A. I think so." Now my learned friend read
this question to you, and asked you if vou still agreed to it, and you
said von did. (P. 278): -"Do yon think that was ,broken, and the
hangrs-jt rust be 'if '-Do you think that if that was broken and.
the hianger at 4 or 5 renained good that the saggring of that beaim
woul1 capsize the whole bridge ? A. I think-not." Will you just
expihjn what you mean? A. Wellj mean siniply the shearing oft
of ti floor beain.would not of itself cause the bridge to collapse
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Q. That is, necessarily?
necessarily.

-N

* j
y

A. It might cause it, but would not

Q. And proof of that, of course, we have in '92. Will you just
explain what is meant by the answer you gave my learned friend
with reference to the hanger breaking with a weight on it. 18 that
weight necessarily limited to one particular weight ?-that is, the car?
A.- Any kind of weight-any kind of strain-any force that woulJ
produce strain enough to break it.

Q. Would auch a weight be applied to it in the falling of the
bridge? A. It could.

Q. I see at P. 281, with refereuce to the hanger Q. If that
hanger was at 4 instead of at 5, you think the probability of its
having been the first thing to break would be redueed ? And your
answer is "yes, sir." Will you just explain why you considered at
that tine, and f presume still conider-at any rate, you considered
at that time if the hanger was shown to be at 4 instead of at 5 there
was less probability of that having been the firat thing to break, with
reference to the weight of the car? A. The reasoning doesn't seem
just clear.

Q. If the weight of the car was at 5, which hanger would he
more apt to break,5 or 4? A. 5.

Q. The question was: "If that hanger was at 4 instead of at
5, you think the probability of its having been the first thing to break
would be reduced? A. Yes, sir." Why do you say the hanger
would break in all probability where the weight was ?-the car at
that time was shown tuobe at 5. Then if the car was at 5 would it
be apt to break the hanger at 4? A. No; if the car was at 5,it
could not break the hanger at 4.

Q. This question and answer given at that time show clearly
what you based your opinion on. Supposing that broken hanger
had been at 3 and the car at 5 ? A. It would have been still less
probable.

Q. But if the car is shown to be, as it has been shown, at 3 and
the broken hanger at 5, then what do you say ? A. Then I should
say undoubtedly that it was the beam that broke first.

Q. With reference to this floo¼ing extending over the bottom,
chord. Of course, you did not see that span, but did you sur the
twin span ? .-A. Yes.

Q How was the flooring in that? A. -In three pieces.

Q. As it stands now, how is it? A. As 1. remember it, it ex-
tends pait scross the bottom chord; that is the ordinary way of put-
ting the fIoor on it, so it does extehd, and the plan shows it.

Q. With reference to this ifaw you have imnntioned in the hip
vertical, which you say was at? A. one.



Q. Considering all the facts which you have before you withreference to the breaking of -the bridge, could that hip vertical havebeen the first thing to break r. A. Not at all.

Juror: - In reference to the time of the change, when they tookout two of those 3 by 6 stringers there -joists, and substituted 10 by12 for therm. Thent the plank was in three pieces, afterwards? A.Yes.

Q. Doyou think by bringing those 10 by 12 would inake ufor the loss of strength in cutting the plank in thi:ee pieces ? A. Nosir; not by any means.

. Mr. Taylor: , Does the floor add anything to the strergth of thestructure, anyway?

- Court: You went into that very fully it is no use opening itup agaîn. ( To Witness): What do you say ¿ A. The floor cer-tainly adds strength to the structure.

Mr. Taylor: To the truss ? A. No, not'to the truss. There is'a difference between the trums and the structure.

Court: I am not going to exclude anything, if you really pressit, but I think you went irto that very fully-as to the double effectof it-one favorable and the other prejudicial.
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B. W. MURRAY, CALLED AND SWORN, EXAMINED

BY MR. DAVIS.

SECOND DAY OF TRIAL.

Q What is your name ? A Bernard William Murray.

Q You live where? A Victoria.

Q What is your business ? A.. Inspector and Superintendent of bridges
and general construction.

Q For what length of time have you ha< xperience in inspecting bridges? 20
-À As a boy, I started in 57 for the Midla d Railway Company, in Derby,
England.

Q And you have been connected with that sort of thing -ever since ? A
Yes, sir,

Q I understand you are nót an engineer ? A I m ngt.

Q Simply a practical bridge master ? A Just a practical constructor.
30

Q Did you see floor-beam 7 of that span which is gone ? A I could
not say âs to the nunber of the beam. I seen one of the old beamns.

Q Describe it? It was one of the old beams that were originally put in?
A Yes, sir.

Q Could you tell whether it was *in the centre of the span or towards the
end ? A I could..

In what way ? A By the lateral rods and the counter pin; it would 40
be either the beam at this end or the beam at the other end.

Q. Then it would be a beam at one of the hip-verticals? A Yes.
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Q And ti beam at the other was a iew beamu. In what condition
was that beam? A Well, I found it rotten around the hangers-the hanger
holes, rather, and the verticals partly rotten.

Q You did not see beani 3, or did you? A I did not.

Q No. 7, you say, was examined by you. Did you examine it specially?
%A I did.

Q 'For what purpose? A I was sent for that purpose to examine the Io
beam.

Q lI order to see what ? A To see whether it was rotten or had been
bored in any part.

.Q Had No. 7 been bored in any -place ? A No, sir, with the exception
of the regular holes.

Q Where the hangers went ? A Yes, sir.
20

Q But I am referring to the same kind of boring as Cox did; had it been

bored for the purpose of testing? A No, si;.

Q Beam 3 you were unable to find ? A I could not find it, sir.

Q That is the broken beam ? A That is supposed to be the broken

beam.

Q Did you search? A I did, from the bridge to Deadman's Island.

30Q Did you make enquiries ? A I did.

Q Were you able to find that beam high or low ? A I was not able to

find the beam.

Q You have heard pretty much all the evidence, in fact, all, I think ?
A I have heard a part of it.

Q Have you heard the evidence with reference to the bean being bored

-Cox' evidence ? A I have. 4

Q And the evidence as to the strain sheet-of the wood being weaker

than the iron and with a lower factor ? A Yes.
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Q Vou have heard the evidence of the condition of beam 3? A I have.

Q First of all, in reference to that fiooring. Would the flooring putdown the way it was finally put by the city-t hat is, instead of running rightacross as it does here (referring to muodel) cut in three pienes-up here, andhere, and here, again. Would that have any effect on the chance of thebridge, in case a floor-beam broke, going through- or not going through ? AI say it would make it muéh weaker ; it would have the effect-

Q Just describe shortly how it would strengthen, tie state of the timber, 1o
after the floor-beam was broken ? A By the planks going right through, andthe rail being on top-of course, it is usuallv a flat rail, or even a T rail-this
would be inuch stronger for the reason if you take the plank this length, sup-
porte4 underneath as it is bv the stringers and then on the floor-beans, it will
have a greater resistance 'thain if von ent it in three parts. The reason is,when you cut this you nake this so muuch shorter; this being where the car
is it is shorter still, and more liable to give wav, By being cut so, it would
not have the resistance ; consequentl,. the shorter the pieces, the less the re-
sistance, and the more liability to let the car down.

20

Court Like a short or a long plank on thin ice ? A The same thing,
your Lordship.

Mr. Davis: You heard it described how the ends of the planking if it
féll six inches-would rest on the lower chord ? A I did.

Q Would that be, or would it not be a material factor? A It would
while the plank is in full length, but if the plank is short, it would certainly
fall down.

30
Q What would be the necessary effect of an auger hole-the size of that

one there-being bored in a fioor-beami, some oakun poked in, and then the
thing left there for four years ? A In boring an auger iole in there would
make a receptacle for water.

What would be the result ? A The water would .cause rot.

Q Evidence has been given that that end was more rotten than the ôther 4o
end, and also that that beam was more rotten at the end than the No. 7 beam.
To what cause would you attribute that difference ? A I attribute the cause
to the boring of the beam and alloIWing the water to follow the fibre.
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Q Now, Mr. Murray, have you heard the evidence of Mr. Liockwood and
Mr. Warner? A Partly.

Q Ail the material parts. As a practical bridge man, although not an
enginieer, having heard the statenient that the factor of safety of the iron was
some three times greater than that of the woodwork, which part, in the first
place, would be more-uapt to give wav-the iron or the woodwork? A I
would rather not go into it for the reason that is an engineer's standpoint, it is
not fron construction standpoint ; the constructor is supposed to follow the
plans.and specifications given to him. 10

Q The rotten condition of that beamx as conpared with the bean No. 7,
and the rotten condition of the Gorge end of that beain as conpared with the
other end, vou attribute to the horing of this auger hole ? A I do.

20

CROSS-EXAMINED BY- MR. TAYLOR.

/Q 'In this ori inal design, if a floor-beam gave way here (indicating), the
ends of these plank , if they were long enough, would cone down on the lower
ch$rd ? A Yes.

Q Mou see tu se are all jointed here-at least they all rest on the floor

beam ? A Yes.,

Q And the are not fastened together, are they, in the original design ?
A I be v

Q You believe not ? A I am not sure.

Q So that if a floor-beam gave away there, the whole thiug wouldbuckle

in together there, wouldn't it ? A The whole thing would buckle in to-

gether; it would come down as far as the chords.

Q You mean to say that these pianks just nailed to these joists here

would stop it-two light nails ? A There is no man can tell, I think it

would be a great factor in stopping.
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Q You think the nails in the planks would hold the planking? A No,
it is not the nails ; the. planking would cone down on the chord.

Q There is nothing to support it underneath, and there would be an area
of how much ? A If there was nothing else to support it you would bave the
whole length of the bridge.

Q Wouldn't it have the tendency of this, Mr. Murrav, that when you
put long stringers with the joists broken, thev would distribute the weight
then, that would come on these other sound -floor-beans ? A If the stringer
is over three beams, that is half way over two beams and over the other 'one, if
you broke the beam in the centre and the joist was over the beam that gave
way, it would cause the car to go down, and tip over.

Q And.if it were not, it would have a. tendency to strengthen it ? A
Yes, it would have a tendency to strengthen it?

Q You do not know in what condition they were there ? A I do not,

Q That seems to me common sense, Mr. Murray, that must be so.

Court It must necessarilv be a source of strength or weakness, accord-
ing to the place of the break.

Mr. Taylor: And no one knows where that was.

Court: That is another question.

Mr. Taylor: Wheu you speak of a joint you mean- A I mean where
the joints abut on the floor-beam.

Q And no two abut on the same one ? A And no. two abut on the same
one, no, sir.

RE-EXAMINED BY MR. DAVIS.

Q Now, Mr. Murray, as a matter of fact, that floor with the joists under

it, after coming down and striking the chord, cannot go very much farther;
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that is, there would only be a distance of six or eight inches above
beam ? A Yes.

Q Isn't it true that they have a great deal of wet weather in
A They do have it.

Mr. Taylor: About half what they have in Vancouver ? A
say what they have in Vancouver.

it to the

Victoria ?

I cannot

Juror : Q Would not that stringer come on that broken beam on one
side, it must come on that ? A Yes, sir.

Q It necessarily must cone on one ? A Ves.

Q And there was nothing else to support it when the beam gave way ? A
There was nothing else to support it wlien the beam gave way.,

Mr. Taylor : Q That assumes that the joint of the stringer was over the
beam that gave way ? A Well, if it went down it would certainly let the car
go down. There would.be a joint on either one stringer or the other,; on one
side or-the other.there would be a joint ?

Q But it would make a difference which side it was on ? A Oh, yes

Witness stands aside.
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ROBERT BALFOUR CALLED AND SWORN, EXAMINEýD

BY MR. DAVIS.

SECOND DAv.OF TRIAL.

Q What is your name ? A Robert Balfour.

Q Where do you live, Mr, Balfour i A At Langley.

Q What is your business? A Bridge builder.

Q How many years experience have you had in bridge-building?
Twenty-three or f9ur years.

A 20

Q Just tell the jury some of the work you have been engaged on in th e
last ten years or so ? A Well, the principal work I have been engaged on in
the last ten years I expect has been in connection with the construction of the
Canadian Pacific through the mountain sections.

Q You built the bridges through the mountain sections of the C.P.R. ?
A I superintended the construction of the bridges.

Q You also built bridges, I believe, on the Calgary and Edmonton
branches? A Yes. Through the South Saskatéhewan.; the Red Deer and
Bow River.

Q You have been in Court, have you not, during this trial, from the
time it commenéed ? A I have.

Q You have heard all the evidence ? A I have.

Q Now, I want to ask vou, first of all just putting it shortly--because I
do not want to go through it at any great length again-the effect of the
change that'was made by the City in the flooring of that bridge. It was
originally like that model, it was then changed as you have heard described
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it was cut into thfte pieces, so that-what would be the effect, to your
mind, of that?

Court: Vou can put it that way, and Mr. Taylor cross-examine.

A It certainly destroyed the continuity of the floor, that is across the
bridge, it made a break in it, so that when the floor and the floor-beam-there
would be no assistance from the planking when it was cut; after it was cut
the floor planking gave no assistance to carry it over the broken floor-beam,
which I consider that planking does to a certain extent. 'o

Q And how. ,would it be if the flooring fell so as to get a support from the
bottom chords, thwt is, as it was originally ? Would that be of any assistance
to it? A It .ýonI be of considerable assistance, especially at the pannel
point, where the chord has sufficient strength to withstand the pressure.,

Q The chord at the pannel point. And how would it compare with the
floor beam? A The chord at the pannel point originally had to carry the

floorbean; consequently it was as strong.
20,

Q The chord, at any rate, would sustain the floor-beam ? A It certainly
would at the pannel point.

Q Now, with reference to the effect of this auger hole which wias bored

in the wood ; have you or have you not had occasion in your work as superin-

tendent of bridges on the C.P. R. and other places, have yon had occasion to

test floor-beams in bridges? A Oh, yes.

Q What method do yon use to do it ? A By sounding it with a ham-

mer, or shoving a scratch .awl into it, or shoving a knife into it. 30

Q Did you ever bore a hole like that (indicating) ? A I never did.

Q What effect do yoù think a hole like that would have, being there four

years ? A Lt would be injurious, in this climate, at ail events.

Q Well, would that injury be slight or very material, or what ? A

Well, it is a receptacle to collect moisture, and which would cause decay ln
time.

40

Q How would four years be, as far as the time is concerned ? Would

that be tine enough to rot the beam considerably ? A Considering that the
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beam was an old beam, practically speaking, in this climate, when it wàs
bored, I consider four years would becýample time to produce further rot, by
collecting, the moisture.

Q Now, you heard the evidence that the factor of safety in that bridge is
higher in the iron than in the wood work A Yes, I did.

Q And you have also heard the evidence that this floor beam was the
weakest portion of the wood work ? A Yes.

10

Q And you have heard, of course; all the other evidence, both as to the
facts, and the expert testimony ? A I have.

Q Now, from your practical knowledge as a bridge contractor anui a
bridge superintendent, after having heard that evidence, and also having heard
where the car was at the time that the bridge collapsed, which was just over
floor beam 3, what in your opinion was a portion of the bridge which first
gave way ? A I am of the opinion that the floor-beam broke; it was the
breaking of the floor-beam.

20

Q That would- be of course floor-beam No. 3. A. Yes.

Mr. Taylor: Do not lead him. I ask your Lordship if you think that is
quite right

Court: Mr. Davis will be governed, as far as he can, hy the rules of
evidence. The wav I look upon expert evidence, there is little harm in lead-
ing. Experts cone iii like so many advocates, practically, on one side or
the other, and know practically what questions will be put, and what the effect
will be. I do not see the harm of leading, particularly.

Mr. Davis: It cannot possibly be leading, because, as a matter of fact
there was only one floor-beani broke.

Q Now, you have heard the evidence, Mr. Balfour, that this floor-beam
had been in the same time as*floorbeam No. 7? A I have, yes.

Q That it was more rotten than floor-beam number 7, that the Gorge
end, where this auger hole had been bored four years before, was more rotten
than the other end. Now, to what would you attribute the difference between

that beam and the other beam, and the difference between that end of that

beam and the other one ? that is the difference in the rotten condition of the
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wood ? A I attribute it to the hole being bored-this test hole being bored
in this particular beani and the sane test liole not having been bored in the
other particular bean-the other beani.

CROSS-EXAMINED BY MR. CASSIDY- [o

Q Mr. 3alfour, you understand from that model there that the joists reach
only from one floor-beam to another ? A I understand.

Q Yes, and that they are not fastened together in any way at the ends ?
A I understand.

Q Now, the breaking of a floor-beani, thep-of any floor-beam, would let 20
all the joists down, would it not, at once ? A If they were not spiked-if the
flooring was not spiked to them.

Q I see. If the flooring were not spiked down on the top of'them, it
would let them all down at once ; they would all fall down imnediately the
floor-beam broke? A As far as the floor-beap was.

Q Yes; they would simply tumble. So that the effect after the break-
ing of a floor-beam, the joists would only be prevented from falling by the
nails? A That is all. 30

Q Of the floor. A Yes.

Q What size nails would be in the floor ? A Six and a half or seven
inches, I should judge, in a three inch plank.

Q Now, the stringers ten by twelve, you have heard them spoken of,
have you not? A Yes.

Q They go clear over, covering three floor-beams ? A Bearing on three 40
floor-beams, yes.

Q Do you understand that at.the point in which-that along the top of
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these stringers the floor-beams are spiked down on to them ? A The floor-
beam and the floor.

Q No, the stringers spiked down on t&p of the flo6r-beams? A 1
understand.

Q And spiked down on tfSe opposite side the same ? A So I under-
stand.

Q And the brake in the middle spiked dow n that way (indicating).
A Yes.

Q Do you say that although with the long stringers, no two of them
breaking on the same floor beain, and the floor spiked down all along, that
that would not give a greater rigidity than simply these joists-these snall

.. i)sts- 3 inch joists, simply laid on top of- the floor beams and not fastened
together ? A I certainlv sav so.

Q Vou say that the stringers would not be more rigid ? A Not after
the floor beam had broken. 2ò

Q Not after the floor-bean had broken ? A No, not after the sup ort
had been taken away in the centre.

Q Now your idea is that if the fioor-beam gave way letting down the
joists, except in so far as they are held up by the nails, that the flooring might
be caught by the bottom chord, and held up in that way ? A Well, that
would be one element of support to the floor, one partwular means of support.

Q Yoù are a bridge engineer and expert are you not; A I am a bridge 30
builder.

Q You are a bridge builder. Now how far would the bottom chords be
from the flooring ? How far would the floor have to fall in order to strike it ?
A I understand six inches.

Q Now the bottom chords, or chord iiiks of a bridge are a part of the
truss; they are tension members are they not ? A They are.

Q And part of the triss. Thev are intenïded onlv for tensile strain; A 40
That is the intention of them.

Q To counteract the compression of the upper part of the bridge. That

203





is their purpose. They are lot intended for a slicering strain. They are not
intended to sustain a blow from the top ? A No, that is iiot the purpose they
are put there for.

Q They are not intended for that ? A No.

Q If you dislocate or break awav a bottoin chord, the bridge colinpses
does it not ? It is like cutting the string of a bow? A Yes, if you disconnect
the bottom chord.

10Q Ves, that is so; if you break oie of these chord links ? A Not one
alone, for there are more than one*together.

Q I mean the whole thing; in sone places there are tlhree and other
places more ? A They are put in in pairs I believe.

Q And how nany chord links would pass this broken beam? A I have
not seen the plans vet.

Q Now, between 2 and 3, could vou teIlfrom this how many bottom 20
chords (indicating on a plan)? A Two pieces.

Q And between 3 and 4 how nany ? That is to sav, there are to par-
allel chord links at each side between 2 and 3; that is .wlat you mean ? A
That is what I mean.

Q And between 3 and 4 how many ? A It is not marked on here
although it would appear to be 4.

Q It would appear to be 4. To break away those chord links, that is to 30
say any pair of them, or anv number of the parallels betwcen the posts would
be just like cutting the string of a bow would it not ? A It would, yes.

Q Now the bottom laterals similarly-the-bottom laterals are for the pur-
pose of maintaining the perpendicularity of the chord, are they not ?- There
are two cord mnembers at each side of the bridge? The top chords- A Yes.

Q How are they keptin perpendicular ? -A Which girders, the truss?

Q Yes. A There was some braces between the verticals or the posts. 40

Q That is sway braces, and the laterals, and both the top laterals and
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the bottom laterals are sirnilarly a part of the truss ? A Mes, I should judge
so; they are part of the bridge at all events.

Q Without those laterals the truss could not be kept in perpendicular ?
A Without the laterals?

Q Withoit the top laterals ? A It would not be likely to reniain so.-

Q No, it would not be likely to remnailin perpendicullar. Now what do
4t you say of a system of construction that bas those bottom laterals fastened into

a floor-beam simply, instead of being fastened to the hottoni chord links-lower
links ? Q That is a iatter of detail. 'I expect the best practice is to fasten
it direct to the girder-to the truss itself.

Q Directly to the truss itself. In other words, if.the botton laterals are
fastened merely into the floor-bearn, the giving wavof a floor-bean destroys
that, does it not ? Thev carry away with the floor-beam, do thev not ? A
Quite evident.

Q They carry away with the floor-beam. You have never seen these 20
original plans and specifications, have you, Mr. Balfour ? A No, I think not.

Q Vou do not know, do yon, whether this floor is so constructed or was
so constructed as to reach out over the top of the bottom chord links or not ?
A Of my own knowledge I do not.

Q You do not. Now, assuing that the floor did not reach out over
the bottom chord links, and a floor-bean gave way, there would be nothing to
sustain the floor, would there except the nails ? A Except the floor itself.

30
Q That is, except the nails-. A -in the plan.

Q That is to say except the nails on the joists. A Do you want me to

go into that thing? Do vou want me to go into the support of that floor ?

Q It is simple enough ?

Court Don't you think,that is pretty well understood by the jury? they

say so.
40

Mr. Cassidy It may be ; we will leave it at that.
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RE-EXAMINED BY MR. DAVIS.

Q Would the laterals necessarily be carried away by floor-beams in
breaking? A From the details that I have seen, I would infer not.

Q No. That is, the laterals are attached to the hanger? A That is
what I judge from the model of the floor beam.

Q And -the laterals would only be carried away, only if sufficient weight 'came down to break them? A Yes.

Mr. Cassidy: Q Are the laterals attached to the hanger ?-We will
prove that later.

Mr. Davis : That is the case, My Lord.
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SAMUEL1 ATHERLY, CALI.;D ON BEHALF OF PLAIrIFF, AND SWORN,

TESTIFIwD; EXAMINF.D By MR. DAVIS.

THIRD DAY OF TRIAL.

Q What is your name? A Samuel Atherly.

Q Vou live in Victoria I believe, Mr. Atherly? A Yes, sir.

Q Vou have lived there for some years have you -not ? A About nine
vears.

Do you know the Point Ellice bridge ? A Ves, sir.

Q Do you know John Cox, the Victoria city carpenter ? A Ves, sir.

Q Did vou know him in 1892 ? A Ves, sir.

Q I believe von were working under him at various times in 1892 ? A
Ves, for the city sir. The sidewalks and bridges.

( Did you ever go out'to the Point Ellice bridge with him and do any
work in connection with it? A Repairing it, putting planks down, and once
we went to test it.

Q Speaking of ýthis tine that you went out with Mr. Cox to test the
bridge, in what way did von test it? A By boring.

Q Boring. Now in speaking of the two spans, Mr. Atherly, I will speak
of the span nearest the city of Victoria as the Victoria span, and speak of the
one nearest Esquimalt as the Esquimalt span. Which span did you bore first ?
A It was on the Esquimalt side sir.

Q It was on the Es'quimalt side. Now about what time of the day do
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you remeinber did you get through horing the span on the Esqiimait side? A
Well probably between 3 and 4 o'clock in the afternoon, sir, I will not be sure.

Q Along about 3 or 4 in the afternoon. 'rhen what if any directions did
Mr. Cox gi*e to vou ?

Mr. Taylor: I submit that is not evidence your Lordship.

Court: What did he do in consequence of directious given ?

Mr. Davis: Q What did yon do then when you finished boring the
Esquimalt span, what did you do under Mr. Cox's instructions ? A Put the
planks down over the sidewalk.

Q Put the planks down over the sidewalk in which span A On the
Esquimalt.

Q On the Esquinalt span.. To do that you would have to leave him of
course? A Yes, sir.

20
Q What was he going to do while vou were doing that? A He was

going to finish the boring sir.

Q He was going to finish the boring, and where ? As you went away to
put the planks down on the isquimalt spon, where did he go on with the
boring. A He started right to bore on towards the Victoria side.

Q On towards Victoria. And at which end of the span That would be

the side towards the Gorge, ôr the other side that he went on to bore? A We

bored it on both sides. 30

Q I know, but the Victoria side I am speaking of, now that he went to

bore when you went on putting the planking down ? A On the Gorge side.

Q Wlien vou went to putting planking down, about what time was it

A Pretty near quittinîg time, about 5 o'clock.

Q And did you help Mr. Cox do anything then when you came back?

A Put the plank down close over the hangers that he had bored.
40

Q That he had bored A Ves, sir.

That is on the Victoria span? A Yes, sir.
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Q On the Gorge side I presume *A Ves.

Q Where he had bored. How many of those did you help him to put
down A I cannot say sir, not the inmber.

Q About how many? A I should think about 3 or 4, somethiing like
that.

Q How many can von be sure of ? A Probablv 3.

Q Ves. And you lhelped him to put down 3 or 4-3 yOu feel as you said,

pretty sure of-3 at least, and then what did vou do? A Then I went home.

Q Vou weit home. Then what was done with the resuilt of the boring ?
A That was takeni into the office, the City Hall Sir.

Q Ves. Ther' is one other question which I probably have a right to

ask, and there is some question made about it, and this witness.will be a man

that can give direct evidence about it, and I ask vour Lordship to ask him;

and that is whether or not the original planking across the bridge-of course

he would have reason to know about it at that time-extended over the lower

chords or not.

The Court: Yon can ask him that.

Q How is that Mr. Atherlyv? A They ran across the chords.

Q They ran across the chords ? A Ves, and butted against the side-

walk.

CROSS-EXAMINED BY MR. TAYLOR.

Q How do you remember so well
this ? A Of the boring sir?

the circumstances in connection with

Q Ves. A It was onlv just the one day's work.

Q Just the one day's work was all the boring that was ever done there ?

A That was ail I done sir.
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Q All that you did. Did you iever work more than i day there? A
Well I put in a plank occasionally when one got broke, or anything.

Q. How long were von iii the employ of the citv? A About 17 or 18
months at that tinie sir.

And during that time yon werc working on sidewalks and bridges ?
A And bridges.

Q Diuring the whole of that period ' A Ves, sir. [o

Q Did vou have a conversation with Mr. Cox before vou came in here
to-day A Not at all sir.

Q D)id not have anvthing ' A Not to do with the work.

Q Not to do with the work A Well vou kn'w what vou were going
to say when you went in the box A Not at all sir.

Q Had no idea at ail A I had an idea, what i had to tell was what I 20

knew; what I did sir.

Q You kiiew that it was about this boring A Yes, sir.

Mr. Davis: He iad consultation with solicitors.

Mr. Taylor; That is quite proper. Q Vou had none with anvbodv else
at all A No sir.

Q And you speak of taking up the sidewalk, Mr. Atherly to do the
boring ? A Ves, sir. 3t

That is right is it u A Ves.

Q You bored underneath the sidewalk , A P>ored underneath the planks.
the planks were raised.

Q You bored underneath the planks of the sidewalk ? A Yes, sir.

Q That would mean vou bored on the outside of the' hangers A Just
on the- 40

Q The sidewalk is outside of the lower chord is it not A Yes.
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Q And you bored ottside of the lower chords under the sidewalk? A
I think it was soinewhere close to the haigers wlere they were bored.

Q Yes, but at anv rate it was on the sidewalk side ? A On the side-
w alk side.

Q Yes. -1 suppose the reason for that was not to interfere with people
driving over the bridge, A Ves; sir.

Q And that is where it was bored, the beans that you did bore ? A 1o
Yes, the beans that was-boréd, the ones that I bored were bored there.

Q And the onies vou refer to nôw, by Mr. Cox, were bored in the same
place, weren't they ? I suppose they were, I cannot be certain exactly to an

inch or two.

Q What do you inean by not being certain to an inch or two ? A That

is as to where they were bored.

Q But thev were boredi under thie sidewalk ? A They were bored under 20

the side walk.

Q Could von say how far away they were fron the chords, how far away

from the chords ? A - I could not be sure sir.

Q Well, could you give me any idea ? A Well, it might be 6 inches,
something like that.

Q What is that ? A They were bored as close to the iron work, where

the hanger iron was-as close as we could. 3C

Q How far away would vou put it fron that ? A About 4 or 5 inches.

Q 4 or 5 inches away from that. Did you observe'the bored hole at all ?

A No, sir; there was a paper that I put the shavings there in, and wheîr I

handed in the auger, I handed in the paper, and that was sent into the office.

Q Did you say there was a paper in which you put the shavings? A

Ves, sir.
40

Q And you put the shavings in-the paper? A Yes.

Q Did you do that, or Mr. Cox ? A As I emptied the auger, sir.

211



wl>-

4

4 -~ ,- . Z.



Q As you emptied the auger, you put the shavings into a piece of paper?
A Yes, sir.

Q But you could not be sure of the distance it was away fronm the hanger
holes ? A Not at all.

Q I do not suppose you could be sure of the size of the auger now? A
No, sir, I could fnot tell the size of the auger.

Q In fact, it is a iatter of indistinct recollection with you niow entirely 10
after so long a time ? A I know about the boring, that is all.

Q Yes, and you are perfectly certain it was under the sidewalk? A
Yes.

Witness stands aside.
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Defendant's Case.

10

FRAlNCIS M. YORKE, CALLED AND SWORN, EXAMINED BY MR.
TAvLOR.

SECOND DAY OF TRIAL.

Q You have already been examined, not in this action, but the other
one 20

The Court: Q Mr. Vorke gave evidence in this case, surely; did you
not, Mr. Yorke ? A Yes.

Mr. Taylor: Q Did you see this broken floor-beam, Mr. Yorke, that

has been referred to? A Yes, sir.

Q Did you find any auger holes in it? A No.

Q Did you examine it at ail carefully? A I examined it, yes.
30

Q - And did not find any auger hole in it ? A No, sir.

Q There was only the one broken floor-beam? A That is all.

Q Did you see the two pieces of the floor-beam, the whole 6f it, in other

words, was all the.beam there ? A No, sir, I did not see the two pieces of

it.

Q Did you see the whole beam ? A No, sir, not the whole beam. I did

at once see the whole beain on the wreck, but when I examined it-when we 40

went to examine it, we only found one piece of it.

Q Did you examine it at all at the first time ? A The first, no.
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Q To see if there were auger holes or not ? A No.
Q You could not tell ?

Juror: Q Was the piece that you examined the one that the auger hole
would have been in ? A Well-

Q The upper end, towards the Gorge? A Ves ; yes, it would be the
long end, the upper end towards the Gorge.

Mr. Taylor Q There was n1o anger hole in that? A No, there was
no.auger hole iii it. I would lot swear there was n1o auger hole in it, but I
did not see one.

Q Would not that be the short end that was brokeu ? A I don't know
which.side it broke, sir, I caniiot tell vou, it was the longehd that I saw.

Juror: Q If it broke under the railway the short end would be the one
that hadthe auger liole in it.

Mr. Davis: Q
in, because he don't
which you saw? A

Mr. Yorke cannot tell the one the auger hole would be
know whiclh one was bored. But it was the long end

Yes, it was the long end.

Witness stands aside.

MR. YORKE, BEING RE-CALLED ON BEHALF OF DEFENDANT, TESTIFIED,

EXAMINED BY MR. TAYLOR.

Q You are still under oath. You went up to
ing this broken beam did you not? A Yes.,

'SECOND DAY OF TRIAL.

view this wreckage includ-
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Q Lying in the harbour in Victoria? A Up the Gorge, yes, sir,
towards Deadmuan's Island.

Q Did you go to the wreckage ? A Ves.-the Provincial Constables
had it in a boomthere.

Q Did you attenpt to fetch it away ?- A Tried to; I sent up some of
the men for it.

Q Would they give it to you ? A No, sir. 10

Q And that is the reason why you did fnot bring it ? A Ves, and that
is the reason why we did not put it in the scow with the balance of the
wreckage.

Q Ves; it was in charge of the Provincial Constables. How far was that
truck from the pier. The truck of that car? A. The trucks of the car ? I

have got the marks ; 1- think they were somewhere under 20-they were under

35 feet, between 20 and 30 feet from the lower cviinder of the bridge. 20

Q That would be from the cylinder over'there beyond the point 1, the
Esquimalt end ? A From the Esquimalt end on the south side; that is the
Victoria side ; the harbour side.

Q Yes; on this designthere, number 7 is the Victoria end of it and num-G ber is the Esquimalt end. Can you see the figures from where you are ? A
at this end, yes.

Q This end is the Victoria end and the other énd is the Esquimalt end ? 30
A Yes.

Q And you say that truck was found between 20 and 30 feet-? A No,
the trucks were less-yes, between 20 and 30 feet.

Q Between 20 and 30;feet from the pier on the Esquimalt end? A The
fower pier. There are two piers there. The lower pier.

Q That is the pier on the south side? A Yes.

40Q It was found between 20 and 30 feet from the pier on the south side ?
A Yes, on the south side.
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Q That would be from the pier that is beyond point i-it would be zero?A Ves. And they were laying that way, almost across the bridge (indicating).
Q Almost across the bridge ? A Ves.

The Court: Q Did you notice any broken ends ? A As far as we canascertain the Siwashes burit it up, sir.

Mr. Taylor: Q Voun were ordered to get it for the City ? A Yes; andwe could not get it. 
10

CROSS-EXAMINED BY MR. DAVIS.

Q Where was the other piece of the floor-beam when you saw the firstend? A When we were wrecking the bridge we did not think anythin<r zoabout it, we were trying to get the bodies. The wood floated, and itwas easier to get it out than the iron, and we chopped it or unscrewed it andlet it go adrift ; and it was flood tide, and- it, drifted up, and the ProvincialConstables were out and thev put it in a boom up above Deadman's Islandthere, abouta quarter of a mile above the bridge.

Q In your wreckiig of the bridge I suppose some of the iron work wasbroken then? A No, sir.

30Q None of it was? A Any of it that was-there was some of it eut,not broken, it was cut and you can see the mark of the chisel on it where wecut it.

Q Yes, some of it was cut.

40
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Evidence of Henry P. Bell, Civil Engineer, in
Patterson v. Victoria.

10

SECOND DAY OF TRIAL.

HENRY P. BELL CALLEI) ANI) SWORN; TESTIFIED.
EXAMINED 1Y MR. CASSIDY.

Q What is your name, please? A Henry P. fiell 20

Q Mr. Bell, what is your occupation' A Civil engineer,.

Q How long?. A Oh, about 35 years.

Q You have had experience in bridges? A Ves.

Q Did you make any examination of the wreckage ? A Yes.

Q For what purpose ? A To inake a report'for the city. 30

Q It has just been said by the last witness that he .-went with you. A
Ves.

Q You know this floor beam numbered 3 that has been spoken of in this
case ? A Yes.

Q The broken floor beam. That was discovered, I think, anongst the
wreckage ? A Ves.

40

Q Did von make any special examination of it'

A Yes, I did. I went with Mr. Wilmot up to the lidian reserve, and
there we saw the broken beam. And he was interested in examining this-
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where the beam had been bored, or if it had been bored, and I took part in the
examination, 4though I did not-go there for that purpose myself. But I re-
member it very well, because lie was very insistent about trying to find out
wbether it was bored or whether it was not.

Q Yes. Did you see the whole bean? A i saw the two portions of it.

Q You saw the two portions of it. Were you able to say from your ex-
amination whether the two portions represented the beam.? A Why, yes.

110
Well, that is to say whethér they would have been capable of having been

put together again in their original forin ? A Oh, no. You could see that
the one piece belonged to the other.

Q You could see that the one piece belonged to the other. A Yes, and
yon could see likewise the mark-of the suspender on it.

Q And th°e mark of the fracture ? A Yes; and no doubt the beam was
rotten.

Q No doubt the beam was rotten. What I want to get at is this: Was
there any of the beam missing? A I do not think so. There were the two
pieces of the beam.

Q Was there any boring in the beam such as has been spoken of, out-
side of the boring for the. liangers and the lateral rods ? A No, I do not
believe there was; my conviction is that there was not.

Q Yon were looking for that express thing ? A. I did not go there for
that purpose at all. 30

Q But you know what Mr. Wilmot was tryiug to find out? A Yes, I
knew what Mr. Wilmot was trying to find out.

Q And your examination was directed to assisting him to find that out ?
A Yes:

Q And what conclusion did vou cone to ? A I came to the conclusion
that there was no hole bored there.

40
Q That there was no hole bored there. Now, a good deal of evidence

has bêen given here, Mr. Bell, about the alteration in the floor from its original
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condition. You have heard the evidence which has been given by the
witnesses ? A Ves.

other

Q I need not go over it to you. It is the cutting of the flooring at the
póiut of the tramway tracks, and the substitution of stringers 10X12 for the
joists at that point-you heard the whole of the evidence ? A. Yes:

Q Well, do you agree that that was a weikening 'of the. floor systein of
the bridge'? A No, I do not. On the contrary, I believe it strengthened
it.

Q Well, will you give the jury your réasons for that conclusion ? A Yes;
I do not think that it is safe to run 20 ton cars on a bridge without a pair of
stringers in it.

Q You think, in other words, that the running of 2o ton cars over a three
inch floori'n g, supported by three inch joists on end, is unsafe ? A Yes, so
far apart as there, I do not think it is a good construction. No doubt you
could put joists into a floor close enough together to run cars on it but it is
not a good methed of building a bridge-althoigh it could be done.-

Q Well, what' is the reasoin why that would not be a good method of con-
struction for the purpose of ru nning cars over the bridge ? A Bec&tse it is
like setting a piece of paper on edge, to run upon joists, you want a stringer
for.a good load.?

Q It is like setting a piece of paper on edge? A Ves.

Q That is so much for a joist-? A Ves.

Q Now, what would be the effect of running the heavy cars on flat rails
over a floor like that, with regard to the oscillation and undulation and so on?
A I do not think-it is a thing that any practical engineer would àdopt,
knowing that he had a 2Ô ton car to run on the bridge.

20 •

Q What result would it produce ? A It produces this resulit that it is
like running a heavy weight on the floor of a tenement building, the joists;
and it is not an engineering construction for the purpose at all. It is a cou-
struction that no practical man would think of putting in the bridge to ca 0

heavy loads.
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Q Weil, now, assuming that one of the floor beams broke, which con-
sttuction would be the more likely to save the break-down of the bridge? A
1 do not undgrstand that question exactly.

Assuming that one of the floor beams broke. It has been suggested
that if one of the floor beams broke under the old floor, that the floor itsel'
might carry that car along to the next floor beam, this saving a disaster,
aud that that is a great improveinent over the iiew plan of laying the long
heavy stritigers, with the ctting of the floor. What do you say with regard
to that ? A Oh, I say that the system of putting stringers ii the bridge is
the best. I would not think myself of taking the responsibility of designing
such a floor at all or having ânything to do with it.

Q. When you say sich a floor what floor do yon refer to? A I mean a
floor withont stringer.s.

Q You mean a floor without stringers ? A Yes, for a heavy weight.

Q Now, taking the old floor system and assuming that a floor beam broke,
what would be the effect as far as the joists are concerned ? A What would
be the effect as far as thë joists are concerned ? I do not know as I understand,
you, Mr. Cassidy.

Q Well, here we have this floor you see colstructed in this way (indicat-
ing) and the joists are simply l'id. In evidence it is shewn that these three
inch joists are simply laid on. the top-of the floor beams ? A Yes.

Q That they are not joined together at the end in any way, and that all
the joists meet along each foor beam ? A Yes.

Q That is to say that each joist only goes from one floor beam to the
other? A Yes.

Q That the floor is nailed down on the top of these joists ? A Yes.-

Q Now, you break a floor beam away here, what would be the rest
A Well, I suppose the whole thing would come down.

Q The whole thing would corne down ?, A Yes.

Q Now, taking the case of
would be the resuit supposing

the stringers-the heavy stringers to x i 2, w
a floor beam broke in that case? A If

4

30-
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stringers were the length of two panels, 'hy they might assist in passing the
weight over the brolken floor beam.

Q Over the broken floor beam ? A Ves.

Q Now, it is in evidence that the break iiifhe floor beam occurred in the
hanger here. Now, the question .of whether the stringer would carry this
weight along or not would depend uipoi whether it was broken at that point
or not, I suppose (indicating), would depend on whether. it broke joints there
or not. In other words, su pposing the stringer at the Gorge side ran over two 1o

floor beams, it would carry tliat car along ? A Would it carry it ? is that
the question ?

Q Yes. A Well, that is doubtful.

Q It is doubtful. Well, upon the
of a floor beam, with which floor do you
chance to get over the point of danger ?
floor with stringers in it.

whole inatter assuming the breaking.
think-the car would have the greater

A Oh, I would decidedly take a

Q -Did you figure out the specifications of the bridge to show how far the
planking extended ? A Ves, I see that in the specification that the roadway
isnineteen feet wide.

Q The roadway is 19 feet wide ? A Ves.

Q What do von refer Io as the roadway ? A Well, the mlanking- on
top; according to the original specification.-

Q Now. what is the distance between the chord links-that is to say,
what is the distance between the chord links on this side of the bridge and the
chord links on that side of the bridge (indicating) ? A Well, I cannot tell
you that exactly, but I can tell you this, that I believe the projection would be
about one iich on the middle panels, that is to say, the planking would pro-
ject about one inch on the middle panels.

Q rhat is that the panels would project about one inch over the chord
links? A Yes.

Q And at
not at ail.

the end of the bridge ? A And at the ends of the bridge-

Q And at the ends of the bridge not at all. Well, perhaps that is scarcely

221.

It



<k .-4'o *. r i
a,

w.

.2 '1
à

-. *9.. -. - t *-.

4 a 4 b



ý9 <I..

eftnite.- On the plan there, where would you put the point on each side of
the centre'at-which the floor no longer projected over the chord link ? , A I
think it woutld be on each side of the middle panel. If I remember, there was
four bars in the middle paieti;and- only two in the rest.

Q According to the plan here there appears to be two niddle panels. By
the eye, here 4 looks to be the centre of the bridge ? A Ves, there are two
Middle panels, it was a pair of two panels.

Q Then, if the floor was let down it mnight be supported by the chord 10
links between 3 and 5 ? A Yes.

Q Only about an inch ? A Yes, by about an inch.

Q By about one.inch, and would not touch at all between the ends up to
3; fromh nothing to three, and from nothing to 5 would nàt touch at all ? A
No, I do n't think it would.

That is to say, the floor would fall straight through if the break was
fromn nothing to 3 or from nothing to 5 ? A I think so. 20

Q That is at both ends ? A Yes.

Q Now, it is suggested that if the floor beam gave way and let the plank-
ing of the floor down, that the support of the chord link to the foor would be à
source of saftty as tending to carry that car along to the next floor beam, what.
do you. say with regard to that ? A I think it wouldbe a very uns9 fe source
of safety.

Q Just explain yourself ? A I mean to say, I think ·the car might 30
break right through the fioor.

Q You think the car.might break right through the floor? A It is not
a thing that anyone would depend on.

Q It is not a thing that anyoneou1d depend on. Well, taking the weigl
of a 2o-ton car and breaking away the floor beam from underneath and ·assun
ing the boards of the floor-.ý-what length would they be-running diagonally i
tha way ? A I don't know. I don't understand you, Mr. Cassidy.

Q You see the floor is put diagonally ;you see it is
across? A Yes.

19 feet straigi
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Q It would be a good deal longer than 19 feet ? A Yes.

Q How much ? A It would be aboût one and a haif t
Sngle of 45 degrees. imes as long an

Q That is 27 feet long? A Yes.

Q Then here is the proposition we have got. We have got a 1roken
floor beam, and we have got 27 feet boards-- A Yes.

IoQ -which, keeping perfectly rigid, would only project one inch over thetop of the chord links at'the side'? A Yes, about that,

Q About that. Well, do you think that these chord links would sustainthem, or what would happen ? A No one could tell what would happen.The thing would break right through.

Q. It would buckle-

Mr. Davis Don't tell him.
20

Q Now, break a floor beam,-the joists,. as I understand you to say,would fall away at once ? A Yes.

Q The ends of thejoists would fall away. Then the planking of the floorwould be resting one inch-would be projecting one inch over the top of thebottom chords ? A Yes.

How long would it remain in that position with a- 20-ton car'? I donot thmnk -it would-;
30

Q Would it remain at'all ? A No, I do not think so. No one wouldtake the responsibility of that at all. In practice it is a perfect absurdity.
Q In practice it is a perfect absurdit Yes

Q In other words, a three inch board of that length won't ? ANo; you could place no dependence upon it.
Q You understand that bridge from an examination of it, do you not

mean to- say the whole truss? A Yes, generally I do.

Q Now, taking the top chord, what do you say of the system of having the

223



t .t

~v\

j;
r

L
a



top. chords butting on each other as distinguished from being fastened together?
A It is fnot as good as a spliced chord.

Q Lt is not as god as a spliced chord. And what do you say of the system
of having bottom laterals passed over the floor beams? A Well, it is not
good practice ; it is not correct.

Q Did you make any examination of the piers at any time ? A No, I
never examined the piers much except the tops of the cylinder.

Q Do you know anythiig about the condition? A Do you mean to ask
m' if I bored the bottom; I did not.

Q No, I do iot nean that. Do you know anything of the condition of
the piers at either end of that span that gave way ? A I did not see anything
peculiar abouithe tops of them.

Q Anything peculiar about thein in any way? A Oh, they are out of
plumb, anyone could see that.

Q You were present at the inquest ? A Yes.

Q And gave evidence there yourself? A Yes..

Q And heard the evidence which was given by the other witnesses ? A
Somneof it.

Q Some of it ; and you say that you have made a personal examination of
the wreckage ? A No, not perfectÌý r I did not go the first day.

Q I did not say perfectly, but personally ? A .-Ohsesonally ? Yes;

Q I do not suppose anybody could make a perfect exanipjation of it, but
you went down there with the rest ? A Yes.

Q Well, now, did you form any opinion from all that, as to what was the
direct;cause of the disaster, as to what member of the bridge gave way ? A
Well, 1 do not know that you have got any right to ask me that •

Court: You are iiot obliged to answer any question of that kind; you are an 4
expert witness, Mr. Bell. But naturally Mr. Cassidy would like your opinion
if he thinks it is going to be favorable to hini? A You see, My Lord, I had

224

-Sx



KL~ %¶ 5

4

L
----------------

...........

ce-Pu :y,OumWyssZut'
parti;



a dispute with the city about my account; I made a report which was iiever
received.

Q I do not want to ask vou what your report was, Mr. Bell, at all. You
were called as a witness there ? A Ves.

Q And you were referring to the examination which you made anterior to
giving evidence ? A Ves.

Q You were paid $750 ' A Ves. . o

Court: Vou need not go into that. Mr. Bell has put himself into the

position of being called as a witness. I must rule he nust aniver these

qiestions. A Very well.

Q What is vour answer to therquestion A Ask it again, please.

. Q I say fro-m your examination of the wreckage, from hearing all the evidence
given at the inquest, coupled also with what you have heard to-day, I ask yot
what in your opinion was the member of the bridge that first gave way and 20

precipitated the disaster ? In other words, what was the direct cause of the
accident ? A I cannot tell you the member of the bridge that first gave way,
but I have a conviction of vhat members caused the disaster ; althongh I
might say it is very doubtful too , it is a very difficult subject. But I have a

conviction on my mind as to which I think was the most likely to cause the

disaster. I think.the hip-verticals.

Q' You think the hip-verticals ? A Yes.

Q You made an examination of the hip-verticals? A I want to explain 3

myself What I meant to convey is this; if you ask me to swear what member

failed first, I won't; I cannot sav that.

Q You saw the hip-verticals< A Ves.

Q Now, what condition were they in ? A Well, they were broken.

Q Well, did you make an examination of the breaks ? Yes, I have looked

at the breaks.
40

Q Now, you have héard it gi†en in evidence here to-day that the giving
way of the floor beam at 3-! A Ves.
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Q -was the admitted cause of the disaster. You 'heard that? A Yes.

Q Do you agree with that ? A No, I do not.

Q Will you state your reasons ? A Yes. I think that from the position
of the car trucks it is fair to assume that the breaking of the hip-verticals at the
Esquimalt end pulled the bearings right off the pier. When the hip-verticals
broke, one of tliem was broken about the nut ; there is a washer plate on top of
the links ; the links are thirty-seven and one half feet in length. The weight of
the load is transferred from the top to the bottom ch'ord by. means of this washer 10
plate. There would be force enough there even by calculating the least friction
there could be to pull the whole bearings off of the pier. That is my conviction
of what destroyed it.

Q When vou .say position of the car what do you refer to ? A I refer .to

the fact of the point where the trucks were shown to me Io have been got out

by the diver. And also to the position in which the rails were broken. The
rails were broken east of where the trucks were found. I think. it is very
likely that the trucks were found eastward of the point they ran to, where the

20
accident took place.

Q What do you mean by eastward? A I will indicate it (going to the
model). The trucks were pointed ont to me to be about there (indicating on
plan). I think it is likely that they went up-

Court: Between. i and 2.

Mr. Davis: What Mr. Bell is practically giving evidence of ~there is the
position of the trucks. Now, I submit, if they wish to shew that the car was
not where we have proved it, or that the trucks were in a 'ertain fix, the only
way to prove that is by some-

Court: This is on the assumption that it is there, that is all. It is put
hypothetically.

Mr. Cassidy: I simply ask him what he meant by the position of the car.

Q Assuming Mr. Bell, that the lowest-this is wpst here, isn't it? A

I point between i and 5. A Yes.

And, assuming that the truck nearest the i
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feet nearer 1-from 2 in the direction of r-assurming that to be the position of
the truck in the water ? A Ves.

Q Where would you put the car at the time of the break ? A Where
would I put the car at the time of the break?

Q Yes? A I suppose the trucks dropped fron under the car; I don't
know where the car went to.

Q No, no, do you form any connection as to what the position of the car to
would be at the time of the break of the bridge, and the truck in question ; you
see ? A Yes. I said that before, I think it is very likely that the trucks had

gone as far as i and come back again some féet.

Q Gone as far as i aid cone back again ? A Yes, that is quite possible.

Q Why? ýA Because the rails were broken east of where the car was
found.

Q Because the ralls were broken east. That is to say nearer the Victoria ao
çnd ? . A Yes ; and the rails are continuous over the other span.

Q And the rails are continuous over the other span. i see. Did you
examine the rails to see where the point of breakage took place in them ? A
Well yes, I did.

Q Whereabouts, stretching the rail out again in its original position, where
would the break be.? A One was broken in the Victoria end of the span, and
the other was broken soinewhere about half way across, I cannot tell exactly: it
was certainly broken east of where the trucks were found. 30

Q Certainly broken east of where the trucks were found ? A Yes.

Q That is to say that the rails were found fastened, as it were-taking from the
top of the Esquimnalt. pier-the rails were found shewing that they ran complete
nearer the Victoria side of the bridge than the centre ? A They ran some-
where near the centre, one of then, and the other one is broken right off at the
Victoria end.

Q But they, both of then
the truck was found.

A The break in both was east of where 40

Q The break in both of them was east of. the centre? A No, I said
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one of themn was broken about the centre. I don't know whether it was the
east or the west side of the centre, and the other was broken at the Victoria
side of the bridge.

Q That would be towards 7? A Ves (referring to exhibit R).

Q Well, what did that indicate to you as to where the original break. took
place? A I have said before that I think that is what caused* the accident,
but as to which part was broken in the bridge first i do not pretend to know it.

Q That is to say you think the hip-vertical gave way? A I think that
was the main factor in cansing the accident. JBut if you ask me *hat part of
the bridge broke first I cannot tell you, and I believe no man living could tell
you.

CROSS-EXAMINED BY MR. DAVIS.

Q Now, floor beam No. 3, when you found it, Mr. Bell, yon examined
t I think you said ? A Yes.

Mr. Cassidy: One moment, Mr. Davis, please.

Q Did you form any opinion as to whether floor beam 3 had broken and

dropped or not? A Yes, I did form an opinion.

Q What was it? A In fact; I made enquiries to find ont.

Court: Whether it broke or dropped ; surely if there was any question of
that kind it is beyond question ? A I think it did not drop.

Mr. Davis¯:

Q Drop ?

You think it did not drop ? A I think it did fnot.

A No. In fact, I asked Captain Grant-
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Mr. Cassidy: Never mind, you cannot give us evidence about that. I
asked you whether you formed any opinion-well, you saythat the floor beam
did niot drop at all ? A I think it did not.

Q How do you think it' was broken? A I think it was broken off
when it fell in tþe water. I think the splash in the water broke it right off.

Mr. Davis: Q You think, tiien, that this beam was broken off by strik-
ing the water, the splash in the water? A Yes.

10
Q Well, i'f the water could break this floor beam, don't you think a 20

ton car could ? A Well, you know that-no, I do not think that question-
it does not seem to me to bear so much on the fact, because the force of water
striking the sidewalk from that height would be very great. I could not tell
which was the greater force. I would. have to get into that calculation various
other things bef6re I could determine that.

Q I just ask you that question, and if you cannot say at present-.-? A
I haven't calculated for answering that.

20

Q If you think the beam was in.such a condition that a fall of go feet
would break it striking the water, don't you think that a 20 ton car would
break it ? A Oh, yes, a 20 ton car might do it, too. But my opinion is the
other way.

Q What else do you- base your opinion on than what you have stated-I
have not asked you for anything yet-what do you base your- opinion on ? A
I said I based it on the breaking of the hip-vertical, and on lookin into which
part of the bridge had the lowest factor of safety. 30

Q Which portion had the lowest factor of safety ? A I think the hip-
verticals.

Q You think the hip-verticals. What do you get that from ? A I get
it froi figuring.

Q It is not from the strain sheet of the bridge ? A No.

Q The strain sheet shows the hip-verticals have a greater factor of safety

than the floor beams, does it not ? A Yes, I got that by figuring on a cer-
tain assumption..
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Q I will come to that in a moment, what you got it fron Mr. Bell. But
I just want to ask now if this is not correct, that the strain sheets shew the hip
verticals to have agreater factor of safety than the floor beams. Is that coi-
rect? A Well, I could not really tell you that, because I have not looked at
the strain sheets for a long time. But I can tell you that I believe the floor
systein has a better factor of safety than the trusses.

Q I am not dealing with that. Do you know what the factor ofisafety of
these hip-verticals was ? A I do not, according to the original strain sheet,
but I do accordihg to the assumption 1 have figured on.

Q I do not wa-nt any assumption. Vou say that strain sheet was wrong ?
A No, I did not say so. I said it was right according to the assumptions on
which it was calculated; but that the assumptions were not right.

Q Now, will you look af the strain sheet and tell me what the factor of
safety according to the strain sheet is (strain sheet handed to witness). Just see

what the strain sheet shews is the factor of safety in the hip-verticals? A' I

do not see it marked upon it, the factor of safety.

Q Do you say that you cannot find from that strain sheet tj factor of
-safty ? A Oh, yes ; I can if. I go to work and study the strain sheet, but it

would take me probably longer-

The Court: How long would it take you ? A It would take à.half an

hour or more.

Mr. Davis: Q Do. ou mean to say it, would take you half an hour to

find out the factor of safetv from that strain sheet ? A It might, I don't

know.

Q Mr. Bell, vou made a thorough examination of this matter before? A

i tell you now I do not know much about this strain sheet.

Q You examined the strain sheet before, did vou not ? A Yes.

Q I think you told us that on the former trial ? A Yes.

Q You did examine the strain sheet ? A Yes.

Q And checked the strain sheet over and found it correct ? A Ves.
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Q Now, having gone through that. cannot you tell me, without taking a
half an hour, what the factor of safety is? A No, I cannot tell you without
figuring. I have no objection to telling you in Court, but I do not want to
begin figuring in the Court. If I knew it I woiild tell you at' once. Some
people make strain sheets on different assumptions. Some people work one
truss at a time, and some people work two trusses- at once. I would have to
look into it before-

Q So that when yov were telling the Court ;bout the factor of safety of
the hip-verticals, you were basing that on your dwn figures-? A Ves.

Q And not on the strain sheet ? A Ves, sir.

Q That factqr of safety is based on well-known rules? Ves.

Q It works out on mathematical calculations? À Ves, sir.

Q If there is any difference between one engineer making a rnathematical
calculation and the strain sheet which is more likely to be correct, the strain
sheet or the calculation of the engineer ? A If they both went upon the same
assumption they would be alike.

Q If there is a difference one would be wrong ? A Yes, if there is a
difference one would be wrong.

Q And if there is a differenèce which is the most likely to be correct? A
I do not understand that exactly.

Question read by Stenographer.

A I think you have not got. that exactlv right, Mr. Davis.

Q I liave got the question right- What about the answer? A I can-
not answer it in the form it is put, but I will answer it in a moment. I said if
they both figured from the same assuniptions, they must arrive at the same re-
sults; and if the assumptions are in both cases the same, and one result is
different from the other, one is in error ; now you say which ?

Q Which is the most likely to be wrong ?
them.

A They may be either one of
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Q They may be eiteher one of them wrong. Which is more likely ? A I
do not understand that now.

The Court : I am in the same position as the witness: I would have thought
it quite evident that there was not more likelihood of one than of the other.

Mr. Davis: Yes, these strain sheè7tr-e the result of certain well understood
rules with reference to it. o

The witness ; Now'I understand you, Mr. Davis. I think that mine would 1O
be more correct than the original. I understand you now ; I did not before.

Q Yours would be more likely to be correct ? Ves, I think so.

Q Your idea is, taking it generally-I will corne back to the question of the
hip-verticals in a few minutes--that it was the iron work that gave way in the
bridge and not the wood work first? A Ves.

Q That is it, is it? A I think so.

Q And that the wood of this floor beam was broken during the failure of
the bridge? A ·1 think so.

Q Might the hip-verticals have been broken during the fall of the bridge ?
A Well, I do not- think it is likely.

Q Might not all the iron work have been broken in the fall of the bridge
A It would iridicate frightfully bad iron.

Q Might it not have been broken in the fall of the bridge? A If it was 30
fright;fully bad iron it might.

Q Otherwise, what ? A Otherwise, I think it would not.

Q We take the iron as it was ? A Ves.

Q We are talking simply of that iron now. Is it not possible that all the
iron work of that bridge might have broken in the fall of the bridge? A Oh,
I would not think it was possible.

40Q Vou would not think it was possible. There is a bridge .engineer, is
there not, by the name of Waddel ?- A' V es.
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Q Where is he from ? A Kansas City.

Q He is a well recognized authority on bridge work ? A On designing.

Q He is a bridge engineer? A Well, I don't know; I don't think he is
-one that an able company would send to examine a broken-down structure.

Q Isn't he a well recognized authority ? A He is a good man on designs,
and .a good calculator.

1oQ He is a man, whatever may be your own personal opinion of him, that
has a recognized reputation all over the continent? He is, and well deserved
too.

Q Do you know his signature? A Yes. I have corresponded with him
myself.

Q This is a report of his, is it not (handed to witness)? A Well, which
part do you want me to read ?

20Q I want you to look at it first and see if it is his signature? A Ves, I
have no doubt it is his signature.

Q Now, I will read you a certain portion from it and ask you if you. agree
with him. This is, I may say, a report of him made after" going into this
matter.

Mr. Cassidy: I object to the document going in.

The Court, I think, Mr. Davis, that it would not be admissable. 30

Mr. Davis: I submit, My Lord, if there is any question I can properly ask,
apart from the consideration of putting in the document, that that question
would be admissable irrespective of the cônsequences.

Court: I rle not. My view of that is this; you can say to him, if so and

so, mentioning the case, says so and so of it, do you agree with him. I do -not

see how you can go further than that. 'You might get in evidence that would

not be admissable in another way. 40

Mr. Davis: I will put my questions and they can be objected to as they
come.
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Mr. Taylor, Mr. Yorke has come in and he desires to leave on the boat at
5 o'clock, and if my learned friend lias no objection I would like to call him
here.

Witness stands aside for the present'

10

M.R. BELL being re-called on the third day of the trial of Patterson v.

Victoria, testified; cross-examination continued by Mr. Davis.

Q Now, Mr. Bell, this beam that you examined with Mr. Wilmot was as

Mr. Wilmot has stated, badly splintered and brokén? A Ves.

Q And it was badly rotted ? A Partially rotten, yes.
-,20

Q And it was quite possible, a:thongh you did not see any traces of this

auger hole that has been sworn to, it is quite possible that that was there, is it

not, as Mr. Wilinot himself says ?

Mr. Taylor : No, Mr. Wilmot did not say anything of the sort.

Mr. Davis: I asked him if he would say that it could not be there, and

he said he could not say so.

A If you mean that the bar was so rotten that the auger hole could not

-be seen, I do not think .that was the case.

Q What I am asking you, Mr. Bell is this Will you differ from Mr.

WiImot, who stated-

Mr., Cassidy : We will have to read that if he put it that way.

Q Will you differ from Mr. Wilmot, who stated that althoagh he did not

find traces of the auger bole, it was not impossible that the auger hole had been

bored there as described. 40

Court: We will wait to have the stenographer turn it up. Stenographer

ead from cross-examination of Mr. Wilm ot: "Do you mean to say that it was
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impossible for an auger hole to have beexi there, and you not to have found
it?" (A) "I would not say it was impossible, but I went specially to see if
it had been bored.

Q Now, Mr. Bell, would you differ fromn Mr. Wilmnot ? A Ves, I do;
I believe there was no such auger hole in the beam.

Q You say you believe it, I understand you, but would you say it was
impossible ? A No, I won't say that.

To
Q -No. Now, %we were speaking of Mr. Waddell when we adjourned yes-

terday. I will just read you fromn your evidence at the inquest; the questions
asked-page 452. "Is there any possible way that you can give for ôbviat-
ing," and then the aniswer- "Yes, I think I can describe it to you by a very
guod man. This is fromn a good bridge expert. He has written prôbably one
of the best books on highway bridges that has been published, and he is also a
man that is ih good practice ; he is Mr. J. L. Waddell, Kansas City." (Q)

What book is it taken from?" (A) "'Taken from a book of his on high-
way bridges, which is probably one of the best books written on the subject."

20
That is the Mr. Waddell that we were talking about the other day ? A Yes.
That is with reference to putting in the bottom laterals.

Q And you adhere to what you stated on the former occasion, do you ?
A I do ; yes, I adhere to that.

Q Now, I ask you to read, merely for yourself, this clause of the report
we were referring to (document handed to witness).

Do not read it aloud, Mr. Bell, but just to yourself. A. (Doing so) yes.
30

Q Now, wait I ask you to read one other clause here (indicating). A
Let me direct your attention-

Q Never mind now-I know; ail I want now is for you to read it. This
s the clause here (indicating); it is the same report-Point Ellice Report. A

(Witness does so) Yes.

Mr. Davis: Now, my Lord, before I question the witness with respect to

that, I submit this, that -the ordinary rule, of course, with referenceto a matter
of this kind, would be that I could only put a hypothetic question ; but with
reference to expert evidence I submit that the rule is-

235



s71, 2 ½ -t'



Court: Don't you think you had better put your question first; probably
the other side will not object to it ?

Mr. Davis: What I propose to do, my Lord, is to read the paragraphs I
have shewn to the witness and ask him whether lie agrees or disagrees with
that.

Court : 'Thatis quite allowable.

Mr. Davis,: The first paragraph I read is this-which I have shewn to 10
Mr. Bell. Speaking now of the cause of the falling of the-bridge : " The

iminediate cause was undoubtedlv-"

Mr. Taylor : Might I just ask is that supposed to be a report on the

?oint Ellice bridge, or a work on bridges?

Court: , Mr. Taylor is entitled to know the report you are reading fron.

-Mr. Davis : I will give it to him.
20

The Court: Having done that, Mr. Davis is entitled to put that in the same

way as any other account given as the account of any other person, John Smith,

or anybody else.

Mr. Taylor : The objection is this, that apparently, from what my learned

friend says, he has a report made, and he seeks to get that report in now in an

indirect way : whereas the proper way to get Mr. Waddell's evidence was to

bring him here and allow us to cross-examine.

Court : That was the ruling I gave yesterday. ; but I think there is a fallacy 30

in your objection. Mr. Davis might have a theory about it, and he might say,

could it be this way, or that way. 1 agree with it. And I will allow the

question. Of co'urse the jury will understand that it is not the report of this

particular man that is put in.

Mr. Davis: Q I will read 2 or 3 lines before that, so as to explain that

clause and shew what it is. "In compliance with your instructions, I have

examined the Point Ellice bridge, one span of which collapsed, about o -days

ago, and beg to report- concerning the cause of the collapse. The immediate

cause was undoubtedly the failure by sheering of one of the floor beams at one 40

of its points of support, under a motor car-load, owing to, decay ôf, timber. I

have examined some of the floor beams and have found them so rotten that the
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wood can be readily clipped and cut in large pieces with a pen knife, and
crumpled in one's fingers." Now, do you agree with that opinion, or do you
disagree? A 1 agree that the bean was rotten.

Q Do you agree that the immediate cause of the fall of the bridge was
undoubtedly the failure by sheering of one of the floor beams at one of its points
of support ? A No, 1 do not believe that ; it is contrary to the evidence.

Q Now, ILwill read you another paragraph that I referred to. " Please
remember that, and to form my opinion of the wrecked span, I have examined 1o
a span which is yet in place, and which is exactfy like the fallei oie. I also
examined the reinains of the wreck. *As far as I can determine, the breaks in
the iron work were all caused by the falling of the span, and the removal of
the debris, and were niot the cause of the failure of the span." Do you agree
or disagree with that opinion ? A -I disagree. I take objection to the word
4all." He says, all the breaks in the iron.

Q Vou take objection to the word "ail.'" You do agree that a considerahle
portiou of the breaks of the iron were in the falling of the bridge ? A Part 20

of them might be.

Q You won't go so faraàs to say that some of them were, in your opinion ?
A Yes, I think sone were, but not all.

Q Now, when was your examination of the debris 'of the bridge made:
before Qr after the coroner's inquest? A Oh, it was made both before and
after.

Q Now, do I understand you to say that the first thing that gave way in
that bridge-? A Let me correct that for a moment, Mr. Davis;'Iamnot 30
quite certain whether the inquest was going on at the tiine I examined the
timber first.

Q Yon examined it, the notes show, before, and you also examined it
during the inquest? A I think the 28th was the day I went there, and I am
not sure whether the inquest was going on there then or not.

Q No, it was not going on on the 29 th, Did you make an examination
of the bridge, that is, the examination upon which you are basing your opinion 40
that you are givîng to-day, after the inquest had closed A Oh, I based it
long after.
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Q Long after A Yes, long after.

Q I see. Now, what I want to get at is this; do you state that the
mirmediate cause of the collapse of that bridge was due to the breaking of a hip-
vertica1? A I don't know whether you call it the immediate cause or not.

1 fhink the cause that pulled the bearings off the pier, which was teallyr the
cause of the accident, I would call it the immediate cause, I think it was the
result of the breaking of the hip vertical.

Q We nust not play with words, if that is the case, cause what I want 1o
to get at is this ; do you think that the first member of the bridgé Wiich,.gave
way was the hip-vertical ? A I do, but not that one which think pulled
the bearings off the pier.

Q Now, which hip-vertical do you say was the first member of the bridge
that gave way-? A I think that the first hip-vertical that gave way was at
the Victoria end of the bridge.

Q The hip-vertical at the Victoria end ? A Yes; but that is not the
hip-vertical that I refer to, the failure of which pulled the bearings off. 20,

Q I noderstand that.- What reasons do you give for saying that the hip-

vertical in your opinion at number 7 was the inember of the bridge to give

iway? A Well, I derived that from reading the evidence.

Q What particular portion of the evidence do you - found that opinion

upon ? A That I cannot tell vou.

Q But you are giving your opinion now, Mr. Bell, and I would like it.

A It is a lon'g time since I have been reading the evidence; but I will tell 3

you what I gathered from it.

Q That is what I want to get. A That there was a sound here (in-

dicating) upon that part of tke bridge when the car was passing that part of

the bridge, of a breakage of so e kind, and I think the' iost likely thing is

that hip-vertical.

Q Now, is that s te reason for the opinion which you have expressed?-

A No, it is not. That is the Victoria end.
40

Q I am speaking-now of the Victoria end, remember, keep closely to

that. What other, if any reason, have you for forning or expressing that
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opinion ? A I have no other reason except the reading of the evidence.

Q What particular portions of the evidenrce do you refer to when you say
that ? A I cannot go back and tell you that.

Q What were the facts contained in the evidence that you refer to ?: A I
cannot go back and tell you that, for my neinory is-not goo-d enougb.

Q So that at the present time you are stating your opinion that the hip-
vertical at 7 was the first member that broke ; but at the present time you can 10
give no reasoi for that, except some sound that was heard in that direction ?
A No, you have not stated it correctly. I say that the impression that was
left on ny mind by. naking a study of the evidence at that time was that the
hip-vertical broke first. But I do not profess to have memory enough- to re-
member all the evideice I read.

Q I see. Now, Mr. Bell, you knew you were going to be called in this
case, did you not ? A I did not.

Court: It is only fair to the witness to remember that he was not certain 20

that he would be obliged to' answer questions of this kind. MXy ruling yester-
day-I may be wrong-was evidently unexpected. It is only fair to remember
that.

Q That is quite true. But, Mr. Bell, you were not oniy called for this
trial, but you were called in a trial that preceded this, the case of Gordon and
Victoria ? A Yes.

Q And you were called on the other suit-? A Yes.
30

Q And vou wei-e called as an expert? A I do not profess to be an

expert.

Q We will not quarrel about words. You were called as an engineer of
experience ? A Yes.

Q With reference to the collapse of that bridge ? A Yes.

Q Wouldu't-you as the first thing in preparing for that trial, itr order to
give evidence satisfactory to the jury, and with clearness, consider what con- 40
clusion you had come to with reference to that bridge, and look over the
evidence ? A I do not think I wold-that it would be necessary for me to

-23-
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read the evidence again, because i got certain, well-defined impressions that I
bave retained.

Q I see ; the impressions are well defined ; but the reasons on which
those impressions are grounded are so vague that you have forgotten them
A They are not vague.

Q But such as that you have forgotten them ? A I have obtained an
opinion from that, but I have not memory enough to remember ail the evidence
on which I arrived at the opinion.

Q At the present time you cannot give the reasons on which you base
that opinion ? A ' Yes, I have given it.

Q Other than the one you mnentioned as to some sound which you say is
not the sole one ? What is vour answer to that, Mr. Bell ? A What is the
question P

The stenographer read it, as appears commencing at line 17 above.
20

A No, that is one of them1; I do not remember of them all.

Q Can you remeniber any other reason? Can you give any other
reason at the present time ? A I can give you no reasol except tþe evidence
and the impression I derived from it.

Q Can you tell me what part or portion of that evidence you refer to?
A No, I cannot tell you now.

Q What facts contained in the evidence.you refer to ? A If you gave 30
me the book I would have to go and look them up.

Q Iunderstaud; but I am not doing that. At the present time you are

not able to give the facts upon which you base that opinion ? A Yes- at the

present time I an unable to give aHi the reasoning that I arrived at that

opinion.

Q Vou are unable to give any other reason but this sound on which vou
based that opinion ? Is that so or iot? A Yes, at the present time.

40

Q At the present time. Now, the hip-vertical which you say you think

was the first thing to break, at No, 7, was not the hip-vertical with reference

to whichl this flaw has been mentioned, was it ? A Which flaw ?
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Q Did yoi find any flaw in any hip-vertical ? Ves, there is one partly
cut and broken.

Q At which end of the bridge was that hip-vertical? A It was at the
Esquinialt end.

Q So that you fouid no flaw or defect of any kind in the verticals at the
Victoria end ? A No.

Q -No. What is the size of those hip-verticals ? A They are 2 inches 0
by 1-2 inches by a half in the bar.

Q That is 4 inches of iron in all ? A Ves.

Q What would be the factor of safety of those hip-verticals, assuming a
load of 40,000 pounds ? A Where would you put the load?

Q I would put the load where it would be most favorable for your calcu-
lation, imnediately urgder, or opposite to that hip-vertical. Cai you see this
hip-vertical from there? Here is the hip-vertical which you say first 20
broke. (Witness goes to diagran). Now, I put the load right there at 7-I
put the tram car riglht at number 7 ; that is the best point for you is it ,not ?
A Ves; and do you put it cross-wise of the track ?

Q I do iot understand. I put it just where it was, Mr. Bell; do not
mistake me; I just put it where the tram car was. Now, putting the load
there what-was the factor of safety with 40,000 pounds on? A I do not know

40,oo00 pounds. But I can tell you something about it-.

Q No, no,'kindly first answer these questions. A I cannot tell you 30

that.

Q Perhaps I can help you to tell it. A I am not going to calculate

that.

Q Perhaps I can help you calculate it. 'A 1 have got all the infor-

mation here you want.

Q I know, Mr. Bell, perhaps you have, but I will get that after a while,
or perhaps my learned friend will get it. [have asked you before as to the 4

four hip-verticals Now, I will take merelv the two nearest the tram Une,

which would be presumably the ones to break if any broke. Is that correct?

A Yes.
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Q Now, I say, what would be the factor of safety
ticals with a load of 40,000 pounds, where the tram car
it, or can you not ? A I can give you sonething.

on these two hip-ver-
stood ? Cai you give

Q I do not want something else. A I have not got that figured.

Q I will figure it for you,. or at least, assist you iii it. There are 2
square inches of iron ; that is correct is it not ? A Yes.

Q The breaking strain of a square inch of iron is 5o,00o pounds ?-,
No, it is not.

Q Is not that the admitted load in all standard books on the subjéct ?
No, notfor suclh work as that.

A , '

4

Q Not for sucli work as that? A No.

Q What authority can voui shew me which differs? A
that goes, I will take my own opinion about that, I think
blzir d É trllP h rt if dn ivb hlnle;

Oh,
it is

as far as
perfectly

ausur U to vaute t at iron as at 50,000 potun s per square inc , 20

Q Why so ? A I take the mode of its manufacture, and what I ow
about the way in which it had been used.

Q Let us get back to soiething definite. Is that- not the recognized
breaking strain of a square inch of iron? A It depends on what kind of iron.-'

Q I am assuming, because vou know Mr. Waddell says if the iron is
fairly good, and you have iot disagreed with him on that point'? A If lie
says it is worth 5o,ooo pounds, most decidedly I disagree. 30

Q Therewere no flaws in the verticals at that end-; you found so and
have so stated. That is correct, isn't it ? A That there was only one cut.

Q No flaw with the verticals at that end? A I said nothing about the
quality of the iron.

Q There was no flaw< A No.

Q As far as the quality of the iron is concerned, are you prepared to say

it was not good iron ? A . I am prepared to'say that the hip-verticals was not

worth So,ooo pounds or anything like that.
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Q That is not the question. Are you prepared to say that the iron of those
hip-verticals at 7, that it was not fairly good iron ? A Yes, I am prepared to
say I do not think it was. It may have been originally, but not when I ex-
amined it.

Q It may have been originally but not when you examined it. Now,
did you so state at any tnie, at any prior examination ? A I don't know, I
don't remember about what I stated there.

Q I am told that so far as your evidence at the inquest. Was the iron in 1o
the hip-verticals equal to the general class of iron throughout the bridge-in
the hip-verticals at 7, Mr. Bell? A What is that

Q (Question read>. A Do vou ask me that question now

Q Ves. A I say is nay have been originally.

Q Ves. Now, I will refer to vour evidence at page 462, the first question

at the top "The iron generally vou consider a good quality." (A) "I

suppose it is as good as is generally put in bridges." Is that correct? A 20

Ves.

Q That is' correct. Now, rememuber when I am speaking about this

thing, Mr. Bell, so that we may iot have any unknown factor brought ii, at

the present time I am assuming the iron to be in as good a condition approxim-

atelv as when it was put in ; I am assuming that. We will come to the ques-

tion of its having been strained, and possibly weakened, later on. Now,

assuming that, is not the regular standard breaking strain of a square inch of

iron 5o,ooo pounds ? A Yes, of good new iron in the bar.

Q It is ordinary average good iron A Yes.

Q Which you have stated the iron in that bridge generally to be ? A

No; I did not state it to be; I say it has been probably.

Q Remember, I an only referring now to the iron as it originally stood.

Now, the breaking strain of that would be 50,00< pounds to the square inch ?

A Ves.

Q Of the two it would be xoo,ooo pounds ? A Yes.

Q A 40,000 pound load put where it was, would be how. much strain on

those two verticals ? A You mean- 40,oap0 pounds put on the two verticals ?
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Q Mr. Bell, I think I am clear on that arn asUring 40,000 pounds
on the tram car ; I am; assuming 4,e train car and the trapo ude just where it
stood, which is two-thirds over. Now, I ask you what would be the strain oit
those 2 hip-verticals at 7, with the 40,000 Poud woad where it stood? A
Tell me the weight on the verticals.

Q I am asking you that. A I am not going to figure now.

Q I will help you. If the 40,000 pounds were immediately below theverticals, all the strain would fall on these two, approximately? A tes. he

Q If the 40,oo pound load was put in the centre of the bridge equallybetween the two, thein one half would go to this vertical, agd halfto the other?
A Yes.

Q That is, they would then have a strain of 20,000 pou nds? Yes.
Q If it were. put there where the tram lne was, how much strain would

the tramlthree-sgo to these verticals (indicating)? A Well, they would get over three.fourths. 
20

QDid you not say two-thirds at the, inquest ? A No, I don't think so.I have gone into it since. Three-fourths would be about it.

Q Three-fou-ths would be 30,000 pounds ? A Yes.

Q Then the strain on these verticals would be 30,000 pounds ? A Fromthe car ?

Q Yes, and I am putting the car at 40,000 pounds, and it is not proved 30
that exactly, but approximately. Now, the.factor of safety, assuming the ironto be as it was originally with that load immediately at 7 would be whatd Ihave got it down now so that it is not much figuring. A What is the weightyou stated ?

Q 30,ooo ponnds. A 30,000 pounds; you have got 15,oo pounds tothe square inch on it.

Q Give me your answer as to what the factor of safety would be ? AIf you assume. 5o,ooo pounds as the strength it would be better than three. 40

Q It would be exactly 3 and one-third. A Yes.
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Q The factor of safety is got by dividing roo,ooo pounds by the load; a
very simple thing! A Ves.

Q That is what it would bc originally ? A Yes.

Q Which would deteriorate the more during that 1 i years that bridge
was in there, the iron at verticals number 7, or the floor-beai which remained
there all the time ? A Oh, the floor beam would rot of course.

Q Would there be any question about which would deteriorate the more ? 10
A Well, I don't know about that ; because the bridge was subjected to heavy
loads, and the iron may have been deteriorating the whole tine; and I think
it likelv it was.

Q The one thing we are sure of, the wood was deteriorating all the
time ? A Yes.

Q And the iron nay have been ? A It was, no doubt.
Q It was, no doubt ? A It was, no doubt ; both of them.

20
Q But the wood, from what you saw yourself of that beam at number

3, almost completely rotten-would you not say that the wood, as a matter of
fact, did deteriorate more rapidly ? A Yes, it had deterioiated rapidly at one
point.

Q Now, I say, why do vou put the first member of that bridge that gave

way as the hip-verticals at 7, instead of the floor-beam at 3 ? A Because it
has-the only properly calculated strain-sheet--that has the lowest factor of
safety in the bridge. 30

Q What was the factor of safety of flôor-beam 3 at that time ? A Well,
the factor of safety of a ne w floor-beam with a 20 ton car would be about 3-3.

Q Now, let usfigure that factor of safety out. The factor of safety of the
floor-beams originally, when new, was something like 4? A I cannot tell
you that.

Q That has been already sworn to; you would not co,tradict that ? A
I would not confirm i-t, because I have not gone into it 40

Q You won't contradict it ? A But I am aware that the factor of safety
of a floor beam. with a 20 ton car is 3-3-
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Q You will not contradict the factor of safety that has been given for those
new floor-beams, it being about 4, as i,ooo pounds to the lineal foot ? A It
seems to me to be too low.

Q jWill you contradict it ? A I have not calculated it. But it seems
too low.

Q For the present, then, we will assume it, if you wonî't contradict it.
The floor-beam, assuning the whole weight was upon the one panel, the or-
dinary load would be 18,ooo pounds, would it not ? A Ves. 10

Q The breaking strain would be 72,000 páinds, would it not ?
Yes.

Q The weight would be 'the same on that foor beam as on the vertical,
that is 30,000 pounds actual weight, while the train was over it. Is that cor-
rect ? A I cannot follow you through all that, Mr. Davis.

Q Is tlhat so difficult to folow ? A If you want me to go into calcula-
tions you must come out of Court and give me time. I am not going into a 20
lot of calculations.

Q You can calculate it more rapidly thari I can. A No, I don't sup-
pose I can.

Q I will go through with it slowly, because it is important. Assuming
the original factor of safety to be, as has been sworn to, about 4 in the floor-

beam- A Ves.

Q For a weight of 1,ooo pounds to the lineal foot, that would be to the 30

whole span there, 18,ooo pounds; is not that correct? A Yes.

Q The breaking strain woùld be 4 times that; that is 72,000 pounds.

.Isthat cQrrect? A The breaking strain would be 4 times that ?

Q Yes, the factor of safety-with a factor of safety of 4 you cat get at

the breaking strain by multiplying ? A Ves, that is right.

Q 72,000 pounds then would be the breaking strain of that beain?

A Ves. 40

Q The load which was on it, assuming this car to have been directly-
over the beam, the strain which would. be on it would be 30,ooo pounds,
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would it not, and from your owi1 figuring ? A Ves.

Q What would the factor of safety then be if the floor-beam was new ?
A If thefloor-beam was new ?

-Q es, I am assuming now that it was iiew, the same as I have assumed
the iron. A I have not·figured that.

Q I will figure it for you. Divide 72,ooo by 30,ooo and that will give

it, won't it ? A - Yes.

Q And it is a trifle over two? A Ves.

Q Two and two-thirtieths ? A I will not endorse that as being the
right. way to view it.

Q That is what it will be, though, two and two-thirtieths? A- Yes.

Q And the factor of safety in the iron, figurincg it the same way, would

be three and one-third ? A I don't think it has anything to do-it is not the 20

proper way to view it.

Q But is there anvthing wrong with the figuring ? No; the figuring is
correct. But it is no calculation of mii it is yours.

Q For the weight you think that broke first. that broke first

and the car once got clear of that panel, the bridge would be al right, would

it not ? A Oh, the car might run across the bridge, certainly,.

Q Yes. That is, all that these verticals at 7 and at i do is to hold up 3

the load. that is on that particular panel ? A Yes.

Q That is, those from uothing to 6 and from nothing to 2 form no part

of the truss proper ? A No.

Q Those sections between, if you put a load on one of them, it will dis-

tribute it to another? A Yes.

Q If you have a load at 6, that load will -be distributed in this way,

would it not (indicating)? A Yes. 40

Q Run up diagonally, and down here, up here, and down here (indi-

cating)? A It passes through the triangulation; although you did not take

it exactly right
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Q There is no way, Mr. Bell, by which you can put weights on this hip-
vertical-A Except by the load upon it. Q Except by the load actually
uron it.

Q That is the difference between the hip-verticals, and the hip-vertical
pots ? A Ves.

Q The other vertical..posts will have a weight on. them although the
load will not be at that point? A Ves, that is correct.

1o
Q But the hip-verticals will not have a load on themexcept when it is

right there ? A Yes, that is right.

Q Consequently as soon as the car had got past number 7, if the hip-vert-

ical broke at nubiner 7, there would not be the slightest reason -in the world

for the bridge collapsing ? A No.

Q Unless something else gave way ? A Ves.

Q And practically being a new cause? A Yes, that is right.

Q Now, then, we will pass over this, because, after all, the hip-vertical

number 7 seems to be iminaterial, as the car had passed it ? A Yes.

Q Now, what broke them, in youropinion, after hip-vertical 7?-we will

put that away. A I cannot tel1 you.

Q So that you caninot tell us really what caused the bridge-to go down ?

A I cannot ; I have told von that alrady.

Q What'is your opinion? A It is partly derived from reading the evi- 30

dence.

Q But what is your opinion? A 1 think the bearings were pulled

right off the Esquimalt pier.

What pulled those bearings off? A I think they were pulled off

by the end chord links.

You think thev were pulled off by the end chord links ? A By the 4
tension in then.

Q What caused the extra tension-because, I presume there must have

been extra tension to do it; is that right ? A Yes.
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Q What caused the extra tension ? A It was the breaking of the hip-
verticals.

Q Von tohIme the breaking of the hip-vertical could not affect the
breaking of the bridge ? A . The one at the other end.

Q But do you say the second thing that broke was the hip-vertical at num-
ber i ? A I cannot sav what the second was.

Q You cannot say what was second ? A I cannot say whether it was
the second, or third, or the fourth.

Q Yo cannot give an opinion then as to what broke the hip-vertical at

7 ? A No, not next afterwards. -

Q And the breaking of the hip- vertical at 7 would not affect it? A No.

Q Now, as a matter of fact, what was it that I understood you to say

yesterday,-because 1 did not quite understand it at the time, and I want to be

sure what you meant before I ask you about it-as to the position of the trucks 20

and the breaking of the iron rails ; what do you adduce from the facts that

the broken rails were broken east of wihere the trucks were found ? A I

adduce"the fact that there must have been some strain on the hip-verticals.

Q Do you adduce that the car with its load had arrived at hip-vertical

number one-at floor-beam number i? A Yes, I think it did arrive near it.

Q How ear ? A Possibly right up to it

Q At any rate the load had passed number 2 ; that is your assumption? 30
A Yes.

Q And you base your assumption upon the fact that you found the iron

broken east of where the trucks were, that is east of number 2, near the Vic-

toria side ? A I base it partly on that-

Q Why do you say that proves what yon assume? A Why do I say

that ?

Q Why, yes-? A Because I think that the great part of the weight-0

having been transferred to those verticals, the breaking of the hip-~vertical

above the nuts brought a certain amount of weight down on the middle-.
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Q No, you are getting awav from what I ask von. I am 1talking abo t

now, why you place the car at betwcc o aud 2, and you give as your reason,
the only reason we have hcard as vet, that von found the tramway iron broke
betweeni point 2 and the Victoria side-the rails of the tramway ? A Ves,
that is the reason.

Q That~is the reason. Now, I ask vou why is that the reasont ? A I
think that the probability is that the car had run forward and corne back,
perhaps, a slight distance.

Q But that is not what I am asking you. Vou have given a certain
reason whv vou think the car was between o and 2. I ask -ou why that is the
reason. Why should you say that lbcause the tram car rail was broken cast of

2, that therefore the car mnust have passed 2 ? A I did not give that as the
principal reason. for the position of the trucks.

Q Not as the principali reason ? A I gave that as a reason foi

position of the car having been further ahead and ri back.
the

Q Now, I ask vou whv was the car fr her ahead ?

rails would naturallyi hang down towards the, eastern side,

would not go throuh ni li the track was burst completelv.

Q Yes. Woid not the track-i think oiid the

broken on the Es umalt span. Is that correct -A Yes.

Q They were broken. east of point

lapse withouit the rails brenking, counl, it ?
span collapsing, the breaking of the rails?

A Because the
and the trucks

rails were not

2. Now, that span could not col-
That is a necessary resuilt of the

A Yes.

Q Do you mean to tell me vou could teli where these rails would break,

no matter where the car was A They were seen where they were broken.

Q Hut assuming no one knew where they were oroken at ati,

tell me that the place where the car was on the bridge would show

rails would necessarilv break ? A No.

wguld vou
wvhere the

Q The two are in no wav connected together necessarily A No, not

in that way.

Q Now, is there any other reason hvy you think the car was

and 2?. A Yes. from the position w-here the trucks were found.
between o
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Q Where were tivy found ? A Between o and 2.

Q They were foiid between o aiid 2 ? A Ves, between i and 2.

Q They would naturally go a little forward, wouldn't they, in falling ?
The car was in motion, you know, when the bridge broke ? A Go for-
ward ?

Q Ves. A Well, that is doubtful, I think. I think they would go
pretty straight down.

Q The Esquimalt end of the bridge broke first, on your _own statement,
and was pulled off the pier; it went down first, then, didn't it ? A I think
so, yes.

Q And the car was already noving at the time the first break took
place ? A Ves.

Q That is the first fact we know ? A -Ves.

20Q The second fact on your statenent is that the end towards which the
car was travelling lowered first ? A Yes.

Q Which would necessarily, would it not, give some impetus to the car?
A Ves.

Q Cars will run down-hill faster than they wIll up-hill ? A Ves, sir.

Q And they were then moving. Then, wonld not the necessary result
be that tUie cars would go farther forward and light down below farther for-

n 30
ward than where the car stood on the bridge? A That is possible.

Q Not only possible, but isn't it absolutely sure? A No, I do not
think so. , .It is quite possible.

Q It is altogether probable, isn't it, Mr. Bell? You will go that far,
won't you ? A I don't know.

Q You don't know that vou will go that far ? A No; I arn doubtful
abôut that. 40

You said 'something yesterday about the car having gone forward and run

back ? A Yes.
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Q That is the bottom of the arm there ? A I said that the car might
have gone up to the hip-vertical r, and come back a few feet, I tbought.

Q Do you mean before it went down, or after it went down? A I
mean before It wept down.

Q Before it went down. But if the forward end \was pulled off the pier,
that end would be lower? A Well, after it came off, yes. After it came off
completely.

I0
Q And that end was what lowered first. You heard Mr. Wilson's evi-

dence, the street inspector? A Yes. The first thing that would take place
would be deflection at the 37 /2 ft. point.

Q Wait a moment ; you heard froi a number of witnesses that that end
of the bridge was the first to sink A Ves.

Q Mr. Wilson said that his horse had his front feet on to the other span,
and it was dragged back and could not get up ; and you will remember thathe
stated that the car w as soinething in the neighborhood of fifty feet behind him 20

at that time? A I do not remember that.

Q You don't renember that ? A However, I do not dispute that.

Q Did you hear his evidence in the Gordon case? A No, I did not.

If I dont sit very close up to a man I cannot hear him.

Q I see. But at any rate you know from his evidence that you heard at

the inquest that lie was considerablv alhead of the car ?, A Ves.
30

Q Now, Mr. Bell, you said with reference to- the floor that the specifica-

tions showed that it could not possiblv be more than an inch on the chords at

some places? -A Ves ; I believe that is wrong. I noticed that myself. Ac-

cording to the specifications it would be so, but according to the way the

bridge was actually built, I believeit was not so.

Q So then I need not go into that ? A No, it was a mistake on both

sides.

Q Ves. Now, assuming that the floot did extend over, I understood you 40

to say-A According to the specifications that would have been the fact, but

according to the way the bridge was built it was not a fact.
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Q As far as I can see, the specifications do not bear on this at all ; it
might be, and it miight not be. Now, I understand you to say that you would
not consider it wise to run a tramcar along supported only by the flooring, with
one beam gone ? A Yes.

It would nîot be wise, of course, But it might happen that at one par-
ticular time there might be sufficient support there to draw a car out ; after it
fell-after the flooring slipped it got a support on that bottom chord and with the
assistance that it had with the stringers runniug across, the longer ones and the
smaller ones, it might pull it ont ? My conviction about that is, you can have 4
no practical engineer to endorse that.

Q Vou stated that already, and von statcd it as strongly as you could ?
A I know I have built bridges, and I know what is the custom-

Q I would like to have vou answer the question. I understand that you
do not believe in that? A I do not believe in it at ail.

Q A reiteration of it will not make it stronger. But will you say this.
that if the flooring had fallen and drôpped to the bottom chords,- that it might 20
not be that that 3 inch planking, together with the rest of the floor system, as-
suming a floor-beam had brokan, might be quite sufficient support-it would
only be needed for a moment or two-to draw that car out of danger and let it
go off. A . do not think it would draw it out of danger.

Q It night be the electricity that would draw it out ? A It mnight pre-
vent it from going through, it might possible, and it night not. But if you
ask me if I would take the responsibility of its not going througli, I would not
do so ; but it night possiblv happen. 30

Q Certainly. A man would be insane if he did it deliberately. But in

1892 it-did ? A I don't know anything about what occurred in 1892.

Q You have heard the evidence, a floor beam did break in 1892 ? A I

did not pay any particular attention to tliat.

Q You heard the evidence that a floor-beam broke ? A Ves.

Q And the floor systeni ii some way or other held the car up and it went 40
over ? A Ves.

Q Now, referring to those stringers, you said in your evidence, I think,
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yon made this statement in your evidence you suggested that probably the
stringers alone might have supported ? A 'That the stringers alone ?

Q .Alone. A Without ties ?

Q Wîtl1 the onc floor beain ? A If I stated that, I said what I did not
nean ; for i did not believe anything of the kiid.

.Q I read to vou froin the evidence, page 467, at the top ' Have you
calculated the strains on the floor-beams ? (A) Well, Ithink I have got some Io
notes about thern.' (Q) The stri-ngers under the track ? (A) Ves, I have
calculated the stringers, and I can tell you that froin memnory. I make out
that the two stringers "-von are speaking now of the ten by twelve stringers.
A Ves.

Q -" will 'arry 24 to with a factor of safety of four. " Do von still

adhere to that statement at 'the present time ? A No, I cannot say' that ; I

cannot tell von that. If von will allow'me I will tell vou what I do adhere to.

Q Answer this, and then I will let you yon explain. I just ask yon, do 20

you adhere to that opinion which I have read ? A Yes, I adhere to it so far

-I sav, when I made it it was a properly made calcilation, and I supposed it

was right.

Q Now give any, explanation you like, I won't stop you.

A Wef1. I have calculated the strength of the stringers better since, and
I make out that the stringers have a factor of safety of 4 for a 20 ton car.

Y Do von know a book called Carnegie's Pocket Conipanion ? A. 30

Ves.

Q That is a standard book? A It is.

Q Those were fir stringers, I believe ? A Yes.

Q Would fir be stronger, or weaker, or approximately the same, as oak ?

A Weli, I have forgotten now, what is in that book for oak, I cannot tell.

Tell me what it is.
40

Q I an fot asking for that. A I can tell you no figures.
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Q I don't want figures, but only a relative statement. Vou must know
which is stronger, fir or oak ? A I suppose good oak is stronger,

Q We will take oak as being the same then. It will be fair if I take oak.
Fir is not so liard. Now, you know what that table is ? It is for the pur-
pose of getting at the strength. A No, it is no use whatever for that.

Q What is it for ? A It is for distributed loads ; but it is not for con-
centrations.

[o
Q Do you inean to say that that table is for getting at a load which is

equally distribnted over the whole of the timber ?, A Vou can get a dis-
tributed load over it, but vou canuot derive concentrationsout of that table.

Q IDo you tell me that this is for the purpose nerely of getting at a load
which is laid evenlv over say a fifteen foot hanger. A Ves, or else a centre-
bearing load, which is equal to one half.

'Q Can you tell me what sort of a load could be equally distributed over a
long length ? I)id you ever hear of that ? A I have heard- 20

Q Would it be much use to have a table like that? A Yes, it is. I
often use it myself, but not for that purpose.

Q It is page 186, edition of 1893. Now, after all, I think we can take
your evidence, Mr. Bell, and go on still. Vou say it is for a uniformly dis-
tributed load ? A Or a centre bearing.

Q A case like this for a steamer would be a more severe strain, would it

not ' A More severe than distributed, yes. -30

Q So that if I am taking a table which gives a uniformly distributed

weight, I am> taking a favorable table for your purpose? A Yes.

Q So that we can go on with this table ? A Yes.

.Q Just look at the table tlifere; so that you will see that I am not mis

leading. Look it over. A I do niot need to look it over , I know it.

Q It is given for a factor of safety of 4, the same as you mentioned those 4o
stringers have. They would have a factor of safety of 4, with 20 tons on ? A

Yes.
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Q Now, oak. 'This table is given for vhite pilne. A Yes.

Q In order to get oak the ain<lit muînst be increased1 by one-third ; you
know the table, I an reading vou tiat so we will take wvhat is given in this,
table, and then we have to increase it by one-third A Yes.

Q Now, that is, of course, for an i.nch broad ; that is one inch ? A
Ves.

Q Now, these stringers-I will give vou the benefit of their being only ro
18 feet long, and assume that they are supported by I)oth floor beains. A
Yes.

Q In other words-now 12 in., 18 ft. woid h.be 670 pounds to the inch'
A Mes.

Q Now. in order to get oak, which woulid be fir, you would add one-third
to that ; that would bc sonething like 220 or 225, which would make about

895-we will say roughly 900 pounds to the inch ; that is right ? A Yes.
20

Q Now, to get a 1o-inch stringer, vou would multiply that by o. 'That

wouild be 9,0o pounds. A Ves.

Q 9,ooo pounds then wotuld bc the weight, then, that one stringer

would support, and twice that would be two stringers which would be 18,ooo

pounds ? A According to that table.

Q Whieh is considerably less than 20 tons? A Yes.

Q A little less than half ? A Yes. 30

Q And I suppose again, as you said before we adjourned yesterday, if

there is any difference between vou and the book, one is in error, and this book

must be the one? A I sav I do not think that book is right for that case.

Q That is all. A But if you care, I could put in a calculation upon

that point, which will show that there will be a facter of safety of 4 ; I have

no objection to put it n.

40
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Rfl-EXAMINED Y1 MR. TAYLOR.

Q When vou speak about that book being wrong, do yon iean the
calculations or the assumptions ? A I do not think the book is right at all in
assumptions there, because there are no experiments there to find out the value
of. Douglas fir.

Q That book contains a formula for calculating ? A Ves, it is a .verJ o
safe table ; anvone who uses it wouild be verv much on the side of safety.

Q When you speak of assumuptions on which the calculations have been
made by Mr. Warner and Mr. Lockwood and the assumptions on which vou
made vours as to the factor of safetv, what do you mean by that, exactly, Mr.
Bell ? A Well, the factor of safetv mnust be calculated with reference to sorne
ultimate tensile strengtlh of the nateriai if you are talking about tensile
strengths such as bars and links.

Q Do I understand you to say that their figures are wrong, based on 20

their data ? A Their figures are right, based on their data, and my figures

are right, based on mine. I dispute their assuuptions.

Q You dispute their assumptions ? A Yes.

Q What is the main difference between their assumptions and yours,?

A Well, the original strain-sheet is calculated for 6oo pounds per foot run,

and a moving load of a thousand pounds per foot run, half upon each of two

trusses, with the result that the tension bars appear to have a factor of safety 30
of five, and correct for the loads given as stated, the ultinate tensile strength

of the iron being taken at 50,000 pounds per square inch. A strain-sheet calcu-

lated with reference to the conditions which prevailed at the time of the acci-

dent I would calculate this way ; the weight of 900 pounds per foot run of the

truss, one thousand pounds per foot run for a moving load, and a panel load of

20 tons. Ore half of the 900 pounds per foot, three-ten ths of the 1000 pounds

per foot, and 3·4 of the shewn panel Ioad was borné by the north truss ; with

the result that the factor of safety of the north truss was much lower thain those

on the original strain-sheet ; the ultimate tensile strength of the iron being

taken as 35,ooo pounds per square inch for welded links, and 3r,250 pounds 40

per square inch for botton hangers and hip-verticals.

Q I understand frorm that, then, that vou put the quality of the iron
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somewhat different from 50,000 pounds per square inch tensile strength ?, A
Ves.

Q You put it at 35 ? A Yes.

Q Now, did you say anything about the reason for that before ? Mr.
Davis asked you a question lere-. A I do not remember about that if. I
gave-.

Q L will just show you, Mr. Bell. Page 462. Mr. Davis asked you this 10

question "The iron generally ? "-lie asked you if you were iot asked this
before at the inquest-" lthe iron generally you consider a good quality.? A
I suppose it is as good as is generally put in bridges," and he stopped there.
I will read vou the balance of the evidence that y'ou gave to that question,
which my learned friend did not read to you :-" But there is one-I have not
got much confidence in rods tlhat are welded, and perhaps upset, and then a
screw cut in them. They go through so many different operations it is hard to
tell whaf they inay do when they are subjected to strains." A Yes.

Q That is the answer vou made at that time, the whole of the answer. 20

Now, that strain-sheet and the specification was calculated upon the basis that
the iron was not welded, but weldless? A Ves.

Q And the iron, you find, in fact' was welded ? A Yes, welded.

• Q And for that reason you say rhat that assumption cannot be fairly taken
at 50,000 pounds to the square inch? A Yes.

Q And for that reason vou sav that the strain-sheet could not be fairly
taken at 50,ooo pounds to the square incli? A Yes, I say that 50,000 pounds 30
would be too miuçh, I believe.

Q That is, it is too much to fairly take at the time of the original con-

struction of the bridge ? A Yes, even then too inuch.

Q Evén then ? A Yes. You see, you should understand that because

if those were properly-made weldless links, made in a good shop, properly-made,
upset links.-

- 40
An intermission here occurred at request of jury.

Mr. Taylor: Q Now, you say that the fact that welds were in this iron

made the basis of So,ooo pounds to the square inch unreliable for the calculation
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made upon it ? A It gave too high a value of ultimate strength.

Q Would the fact that the bridge had been subjected to heavy loads at
any period affect the ultimate tensile strength of the iron ? A It would.

Q Benefically or otherwise ? A It would be detrimental to it.

Q Well, do you think that 35,000 pounds to the square inch would
fairly represent the tensile strength, originally or at the time of the accident ?
A Oh, I think originally, I can give you a reason for that. When I have o
been building bridges myself I have torn the rods in two with a wheel wrench
where they have been welded. And I would not from ny own experience
put any higher value on them. Because I have had to send the rods back to
the shop to be re-welded.

Q Then, do I understand that the effect of a weld is to render a strain-

sheet unreliable to the extent of any defects in the weld ? A Yes.

Q To the extent of any defects in the weld ? A Yes.

Q Now, can you tell froi looking at it, ordinarily, what

weakness it would cause by the weld ? A No, you cannot tell.

see that one bad weld would bring down a whole bridge.

percentage of
But you can

Q And you cannot tell from looking at it what the character of the weld

is? A No.

Q So that the fact that it is welded might vary that strain-sheet anything

from 5. to 8o per cent. ? A Oh, yes. But one would not expect to find such

a tremendous difference as that.

Q No, but it renders the whole strain-sheet uncertain and unreliable ?

A Certainly. Yes.

Q Now, that original calculation of the strain-sheet -was based on an

evenly distributed load, also, was it not, on both chords ? Yes, it was based on

a load per foot run, and a panel load derived from it.

Q Yes, that is to sav, evenly distributed on the

distributed equally on both trusses.

Q It was distributed equally on both trusses.

floor ? A Yes, it was

That, of course, was
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before the tram car line ran over the bridge at all. It was not built for that
purpose? A No.

Q And the fact that this car line ran over about three-fourths to one side
of the bridge would still further reduce that? A Oh, yes.

Q Materially? A Oh, yes, very much.

Q Very much? A Very much. Of course that has been given in
evidence already.

Q It is on the same principle as carrying a pail of water over a stick ? A
The same exactly. to

Q If you put the pail over to one side, the man at that side carries the
most of the water ? A That is the true principle.

Q The greater strain is on the man that hàs the pail nea:est to him ? A
Yes, the man that has the pail nearest lias the most of the load.

Q Now, I did not quite understand what you meant when you spoke
about the car going forward and back there; that you formed an opinion of
that kind from the position of the rails after the accident. What did you mean
exactly by that? A Well, I meant ti.is, that it is very likely that the car.load
had arrived as far forward as the hip-vertical. 20

Q Yes, I understand that. That is as to about i? A Yes.

Q And you think it went back? A Yes.

Q In what position werc the car rails after the accident? A They
hung down.

Q They hung down? Would you mind taking a little slip of paper and
indicating roughly to the jury? A Yes, I can, as I remember it (taking
paper).

Q Just draw it shortly; it will oly take a second? A (Making sketch) 3
As well as I remember it was like that.

Q Kindly bring this illustration over here to the jury? A One break
-was here (indicating point which was marked 1). This is the east end (indica-
ting) and this is the west end (marking the same). And this is another break
somewhere about the centre. Here is one break and here is the other (indi-
cating). Now, I don't know where the end of this went that correspouded to
here (indicating); it might have gone away in th' water. The bottom end of
that went I don't know where.

Q The portion marked at the west end represents the pier nearest Esqui-
malt? A Ves.

Q And there were rails hanging over the top of that pier" into the water?
A Yes

Q Two rails werethere? A Two rails, yes sir.

Q How were those rails fastened above, on the floor or stringer? A
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They were fish-plated to the rails on the nex: span.

Q The car could not go down until the floor fell away from the rails? A
No, the car naturally could not go down as long as it was resting on the rails.
Something had to go first.

Q Yes. Well, now, was the rail upon the Gorge side,-that would be
on the north side-was that longer or shorter from the pier ? Did it extend
eastward beyond the pier fartier than the south rail, or was the converse the
case? A Oh, this one that was broken, that break I believe is on the north 10

side.

Q That would be the Gorge side ? A Yes.

Q The rail on the Gorge side ? A The rail on the Gorge side is broken
up on top of the pier.

Q Broken on top of the pier ? A Yes.

Y Which pier ? Broken on the eastern on the Victoria pier ? A Yes. 20

Q On top of the Victoria pier? A ¥es, the -north rail broken on the

Victoria pier.

Q So that that rail on the Gorge side remained intact, from the pier on

the Esquimalt end to a distance of about how much ? A Oh, somewhere be-

low this break.

Q It broke, then, very close to the pier ? A Yes. -

30
Q On the Victoria end ? A Yes.

Q How about the rail on the south side of the Victoria side? A It

broke somewhere about the centre.

Q That is somewhere between three and four? A Yes; or it might
have been a little east of that ; I think probably a little.

The diagram 'made by the witness was put in, marked exhibit "A i.

40Q Now, Mr. Bell, you said you examiined this broken beam ? A Yes.

Q Do you think it was possible there could have been an auger hole
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within 5 or 6 or 8 inches of the hanger Ioles on top of the beam, without you
seeing it? A Miglit 1 look for a tuonent again ?

Q Yes. A (Witness looks at model) I did not see that hole bored.

Q This is the iodel U (marked exhibit U) ; it represents a section of
the floor beani ; these two large holes represent the original hanger holes; this
small starting hole here, the auger hole, is whe.re Mr. Cox says relatively he
bored.

[o
Mr. Davis My friend is wrong there.

Mr. Taylor: The red point is where lie said lie bored ; lie fixes no dis-
tance-from the hanger except this red point

Court: Except relatively as sliewn there.

Mr. Taylor ; He does not do that. This starting point here represents
the size ; the red point represents where Mr. Cox says he bored, and that is the
position here, Mr. Bell. Now, I ask you as a result of you examination, would 20
it have been possible to have lad an auger hole approximately that .close to
the hanger holes on the Gorge side, without you having seen it ? A No, I
do not think so. I think if lie had bored a hole that size I would have found
it out?

Q How much time did vou spend there looking for that hole ? A Oh,
we were a long time there.

Q I mean to say looking for this auger hole ? A We might have been
twenty minutes. 30

'Q You inighthave been 20 minutes looking for it ? A Mr. Wilmot
was very anxious about it and I looked. I did not go there for that particular
purpose.

Q But lie was there for that purpose? A In fact I wanted to go away.

Q You wanted to go awav? Why did you want to go awav A I
wanted to go and do other things : I was busy.

40
Q I don't know whether you said that Vou saw the section of the
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hanger hole in the broken bean? A Ves, I did. saw part of a section of a
hole.

Q Do you know whetlier that was in the long side or the short side of thebeam, the long length or the short length? A I think it was the longlength.

Q Vou think it was the long length ? A . Ves.

Q Now, what weight, with the car going over the span, would there beon the sidewalk-side of that haiiger? A Wliat weight ?

Q Yes. A Eighteen tons.

Q On the sidewalk side? A On the hanger on the north side.

Q Perhaps it is my fault in not putting the question quite clearly to you
There is the roadway, which we will say thiis sheet of paper represents ; then
the lower chords run down each side of this sheet of paper? A Ves.

Q The sidewalk is outside ? A Ves, the sidewalk is outside. 20

Q Outside of the lower chords ? A Ves.

Q Now, would the fact of the car passing over this roadway cause any
strain on the sidewalk ? In otier words, to put it this way, would a defect in
the floor-beam, outside of the hanger on the sidewalk side-would that neces-
sarily affect the roadway side of the beam ? A I do not understand the
question vet.

Court Q The evidence is that the boring was done under the sidewalk, 30
outside of the roadwav? A Ves.

Q Would the boring at such a place affect the solidity of the roadway
itself ? A Oh, no, I do not think it would, not if it was bpred outside. I did
not understand what he was driving at.

Mr. Taylor: It would not affect the roadwav inside of the sidewalk.

Q You saw floor beam number 7 ? A Yes.
40

Q Was that bored? A Ves.

Q Anything in the bored hole ? A Yes.
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Q What? A A plug.

Q A wooden plug, or oakni ? A There miglit be some oakum around
it, although I do not think it.

Q Referring back to numnber 3 floor-bean, the fact-of a bore being in it,
would thatÀfave,,attracted your attention if there had been an anger ho}e there ?
A Yès, I thin&t would.

Mr. Davis Q My learned friend asked a question that did not arise ont so
of the cross-examnation, that is as to the effect of the auger hole.

Court : I will allow yon to ask questions on that.

Mr. Davis : Q When you say an auger hole bored there two or three
inches fron the hangers-when yon say that would not affect the roadway, you
are speaking merely, are vou not, of the amount of wood taken out, and the
consequent diminution of the strength in the bean ? A Ves, I am speaking
of the fact that the hole is away where it would not do any harm.

2-0

Q But rot will travel? So that the question of rot would not be affected
bv what you said? A No.

Mr. Taylor Q For instance, if vou found rot on the roadway side of
the hanger, would von attribute that to its coming from the hanger holes, or
from an auger hole there on the sidewalk side ? A I woùld attribute that to
the general design of the holes in the bean.

Q Yon would attribute that to the general design of the holes, in the

beam? A Ves. 30

Q How nuch sectional area did thev take ont of the beam ? A I think
it was 96 square inches of sectional area bored out of the bean.

Q What is the total sectional area ? A I am not certain of that. If I

had time I could get the book and show vou, but I have not got it here.

Q Have yon got it hi the Court House? A No, not in town.

Q Can you give me an approxinate idea of the proportions of the whole ? 40
A I think it was less than 50 per cent.

Q How much less ? A I think it was nearly 50 per cent.
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Q The fact of puttiug the beams in originally with those hanger holesand those diagonal sway-braces, holes in connection with it would take out
nearly 50 per cent. of the sectional area of~the beam ? A Yes.

Q You mean about that much ? A Yes.

Q And expose it to mc sture and rot ? A Yes, but I remember at the
same time calculating that there was still enough timber left in the beam toresist the shearing of the strain there where the beam is now.

Mr. Davis: Now, myJlarned friend lias examuined on a point which Inever had a chance to examine upon.

Court: I M iot going to limit you by strict rules of evidence on the one·side or the other, but I hope you will this time exhaust the important ques-
tions.

Mr. Davis: Q Now, Mr. Bell, isn't it a fact that if you bored a hole
at this point, that water w*ill get in there and cause rot. That is correct, isn't
it ? A Yes. 

20

Q And low far that rot will travel within four years is a thing that
neither you or anybody else can say ? A No, I do not profess to say how
much.

Juror: Q I would like to ask if the two portions of the beam that 'were
found were neasured to see if the length was the same as the whole beam.

The Court; Q Were they, Mr. Bell ? A No, I believe they were
not; but the broken parts were looked at to see if they would come close to- 30
gether.

Q Were they fitted in together ? A No, I did not fit them in, but I
remember looking at them.

As regard their capability of fitting in closely did you formni any opin-
ion ? A Yes, I did. I do not think they could have bored a hole in them
without my seeing it.

Juror: Q Would the length of the two pieces be the. length of the 40
whole beam ? A If they had been taken up and put together I believe they
would.
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Q But you do not know it ; you did not measure'? A. No, I do not
know it, I did notput then together.

Q Was there any hanger holes on the short piece ? Did you see a sec-
tion or sign of the hanger holes? A On the broken end.

Q Did you see any on the short piece? A I do not think so, I think I
saw them in the big end.

Q The auger hole only being two or three inches from the other holes
there might have been a piece of wood dropped off of it, and looked like the
other hole ? A You mean the auger hole that was bored into the beam ?

Q Yes. That a piece of wood might have dropped off of it ? A No, I
think not, because my recollection is that what I looked at shewed the thread
of the screw.

Mr. Davis: Q The thread would be underneath the beain and not in
the bean? A It looked like that.

Juror :* Q The piece dic not show the holes of the hanger at all ? A
What I saw was the hanger holes and not the bore holes.

Mr. Taylor: Q The Juror is desirous to know whether the short piece
the sidewalk side of this beam up the Gorge- A Yes.

Q Whether that, where it was broken off shewed any marks of the
hanger hole ? In other words, in this way, there is a section of the beam. A
No, I think the short-I do not think the short piece did shew it, I think it
was the long piece. I am not positive, I believe it was the long piece ;. but it
was a section of the whole.

1o

Witness stands aside.

40
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WILLIAM S. GORE ., CALLED AND SWORN,

MR. TAYLOR.

Q What is vour name? A William Sinclair Gore,

Q You are Surveyor-General of the Province, Mr. Gore? A I was at TO

the time the bridge was built.

Q You were at the time the bridge was built. What position did you
occupy at the time of the accident ? A Deputy-Commissioner of Lands and
Works.

Q As such, did you make any inspection of the ruins of the bridge after
the collapse ? A Ves. I inspected it together with the-in company with
the coroner's jury.

Q Did you inspect this broken floor-beam you hear referred to as 3 here ?
A Ves.

Q There is only one brokein floor,beam ? A Ves.

Q Did you inspect that ? A Yes.

-Q Did vou see both pieces of it ? A Ves.

Q Was there any part of the beam missing-I nean to say wras there 30
anything subtracted from the entire length ? A Well, perhaps nothing but
what might have been sheared away from it when the hanger- pulled through
it.

Q What is your idea about that ? A Well, the hanger- was found
suspended ou its pin, the eve-bars intact with ail its nuts and washers upon it,
it is in evidence that it pulled right through the floor-beam.

Q Now, you saw two pieces of the floor beam? A Yes.

Q Did you see the short piece, the sidewalk piece ? A Yes.

Q Was there any auger hole on the top of that ? A I never saw one.
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Q Vou never saw one. Now, Mr. Gore, those lateral sway-braces, did
they go through the lianger in the original design.? Just cone here (to exhibit
U). . Exhibit U represents a section of the floor-beam, and these two large
holes on. top represent the original hanger holes ; these two holes at the side,
one at each side, represent where the lateral sway-braces went through; and
these pieces, blocked out square here, represent where the sway-braces were
screwed on with nuts. These sway-braces cross inside the hanger, between
the top and the botton.of it, where the jib plate is fastened. A I cannot tell
you fromu memory whether thev did or not; I can tell you from the plan.

Q just refer to the plan, then, and tell me if you do not mind ? A
(looking at plan> the scale is so small it is very hard to tell by this plan.

Court: Mr. Lockwood w<uld know. Do these sway-braces cross inside
the hanger ?

Mr. Lockwood The lateral rods do, yes. Here are the holes right
through here (indicating on exhibit U) that the rods passed through.

Mr. Taylor: Q The lateral rods, what I have been referring to as sway- 20

braces, cross on the inside of the hanger.

Mr. Lockwood Yes.

Q Crossing on the inside, it would be quite possible that that beam
could fall away and leave these lateral rods there. Assuming that floor-beam
to break right at the hanger holes, you wouild find the lateral rods there still

in the hanger, would you not ? They would not fall away ? It seems to me

that as a matter of common sense they wold not. A Well, thev inight fall1 30
out, because when the wood was out, the ends of the lateral rods would be re

leased, and they might come right through.

Q They would have to bend considerably, wouldn't they, to do that?

A As long as the whole thing was horizontal they would not fall out. When

they tipped vertically, or fell down into the water they might fall out I think.

Q Do vou think it was possible that that auger hole was there without

your seeing it., filled with oakum ? A I certainly never saw it, and never

heard of it before. 40

Court: Q Did you Ilook for it ? A I did not look for it, because I

never heard of it.
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CROSS-EXAMINED BY MR. DAVIS:

Q Look here for a moment. (Witness taken to exhibit U). Now, as I
understood your description, Mr. Gore, they were sheared off right in this
neighborhood (indicatifig)? A Ves.

Q And that whole iron work was torn right out of the beam ? A Yes.

Q At the bottom there is a jib-plate crossing ? A Yes.

Q And the nuts underneath hold the jib-plate in place ? A Yes.

Q Was that jib-plate torn through? A Yes.

Q That would necessarily tear out some of the wood ? A Yes.

Q I think so.

t

Witness stands aside.

THOMAS HARMON CALLED AND SWORN, TESTIFIED,
EXAMINED BY MR. TAYLOR.

What is your name ? A Thomas Harmon.

You were upon the car, Mr. Harmon, at the time of the accident?

One of the sufferers. Will you describe what you first saw' the first
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breaking sound you heard ? A Ves, sir. As we went down and got on the
bridge, just after-almost iiomentarily after passing Captain Grant's boat-
house, which occupies a place on the north side of the bridge-I saw that, sit-
ting on the south side myself, the last seat in the car, I recollect seeing Cap-
tain Grsant's boat-house, and almost inmediately after-

Q We want to get the position of Captain Grant's boat-house to the truss
that went down ? A Well, sir, I will give you as near as I can-[ have never
seen the bridge since the hour it occurred, but Captain Grant's boat-house, as
1 have been acquainted with it, and been undernieath the bridge and travelled
over it a great many times-Captain Grant's boat-house, it runs out under the
foot of the bridge on the Victoria side all but level with the inshore abutments
that the two centre spans stand on.

Q That would be the pier ? A 'That would be the pier.

Q Just a moment. Taking this as the pier-this point here as the pier
(indicating on the plan) nearest Victoria, the span that went down, where is

Captain Grant's boat-house ? On the right-hand side of this.

' Q The Gorge side ? A Yes, as near as I can say, that pier would

touch the inside part of Captain Grant's boat house, the corner of that span

(indicating).

Q It would be just about on 'a line with it A Yes, as near as pos-

sible.

Q Just as you passed tCaptain Grant's boat-house, now, what did you

hear ? A Well, there was a sudden ominous break and sound that I cannot

hardly-I cannot find a word to express it, only a heavy twang. 30

Q Was it like an iron or a wood break ? A I could not swear to one

or .the other, but where we were standing I heard big timbers, big trees snap,

almost where we were standing at the present moment ; but it was not that

souind.

Q It was not that sound? A No. It was sharper. That was momen-

tarily. Then-but whether~ that moment I was in the car or not I cannot

swear-I heard other breakage. 40

Q What was the first you heard ? A That was the sharp
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Q And that was just as you passed Captain Grant's boat-house ? A
Just as the car was moving, I cannot say exactly, of course, where we were on
the bridge, but it was momentarily-it was just after I recollect looking
through the heads of the otier passengers and saw Captain Grant's boat-
house.

10

CROSS-EXAMINED BY MR. MACDONELL.

Q Vou gave evidence in the other case, and I think you stated that the
car was about two lengths of itself on the bridge? A As well as I can im-
agine ; the car slips along quick ly.

Q You were inside the car ? A Yes, and sitting down.

Q Do you know the ordiinary length of the car ? A I should imagine 20
that that car would be between 30 and 40 feet long.

Q Supposing it was 35 ; that would be about 70 feet on the span ? A
I could evidently give it according to figures.

Q Vou were not paying particular attention to what part of the span you
were on at the tiiie ? A 'rhat was not my thought for the moment.

Q And you inay have been farther on than vou thought you were, ac-
cording-to the position of the car ? A I have reason to believe since that it 30
could not have been farther, because she would have gone clear of the bridge
and gone down into the mud, which she did not do.

Q It depends on the way she drops ? A She did not drop suddenly
down, she went down with a long sweep.

Q But you were on the roof when it was down ? A I was still attached
to the éar.

Q It depends on the velocity of the car on the bridge; how far you were 40
on the bridge, as far as that goes ? A Yes, sir, it would depend on two
things ; there was a sudden stoppage, and what drove me out of the car and
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killed everybody in the car was the force of the hydraulic ram when the carstruck the water ; and because we were up so much on the upper side of thecar, that saved our lives. There was a sudden stoppage there. And it is evi-dent in my mind since that the Victoria end dropped and acted as a lever andstopped the car with the tremendous power coming down. Its droppingstraight down there first started the car along on the drive down, and then the
water broke the force, and the other end falling acted as a lever, and that iswhat stopped the car froin going over off of the bridge.

Q One witness thinks that the car ran back; yon do not ? A Well, I 10
do not think water will run up hill.

Q Did you see Mr. Wilson that day ? A No, sir, I was sitting in the
forward end of the car.

Q Now, when you heard this sharp clang--the other day you said it
sounded like the breaking of part of a ship; what part of a ship ? A The"
mainyard giving way.

Q Is that composed of wood and ironhart ? A Wood and ironhart, and 20
a-batten of iron.

Q And that.is the sound of wood and iron breaking: A Yes.

Q (Taking witness to plan) This is the Victoria side, this is the Esqui-
malt side ? A Yes.

Q Now, one of the witnesses said he thinks that some part cf the car was
over between 2 and 3 some places. Now do you think he could be mistaken?
He was outside, he said, and standing on the rear end of the car watching 30
vehicles and people passing, and lw says : " I think the front part of the car
was between 2 and 3. when it went down." Now, do yn think lie would be
nearer right than you as to the position ? A I will tell you, . my idea was
this : Taking the angle, that end 'going first, which did go, there is no ques-
tion about it ; if the car had been there, she would have gone clear; if she
was nearly off the span she would have gone clear and gone underneath the mid-
way pier. Now, she remained somewhere near there in that section, I believe,
as near as I can understand it, about where your stick is now, that is where I
think she was laid in the water. Had she been farther advanced on the pier 40
when she dropped, before the end of the bridge-the floor h'ad got to the water,the car having the greater motive behind her-the car would have slipped off
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that end. She could not have gone down an incline of 30 feet with the speed
she had or without clearing the bridge.

Q Suppose she hadi dropped down suddenly, she would have gone down in
that direction (indicating) ? A If she had gone down sudd'enly I would not
be here to speak to you.

Q But supposing she went down on all fours, as one of the witnesses said,
she would have ha'd to go down in this direction (indicating) ? A If she
could break through there and come down on all fQurs, she could break wo
through anything.

Q Where was sHe when they found lier ? A As I understand she was
there about 5. But she was not off of the bridge.

Q Vou were inside where you could not observe closely. There was a
witness outside atthe rear end of the car, and he swears positively, " I think
the front part of the car would be between 2 and 3." He could see the rear,
and see. the span. Do you think he could be wrong if he swore to that posit-
ively? A I believe the man would say what he thought was right, but the 20

chances are-

Q You would not say he was wrong ? A No, but I think the ch'ances
are he lost his head, at the time.

Q You would not say that he said what was wrong ? A .But the car
could not have been so far to the end.

30

RE-EXAMINED BY M. CASSIDY.

Q Referring to this plan again for a moment, where abouts on the plan
would the car be when you heard thetwanging sound? A It was between o
and 7 when I saw Captain Grant's boat-house.4

Q You say when you saw'Captain Grant's boat-house the car was be-

tween o and 7? A Yes, sir.
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Q When you heard the twanging sound wherç was the car ? A Well,
a trifle beyond it; one or two cars lengths beyond it.

Q Come and put your finger on it (on the plan). A I could not define
it nearer. . Will you please telf me the length of the span ; I know the length
of the car.

Q One hundred and fifty feet about. A Two or three lengths of the
car, as near as I can tell, from the end of the span.

Io
Q W here was the car when you heard the sound? A Two or three

times the length of the car,. when I heard the sound.

Q Where were you ? A 'In the car.

Q And about what spot on the bridge ? Just put your finger on it. A
Well, say somewhere about here (indicating).

Mr. Davis: Fe does not know the length of the sections.

20
Witness: I think there, as near as I could judge.

Mr. Cassidy: Q That is 6. A Yes, that would be two or three car
lengths.

Mr. Davis: That is- right; the witness is being misled.

Witness: at is where I heard the twang, two or three car lengths.

Davis: Mr. Cassidy is leaving him with the impression that there is
nly a car length o and 7, and 7 and 6. They are only half-car lengths; it 30

would be two more spans over.

Witness: It was between two and three car-lengths on the span. I don' t
swear to the drawing, not knowing the scale.

Mr. Cassidy: Q I do not want you to swear to the drawing. A You
take two or three car lengths, and that is as near as any man living can tell

you.

40

Witness stands aside.
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WM. GRANT CALLED AND SWORN, EXAMINED BY MR. TAYLOR.

PATTERSON V. VICTORIA.

FOURTii DAY .OF TRIAL.

Q Captain Grant, you reside
A Ves, sir.

in Victoria near the Point Ellice bridge? ?

Q And you have a boat-house there. Will you just describe shortly, to
the jury, where your boat-house is situated, relatively to the span of the bridge
that went down ? (Explains diagram to witless). The point of your stick
from o to 7 represernts the Victoria.end of the span ? A That is the span that
gave way, and here is the part of the bridge that extends to the span.

Q Where is vour boat-house with reference to that span that gave way ?
A This side of the bridge (indicating).

Q Your boat:-house is the north side of the span that gave way? A
Yes.

How far from the north pier on the Victoria end ? A My.wharf?

Q Approximately ? A Oh,, about 300 feet.

Q But your boat-house-where you were standing ? A I was not
standing at the b9at-house.

Q Where. were'you standing ? Your wharf is on the south side ? A
Yes, my wharf is on the south side.

Q Where were you standing?

you know.

A On the wharf. I have a boat-house,

Q How far were you away fron the span ? A Oh
150 ft.

Q At the time of the collapse ? A Yes, sir.

, I would be away

Q What were you doing then ? A From that'to 200 feet,-I wasbring-
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ing a vessel into the wharf.

Q What were you actually doing yourself ? A Well, I had just had a
line thrown ashore to me, and I brought it up to the further corner of the
wharf and brought it up to the spile and had got about half-way back when I
heard this crash and looked up.

Q Were you above or below the. span ? A Below.

Q How far below? A Oh, 20 ft. or more. [o

Q Were you on about a level with the water or higher than that ? A
My wharf-it was pretty near high tide, and the wharf was only about 6 or 7
feet above the water.

Q Tell us in your.own way just what you saw and heard ? A When, I
was about the centre of the pier and going back to the south side of the wharf,
I heard this tirst crash, and I looked up and saw the car on the bridge moving
along, and the noise-the first crack, it kind of stopped for about 5 seconias, so
you could look up and see the thing cracking; then it comenced cracking 20

round on the Esquimalt end of the pier, on the western end of the pier, and it kept
dropping, it dropped considerably with a cant up the Gorge, and right by my'
wharf it didn't crack at all, till all at once it broke when the others got down
a certain distance.

Q Tell us what you saw ? A .\s far as I can tell, I will. When I
heard the crash, I could see wlen 1 looked up, I could see the car moving, not
very fast. I think, somewhere about as near as I can tell it would be somewhere

about the-centre of the-span, or a little further. It might a little further the 30
Esquimalt way, and it-was moving over, I noticed the-e was teams on the

bridge moving likewise, and just on -the moment I looked up after hearing the

first heavy crack cease, I could see the bridge giving way, and it was canting-
it would give way on the northern side-on the Gorge side.

Q Whereabouts was that giving way ? A On the centre pier, on the

Esquimalt end of the span.

Q Now, Captain, you say the centre pier on the Esquimalt end--do you
mean on-the pier ? -A- Yes, there are big round irons that form the piers and 40

where the span rested on that was where it gave way first in my-when I seen

it.
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Q How did it give way there? A That is more than I can tell.

Q I was just asking you how von saw it ? A I saw it-it was dropping
there.

Q Do von mean to say it was off the piel- ? A Well, it was ; the part
-- of course when it was settling on these big stringers that was new-that had
been put unider the rail track, it was one of then that was breaking that made
the noise. It didn't go altogetiher, on account of the rail track being on top
of that, and it to go gradually canting.

Perhaps, if you do not muiIn my suggesting to vou, we will come to
that in a minute ; as it appeared to you vhat was giving way at this time ?-
what was lowerinîg ? A ,It was. an old str inger that was along on the bridge
it appeared to me it was old that was breaking, and letting it dowin on that
western end of the spaii on the Esquimalt road.

Q It would bu at point "O" or "i? A It would be whère the two
spansmeet in the centre of the Gorge, on the western'side.

20

Q Do von understand wliat the lower chord of the bridge is ? A Well,
I am iot well posted.

Q It is that line that runs along there, between the piers ? A Yes, sir;
I understand-that the fioor is on ?

Q Was that lowering anywhere ? A No; not tha could see; it might
have sagged a bit in the centre where the car was. I could not tell. I was
under the span, and would not see the sag in it.

Q At that time was that end resting on the north pier in the centre
towards the Gorge ?--the cars going this way. I will take this board to illus-
trate it. Here is the Victoria end (indicating) and the other end-the Esq-
uinialt end von sav was where the car broke first? A On the north side,
yes, sir.

Q The car w-as proceeding to Esquimait, and you say it had got sone-
where about ilf wav over when you heard the crack? A Ves, sir.

Q In what condition was this end of the span whiéh woild be the north- 40
west? A The north-west-ves, sir. Q What condition was that in at that
time ? Was it on the pier, or off? A Well, I could not tell you that ; but
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it must have been off, because I see it settling there, and it could not settle
without it was off the pier.

Q \Vhere did it settle ? A On the north-west corner.

Q And you say that did what ? A It was canting up the Gorge as it
fell.

Q Which was canting up the Gorge ? A The pier-the span.

10Q What do you mean-It was in that position (illustrating) ? A Ves,
it fell in that position-canting that way-not so nuch as that, but considerable.

Q Which appeared to vou to be the lowest part of this sid'-the Gorge
side? A It was, till the end where you point to there gave wny---just the
corner here was the lowest-the north-west corner.

Q Until the north-east corner gave way ? A Ves, sir.

Q Did vou observe anything fall away from the floor?-for instance, these
-representing the floor beams ? A Ves, sir.

Q Did any of those fall away from tie floor as it was coming down ? A
No, that I am positive of; there was iothing fell from the botton of the span
there was nothing dropping down or fell that way, because I was rightuuder it.
it fell intact ; it went'down that way-everything. There was nothing gave
wav underneath, because I could see that particularly. It night have sagged
in the pier-the span, but there was nothing fell through it-nothing dropped
down.

Q Vou saw this floor beam of the bridge vesterday ? A Yes, iwas
asked to go and look at one, ves.

Q You were down there with whom ? A Mr: Murrav was there when
I went.

Q He is a witriess who has testified here already? A I believe he has.

Q Do vou know how many old floor beams there were in this span that
gave way V A No, I do not. 40

Q Do vou know which floor bearn -this was that 'you saw ? A I was
told it was No. 7, but I don't know.
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Q Ilt was an old beam, was it? A' It appeared to be; it had been
painted over.

Q Did it have a hanger through it ? A Ves, it had a hanger through

Q Were hangers
round the outside , A

through there, over this beain bored tlirough or
Have vou got a bean there ?

Q Did this one vou saw have hanger holes or stirrup irons ? A No,
sir-holes thrpugh.

Q Did yoi fiid a plug in it ? A Ves, sir ; there was a small plug-'2
or 3 iin. hole.

Q Did you mneasure the hole ? A No, sir, I did iiot.

Q What was the dianeter you did say? A It was not ipore than 34

iii. hole-it might have been. I thought it was inch.

Q , You saw the plug ? A Yes, sir.

Q What was it plugged with ? A A piece of this wood, I think.

Q Was it oakum ? A Oh, no; it was a wooden'plug. We thoughit it

was a knot first, and got a chisel and eut down and found it was a plug. Mr.

Murray said he thought it wvas a knot, and we had some dispute about it, and

he got a chisel and eut down and nade sure it was a plug.

30

CROSS-EXAMINED BY MR. MACDONELL.

Q How far did the plug go in ? A

the depth of the hole. It might have been

If I had thought I might have measured it.

ting something in.

I don't know ; I didn't measure
pretty near through, or half way.

I could easily have done it by put- 40

Q Was it put in securely ? A Oh, yes.
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Q No water could get in ? A It was put in pretty tight.

Q Had it been an old plug? A 'That I could not tell ; the plug looked
all sound and good. I don't know how long it was put in.

Q In fact, you lhad some difficulty in finding it. Mr. Murray did? A
I believe he had, I was not tlere.

Q And Mr. Murray went specially there to look at it with you ? A No ; t>
I corne there just as lie was coming away, and we both went there together.

Q' He drew your attention to it ? A No ; I was sent there toghave a
look at it.

Q Who by ?- A Mr. Wilnot,. the city engineer.

Q And. ie was there when you got.-there ? A Mr. Murray was there.

Q Ahd lie thought it was a knot-hole? A Ves, sir. 20

Q Now,.you gave evidence before the inquest, I belieye ? A Yes, sir.

Q I suppose you remember just as well then as you do now as to what

took place as far as the car and the accident were concerned ? A Oh, well, i
suppose. It is some littletime ago, nearly a year. I was quite excited over it

then.

Q Vou'remenibered it just às well then as now ? A -I should.

Q But nothinig lias happened since tò call-? A No. 30

Q You were asked there (p 126) by the coroner : "You said just now,

Captain, that you would not be sure, you thought the car was just about the

centre of the bridge. A It was more than the centre when I looked first, it

was about the centre, but it was going slôwvly all the time, and teams were

driving-all the timne." A Apparently, yes.

*Q "When you looked first it was about the centre ? A Yes. Q You

looked round, and it was in the centre when you saw it ? A It was aboit 40
the centre of the Arm, or, perhaps a little beyond it. It might. have been a

little beyond the centre-,' the trestle work that was there was between me and
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the car, and I could not see everything so plainly." A No, I could not see
nothing on the bridge, only over the rail, and see the teans and the car.

Q I suppose, Captain, it was this : Vou were not looking for what caused
the accident or where the car was, you were anxious to save the people? A
Ves, very anx'ious.

Q That was your sole object--not anything as to what the cause was, or -

where it occurred, or anything like-tliat? A Quite true.
10

Q Vou were asked again (p. 125): "If the first floor-bean from the Esqui-
malt Lnd had broken off, it would have dropped out and you could not see from
the position you-were in whether that was the beani or not ? A I could not say;
a person would not take such a very particular notice, because I looked for my
boats-I was looking to get the boats there." A Yes.

Q Is that answcr right ? A I suppose I mnust have said it, or it would
not have been there.

Q So you were at the time looking after your boats after you heard the 20

first crack A After the first crack when I looked up, it was not long before
the thing came down, I assure you.

Q Vou say you looked for some of the boats that were in the Arm ? A
I told the captains and the officers to get their boats at once.

Q That was while the crash was coming ? A That was not more than
a minute, and you can't do much in that time.

Q This was during the time you asked the captains tt get the boats? A 30
I sung out-yes.

Q The coroner asked you . "The jury want to know as far as you can
tell, where the car was when you heard the crash ? A The first I heard, it
was sone little distance. Q How far did imove from "the first crash before
the collapse ? A Oh, it would not move-very much ; it might go its length,
but it would not go any further distance." So it took place imimediately? A
Oh, it was not long.

Q Another question: "If the first floôf,-beam from the Esquimalt end
had broken off, it would have dropped down and you could not see -from the
position you were in whether that was the pier or not ? A No, I could not
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see-a person would not take much-such particular notice, because I was
looking for my boat." Did you say that ? A Well, I don't know, but if I
did say it what I said was not.so, because, you sec, when I looked, it ladn't
fell while I was looking ,first, and the bridge' was not long falling to the
water.

You were asked another question " Vou don't know what I an
going to ask : Are you positive from the position vou occupied that the bridge
did buckle in the inddle of the span ? A That I would nlot swear to ; it
didn't buckle enougli for me to discern where I stood ; it nay have buckled 10
enough-for it to have slipped clear of the piers-I have no doubt it did. Q
It nay have buckled enoughi for it to have slipped clear of the piers ? A
Yes." Witness : Well, that is what I say now. I could not tell -whether
that span buckled---mne standing under it. I must have been standing* right on
a level with it to tell that.

Q And from where you. stood to the far end was over 200 feet ? A
Well it would be about that.

20
Q And the bridge, they say, froin the water up to the floor was 20 feet,

and your wharf about 6 ft. higher that the water? A About that-about 6

feet.

Q And vou probably were only about 14 or 15 -feeflower than the bridge?

A All of that ; a little more ; it would be more than'that, I should say.

Q Did not the centre sag a little at first ? A I could iot tell that.

Q And you could not say whether a beamin dropped a little or dropped 30
far ? A Oh, I could not-no.

Q A beam night have dropped two or three feet and you not see it ?

A Yes, it might have dropped that, but it could not have-dropped more.

Q You.heard a crackling noise ? A Yes, sir.

Q And von placed that at a stringer? A Yes, placed that at a stringer

breaking at the ends.

- 40
Q You would not hear a rotten beam break at that distance if it wasvery

rotten ? A No, I should not think I would.

280





Q And the reason you heard the stringer break was because it was a
large, sound piece of wood. Tlat crack came before the end came off ? A: I
can't tel] that ; naturally it would buckle clown with the rail over it.

RE-DIRECT BY MR. TAYLOR.

Q Do y'ou mean to say a stringer would have to break before or after the
end came off? A If the stringer was on very solid and .nailed on to the
bridge and two spans, of course it had to break before that would.go clear.

Q After the., pan went, tlat is what you mean.

M r. Davis Before. 20

Mr. Taylor (to'witness): Wlhich do vou mean ? Just think for a mo-
ment. Take it coolly. Would a stringer have to break before the span came
off, or as a result of the span coming off ? A Well, vou can -.take it either
way you like. Here 'would be a stringer underneath that rail anid it was bolted
to both parts-the other is over that join-and it has to give way before that
would go down.

Q Is it jointed ? A No ; one is jointed aad one had to break, and that
would have to break before it came down. 30

Q Would it ? A It did, and would.

Q Supposing the span went over at the end of the pier, would that
stringer break necessariiy after that, if not broken before ? A When it slip-
ped clear, it would have to break to let it down ; it would all go togetier.

Q Can vou say whether the stringer brok-e before or after it slipped off
the pier ? A Common sense would tell a person how that would go. I can't
express it, but anyone can tell that one- heavy span had to give way sone- 40
where.

Q You say vou could not see the car through the trestle work. You
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nean, looking up from the floor u(lerneath ' A Yes.

Q And you could see underineatlh but not the top ? A Yc.

Mr. Davis : 'lie witness said coiiiiiioii sense wouild tell

he did not say which it wvas.

Witness I leave it to vour lordship how cati
and me away fron them ?

wliici it was, but

I tell which lbrokc first,

Court : 'Ftat is a thorough answer; that willI do.

THIR) DAV.

October r4 th, [897.

Sanie council present as before. Jury called.

JUDGE'S CHARGE.

Mr. Foreman and Gentlemen: This is an action brought by Mrs. Lang
on behalf of herself-

Mr. Cassidv: If your lordship wili pardon me for interrupting vou one

moment. We are leaving ouir muatters of law as iii the previous Patterson case

till motion for judgmîent, but there is onie thing-there is a very considerable

variance between the evidence, an-d what 1-

Court: What are vou askin,?

Mr. (assidy: I want to put it to voumr lordship that apart from all the

points taken previously in the Patterson case, we would ask your lordship to
wthidraw tis case from the jury; that assuming an action lies against the cor-

poration, that this was their corporate act,·and-

Court: -Yes-well, I decline to do that. I have alreadv heild, ight1y
or wrongiy, that the plairitiff is entitledi to go to the jury-he cannot be non-

suited against his will, and although that is before the Full Court, I suppose,
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as part of iny judgment, the decision has not yet been given, and until I an
told I.am wrong by the appellate court, I must adhere to it. (To jury); This
is an action brought by Mrs. Lang on behalf of herself and children for damages
sustained by them uin the loss of the support which of course they formerly had
from the husband and father who was killed iii the unfortunate accident which
has been referred to during the progress of this case. Now, .you will remember,
gentlemen, this right of action is mnerely for the- pecuniary loss which lias been
sustained; you are, not to give damages by way of punishment for sen timental
reasons, and when you remember that the real defendants in this case are the
ratepayers of the City of Victoria-who of course it not suggested themselves
actively participated in the neglect, the acts, or the omissions which brought
about tlis disaster, you will hardly be tempted to ekceed the limits which the
law prescribes, upon which these damages alone may . properly awarded. In
the way in which the evidence has been put in-that is, to a large extent, the
evidence simply that was given before in the case of ene Patterson against the
saine defendants for a similar cause of action, it is necessary for ne to caution
you that although [iconld not exclude the references to the former case, because
of the evidence given in this way, yet you should lot allow yourselves to be
influenced by any conclusion which the jury in that case may'have arrived at
upon any of the questions which will be left to you, and which will be the sane
as were left to the jury iii that case. Your ddty is to make up your minds for
yourselves and not permit yourselves to be swayed in either direction by the
opinion the former jury may have held upon any of these questions.

Another thing I wish to press upon you very strongly, gentlemnn, and I
do hope you will pay great attention to it, and that is, you ought to arrive
at a clear conclusion upon each of the questions. And it is vèry dangerous,
-especially iii a matter of this kind, where the Iaw is somewhat uncertain- 30
to compromise upon one question, because some of you inay think thlat the par-
ticular answer to that particular question is not material in view of some pre-
vious answer you have given to a. former question. Now, please, do not do
that, because I tell you, in all seriousness, you cannot be certain of the result
if y«it act in any such manner. The only safe way for you to decide upon these
questions is to treat each question as if it was the only one îsubmitted, and as if
the rights(of these parties depended upon the particular answer to the par-
ticular question, no matter what the previousoanswer you have given may be.

You have heard a good deal from counsel on both sides as to the law ap- 40
plicable to this case, and you have been told- that I will direct you with refer-
ence to the law ; but both counsel have agreed in stating to you as law by
which the plaintiff would bp bound, that the defendants are not liable in law-
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whatever morar responsibility may attach to anyone for the death of the de-
ceased-unless you find upon the evidence that the defendants have been at
least guilty of negligence, either as regards the changes admitted to have been
made by the tramway company by arrangement with the defendants, or int:on-
nection with the boring alleged to have been done in the beam, the breaking of
which as having been contributed to by the defendants in this way, is claimed
by the plaintiff to have been the proximate or immediate cause of the aecident.

Now, while I do not, for 1 cannot, say that in my opinion this is either an
accurate or a complete statenent of the law concluding the parties, I do not 10
think it is for me to differ from counsel as to a question upon which they are
so happily, though to me so unexpectedly, united.

If the case was to be left to vou generally, that is, to find simply for the
plaintiffs or the defendants, it would be necessairy to direct you fully as to the
law, and it would be my duty to give you my own opinion upon it, although
counsel could not, of course, complain if I were content to let it remain as they
have left it. But in the way in which the case is to be submitted to yon because
of some uncertainty which unfortunately does exist as to what the law affecting it
reallv'is, that is, by putting to you certain questions bearing upon the facts, it
would be idle for me to trouble you with any statement of the law which could
only be useful in the circumstances, if coming from the counsel it throws light
upon their different contentions as to the respective positions of the parties upL
on the facts.

1 shall, therefore, say nothing more, with regard to the law than that the
parties will have the full be.nefit upon motion for judgment or in appeal of any
principle of law which may be found to apply> to this case, whether to the ad-
vantage of the one side or the other, and that you need not concern yourselves 30
further with the law.

Now, as to the questions; the most convenient way will be for me, though
in a general way, to read out each question to you, and then briefly state to
you wiat the material facts are with which you must de ilin arriving at the
answer. I do not propose to offet any opinion whatever of my own uport any
of these questions.

The first question is :1 "Did the Corporation after the extension of the
city limits, control and manage the bridge as if owner thereof?" Now,yon 4
see, gentlemen, this question avoids the legal question of whethér the city did
own the bridge or not? The question is simply whether they acted as if they
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did, and that, really, there is no doubt about. The hîstory of the bridge is, as
perhaps you may remember-and i am going to put it very briefly, indeed-
that in the year 1885 it was built by the Goverrinent ; that in Januar, 189î,

the city, under the power which is given in the Municipalities' Act, procured
an extension of the limits of the city so as to include this bridge; add in this
way the bridge was brought within the citv limits, and as-is shown by the
printed report of the proceedings of the-Council the city acted with reference to
this bridge exactly in the same wav as they did with reference to any other
bridge so far as the question of ownership is concerned. You will not have
forgotten that after the first accident thev stopped all the traffic going over the
bridge until the repairs had been made, without consulting anybody, and the
tramway company never set up or, indeed, inferred that they had níot full
power to do that-to stop the traffic upon that bridge as well as upon any
other bridge. Theçefore, there is no doubt as to what vour auswer should be
as to that question.

The next question is: ", Was the bridge, as constructed, of sufficient
strength for safe use by the tramway company in the way in which it was used
up to the time of the accident?" It is agreed upon both ,sides it was not-- 20
the one thing upon all the parties are agreed. The bridge was not constructed
for this kind, of thing atall. When it was built, there was no such thing as
tramway traffic in Victoria anywhere, and as counsel put it to you, it was
never intended to be used for any such purpose, and, if any enquiry-even the
most superficial-had been made as to the design of the bridge or its capacity,
it would have been quite apparent it was in the highest degree dangerous that
any such traffic as this should be allowed over it.

The next question is; 'Was such use by the company by agreement
with the corporation?" Now, although it is not perhaps exactly necessary ,3Q
for your decision, I may as well tell you, as throwing light on the situa.tion
of the parties and as a proposition of law, that there can be no doubt that the
city had such an interest in this bridge as being a portion of the highway, that
if they had chosen to exercise the power of stopping its improper use such as
this was, they could have done so. They could have forbidden the tramway
company to run cars in such a way over it, and if the company had persisted,
they could have got an injunction. But the question for you is whether in the
way in which the city .and the tramway company acted, the use of the bridge
by the tramway company for these larger cars was not with the permission of 49

the city ? And you will remember, with reference to this question, that after
Mr. West bad written the letter which he did write in 1891, and in a report
by the city. engineer, Mr. Wihniot, about the unsafe condition of the bridge,
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the city did undertake to stop the use of tlis'bridge for a short time by the
comipany, and did nake an arrangement with them by which the company laid
down a different kind of foor ; and afterwards the city removed the bar which
they had put up and allowed the tramway coipany to go on and use the bridge
in this way. It will be for you to say whether there can be the least doubt
then as to what your answer to that question ought to be.

The next question is: " Would the Corporation, if exercising ordinary
care,-have becone aware of the actual condition of the bridge in tine to have
prevented such use by the company before the accident?" The facts bearinig
upon this question are shortly these : that the bridge was never designed for
any sucli trafic at all ; that the plans and specifications of the bridge were
lying, as the evidence shows, in the office at James Bay, and that the slightest
examination ofthose plans and specifications would have shown that the use of
the bridge by cars of this size was dangerons, and could only resuit in a longer
or shorter time in a calamity suich î s occurred. You have the letter which was
read, of a practical man -(you can take it to your roon, I shall not trouble you
with.it), in which he points out in i8'91, the danger; you have t1he long time
which the Couicil allowed to elapse ii May of that year when the letter was 20

written-May, 1892, when Mr. Wilnot made his report as to certain repairs
and still there is inaction on the part of.the Council for about a month, when
Mr. Wilmot writes the lerter read out by Mr. Macdonell, calling attèntion to
the fact-tlat his report liad not been acted upon, ard unless something was
done, some such disaster would happen. It does seen, in view of the known
life of a bridge of this kind being onlY 7 or 10 years, if the city had taken. any
reasonable steps to ascertain what the condition of the bridge was, that they
must have known of the actual condition of the, bridge, and that any such re-
pairs as they were making were wholly inadequate tý remove- the danger which.
did exist in the use by the company of the bridge for the purposes of traffic
with cars weighing îo tons. It will be for you to say whether .the answer -to
that question will give vou any difficulty.

The next question is: 'Did the Corporation, 'before permitting tramcars
to pass over the bridge, make any enquiry whether it was of sufficient strength
for safe use for that purpose-?" Well, there is no contest about it,- and no

suggestion that ever they did.

The next question is: "Could such knowledge have been easily acquired 40
by the Copodrtion?" All they had to do was to go over to James Bay, where

they knew the plans were, and they would have ascertained that fact, or it
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would Fecm as if any bridge engineer of ordinary capacity could have
told them, but it is for you to say what you think the anîswer shoild be.

The next question: " Had tie Corporation, at the time of ·the accident,
suffeîed the bridge to fall into such disrepair as by reason thereof to become
dangerous for such use by the company ?" I do not know there is any such
serious contest about that question, or that the answer to that should give you

any trouble. It seeins to be conceded on all sides that the ordinary life of a
bndgeof that kind is from 7 to ro years,-and that time had elapsed before the

accident, And in view of Mr. West's letter calliig their attention to it, and

Mr. Wilnot's report sayinîg what was really required was the replacement of

the beams by iron beams instead of wood, which the council did not do, you

probably will find no difficulty in making up your minds about that.

The other questions are those about which the real contest has taken place

between the parties, and it will be necessarv for me to refer-which I shall do

as briefly as possible-to the evidence of the different witnesses beaiing upon

these questions. Tie first of these, and the next after tho3e I have already read,

-is : "IDid the changes made in the bridge by the Corporation and, under an 20

arrangement with it, by the company, materially reduce the strength of the

bridge to support a trancar passing over it?" Those changes were, if you

remember, that the company would put in stringers, which I think it was con-

ceded on both sides did not weaken the bridge-that portion of the change;

but there was this further difference-that, whereas, before this time the floor

had extended from the one chord to the other in one place, the tramway com-

pany divided it up into three pieces, the other being, of course, that there

would be one on either side of the track, and one between the rails, and a good

deal of evidence was given and you hear< a ,good deal of argument on both

sides as to the effect of that change. It was contended for the city that in a

bridge of this kind the support which could possibly be furnished by a floor

even in one piece was necessarily of so trifling a character that it could not

properly enter into your consideration at all. Upon the other side, it was

strenuously urged for the plaintiff that there was soine real support before then

derived from the fact that the flo 1r supported by these chords was all in t>ne

piece, and it was pointed out that at tie time of the formef accident, which

took place before this change from one piece into three pieces, the tramcar had

actually been held up because of that floor. Now, this is what Mr. Warner
40

said -about it in his examination in chief, p. 17, whici you can follow there, if

you like:
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"Would that floor running across this way be of any use in
preventing a tramcar or whatever load happened to be on the
1 ridge at the time, froim going through, in case of one of those
floor-beams breaking, if it ran right across the full length as it
was originally ? A It might have supplied that small access of
strength necessary to carry it across, and again, it inay not,
knowing nothing of the physical conditions at the tinie.

"Q But it would unquestionably add some strength ? A It
would unquestionably add soine strength. 10

"Q And the test of what that strength would be vill be just
the same as the test of what these 3-in. planks would bear ? A
Yes

"Q And that is to be considered fren the standpoint of the
planks running diagonally that way across these stringers, and
reaching as you would, as you see them here, would that give
additional strength, that is distribute the weight ? A Yes. .20

"Q So as to carry it away from the broken floor-beain A
Yes, it would.

"Q Supposing that floor is cut-this is one piece now, (in-
dicating), this is a second piece, and this a third piece. In the
case of the floor-bearm breaking as it broke in 1896 and· 1892,
would there be the saine chances after'that floor wras cut of the
car getting off as it did in r892, as there would be if it ran right
across ? A Certainly not." 30

Then at p- 37, in cross-exanination-l'am just showing you briefly how
this witness looked at it:

" Q What material difference.does it make ' A In my
opinion it makes this difference : in 1892 it was probably that
extra strength given hy the plank flooring which carried the car
out of danger.

4

"Q You do not think that the bridge was in any better 40
condition in 1892 than it was in 1896 A It was undoubtedly
in better condition. That is, I should fancy it was; simply a
question of age.
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" Q That truss gains nothing of any strength or integrity by
the foor ? A The truss itself does not.

" Q The floor is simply a weight that the truss las to carry ?
A Yes.

"Q So.that the floor might break down on one side, fall
away like a trap-door from the truss, or it might break on both
sides and the truss remiain intact ? A If you break it in the
middle as you did in two places, it would fall like that. If %it
was continuous as it was in the first place, and the floor broke as
it did, it wonld fall on to the chord bars ; the floor-the planking
would rest on the chord bar like that, and-"

* And then he is interrupted. Then Mr. Wilmot-his evidence was referred
to by the witness-it was really so, that at the time of the former accident
when the floôr was all in one piece the car had been kept up-prevented going
through. There is the evidence of Murray, pp.. 217, 218-:

Q First of all, in reference to that flooring, would the
flooring put down the way it was finally put by the city-
thàt is, instead of running riglit across as it does here (referring
to model) cut in three pieces-up here, and here, and here again,
would that have any effect on the chan-ce ofthe bridge in case a
floor beam broke, going through or pot going through ? A I
say it would make it inuch weaker ; it would have the effect-
Q Ju t describe shortly how-it would strengthen the state of the
timber after the floor was broken? A By the planks going
right th ough and the rail being on top-of course, it is usually a flat 3o
rail, or ven a T-rail, this would be much stronger, for the reason
if you ta e the plank this length supported underneath as it is by
the string rs and then on the floor beams, it will have a greater
resistance t ian if vou cut it iii three parts., The reason is when
you cut th' you make this so much shorter; this being where
the car is, 't is shorter still and more liable to give way. By
being cut so, it would not have the resistance ; consequently the
shorter the pi ces the less resistance, and the more liability to let
the car down.'

And there is Balfour, pp. 225 and 226

Q Now, want to ask you, first of ail, just putting it
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shortly-because I do not want to go through it at any greatlength again-the effect of the change that was made by the city
in the flooring of that bridge. It was originally like that model•
it was'then changed as you have heard described , it was cut into
three pieces, so that-what would be the effect to your mind of
that ? A It certainly destroyed the continuity of the floor, that
is across the bridge ; it made a break in it, so that when the floor
and the floor beam-there would be no assistance from the plank-
ing when it was cut; after it was cut the floor planking gave no
assistance to carry it ovér the broken floor beain, which I consider
that planking does to a certain extent.

"Q And how would it be if the flooring fell so as to get a
support from the bottom chords, that is, as it was originally-
would that be of any assistance to it ? A It would be of -con,-
side-rable assistance, especially at the panel point where the chord
lias sufficient strength to withstand the pressure."

Then there is the evidence of Bell, pp. 251, 252 20

"Q Now, it is suggested that if the floor beam gave way
and let the planking of the floor down, that the support of the
chord link to the floor would be a source of. safety as tenaing to
carry that car along to the next floor beam ; what do you say
with regard to that? A I think it would be a very unsafe
source of safety,

Yon see, he does not agree with the other witnesses.

30"Q Just explain yourself? A I mean to say I think the
car might break right through the floor.

't. Q You think the car might break riglit through the floor?
A It is not a thing that anyone would depend on."

And then on the next page he goes so far as to say-he repeats that

"No one would take the responsibility of that at all. In
practice it is a perfect absurdity-" 40

that there would be any strength afforded by the planking being in one piece.

Now, gentlemen, I do not think I have given you all the references for
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what these witnesses have said; but whàt I think, after carefully reading over
the evidence as I did last night, is stifficient from each witness to show. you
what his opinion was, and of course it is for you to decide.

The next question is: "Was a hole bored by Cox, the cty carpenter, in
beam number three as described by him ?" Well, now, that, of course,
is the main question of all uptn the ground which both counsel have deliber-
ately elected to fight this battle. ' It has been conceded on both sides,.-I do not
say whether rightl7 or wrongly.-that, except upon a favorable answer to that
question, the plaintif cannot succeed. (To counsel): Mr. Macdonell, where o
are those -portions now you wish ine to read to the jury? They bear upon this
particular question, do they not? (Handed to Court.) The portions Mr. Tay-
lor has requested me to read about it aire these, commencing at p. 12

Q All the beanis you fouiid rotten ? A Yes; every one
of then.

"Q And youconcluded you would not bore any more on the
Victoria span, because ail you bored on the other span were rot
ten ? A No; not at all, we did not have time."

I had better go on-

"Q Did you tell them that you did not examine but the
three ? A They were satisfied.

Q Did you tell them that you had not examined but the
three ? A Certainly; there is the span.

"Q Who did you tell; A My borings proved they were not all 30
bored. There were only nine parcels handed in toahe engineer.

Q Did you tell anybody what beams you had bored ?
A Yes.

Q Who? A The engineer..

Q The specific beams yòu had bored ? A Yes.

"Q Did you tell what beamsyou had bored? A He knew 40
perfectly well.

Q Did you tell him ? A Yes.
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"Q When ? A The next day, when I took the borings. I

said there is nine, and there is all the borings.

"Q Did you tell him? A He had sense. Yes; I did
tell him.

"eQ What did you say to him? A I said are we to bore.
any more beans, and he said lie didn't think it was necessary.

" Q Why not? A Because every one we had bored was 10
rotten.

"Q Because every one yon had bored was rotten ? A Yes.

"Q Then it is a fact that all the beams yoti bored were
rotten ? A Every one.

"Q Every one? They were pretty badlv rottenù, too,
weren't they ? A I believe they were.

20

P. 15, line 8:-

Q That was something that you bored out of the beam ?
A Yes.

"Q And they were rotten ? A Yes.

"Q Every one of them ? A Yes.

" Q Very badly rQtten? A Yes; pretty bad.

The uext is page 25

Q And then vou bored the others from the top of the beam?

A Yes.

Q And you found them absolutely rotten? -A Yes.

Q You did that with the Esquimailt span?. A Esquimalt

span only.

Q And then you bored three of the beams on. the Victoria

side onthe top ? A Yes.
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Q And found them absolutely rotten ? A Ves."

Mr. Cassidy: Page 26, my lord, b2giiniinr at 3.

Court; "You knew they had not been removed?" - these
beams-he is speaking now at the time oflhis report that the
bridge was sound.-"A Do you suppose for a minute that I
should say: here, Mr. Wilnot, there are two beams in that,-,
bridge, and you have not removed them, and you ough o remove
them. 1O

'" Q Mou knew they were rotten, did you not ? A Yes;
and he knew they were rottei.

Q You knew they were absolutely rotten at that time ?
A I did.

"Q Badly rotten ? A Yes; badly rotten.

"Q Then I say how d'id you report them to be sound to the 20
city in 1895? A I did not report anything sound."

Mr. Cassidy: Page 27, my lord, at I.

Court: "Q And yet you reported the whole bridge sound? A Yes.

"Q Without examining it, and notwithstanding that you
knew in 1895 these beams were absolutely rotten,? A Yes.

"Q Including this number three beam that gave way? 3
A Yes.

"Q Andit was more rotten at the bottom than it was at
the.top: A Yes."

Now, Mr. Macdonell, what you have marked here in pencil is what you
have referred to?

Mt. Macdonell : Yes, my lord.

Court: "Q Why didn't you put a plug in it then to stop the
water? A They were all plugged up that I bored.

"Q They were all plugged up that you bored-yes-; but do

2
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you say it was any use plugging them that way, which would let
water in ? It was according to instructions? A Plugged
with the oakum ; that is ail I know.

" Q But- you tell me that it was no good ? A A good
soldier does what lie is told, you know.

Q Vou were told to go and plug it afterwards ? A Not
afterwards. It was plugged first, and not afterwards.

1o

Q I mean plugged after vou bored the hole. You could-
not do it before vou bored the hole. And you left it in such a
condition that the water would get in ? A It is bound to get
in. How does it get through a ship." -

Now, p. 268, Vorke's-

Mr. Taylor: That is Yorke's.

Court: Wliat ine <o you want? 20

Mr. Ta3 lor: Beginning at, say line 8.

Court: "Q Did vou go to the wreckage ? A Yes-the provincial
constables had it in a boom there

"Q Did you attempt to fetch it away ? A Tried to; I
sent up some of the men for'it;

"Q Would they give it to you:? A No, sir.

"Q And that is the 'rcason why you did not bring it ? A
Yes, and that is the reason why we did. not put it in the scow
with the balance of the wreckage."

Mr. Taylor: That is all, your lordship.

'Court: " Q Now, Mr. Cox, you did not bore the under part of
No. 3 beam in the Victoria span?· A No.

"Q So vou do fnot know whether it was rotten underneath 40

or not ? A I cainnot say.
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Q Vou bored into it 7 inches or thereabouts ? A There-
aboufs.

Q When you say it was rottenT you mean traces of rQt in
that 7 inches ? A Dry rot.

Q Dry rot-traces of it ? A Yes.

Q It might have stood for a year or two in that way ? A
Yes, it miglit, and periaps more.

Q But being pluggcd with oakum would allow the water
td get in and ikcrease the rot? A• Ves.

Q Very materially would it increase the rot ? A Fifty per
cent.

Q The oakum being in there would increase the rot 5oper
cent. Are you sure that Mr. Wilmnot saw the borings of those
beams ? A He inust have seen it; lie stood tiere in front of me, 20
and the Mayor, both of thcm.

Q At the tinie yoiu were boring ? A Yes. Atherly
handed it to hin in his hand.'

Now, gentlemen, I an not reading anything. more - you can refer at the
end of the case to any further questions.

Mr. Taylor Your lordship, there is the question of Atherly's, p. 277,
at the tlotton-the question next to the last. 30

Court: " Q In fact, it is a matter of indistinct recollection with von
now, entirelv, after so long a time ? A I know about the bor-
ing-that is all.

Q And you are perfectiy Jertain it was under the sidewalk?
A Ves.

Now, gentlemen, it may perhaps have occurred to vou when there is a
long examination of a witness, no matter how intelligent lie may be, and more 40
especially when he is not perhaps of more than average intelligence, it would

be comparatively easy afterwards to pick upon one side or the other-.-particular
passages in the évidence to nake it seem very contradictory and very absurd.
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and although I have acceded to the reqiest of cou nsel to re d over these por-
tions of the evidence-it having. been omitted by themselves n their addresses
-I do so because I am most anxious your attention should - called to aiy
evidence which either side may deem to be material, and you h rdly need I am
sure from me the caution that you have to take this as a whole, and not pieces
of it. You could not, of course, simply look at the pieces poilt d out for the
plaintiff as what lie relies upon, or the pieces pointed out by th defendants.
You have to take the evidence as a whole. I do not know tha Mr. Co.x-',s
character is impeached-I would not like to put it that far. Mr. ilmot him- 10
self, in his examination in the other action, which is in evidence efore you,
is questioned as to Cox's.character, He says at once that Cox bea s a good
character. > His evidence is lere-I need not trouble you with readin out the
portions i refer to. When it is suîggested to him that Cox lias stich a c îaracter
as to induce him-Wilhiuot-to believe lie would be guilty of prejury e says
at once, W. That is the only reference I intend to make as to-the chara ter of
Cox, if you consider-which I do not know-it was seriously attacked o the
part of the defendants. You.have Mr. Wiliinot's sworn ft~stimony as to th t-
he believes Cox to be of good character, and lie does not think Cox would is-
state anything purposely; that lie had or cotuld have any interest in mis-st t- 20

ing anything. I do not thing it was suggested-I do not see any evidence f
any interest on his part which you could look at to say he was interested to th
extent of a copper in the result of this action.

Now, it will, perhaps, have oceurred to you, as it certainly occurred to me
-but I am only giving it to you as a consideration for yourselves alone-that
there is nothinig extraordinary in Cox's account of the particular duties which
he had to perform. Cox was not a bridge engineer. Mr. Cox apparently had
the duty of going about streets aid sidewalks extending to a total mileage of 3
upwards of ioo, and reporting periodically as to what their apparent condition
was. If there was a hole in the floor of a bridge or a sidewalk, I suppose he
would report upon that. But I confess, I was somewhat puzzled at the elabor-
ate attention which this supposed extraordinary feature as related to Cox-I say
I was puzzled by the great attention it received on boti sides. You observed
when Mr. Wilmot, the city engineer, wanted a particular examination made,
he gave written instructions for it, and boring was done, which involves tak-
ing up planking, which, for my part, I can find no difficulty. in believing
would not be a matter left- to the discretion of Cox, but of course it is for you

to say. Another thing is, if Mr. Cox is such a hopeless idiot as Mr. Taylor
endeavore<d to make him out to be, ~it is rather a dangerous point to urge, be-
cause he had been in the employ of the city for a great length of time, and it will
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be for you to say wheth'er the employment of a man so utterly wantiig in under-
standing was not, in itself, evidence of gross negligence on the part of the city.
However, I dismiss it with that. Cox, however, does say in his evidence, and so
far as I can see, whatever inconsistencies and contradictions he may have in-
dulged in, he has not departed from this statement-lie reniembers distinctly
boring the particular beam which is in question ; and so far as his evidence is
concerned, I have only to say that question is one entirely of fact to you-
whether this boring took place or not You must renember, you must take
his evidence as a whole-not any particular portions ; and it will be for you to
say in spite of any arguients you have heard froin Mr. Macdonell, in contra-

diction of that on the one side and Mr. Taylor on the other, whether that dces
shake his credit as to the one point which, after all, is the only one you have
to consider-was that beam bored or not ? ''he other portions of the evidence
beariing on that are these The evidence of Atherly, at p. 271. That evi-
dence is short, ant I direct your attention to it as relatiiig to this point, if you
have any doubt about it, in which Atherly who, it seens, was assisting Cox at
this titue, corroborates the fact of the boring having taken place. It is short
evidence, you will have no trouble reading it, but it is too long to mxake it

possible ta real it t you now.

Thiere is the evidence of Mr. Wilmot, the city engineer, taken on ex-

amination for discovery.- His recollection was fresh- His evidence, which

you can refer to, leaves no doubt that lie understood at that time that the bor-

ing had taken place. If you remxember, the boring was done under, his iii-

structions, the shavings were returned. to him, taken from each boring, and
had a number on, so that each bag of shavings was nunibered with the numuber

corresponding with the particular beam. I do not read it out to you to oc2upy

vour time unnecessarily, but I read it carefully last night, and you will have

the evidercç. He savs he understood the boring had been done according to
his instrrctions, and this beam amongst others, had been bored. Then the

evidence to the contrary consists of the statements of persons who said that

they saw the two portions of the beani afterwards and they saw' no hole. Somle

of these persons were not looking for a hole, and others were, and did not see

it; and the question for yu on that point is whether the beam baving been
brokeu at that rotten place where it evidently was rotten, whether the -portion

being shorn off-as the expression is-was not shorn to such an extent as to

carry away the surrounding portions, so that the auger hole would not be per-
ceptible there. An inch and a quarter auger liole iii rotten wood just where 40

the whole is, night-but,. of course, it is for you to say-easily not be ascer-

tainable, because, being among the breakage-the part being shorn-it dis-

297



. à"--,



appeared. I direct you to the evidence of Mr. Warner on that point pp. 9, 10
and 23.

"Q Would you explain a little more fully to the jury the
condition of that beain a t 3 ? A The condition of that beam at

-3-was one of-extreme rottenness, apparently the paint on it had
held it together, that is about all that remained. It was simply
a very thin shell, perhaps, in spats an inch all round (sound ?)
and the balance was rotten wood that you could shove your
finger into. That was the condition I found that beam in at that
end. At the other- end there was decay round the hanger
holes and the holes for the lateral braces.

"Q How did the end which was sheared off, which is this
end (this represented No. 3), about where was it sheared? By
sheared you mean broken ? A Yes."

On page io there is this reference:

" Q The other one, No. 3, was broken at the Gorge end, 20
where Mr. Cox said he bored-is that correct? A Yes."

That shows the breaking was done where the auger hole was said to be,
and it is for you to say whether, under tho3e circumstances, it might not have
disappeared, being rotten. And the other Eide of it is in cross-examination:

"Q And you did not find any break in this little auger
hole, if there was one there? A I don't know, as I say, any-
thing about an auger hole, because I didn't find it. The chances
are, however, fromn the condition in which that stringer was, you
could have knocked six inches off the rotten end of it and wiped
out the auger hole completely; it may have done so.

Then Mr. Lockwood too, on page 49

"Q What aboat 3 ? A Threz was an old beam and was
broken off-sheared off at the hanger on the upstream or Gorge
side of the bridge.

40
"Q Inside or outside of the hanger-sheared off, or how?

A Well, it was sheared off. It does not say here in my notes,
but it was sheared off right at the hanger. Von could see one of
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the hanger holes still in the end of the beani, on one of the ends.

"Q What condition was number three in ? A Very rotten.

"Q How was the end where it had been sheared off as com-
pared with the other end ? A It was very rotten."

And page 71

"Q Thêfact of your not noticing any trace of it, it wou d not Io
follow one wav or the other, as to whether the hole w there,
Mr. -Lockwo:>d ? A The hole might not have been th e at the
time I saw it, the wood was very rotten it was she red right
out.-

And so broken up you could not tell ? A Ves, sir it
might have beein there and I not notice it, and it might have
been sheared ont entirely."

Then Yorke, page 237 20

Q Did you see this broken floor beam, Mr. Yorke, that
has been referred to ? A Yes, sir.

Q Did you find any auger holes in it ? A No.

Q Did you examine it at all carefully ? A I examined
it, yes.

" Q And did not find any auger hole in it? A No, sir.

If you consider that at any length, you should read the whole of Mr. Yorke's

evidence. It is not very long, and you will see it bears upon that question.
Thei there is Mr. Gore's evidence, pp. 325 and. 327.

Q Was there anypart of the beam missing"-that is the
one in which the boring is said to have been done "I mean to say

was there anything subtracted from its entire length ? A Well,
perhaps nothing but what night have been sheared away from it 40
when the hanger pulled through it.

Then again

299



t

c. »

L



Q Do you think it. was possible that that auger hole was
there without your seeing it, filled with oakum ? A I certainly
never saw it and never heard of it before.

" Q Dîd you look for it? A I did not look for it, because
I never heard of it.

Then there is Mr. Bell's evidence, 244

Q You saw the two.portions of it. Were you able to say Io
from your examination whether the two portions represented the
beam? A Why, yes.

Q Well, that is to say, whether they would have been
capable of having been put together again in their original form?
A Oh, no ; you could see that the one piece belonged to the
other.

"Q You could see that the one piece belonged to the other?
A Yes; and you could see likewise the mark of the suspender 20

on it.

" Q And the mark of the fracture? A Yes; and no doubt
the beam was rotten.

Page 24.5

"Q .And what conclusion did you come to? A I came to
the conclusion that there was no hole bored there.

30

Mr. Taylor: I might ask your lordship if you think it would be right-

Court : No; please do not interrupt me. As I said berore, I read over
this evidence last night, and it took a long time, because vou, gentlemen (to
jury), might be afraid, having a great mass of cvidence before you and not being
familiar with it, to hunt for such portions as were material; and I made a note

of the portions of the evidence to which I wished to direct attention;. but I am

by no ineans saying that is all, but am only making sufficient references to

enable you to get the opinion of the witnesses. And I again ask you. in all

earnestness if you have any trouble upon it, to look at all the evidence, and
that you will easily find from the references I give. The next is 318

Q I ask you, as a result of your examination, would it have
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been possible to have had an auger hole approximately that close
to the hanger hole on the Gorge side, without your having seen
it." Mr. Bell says : "No; I do not think so. I think if he had
bored a hole of that size I would have found it out.

Then page 323

A juror: Would the length of the two pieces be the
length of the whole bear ? A If they had been taken up and
put together, I believe they would. 10

" Q But youdo not knowit; youdid not measure? A No;
I do not know it; I did not put them togeiher.

"Was there any hanger hole on the short piece ? Did you
see a section or sign of the hanger holes ? A On the broken
end.

The next is 278-9
20

Q Do you mean to say it was impossible for an auger
hole to have been there "-being cross-examined by Mr. Davis-
'and you h-ave not found it? A I would not say it was im-

possible, but I went specially to see if it had been bored.'

Now that, of course, both parties have deliberately elected to rely upon,
that is to say, the -answer you may give to this question. And-if yotu have any
serious doubt now as to what the effect of the evidence is, both parties, I am
sure you will agree-are entitled to this-that you should read over all the
evidence. Vou have heard what the counsel have said-there· are sonie other 30
portions of the evidence thev think material, it is not necessary to remind
you, as counsel do not, of your sworn duty, butit would be your swcrn duty
and, more-than that, fair play, and the references I have given will enable vou
to get at the rest which precedes or follows.r

Now, the next question-to keep you only a few niiutes on my accourit

and voûrs-is the ilth:-

Did the boring of such hole cause the bearm to become
rotten.

And I can only say, as I did with reference to some -earlier question, that
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that is not a matter seriously disputed. We all know as a matter of common
sense a boring of that kind, left wiihout plugging it up, would catise the beam
to becoine rotten, Using the language of Mr. Warner at p. 14, that is what
would happen.

"Q What would be the necessarv result of such a hole as
that, reiainiiig, in the wav the evidence has shown, foi four
years, especially in a wet climate ? A It would i'ncrease the-
deterioration-the rottenness.

10
That brings nie to the last question, and when I spoke of the seriousness

of the other questions, of course .1 meant taken in connection with the last
question: "What was the imnediate cause of the accident ? " -Mr. Macdonell,
for the plaintif says the immediate cause of the accident was the rottenness of
that beam 3 -which was caused by the boring, and he sa7ys iI do not agree
with hin, I may say in point of law-but that not here or there) tlat the
plaintiff cannot recover unless that is made out. Now, that is the pint upon
which counsel have elected to fight this battle, and you have to take it as
counsel have told you. This is a verv serious question for you, as. was plainly 20
put by Mr. Taylor, and vou ought to give it vour best attention and I 'am sure
you will. The references upon this question are these-

"Q (Mr. Warner, p. 13): That stringer breaking, as vou
have described it, either one or the other broke either over the
floor beam 2 or 4, does that either corroborate vour view as to the
breaking of the floor beam 3 being the original cause, or does it
have the opposite effect ? A I believe the floor beam broke at
No. 3 on the Gorge side, that threw the weight on the stringers,
one of which was continuous froI 2 to 4; the other was a butt 30
joint, a broken joint on that floor beam, so that it left this string-
er without su'port at all, and the weight of the car simply went
down through it, and breaking the stringer either at that point or
that (indicating.)"

And then on the next page, 15:-

"Q It is a matter of opinion I am asking you now; I arn
not asking you to swear to any fact, but vour opinion. Consid-
ering that 7 was the sane age and was not bored, and carried the
car-the same load, all right? A If No. 3 had been in the
same condition as No. 7, vou wish to know whether-?
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Q Well, give your answer that way ? A I should say
that the car would. have passed over it with safety.

Q To what do vou attribute the difference in the con-
dition of the wood in the floor-beams No. 3 and No. 7 at the
hangers ? A As I said before, it is due to the increased oppor-
tunity for decay furnished by;the hole-which had been bored in7
the-

Q There are the same holes in the other beams that there xo
are in this? 'A No.

Q Outside of this hole ? A ' Yes.

Q The sane holes are in this beaim as were in the others?
A The conditions were the saiie in the two beams with tflie ex-
ception of this.

Q' That exception being the one hole bored by Mr. Cox,
and it is to ths hole you attribute the difference in the condition 20
of the beams to that hole.

"Q The one bored by Mr. Cox? A Yes.

Then there is p. 21 to give the cross-examination :

" Q You attribute that entirely to the auger hole, do you ?
A I see no other reason.

What was attempted to be done -yas, of course, to verify it two ways-to 3
show that the hole bored by Cox would produce the rottenness of this bean
No. 3, and to negative the existence -of any other cause. P. 35 (this is in cross-
examination):

"Q Do you renember what it was you assigned then? A
To the breaking of the foor-beam I assigned the cause of the
disaster-to the extreme rottenness of the floor-beam.

" Q It is only fair to read you. this (p. 248 of your testi-
mony before the coroner). There is'a broken hanger which Mr. 40
Lockwood said he was not able to locate definitely, but 'it was
somewhere in .the middle of the bridge. That broket stringer
may have corne on 4 or 5 was very pitchy and a very serious



I

a '

'F



knot. But the question of precedence in breaking, that is
whether the hanger or a good beam failed-whether the rotten
part of the floor-beam of the old floor beam gave way, or wvhether
the stringer gave way, it is impossible to determine, now ? A
Pardon me, the question asked me was to determine which
failed first : the hanger, the stringer, or the floor-beam. I had
previously testified that the extreme rottenness of the floor-beam
was the cause ; that I could not, nor did not believe, anyone
could assign the order of precedence of the breaking of any one
of these three parts.

"Q That is what I understood. It is difficult to assign
the order of precedence ? A Clearly impossible.

"Q As a matter of fact, even in the best condition they
could not have supported this load of 22 tons that was on it. I
believe also you testified to this effect:-see if I -have the sub-
stance of your evidence: That the truth of the matter was,
there had been absolutely no maintenance of the bridge, and that 2(
was really the cause of it. It had been allowed to get into a
shockingly bad condition of repair, and now the heavy weights
put upon- it were the cause of the disaster ? A I put it even
stronger than that, if I recollect right. I said it was the most
criminal piece of maintenance I had ever heard of."

Lockwood's, p. 51

"Q From your examination of the woodwork of the bridge
after the span fell, which was the weakest part of that .wood- 3ô
work ? A The rotten floor-beam.

"Q That is at No. 3 ? A Yes, sir.

"Q So that the woodwork was the weakest portion. the
bridge, speaking generally-as between it and the ironwork, and
floor-beam No. 3 was the weakest portion of the woodwork ? A
Undoubtedly.

Q You have heard the evidence as to where the car was 40
atthe time the bridge broke, have you not? A Yes, sir.

Page 53
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" Q You have stated that the hole bored in the way in
which it was, would necessarily cause rot, and that this beam
was the weakest portion of the woodword and the woodwork was
the weakest portion of the bridge. You have also heard where
the car was. From all the evidence that you have heard,- and
from your examination of the bridge, and fron other data which
you have been able to obtain with reference to this matter, what
in your opinion was the first thing to break in that bridge'? A
Floor-beam No. 3. 1o

Q It wouid follow from that, I presume, that you ean
that the breaking.of the floor-beam No. 3 was the substantial
cause of the fall of the bridge? A Was the proximqte cause.

Q And the breaking of floor-beam No. 3 was due, of
course, to rottenness ? A Yes.

"Q You have shown that the rottenness in floor-beain No.
3 at that end where it sheared off was greater than at the other

end, and also greater than the rottenness of floor-beam No. 7,
which had been in the same time ? A Ves, sir.

"Q Bearing all those matters in mind, what was the cause
of this. beam breaking at the particular time at which it broke ?
A The fact that it had been bored in 1892.

Q In the way that has been described ? A Yes, sir."

And page 68 also contains another reference to Mr. Lockwood's evidence 3
upon this point :

"What vas the other reason ? A I have secured addi-
tional evidence in regard to the accident and vwhere the car was
at the time of the accident, and where the car was in the water
after the accident occurred. I' I remember rightly, I based my
theory of the hanger breaking first on the location of the car ; and
I said at the time, if I remember rightly, that floor beam did not'
fall first, because the car had not reached 3. Now, the testi-
mony before the coroner's jury all went to show-at least, nost 40

of it, practically all that I heard-that the car had not reached
the centre of the span, and if the car lad not reached the centre

of the span floor beam 3 could not have been the cause of the
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accident, As a matter of fact, I 'an satisfied now that the car
had passed the centre of the span, and that floor beam 3 was the
cause of the accident."

And page 71 :-

"Q But you do nlot base your whole theory on that fact, do
.yon-about it giving away there-the rotten floor beam? A
Well, I attribute the primary cause of the accident-that is, the
accident happening just at that time-to that hole being bored." 10

Of course, he does not know himself whether he was or not, as he says:
1 have heard the testimony here." Now Mr. Wilnot is questioned as to his.

view of the primary cause of the accident. Vou will find reference to that in
page 25

"Q So from what you have seen and heard you cannot
form ail opinion as to where the weakness was? A I could not
form an opinion as to what caused the destruction of the bridge.

20

Then Mr. Bell, at pp. 255 and 256, who was an expert called for the de-
fendants

"Q I say, from your examination of the wreckage, from
hearing ail the evidence given at the inquest, coupled also with
what you have heard to-day, I ask you what in your opinion was
the member of the bridge that first gave way and precipitated the
disaster ? In other words, what was the direct cause of the acci-
dent ? A I cannot tel you the menber of the bridge that first
gave way, but I have a conviction of what members caused the
disaster, although I may say it is very doubtful too ; it is a very
difficult subject: But I hâve a conviction on my mind as to
which I think was the most likely to cause the disaster; I think
the hip-verticais.

Yon have had it pointed ont to you what they are. You see, he disagrees
with the others. Hïs attention is called on this page to the opinions of the
other experts, and this question is put :

40

Q Do you agree with that ? A No; I do not.

"Q Will you state your reasons ? A Yes; I think that
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from the position of the car trucks it is fair to assume that the
breaking of the hip-verticals at the Esquimalt end pulled the
bearings right off the pier. When the hip-verticals broke one of
them was broken about the nut ; there is a washer plate on top
of the links. The links are †¡¼ feet in length. The weight of
the load is transferred from the top to the bottom chord by means
of this washer plate. There would be force enough there, even
by calculating the least friction there could be, to pull the whole
bearings off the pier. That is my conviction of what de-

stroyed it.

And page 259

"That is to say, you think the hip-vertical gave way ? A
I think that was the nain factor in causing the accident ; but if
vou ask me what part of the bridge broke first, I cannot tell you,
and I believe no man living could tell you."

Now, gentlemen, that finishes the references which I intend to give you,
Of course, you will understand that these opinions of Mr. Lockwood and Mr.
Warner and of Mr. Wilmot and Mr. Bell are opinions of expertq. They give
their opinion with reference to the special knowledge they have as bridge ex-
perts of the capacity of a bridge of this kind, and what would naturally-be ex-
pected to happen,-as regards what gave wav and what was the immediate cause
of the disäster in the way in which this accident occurred. They had the ad-
vantage before giving their opinions of hearing all the evidence and speaking
from their special knowledge and from the evidence given they advan'ce those

opinions. Tvvo of them, Mr. Wilinot and Mr. Bell, cannot say how it hap-

pened. The other two seem to have a pretty firm opinion on the point, which 30

you have heard. These opinions do not bind you, of course. Some of you

may think you are as good judges of how it occurred, and others may rest upon
them. It is for yon to say whether you t7ke their opinions and act upon them

or not.

A good deal of evidence has been given as to how far the tram had got at
the time of the accident. 1 dare sav you, gentlemen, can form a pretty good
opinion for yourselves, apart from the opiiiions of the experts, as to what really

was the immediate cause of the accident. I do not know that anything par- 40
ticularly on the evidence suggests itself to my mind except, I believe, it was

suggested by some witness that the first sound was like a falling or breaking
tree, the suggestion being that it was owing possibly to this beam giving way
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first, which was of wood, and not the hip-vertical, which, of course, is not of
wood.

Now, gentlemen, as regards the amount of damages. In addition to what
I have already told you, you will, of course, understand that this amount given
in evidence of some fifty odd thousand dollars as being required to purchase an
annuîty for life of Dr. Lang is not binding upon you at all. It is simply given
to you as sonething to guide you. It is not really contemplatad that the
plaintiff should, as a matter-of course, be put in the position of beiig furnished
with a sum of money which would provide an income of $280.oo or $300.0 a
,month, wliich, if Dr. Lang had lived to an old age, he might have enjoyed.
We al] know how uncertain a practice is. A doctor's practice, like a lawyer's
practice, or like a inerchant's business, is not.certain at all ; it nay increase or
it may decrease. Tlien there is the chance of death or of illness or soie acci-
dent. On the other hand, there is the chance, of course, that a gentleman in
Dr. Lang's position might have largely increased his practice. Al I can tell.
you is, as I cautioned yon before, that this is purely a question of what is a fair
sum, not in the nature of punishinent, not because of any sentimental consider-
ations, no matter what sympathy y<ou naturally would have for Mrs. Lang and 29

her children. Vou have got to take everything into consideration, and, when
you arrive at the amount you nust deduct from it the $2,500.oo, the-amouit
of the insurancy. And then you will be good enodgh to apportion the dam-
ages-so much to Mrs. Lang and so much to each of the children-you have

their names, I suppose.

Mr. Taylor: My learned friend can hand them in.

Court: The usual way is to give Mrs. Lang so much, then the eldest

child so inuch, and then the next so much, by name. (To Mr. Macdofiell):
If your client is in court you might get those names. (To Jury): I an sorry,
gentlemen, this has been necessarily a tedious trial. It was impossible to have

the life which we had in the former trial, with witnesses going into the box

and giving evidence ; and what presses me is yon may not-it is only human

nature-you may not refer to all the evidence which was not given verbally in
this case, which might otherwise have impressed itself upon vou. I have tried

to press upon you to give the evidence (which I took three or 4 hours last night
to go through), and I ask you again; your most serious and best attention, and
I have no doubt you will do so.

A juror: There is a question I should like to ask, so as to be sure
whether it bas any bearing on the case-if the corporation repaired any part
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of that structure and niot the rest of it, whether in that case they are liable to
damages?

Court I am sorry you misunderstood me. Do not trouble yourselves
about the liability. Von have heard counsel sav they are going to the Privy
Council abouit this, and no doubt they are. I have already stated my view of
the law in the Patterson case, and have given a written judgment. . It was
appealed from, but the Full ourt in Victoria have not given their opinion
upon the appeal, and I might tell you that this case has not changed my mind
at all. The counsel have chosen to fight this battle upon a view of the law 10
which I tell yotu frankly I do not think is a clear exposition of it, but I hope
you will take me seriously. Vou have nothing to do with the law ; the. only
part I have read to von was written down, because I wanted to frame m
language carefully, for a judge.withou.t considering his language carefully may
make a mistake in what he wishes to say. But you have nothing to do with
the law ; the questions are questions of farts, and so drawn to admit of, an
answer "ves" or "no,".but if vou cannot conscientiously answer them with
"yes" or "no " thien put what.vou think is right. But thev we e put so as
to admit of belng answered "ves " or " no," counsel have agreed they should 20
be so put, and I hope you will have no difficultv in answering them that way;
but with the effect of those questions remember von have nothing to do. I
migit tell you what I think the effect will be-I have no doubt-but the Full
Court nay differ from mue, and the Stipreme Court of Canada may differ from
them, and the Privy Council from them all. But what we want to, do is to
get answers which will put the higher court, which will have to deal with this,
in the position of being able to tell what the law is-if we find the facts for
thern they will be able to find the riglits Of these parties without sending them
back for another expensive trial, and all you have to do, gentlemen, is to find
those facts. 3

The names of these children are here, gentlemen. Thejury, being .masters
of their own. time, I think I might very well adjourn till 3 o'clock, and let
them go away and come back when they please-there will be a roon there-and
discuss it when convenient. I will be in my room, and if von want mv assist-
ance, gentlemen, let me know.

Mr. Cassidy (to Court): There is one point which seemus to me-to be im-
portant : It was ou the question of the flooring and the possibility of its being 4
held up by the chords. The evidence of Mr. Bell was that the chord links
were so constructed they could not possibly hold up the floor, except-
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Court: Do not tell me what Mr. Bell or anybody else said. Vou know
perfectly well you are iot regular. Vou ask me to do something-what is.it?

Mr. Cassidy : I ask your lordship to read-

Court: No, I won't do anything of the kind. As I said before, I won't
read anything further. I was not bound to read what I did upon either side.
You gentlemen were supposed to refer to the evidetice in the sanie way, and
you would have been required to do it, if given verbally, but as a special in-
dulgence I did refer to particular portions of the evidence. Now, if vou ask t
me to refer to some more and I agree to that, counsel on the other side will
then want to do away with the effect of that,'aid get into something else, and
we will get into a squabble and a wrangle. I decline to do anything of the
kind, but I do say again (.to jury) triat vou read all the evidence.

Mr. Cassidy : Of course, your lordship is an are that the rule is we can-
not take advantage of anythiing we do not put before your lordship, but as it
won't affect the jury at all, I will come hereafter and put the objections.

20Court: No, if voti have any objections I want them taken before the jury
leaves, in a case of this kind. Usuallv I do not like that practice but it is a
special jury and, I want them to hear everything that goes on.

Mr. Cassidyýz I object to non-direction. I say that is necessarv that
yoin: lordship should explain the law to the jury-

court: 2Now, Mr. Cassidy, you state the proposition of law which you
wishlme to leave to the jury, and I will tell you whether I will do it or not,
but do not let us enter into any desultory discussion. Ask me to leave to the
jury something which you sav is law.

Mr. Cassidy: Well, I want to put it in this way-

Court: No. (To jury): Yon can go, gentlemen. If I find it necessarv
to bring you back to tell you about anything which I have not done about the
law, that is my responsibility with which you have nothing to do.

Mr. Cassidv: I am quite ready to do that, if your lordship is ready for
me to put it that wav : This is the scope of my objection- 40

Court: Never mind about the- scope. It does not require aniy explan-
ation. If I cannot see the scope of it, I will he delighted to hear you explain,
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though it may have such novelty tliat I may not be able to grasp it atoice, but
I will take my chance of that.

Mr. Cassidy: I object to your lordship having declined to charge the jury
on the law at all.

Court: This is extremely irregular, and you know it well. If you say I
did not charge the jury properly, that is mis-direction, and tell me what prop-
osition I did not leave to them. If non-direction, tell me, in equally intellig-
ible language, what you wish me to tell them.

Mr. Cassidy: Your lordship onght to explain the law of negligence to the
jury, and that assuming th t the action lies against the defendant corporation
at all, and thàt the act of C was the act of the corporation, that they would
have to find that in relation to the purpose for which that boring was made-
that it was done without taking a reasonable mount of care.

Court: Does that finish the proposition ? I think that was sufficiently
left to them. Now, the next one.

Mr. Cassidy: Your lordship ought to have pointed out tothe jury the way
in which Cox plugged that hole as appears from p. 32 of the de bene esse--that
he plugged it with a stick and pounded it in with a hammer, and also that he
put tar-

Court: No one knows better than you that I ought not to do anything of
the kind, and that a judge is not obliged to refer to the facts at all unless lie
chooses. I have given all the references I intend to, and I will not leave any-
thing more to thei. 3c'

Mr. Cassidy: Without reading that reference again, your lordship ought
to have charged thé jury that unless they could come to the conclusion that that
method'of doing the, thing' was negligent and-without consideration for safety
and likely to cause disaster, they should a verdict for the defendants.

Court: I think that part of the case has been sufficiently left to them,
Mr. Cassidy.

Mr; Cassidy: Your.lordship is putting the first question to the jury--"did ,.

the corporation after the extension of the city limits, control and manage the
bridge as if owners thereof?" Vour lordship told them that there could be no
doubt that they did-
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Court: No, I did not say so. - What I did say was as I understood I did
not think thàt,'was seriously disputed, but it was for them to say.

Mr. Cassidy: As to its not being seriously disputed-everything is
disputed.

Court: I speak with all respect for you, but I hope you do not intend to
waste my time by making objections of this kind. Yeu know perfectly well
I had a right to tell the jury in tbe strongest possible language my view -of the
facts. I might have gone further and told them that those facts were so clear [o
that nien of ordinary intelligence should iot have the slighest hesitation about
their findings; and might have said to them that in so stating I was nerely giv-
ing my own view, and was not giving it to them as a direction.

Mr' Cassidy: The facts are perfectly clear as to what took place. ý There
is no doubt about theJ:by-law beiigpassed about the extension of the city linits
and the rest, but the point I want to put is this-that that does not make the
city, as a matter of law-

Court: I started by saying that the questions as framed carefully withdrew 20
from them the very point you are upou now; which was a question of law,
which you know I must determine in the first place, and the appellate court
afterwards. I decline to charge them any differently upon that point. You
know if I had charged them upon the law, in view -of the opinion which I
expressed in the case of Patterson, the only charge I would have given them
would have been that the defedants were liable on the admitted facts; and I
do not suppose you wantme to do that. I have seen no reason to change my
opinibn since the Patterson case.

Mr.. Cassidy: In regard to question 3. "Was such use-y the company
by agreement with the corporation " Your lordship told them that there was no
doubt in law that the city had such control over the bridge that if they chose
they could have stopped tramcars running over it.

Court: Vou dispute that as a proposition of law ?

.Mr. Cassidy: Yes.

Court: Well, whatever doubt there may be. upon this case. I shall be 40
very much surprised to find that the proposition I mentioned admits of any
serious dispute. .I am of a very strong opinion that that is not arguable.
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-Mr. Cassidy: That may be s% but still-

Court: Well, I decline to withdraw it, at all events. Now, is there any
thing else ?

Mr. Cassidy: Question 4. "Had the corporation knowledge of the

insufficient strength of the bridge in time to have prevented such use by the
company before the accident ?" Of course it really goes to an objection to that
question, and all questions of that kind, that we say there being no obligation-

10
Court: Mr. Cassidy, vou cannot object to any question I choose to leave

-in point of fact, you agreed to these questions, but, as you are aware, a judge
is the absolute master of what questions lie shall leave to the jury.

Mr. Cassidy: But we say to leave tiat question that way with the explan-
ation which your lordship gives to the jury amounts to mis-direction.

Court: Why ?

Mr. Cassidy : Because we say that at law the corporation are .not lable 20
to re-coistruct that bridge in any way. In other words, they were entitled t,>
leave it exactly as they found it. It did not matter whether plans were ·lying
over iii the Governm-ent office, showing it was unfit for traffic, or not, and it
was misdirection to tell the jury so.

Court: I may have been wrong in ny view of the law, and you may be
right in yours, but froin either point of view it could not possibly -be mis-direg-
tion. I do not follow you.

Mr. Cassidy: Q It is misdirection to put a question of that kind which 30
makes an element in the case of soniething which is not-

Court: That is a question of law with which the jury have nothing to
do.

Mr. Cassidy: It is immaterial, in other words, whether those plans were
there or not, and whether the corporation might have become aware of the
condition of the bridge. It places no liability upon them.

Court : .No, I over-rule that. Pass .on. The jury have nothing to do 40
with the effect of it. The Full Court, I was glad to see, did not suggest any
change in those questions, but were satisfied with them.
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Mr. Cassidy The same objection covers all the rest of the questions,
down to 8.

Court: Well, I decline to change my view. I cannot see how vou are
injured. If I could see that you would be, in the remotest way, it would be-
but I do not. The questions may be perfect nonsense for the purpose of the
verdict, or they nay be proper questionls, but from either point of view they
cannot possibly, as I conceive, injure you. They are purely questions of fact
and I decliine to change them.

10

Mr. Cassidy: I must come back agaii, my lord, I am sorry to say, to that
point-of Mr. Bell's-as to the question did the changes materially reduce the
strength of the bridge ? Vour lordship put it to the jury 'that as far -as the
stringers were concerned it was really not claimed they did reduce it, but as
far as the cuttinrg of the floor was concerned, that was the point ; and in the
face of the evidence of that floor being able in 1892 to carry the car over, it
was for them to say whether it might not have carried them over by falling
down on the chord links at that point. Mr. Bell, who was the only witness
called upon that, exanined the bridge and found the chord links were so con- 20
structed that there were four in the centre and only ·two at the side, and hie
floorwouldi-fall clean throtigh-was not supported by the links at 'all. I sub-
mit, at all events, it was proper for your lordship to put that to the jury.

Court: Vou say that the only witness who gave evidence about it was
Mr. Bell. It would ha-ve been for the jury to see' whether other evidence was
given upon that point to which reference was made. But your objection is', I
did not leave that evidence as favorably for you-considered from Vour point
of view-as you think it is entitled to be left. I have the misfortune to differ
froin you, aid decline to change it3

Mr. Cassidy: There is one more thing I have forgotten, and that is in
vour lordship's dealing with theevidence which was given at the previous trial
of Mr. Lockwood, Mr. Warner and aIl the rest, speaking about the effect of
that boring of the hole,.etc., your lordship did not draw the jury's attention to

t.he.fact that they were dealing with a different state of facts in that case.

Court: I was not obliged to do that; but i took three or four hours last
night to read through all the evidence that the jury might have the benefit of
the references I have made. I toid thein I had not exhausted all the evidence, 40

but that they must take that evidence referred to with the rest of the evidence;
it was only as a help to them. I assure you if i had expressed my opinion on
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the merits of the case,. you would not have been more satisfied than you are,
apparently, in what I said. It reallv is an undefended case, froim my point of
view ; but in consideration of thf'act that Iwas on the Patterson case, I think
I was very mild in my remarks. What about the motion for non-suit ? Do
you think it is any use making a motion? I am bound to adhere to my opinion
that the admitted facts nake the city liable, and I have seen no reason to
change that. I do not know, of course, wlat the opinion of the Full Cou'rt
will be, but it seems to me to be useless for you gentlemen to try to ask my
view upon that point. I think the better way is to'have no formal agreement.

Mr. Cassidy: At all events, my lord, we would have to wait for the ver-
dict of the jury.

Court- Ves.

Jury retired at 12:35 p.m., to reassemble at their leisure, and Court ad-
journed at i p.m. to sit again at 3 p.m. to receive verdict.

After Recess. Jury returned into Court at 4:5 p.m. with the foliowing
verdict: 20

i Q. Did the corporation after the extension of the city limits
control and manage the bridge as if owner thereof ? A. Yes.

2 Q. Was the bridge as constructed of sufficient strength' for
safe use by the tramway cornpany in the way in which it was
used up to the time of accident. A. No.

3 Q. Was sucb use by the compan by agreement with the
corporation? A Ves. 3

4 Q. Had the corporation knowledge of the insufficient
strength of the bridge in time to have prevented such use by the
coipanv before the accidént? A. Ves.

5 Q. Would the corporation if exercising ordinary cae' have
become aware of the actual condition of the bridge in time~to
have prevented such use by the company before the accident?
A. Yes.

6 Q. Did the corporation before permitting tramcars to pass
over the bridge make any enquiry whether it was of sufficient
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strength for Fafe use for that purpose? A. No.

7 Q. Could such knowledge have been easily acquired hy the
corporation? A. Yes.

8 Q.- Had the corporation at the time of the accident suffered
the bridge to fall into sich disrepair as by reasoni thereof to have
Lecome dangerous for such use by the company? A. Yes.

9 Q. Did the changes made in the bridge byw the corporation, Io
and, under an arrangemeiit with it, by the company, materially
reduce the strength of the bridge to support a trancar passing
over it? A, Yes.

10 Q. Vas the hole bored by.Cox, the city carpenter, in beam

No. 3, as described by imiî? A. Yes.

11 Q. Did the boring of such hole causý the beani to become
rotten? A. It materially assisted.

20

Q. What was the immediate cause'of the accident? A. The
breaking of floor beam No. 3.

Total ramages awarded $22,,500.00, less life insurance, $2,-
500.00. Balance, $2o,ooo.o, divided as follow; : Mrs. L-irg,

$7,500.oo; .Jennie, $2,50C.00; John, $2,50.oo; James, $2, -

500-00; Willia, $2,500.oo; Robert, $2,500.00.
(Sgd.) WALTER TAYLOR, Foreman.

Court: Is there anything, Mr. Macdonelli and Mr. Mason, which vou 30
desire to mention now, before I discharge the jury'?

Mr. Macdonell I have nothing, my lord.

Mr. Mason: No, Ihave nothing.

Jury discharged.

Mr. Macdonell : My lord. I make the usual motion for judgment.

40
Court: Ves, I reserve judgment. If he FuIl Court uphold my judgment

iu the ôther case, of course judgment will go. Otherwise, it may not.
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JUDGMENT.

The.........day of.,.......... ...

This action having on the 12th, 13th and 14thdays of October, 1897, beentried before the Honorable Mr. Justice McColl with a special Jury of the Cityof Vancouver and the jury having found for the plaintiff on the questions sub-nmtted by his Lordship, Mr. Justice McColi, and the said Mr. Justice McColl [ohaving ordered that judgnent be entered for the plaintiff for $2o,.ooo and costs.

THEREFOR l IT IS A DJUDGED tlat the plaiutiff recoveragainst thedefendants $20,ooo.and costs to be taxed.
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Notice of Appeal.

Dated, 22nd November, r897.

TAKE NOTICE that the defendant will appeal to the Fill Court at the
next sittings thereof, commencing on Monday, the ioth day of Jaiiuary, 1898,
at the hour of eleven o'clock in the forenoon, or so soon thereafter as counsel

can be heard, at the Court House, Bastion Square, Victoria, B. C., by counsel 20
fôr the above-named defendant'corporation from the judgnent and order of His
'Lordship the Hon.-Mr. Justice McColl, pronounced on Saturday, :the 6th day
of November instant, that judgment be entered for the plaintiff against the de-
fendant for $20,oao and costs upon the findings of the jury, and that judgment
should be entered for the defendant corporation on the following grouinds:-

i. That no power, duty or liability in relation to the bridge in question, or
in regard to roads and bridges gehierally, was giveii to or imposed upon the de-
fendants by their Act of Incorporation, nor was any cause of action given to
persons injured by negligence of the corporation in regard thereto. 30

2. That it was beyond the corporate powers of defendant to meddle with
the structure of the bridge at all, and the things, done to the bridge which are
complained of were the personalacts of those persons who did thein or ordered
them to be done, and not acts of the defendant corporation.

3. That if the defendant did assume to perform the public duty, thereto-
fore performed by the Provincial Government, of maintainiig the public high-
ways and bridges within their c9rporate limits, they are not as such public

highway authorities, liable to mem bers of the public in damxages' for injuries
caused by any negligent act either of misfeasance or non-feasance in doing that
wCrk
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-Dated this 22nd day of November, 1897.

Rooms 9 and r i Five Sisters Block,
Solicitor for the Defeudant.

To Messrs. Macdonell & Deacon,
Plaintiff.

C. DUBOIS MASON.
30

Government- Street, Victoria, B.C.,

Vancouver, B. C., Solicitors for ~the
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4. That the disaster if attributable to the Defendant Corporation at ail,
was caused by mere acts of non-feasance on its part.

6. That the findings of the jury are inconclusive and insufficient to slip-
port the judgment.

6. That tlhere is no flnding of the jury that any·of the acts complained of
were negligently doue and the evidence shows that they were carefully done.

7. That there is no finding of the jury that any of the acts complained of
caused the disaster.

Or why there should not be a new trial upon the:grounds

i. Of non-direction by the learned trial judge in refusing to charge the
jury at ail as to what in law constitutes negligence, and in neglecting to leave
the essential question, of negligence to the jury either by properly framxed ques-
tions or otherwise,

2. Of non-direction in refusing to point out to the jury that the opinions
of the experts appearing in their evidence taken in the case of Patterson v.
Victoria and put in evidence in this case, to the effect that the boring of the
hole in beam 3'by Cox caused the disaster, were based upon the evidence of
Cox given in that case, which substantially differs -from his evidence in this
case.


